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To be the most innovative, customer centric
and responsible bank in Pakistan.

lissi

Our mission is to be a world class bank providing
innovative financial services to our customers through
a motivated team of professionals, supported by the
latest technology, whilst maintaining high ethical
standards, creating value for all our stakeholders, and
contributing to the society through responsible and
sustainable development.
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Mr. Kalim-ur-Rahman
Chairman

Mr. Kallm-ur-Rahman was formerly President &
CED of J5 Bank Limited fram 2010 to 201 3, and
has been a Director of the Bank since then, He
was elected Chairman af the Board of Directors
I August 2019,

He is a seasoned banker with 50 years of
experience in both International and domestic
banking. He started his banking career with
National & Grindlays Bank in 1963 as a
Management tealnee. After nearly three yaars of
banking training in Pakistan and London, he
was appolnted a covenanted officer of the Bank
In 1966, and served In Karachf, Peshawar and
Landon In senior pasitions till 1978, when he
rasigned and Jolned Middfe East Bank, Dubal as
Chief Manager, and subsequently promoted as
Assistant Gerera! Manager - UAE Operatians,

During his tenure with Middle East Bank in
Dubal, he conceived and implemented the
onlfine computerization of the UAE hranchas in
1980, being one of the first in UAE banking. In
1985, he was posted to Karachf as General
Manager - South Asia, and tilt 1991 saw Middle
East Bank, Pakistan grow Its profitabifity by 35%
per anaum CAGR from only three branches in
the country. After 1991, Mi. Kalim-ur-Rahman
served In sevarsl Pakistanl banks in senior
positions, including as the Prasident & CEQ of
Askari Commercial Bank fram 1999 to 2006,
during which perod the Bank saw a
phenomenal growth in its assets {409 CAGR)
and profitability (479% CAGR). He subsequently
served asthe General Manager of Arab Emirates
Investment, Dubal 2007-2008,

Mr. Kalim-ur-Rahman was the first Secretary
General of the Pakistan Banks Assoclation 2006-
2007

Mr. Kalim-ur-Rahman did his Senior Cambridge
from Burn Hall School, Abbottabad and 8.5¢,
{Hons) from Goverament College, Lahore, He
had a first cdass academic career throughout,
and his name is inscribed on the Callege Roll of
Honar, He s a Fellow of the Institute of Bankers
in Pakistan and holds the Director's certification
from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance as well as the Institute of Directors,
Londan.

Mr.Xalim-ur-Rahman Is a member of the Board's
IT Committee and the HR, Remuneration &
Mominaticn Committes.

Dirgetorships In Other Companies:
Excel Labs (Pvt) Limited
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Mr. Adil Matcheswala
Mon-Executive Director

Mr. Adil Matcheswala Js the CEO and
faunding Director of Spead {Private) Limitad,
a retail and distribution company that is
Incorpasated in Pakistan. The Company's
pottfolio  includes rnumerous  leading
International brands such 2s Mike, Adidas,
Tag Heuer, Chailes & Kelth, Pedro and Timex.

He started his professional career in the
financlal services industry in 1992 and until
2002 was the Head of the Equity Sales
Diviston of Jahanglr Siddiqul & Co. Ltd.
(formerly Bear Stearns lahanglr Siddigul
Lirmited).

He has previeusly served as the Chalrman of
the Board and Chalrman of the Audit
Committee of J5 Global Capital Lid. as welf
a3 a Director of B5JS Balanced Fund Ltd.

He has served an the Board of J5 Bank Ltd
since 2012, He [s also a member of the
Boards  Audit Committee  and  HA,
Remuneration & Neminatlon Committee of
the Bank.

Mr. Matcheswala graduated from Brown
Unlversity with an A.B. in Ecenomics.

Diractorships in Other Companies:
Spead (Private) Limited

My, Ashraf Nawabi
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ashraf Nawabil [$ a seasoned banker,
working In United Arsh Emirates since 1967,
He has warked in: United Bank Limited/RCCI,
a3 CEO for their Middle East Reglons. Presently
he Is working as Advisor in Ernirates NBD Bank
P5C, which Is largest Commercial Bank In the
Middte East & Africa.

Mr. Nawabd is also Board Member of Alliance
Insurance RS.C Dubal. He also was Board
member of Unlon National Bank Abu Dhabl,
tha third largest Bank of WAE. for almaost ten
years, Apait from this he is CEO/Director of
First Jamia Services Limited Lahare.

Mr. Nawabi, in caordination with Dubal ruling
famifymembers and businessmen establishad
International Schoe! of Chousifat in Lahore in
1991, This school In ene of its kind in the
entlre subcontinent, mparting high quality
education to students for entiy into leading
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Universities of Europe and smerica. Further
branches of International Schoo! of Choueifat
are planned to be openad In different cities of
Paldstan in next few yaars,

On his own, with an upto date personal
centribution of almost PKR 200 million he has
astablished KPSS School In Chakwal,
specifically to impart quality education ta
under previliged children of the area. This
School has enrolment of over 400 pupils
which wilf gradually increase to 1500 students
In next fewryears. To accommaodate increase In
students, substantlal expansion {s underway
toincrease the capacity of school.

Global Institutions, Pakistanl <corporates,
businessmen and individuals from Pakistan
and abroad continue to donate substandial
amwounts for this noble causa. Further schools
are also planned to be opened In fess
developed areas.

Mr.MNawabibas served on the Board of J5 Bank
Ltd sin¢e 2007, He is also a Chairman of the
Board's Risk Management Cammittes,

Directarships in Other Companias:
First Jamia Services bimited, Lahore
Alliance Insurance Co. PS.C. Dubal,

Mr. G.M, Silkander
Independent Director

Mr. G.M. Sikander has been a career civil
servant having served the Government of
Paklstan v varlous capacities for 39 years. He
retired as Federal Secretary of the Housing
and Works Division,

He has served as Assistant Commissioner and
Deputy Commissioner 'n varlous distrlcts of
Punjab and contributed significantly towards
sacial sector development. While serving as
Deputy Cominissioner of Kasur he single
handedly established a public schoal on self-
help basis which has now becorne a Degree
Coliege with almost 5,000 stedents.

Mr. Sikander has previously served as
Secretary to the Goverament of tha Punjab
and {{PK| previnces and headed the
departments of Servicas, Establishment,
Information & Tourism, Housing & Physteal
Plapning, Baitul Maal, Socia) Security and
Cooporatives. He also sarved as Principal
Secratary to five Chlef Mintsters in the Punjab
far a record period of nearly 10 years.
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Mr. Sikander is also a Trustee of the Hamza
Faundatian [n Lahare which is a foundation
dedicated to supporting and educating deaf
and mute students and a Life Trustee of the
Marafie Foundation Pakistan which is engaged
in the development of public health and
education sectors in Gilgit-Baltlstan,

Mr, Sikandey has served on the Board of J3 Bank
Ltd since 2013, He Is also a member af the
Board’s Audit Consmlitee and HR, Remuneration
& Nomlination Committee of tha Bank.

Mr. Sikander recelved his MA. In Political
Sefence from Funjab Unlversity and completed
aDiplomain Development Administration from
the University of 8irmingham. He has also
completedthe Advanced Mational Managernent
Course from the former Pakistan Administrative
Staff College Lahore and a speclal course In
Development Administration fromThe Natisnal
Institute of Public Administration. Furthermaore,
he also holds the Director’s Certification from
the Institite of Chartered Accountanis of
Pakistan {ICAP).

Directorships in Other Companies:
il

Mr. Hassan Afzal

MNon-Executive Director

Mr. Hassan Afzal 15 the Chief Technology Officer
of Afinik, a company that offers Al products to
transform how enterprises pair employess and
custormers, Mr, Hassan has been responsible for
the companys  product  englineering,
professional services, and production support
areas since 2007. Prior to joining the Afiniti
team, Mr. Hassan held senfor management
positians with Deloitte Consulting, Commarce
Gne and Amerdcan Management Systems. At
Deloitte Consuliing, Mr. Hassan advised the
C10s of Forlune 500 companies on technelogy
strategy, merger integration, and entesprise
systam fmplementations, As Sentor Principal at
American Management Systems (AMS) Mr.
Hassan was responsible for the systems
deplayment function of AMSS Healthcare
product  offerfngy. As  Senfer Director  at
Commaerce Ona, Mr. Hassan was responsible for
professional seyvices engagements in the Oif
and Gas sector,

Mr, Hassan was efectad as director on the Board
af IS Bank Ltd 1n 2019, He s also the Chalrman
of the Beards Informatlon  Technalogy
Committee of the Bank,

Mr. Hassan holds a MSE In Computer and
Informatlon Systems fromn the Unijversity of
Pennsylvania and a BS In Electrical Engineering
from the University of VirgInia.

Directorships In Other Companies:
N

Mr, Munawar Alam Siddiqui

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Munawar Alam Siddiqui, retired as an Alr
Commodore from the Pakistan Alr Force (PAF)
in 2003, His fast post was Assistant Chief of Air
Staff {Administration} at Pakistan Alr Force
Headquarters. For his meriterious services to
{he PAF, he was awarded Tamgha-e-Imtiaz
{Milltary) and Sitara-e-Imtiaz [Mifitary).

He was cammissloned in tha GO P Branch of
the Pakistan Air Force in 1974, He s a qualified
flying instructor and has flown over 8000
hours on different aircraft types including
C-130, Boeing and Dassault airceaft. He has
served a5 a WIP and Presidentlal Pilot during
his temure of service and has held varlous key
command and staff appointments in the PAF,
He served as Director of Air Transport at Afr
Headguartars from 1996 to 1998 and
commanded an operational alr force hase
with over 8,500 personnel from 2000 to 2002,

Prasently Mr Slddiqul s Adviser to JS
Investrments Limited and was Chalrman of JS
Imvestments Limited from 2004 ta 2013,
Currentlyhe is Chairman of Peregrine Aviation
fPut.) Limited.

As part of his socal comimitment, he works as
a director on the boards of Fakhe-e-Imdad
Foundation, Karachi Educalion Inltiative,
Karachl School for Business & Leadership and
Karlgar Tralning Institute. He Is also & Trustes
of the Cardiovascular Foundation,

My, Siddiqui has served an the Board of 15
Bank Ltd since 2016, He Is also a membaer of
the Boards Audit Committea and Risk
Management Committee of the Bank.

Mr. Siddiqui holds a B.Sc. {Honours) in War
Studies from Karachi University, a B.Sc
Avlonics from Peshawar Univarsity, an M. Se,
in Dafance and Strategle Studies from Quaid.
e-Azam Unlversity and an M. S<. fn Strateglc
Studies from Karachi Universily. He is also an
alumnus of the Mational Defence University.

Birgetorships in Other Companies:
Jahangle Stddiqui & Sons Limited

Fakhr-e-lmdad Foundation

15 ABAMCO Commadities Limlted
Karachi Educatlan Initiative
Pereqrine Aviation (Private] Limited
Karigar Training Institute.

Ms, Margis Ghaloo
Independent Director

Ms. Nargis Ghaloo is a retired senior civil
servant having served the Government of
Pakistan in varfaus capacities for 36 years, She
retired as the Managlng Director Fubllc
Frocurement Regulatory Authority,
Government of Pakistan. Ms Ghaloo was
Chaitperson  of State  Life  Insurance
Corporatian of Pakistan, Pakistan's largest life
assurer, from 2014 to 2016, She Is 2lso the
Chalrperson of Alpha insurance Company
Limited.

Ms, Ghaloo jolned the Civil Services of
Pakistan In 1982, has many years of
professional experience serving in senfor
management positions with provincial as well
as faederal government departments in
diversified fields such as public secior
management,  administratlon,  financial,
Judicial, health, Insusance and planning.

Ms. Ghaloo did her Masters jn English from
University of Sindh In 1981 and is a Certlfied
Directos from The Palklstan Institute of
Corporate Governance (PICGY and helds
Certificate of Corporate Govermance from
INSEAD and also holds a Certificate in
Company Directlon from Institute of Directors,
UK.

s, Ghaloo has served on the Board of IS Bank
Ltd sin¢e 2016, She s also a member of the
Boards  Audit  Committee  and  Risk
Management Committes of the Bank.

Directorships in Other Companies:
Algha Insurance Campany Limited
Hinopak Mators Limited
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Mr. Sohail Aman
Independent Director

Born in 1959, Air Chief Marshal Sohail Aman
recelved hls intermediate and graduate
education at PAF College, Sargodha,
Subsequently, he |oined Pakistan Alr Force
and graduated from PAF Academy in 1980.He
Is 2 graduate of Pakistan Alr Farce War College
and has 1wo Masters Degrees; Strategle
Studies  from  Karachi  University  and
international Relations fram Kings College,
London. He is also a proud alumnus of Royak
Callege of Defence Studies United Kingdom
and has attended National & International
Security Course at Harvard Kennedy Schoal
UsA.

During his career, ACM Sohall Aman has flown
varlous types of fighter alraraft including
F-185 and has a grand total of aver 30400
fightar hours to his credit. As a distinguished
fighter pilot and Combat Coramander, ha has
also evaluated modern fighter aircraft ke
F-15, SU27, 5034, Gripen and Euro fighter
Typhaon, He has commanded a Fighter
Squadron, Combatl Commanders' School, a
Fighter Base and a Regional Alr Command of
Fakistan Alr Force,

Air Chief Marshal also has a rich staff
experiance and has served as Director
Operations, Director Plans, Assistant Chief of
Alr Staff Operations, Deputy Chief of Air Staff
Training and Oeputy Chief of Alr Staff
Operations at Alr Headguarters, As Bepuly
Chief of Alr 5taff Training, he forused on the
cancept of Education for All; especially to the
underprivileged children. In this regard he
Introduced various scholarship schemes for
desarving PAF as well as civilian children. He
also developed two medical colleges and
three alr university campuses across the
country durfng his tenure as the Chief. As
Deputy Chief of the Alr Staff Operations, he
was the main architect of Pakistan Alr Foree’s
rampaign In support of successful Counter-
Terrorism Operation Zarb-e-Azb that proved
pivetal in eliminating the menace of terrorism
from Pakistan and restoration of peace in the
country. He personally led anti-terrarists
missions in F16 afrcraft depicting the nation's
rasclve to combat tereorism.

ACM  Sohall Aman s also regarded for
orchestration and actualization of Pakistan Air
Force’s modernization pfan. His relentlass
pursuit of Indigenization and focus on Human
Resource  development  thraugh  Industry
academla linkage Is evident in shape of
development of “Aviatlon City” and a well-
crafted  Aerospace Centre [n PAR The
establishment of "FAF Airpower Centra of
Excellence™ is yet another strategic initiative by
the Ale Chlef Marshal, This unique Tnstittion
aims to share PAF’s rare experlences in Counter
Terrorism Alr Operations {CT) with friendly afr
forces. The institute also lays special focus an
Rasearch and Bevelopment (R&DY in the field of
Airpower Application [n Cantemparary War fare!
ACE’s R&D |5 closely linked to developmant of
madern aviation hardware at Aviation City,
aspecially Praject ‘Azm’ which was inllated by
him as the BAF effort ta manufacture fifth
ganeration fighter aircraft.

Owing to his experience in securlty related
issues and Leadership, ACM has extensivaly
lectured at think tanks and audience at various
high ranking universities and Staff & War
calleges; bathinfand and abroad.

Air Chief Marshal is also a man of great
compassion  which |5 evident from the
monumental steps he has undertaken for the
welfare of families of martyrs, Personnel with
Special Meads {PSN} and education and well-
being of low patd amployees of AF.

In recagnition  of his  meritorlous  and
axceptionally dedicated services, he has been
decorated with awards of Nishani-mtiaz
(Military}, Hital4-Imtlaz (Military), Sitara-lmtlaz
{Mifltary} and Tamgha-iHmtiaz (Military). He Is
alsa reciplent of “The Leglon of Merlt*of Turkish
Armed Forces, *King Abdul Aziz Medal of
Excellence” by the Kingdom of Saudi Arabla and
United States “Legion of Maerit’ the highest
military award of U3 Armed forces awarded ta
any foreign military official, Ale Chief Marshal is
currently  studying  Leadership,  Policy
formutation and Governance and isundertaking
prajacts relating philanthyopic work.

Mr. Aman was appolnted as dicector on the
Board of JS Bank Lid in 2019, He is also the
Chairman of the Beards HR, Remuneratlon &
Nomination Cammittee of the Bank.

Directorships in Other Companles:
il
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My. Basir Shamsie
President and CEQ

Me. Basir Shamsie 15 Prasident & CEQ of J5 Bank
LUImitad.

Mr. Shamsle has recelved hls Bachelors In
Business Administration from Unlversity of
Taxas at Austin. He has also completed the
Program for Leadership Development fram
Harvard Business School.

Mr. Shamsle jolned Bear Steamns Jahangir
Siddiqui & Co. In 1934 in the Maoney and Bond
Markets business. His particular axpertise [s in
Treasury and Investment Banking and he is
credlted with over 60 capital market deals,
many-of which have beenlandmark transactions
for Pakistan,

He was part of the core team responsibla for
acquisition of American Express Bank's Pakistan
oparations In 2004 and its merger Into J5 Bank
Etd. Mir. Shamsie has since baen associated with
J5 Bank In various senior roles such as Group
Head of Treasury, Wholesale & International
Banking which he held till May of 2017, His last
assignment was Depuly CEQ, JS Bank.

He has praviously served as Chalrman, JS
Investments Lhmited and JS Global Caphtal
Limited and Birector of J5 Bank Limlted.

He is also a member of the Boards Risk
Management Committee and Information
Techanology Committee of the Bank.

Diractorships n Other Compandes:
il
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Respansibiity to the community in which it operates Is
a foundational cornerstone for 15 Bank. The Bank has
made it a point to include all of our stakeholders, from
employees to customers, In our journey of success.

The Bank creates value by contributing to sustalnable
develcpment and responsible business within our
spheres of operation. We do this by dedicating a
significant amount of resources to contribute to the
wellbeing of society. We do this through a variety of
ways which Includes providing dimate financing and
sustainable solutlons, building and inculcating
awareness of responsible corporate practices while
extending financial grants to our partner organizatlons
working to support the underprivileged.

Some of our key initiatives and projects In the past
fiscal year include:

Accreditation to the Green Climate Fund (GCFR

In 2019, JS Bank became Pakistan’s first and only
financial Institution to have been accredited by the
Green Climate Fund (GCF), the world’s largest climate
fund. GCFs aim is to provide facilities to public and
private sector corporations In emerging economies to
limit or reduce their greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
through Investments in low-emission and climate-
resllient programs.

As an aceredited entity, 1S Bank will be able to apply for
funding of up to USD 250 million per project. As of
December 31, 2019, the Fund had 124 active projects
worldwide with 348 milllan beneficiartes and has a
pledged total of nearly USD 10 Billion. JS Bank can aiso
mabilize additlonal funds from private sector investors
to support action on climate change. In addition to
apening new paths of local and internatlonal funding,
the Bank can partner in contributlons to dimate
adaptation and mitlgation financing in Pakistan,

This approval was based on IS Bank meeting GCFs
stringent criteria  Incduding  fiduciary  standards,
environmental and social safeguards and specialized
capacities in driving climate action.

sustainability and Corporate
Responsibility

Fully Compliant with State Bank of Pakistan - Green
Banking Guidelines:

Issued by the State Bank of Pakistan, the Green Banking
Guidelines {GBGS) acknowledges the responsibility of
the Pakistanl financial sector in supporting policy
initiatives that will enable the transformation of the
economy towards a fow carbon and climate reslitent
economy. It envisions inculcation of environmental
consciousness as part of arganizational culture and
reorientation of banking products/services and
operations to reduce environmental impact of banks
and the economy.

As of 2019, the Bank is fully compliant with the GBGs
having undertaken:

« Introduction of an Environmental and Social Risk
Management (ESRM) Framework in 2019 creating
awareness towards the environmental and social
(E&S) risks involved in extension of credit and the
procedures and authorities which have been
establlshed to manage these risks. The process
recognizes that envirenmental and sodial issues
are malnstreamn issues and E&S risk assessment
should be performed in additlon to the
conventional credit risk assessment. The objective
of JS Bank’s ESRM Is to fulfill our responsibility
towards environmental protection and provide
financing solution for resource efficient and
climate resilient economic transformatlon.

+  Means to identify, assess and mitigate
environmental risks for clients, While the primary
responsibility of ensuring compliance  with
environmental laws and regulations rests with the
borrowers, JS Bank goes above pre-established
standards to create a holistic eco-system of
environmental risk management for ali concerned.

+  Introduction of carbon reduction measures in self-
operations. This extensive exercise induding
measurement of energy (on and off grid power}
and paper consumption of all of J$ Bank operating
locations (Head Office, regional offices and the
branch network). Recaognition of gaps was followed

Annual Report 2019 | ﬁJS BANK
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by a rectification exercise through promulgaticn of
energy efficient appliances (Inverter and LED
based), increased usage of solar power (for
technical equipment} and process automation to
cut down on documentation.

Solar Financing Solutions:

In order to provide salutions that are environmentally
friendly, JS Bank has successfully financed over 120
Solar projects for commercial, residential and
agriculture purposes, It has also been actlvely working
towards reducing the carbon footprint of the country
and has deployed approximately 5 MW worth of solar
panel systems with a further 18 MW under process, 1S
Bank customers are now able to generate thelr own
electricity in a hassle-free manner through the solar
panel system instafled on thelr businesses / residences
/ farms without being dependent on the grid for
electricity.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
issued for the second year ina row!

JS Bank is the only bank in Pakistan to have an
Environmental, Social and Governance [ESG) Report
pubitshed for the second year in a row. ESG reporting is
important because it promotes informed decision
making and makes stakeholders more aware of different

f?;(;w]'s BANK I Annual Report 2019

ESG Initlatives and the risks that a company faces, IS
Bank has captured all its different ESG initiatives
Including gender-based issues, its environmentally and
socially conscious product suite and its buslness
processes,

Supporting Conmmunitles:

Partpering with organizations working in the fields of
emotional and psychological health, gender, violence
against women and children, educatlon and the
psychologlcat and reproductive health of adolescents;
JS Bank has worked to create a measurable on-ground
irpact in the lives of the people of the nation,

We have also extended our support for humanitarian
relief in areas affected by flash floods in the Sindh
pravince. This included provision of staple food items
and free primary medical camps at key distribution
points in the province. These support activities helped
provide rellef for several thousand affectees in the
region.




reen ertincation -
Three Years Running

T e

J5 Bank Is the only Bank in Pakistan to be Green-Office certified and is in its third year of being certified by the
World Wildlife Fund Pakistan as a Green Office. A practical Environmental Management System developed
specifically for office conditions, the Green Offica initiative aims to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and decrease
the ecologlcal footprint at the workplace by reducing electricity consumption and paper waste.

As a part of the certification process, WWF Pakistan, undertook a comprehensiva audit using stringent guidelines
to checkall the processes and procedures adopted by 1S Bank for energy conversation and waste management at
its head office, The Bank successfully met all the requirements set by WWF Pakistan. Amaong other initiatives, we
also separate our waste so that it is much easier te recycle. Effective segregation of waste means that less waste
goes to landfiils which makes it cheaper and better for people and the environment.
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F FOURTEENTH

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notlce Is hereby given that the Fourteenth Annual
General Meeting of the shareholders of JS Bank Limited
{the "Bank”} will be held on Friday, March 27, 2020 at
9:30 a.m. Sapphire Hall, Ramada Karachi Creek, Zulfigar
Streetl, D.H.A. Phase Vill, Karachi, to transact the
following buslness:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To recelve, consider and adopt the Annual Audited
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Bank for the year ended December 31,2019
tagether with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports
thereon,

To appoint Bank's Auditors for the year ended
Dacember 31, 2020 and fix their remuneration,
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have
recommended the appointment of the retiring
auditors, Messrs, EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered
Accountants, (a member firm of Ernst & Young
Global Limited) who being eligible have offered
themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSIMNESS:

iii.

Invastment in EFU Life Assurance Limited

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the
following resolutions as Special Resolutions with
or without any modifications, addition or deletion:

“RESOLVED that, the shareholders’ resolution
dated March 29, 2017 authorlsing long term
equity invastment hy JS Bank Limited ("Bank”)
in EFU Life Assurance Limited of up to a limit of
PKR 675,000,000 that was partly utilized by
purchasing 1,189,600 shares of the total amount
of PKR 250,734,849, be and is hereby renewed to
authorize the Bank under Section 199 of the

Companies Act, 2017 (as may be revised or
restated) to make a total long term equity
Investment in EFU Life Assurance Limited of up
to PKR 675,000,000 (inclusive of investment of
PKR 250,734,849 already made by the Bank) by
way of purchase of Ordinary Shares of EFU Life
Assurance Elmited from time to time from the
secondary market at the prevalling market
ptice, of the total purchase price equivalent of
PKR 424,265,151, s0 as to make the total equity
investment in EFU Life upto PKR 675,000,000,
subject to compliance with all legal
requirements.

“FURTHER RESOLVED that the above
resolution shall be valid for a period of three
years from the date of passing of the said
Specizal Resolution”.

FURTHER RESOLVED that all other resolutions
passed in relation to the long-term equity
investment by the Bank in EFU LIfe Assurance
Limited vide shareholders’ resolution dated
March 29, 2017 be and are hereby renewed,
confirmed and  ratified without any
amendments”

Karachi: March 6, 2020

By Order of the Board

Ashraf Shahzad
Company Secretary
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Notes:

a. Sharetransfer books of the Bank will remain closed
from March 20, 2020 to March 26, 2020 {both days
Inclusive), Transfers received In order at Bank's
Independent Share Registrar, COC Share Registrar
Services Limited, CDC House, Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi at the close of business on March 19, 2020
will be treated in time for purpose of attending
and vote at the Meeting.

b. A member of the Bank entitled to attend, and vote
may appoint another member as his/her proxy to
attend and vote instead of him/her,

¢, Proxies must be recelved at the Reglstered Office
of the Bank not later than 48 hours before the time
of the Meeting,

d. Beneficial owners of the shares registered in the
name of COC Share Registrar Services Limited
{CDCSRSL) and/or thetr proxies will have to follow
the following guidelines as faid down by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

For Attending the Meeting

+  In case of Individuals, the account holder and/or
sub-account holder whose ragistration details are
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall
authenticate hissher identity by showing his/her
ofiginal CNIC or orlginal Passport along with
Participant ID number and the account number at
the time of attending the Meeting.

+ Incase of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution /
power of attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced {unless it has been
provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting.

For Appointing Proxies

In case of individuals, the account holder and/ar
sub-account holder whose registration detalls are
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit
the proxy form as per above requirements.

»  The proxy form shall be witnhessed by two persons,
whase names, addresses and CNIC nurnbers shall
he mentloned on the form.

.« Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of
beneficial ownars and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.
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The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or
original passport at the time of the Meeting,

In case of corporate entity, the Board's resolution /
power of attorney with specimen signature shall
be furnished (unless it has been provided earlier)
along with proxy form to the Bank.

Sharcholders are requeasted to notify immediately
for any change in thelr address to the Bank
Reqistrar.

Motice to Shareholders who have not provided
a ]

The Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations,
2017 requires that the dividend warrants should bear
the ldentification Number which includes: (i) in the
case of a registered shareholder or an authorized
person, the Computerized National Identity Card
Numbers {CNIC); (i} in the case of a minor, child
registration number or juvenile card number; and {ii)
in the case of corporate shareholders registration
number or natlonal tax number. The Identification
Number of the shareholders is, therefore, mandatory
for the issuance of dividend warrants and in the
absence of such Information, payment of dividend
may be withheld In terms of the Companies
{Distribution  of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.
Therefore, the shareholders who have net yet provided
their Identification Numbers advised to provide their
Identification Numbers (if not already provided)
directly to our Independent Share Registrar at the
address given herein above without any further delay.

Placement of Financial Statements

The Bank has placed the annual Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31 2019,
along with the Auditors and Directors Reports on its

website: wianarjsbl.com,

Mandata for E-DIVIDENDS for shareheolders

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies
Act, 2017, It is mandatory for a listed Company to pay
cash dividend to its sharehelders only through
electronic mode directly into bank account designated
by the entitled shareholders. In order to receive
dividends diractlyinto theirbankaccount, shareholders
are requested to fill in Electronic Credit Mandate Form
available on Company’s website and send it duly
signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Reglstrar of the
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Company M/s, CDC Share Reglstrar Services Limited,
CDC House, Shahra-e-Falsal, Karachi in case of physical
shares. In case sharas are held In CDC then Electronic
Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to
shareholder's broker/participant/CDC account services,

Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend at Revised
Rates

Pursuant to the provisions of the Finance Act deduction
of income tax from dividand payments shall be made
on the basis of filers and non-filers as follows;

Income Tax will be deducted on the basis of Active Tax
Payers List posted on the Federal Board of Revenue
website.

Members seeking exemptlon from deductlon ofincome
tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are
requested to submit a valid tax certificate or necessary
documentary evidence, as the case may be,

E-Voting

Pursitant to SECP S.R.C. No. 43{1)/2016 dated January
22, 2016, members can also exercise their right to vote
through e-voting by giving their consent in writing at
least 10 days before the date of meeting to the Bank on
the appointment by the Intermediary as a Proxy.

Provision of Video Link Facility

Shareholders may participate in the meeting via video-
link facility. If the Bank receives a demand {at least 7
days before the date of meeting) from shareholder(s)
holding an aggregate 10% or more sharehclding
residing in any other city, to participate in the meeting
through video link, the Company will arrange video link
facility in that city,

Shareholders, who wish to participate through video-
link facility, are requested to fill In ‘Video Link Faciiity
Formy available at Bank’s website and send a duly signed
copy to the Registered Address of the Company.

Distribution of Annual Report

The audited financial statements of the Bank for the
year ended Decerrber 31, 2019 have been made
avallable en the Company's website (hitpi/Awww,jshl,
com/) in addition to annual and quarterly financtal
statements for the prior years.

Further, Annual Report of the Bank for the year ended

December 31, 2019 is dispatched to the shareholders
through CD. However, if a shareholder, In addition,
requests for hard copy of Annual Audited Financial
Statements, the same shall be provided free of cost
withln seven days of receipt of such request. For
convenience of shareholders, a"Standard Request Form
for provision of Annual Audited Accounts” has alse
beenn made avallable on the Bank’s website ¢httpy//
wwwjsbl.com/).

Statement Under Section 134 (3) of the Companies
Act, 2017

Investment in EFU Life Assurance Limited

+  The shareholders of the Bank in their meeting held
on March 29, 2017 authorized the Bank, under
Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, to make
jong term equity Investment In the associated
company, EFU Llifa Assurance Limited, up to a
maximum amount of PKR 675 million,

+  Out of the approved limit of PKR 675 million, the
Bank made an investment of PKR 250,734,849 by
purchasing 1,189,600 Ordinary Shares of EFU Life
Assurance Limited (EFUL), leaving an unutilized
limit of PR 424,265,151,

The Board of Directors of the Bank in their meeting
held on February 27, 2020 resolved to renew
maxirmum Emit of fong term equity investment in
the associated company, EFUL upto PKR 675 million
by way of purchase of Ordinary Shares of EFUL
from time to time from the secondary market at
the prevalling market price, aggregating to the
purchase price equivalent of PKR 424,265,151
subject to the consent and approval of members
under Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 and
fulfillment of other legal requirernents,

»  EFUL is currently an assoclated company of the
Bank by virtue of 20.05% shareholding of Jahangir
Siddiqui & Co. Limited ("JSCL™) the halding
company of the Bank and 0.09% shareholding of
Energy Infrastructura Holding (Private) Limited
{"EIHPL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the JSCL,
At the time of the shareholders' resolution dated
March 29, 2017, the Bank was an assoclated
company of EFUL by virtue of commaon dlrectorship
and 20,60% shareholding of JSCL and 1.72% of
EIHPL.

»  The Bank seeks the approval of the shareholders
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for renewal of Investment Imits approved vide
shareholders’ resolution dated March 29, 2017 to
enable the Bank to make a total long term equity
investment of up to PKR 675 million as earlier
approved in EFUL by way of purchase of Ordinary
Shares of EFUL at the prevaifing market price. All
athar terms and conditions of the preposed long-
term equity investment as approved by the
shareholders vide shareholders’ resolution dated
March 29, 2017 shall remain unaltered.

Except for the 20.05% shareholding of JSCL and
0.09% shareholding of EIHPL, the directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders of the Bank and
their relatives have no vested interest, directly or
tndirectly, in EFUL and the proposad investment
therein, except to the extent of their/spouses’
shareholdings in the investee company.
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«  The directors submk that they have carried cut
the necassary due diligence for the proposed
investment in  EFUL. The duly signed
recommendation of the due diligence report and
Jatest audited and reviewed financlal statements
of EFUL will be avallable to the members for
inspection In the Annual General Meeting to be
held on March 27, 2020,

+  EFUL has no interest in the Bank, except that it is
an associate company of the Bank. The directors,
sponsors and majority shareholders of EFUL have
no interest except to the extent of their/spousas’
shareholdings, if any in the Bank,

Information Required under Regulation 3 (1) {a) of the
Companies (Investment in Asscciated Companies ot
Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2012,

t



Name of assodiated company

£FU Life Assurance Limited (“EFULT)

2 | Criteria for Assaciated relationship EFUL s an assoclated company of the Bank by virtue of 20.05% sharehalding of
JSCL {the halding company of the Bank} and 0.59% sharehofding af 8#HPL (wholly
owned subsidiary JSCL).

3 | Purpose, benefit and period of Investmant Long-term investment for the benefit of the Bank and to earn dividend and
capital appreciation [n the long run

4 | MaxImum amount of Investment Upte PKR 675 mitlion {same a5 earller approved)

5 Maximum price at which securittes Not more than the price quoted on Pakistan Stock
to be acquired.

fxchange on the date of each purchase

& Maximum number of securities ta be such number of shares, the purchase price of which Is equivalent the amount of

PKR 675 imilion {lass PKR 250,734,849 already utilized) Le. equivalent of the
Acquired. batance amount of PKR 424,265,151

7 | Mumber of securities and percentage thereaf Present sharehalding: 1,189,600 shares, representing

held before and after the praposed investment
1.19% of the issued capital of the investee company, Number of shares and the
petcentage after the propesed Investment will depend upon the prevailing
markst price at the tme of acqulsition of shares

8 | Average of the precading 12 weakly average PKR 199,94 per share {from Mav. 15, 2019 to Feb.15, 2020)
pHce of the security intended to be acquired.

8 {Break-up value of securities intended to be PXR 60.28 per share as per audited financlal stataments as on Dec 31, 2019,
acquired on basis of the fatest audited financial | Which are the last audited financlaf statement available on the date of issuance of
statements this notice.

10 | Earnings per shaie of the assoclated company | Dec31,2019 PKR 15.49
forthe last 3 years Dec 31,2018 PKR 15.81

Dec 31,2017 PKR 12.10

11 | Sources of funds from which securities willbe | Own funds and borrowings.
acquired:

« Justification for investment through The gains/returns/dividend are expected to be higher than the cost of funds.
horrowings

«  Details of quarantees &assets pledged for | Not Applicable
obtalning such funds

12 | Salient features of all agreements entered Into | Purchase of shares is from the secondary market.
with the associated company or associated
undertaking or with the financial institution () | Therefore, this Is not applicable.
with regards to proposed transfer of [labilities

13 | Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, | Except being associsted company of JSCL and EIHPL, the Directors, sponsars,

majority shareholders and thelr refatlves In the
assaciated company and the propased
transaction

majority shareholders of the Bank and their relatives have no vested Interest in
the associated company ar the proposed investrnent except to the extent of their
and their spouses’ sharehaldings in the associated company, if any.
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Financial Highlights

Summarized financial data for the last six years is given below:

PKR ‘Million’
Particulars 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Deposits 369,790 321,413 | 290,078 | 226,099 | 141,840 | 108,740
Equity 17,333 15617 | 16669| 16650 15968 | 13,080
Total Assets 469,821 456,754 | 391,479 264,700 218,476 | 176,717
Investments-Net 142,568 148,690 | 169,612 133,727 116,030 | 84,258
Advances- Net 242,944 251,991 | 184,140 93,794 76,666 | 62433

Gross Mark-up Income 41,595 29,997 20,381 15,081 15,328 1 11,113

Net Mark-up Income 7,028 8,809 6,242 5,728 5590 | 3,854
Non-Matk-up Income 3,943 2,141 4,051 4,861 3,290 | 2,590
Profit Before Tax 133 905 1,621 3,390 3174 1,608
Profit After Tax 25 562 973 2,077 2,026 1,060
Branches 360 345 323 307 277 238

Employees 4,904 5127 | 4,998 4,163 2,946 | 2442




Chairl

| am pleased to present this report to the valued
stakehclders of JS Bank Limited (the "Bank™ on the
averall performance of the Bank and our path to future
success.

In the period under review, the Bank’s princlpal market
strengths were acknowledged by the Pakistan Credit
Rating Agency (PACRA) with short-term credit rating
standing at AT+{A One Plus), the highest possible in the
category, while long-term credit rating was maintained
at AA- (Double A Minus).

The Bank’s market standing was further reinforced and
acknowledged on a global stage. In 2019, the Bank
recaived awards for Pakistans Best Mid-Sized Retail
Bank, Pakistan’s Best Consumer Finance Products and
Pakistan’s Best SME Bank at the Asian Banking & Finance
Awards 2019, the Best Bank for SME at Asiamoney
Awards 2019 and Best Payment Technelogy /Sclutlon
Provider at the DIGI Awards 2019. These global
accolades hear testimony to our customer centricity
and outreach, which drives us to constantly engage
with them and deliver value added offerings and
services that surpass expectations.

The Bank has emerged as a major contender In the
Branchless Banking space including Person to
Government {P2G} and Government ta Person {G2P)
payment arenas. Furthering the vision of the
Gavernment and the State Bank of Pakistan for financial
inclusion, the Bank is developing the branchless
banking eco-system through partnerships and alliances
for enhancement of customer value and ease,

As of December 2019, JS Bank Is ranked amongst the
top three SME Banks in Pakistan. It continued to
enhance current SME refatlonships while introducing
innovatlve financial products with customized financial
offerings, Based on the Country’s goal of increasing
exports, JS Bank established itself as a one-window
solution by financing trade, and servicing the cash
management & payroll needs of the SME client-base,

Responsibility to the community Is a cornerstone of the
Bank’s activities through sustainable development and
responsible business. In 2019, JS Bankbecame Pakistan’s
first and only financial institution to have been
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accredited by the Green Climate Fund (GCF), the world's
largest climate fund. We also became fully compliant
with the Grean Banking Guldellnes {GBGs) issued by the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for supporting policy
initiatives and transformation towards a low carbon
and climate resilient economy. Other Inltlatives Include
being the only bank in Pakistan whose Head Office is
Green-Office certified and has been so for three years in
a row. In addition, we are the sole bank which has
published its Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) Report two years in a row,

The Board of JS Bank follows comprehensive criteria for
its performance evaluation as per regulator guidelinas
and international best practices. Ensuring good
carporate governance through ethical and professional
business conduct as well as effective risk and audit
management are the key foundation blocks of the work
scape. The Board continually reviews the Bank's
financial and operational soundness, and significant
policies as per regulatory requirements, Further, specific
subject Committeas have been constituted, each with a
prescribed mandate and terms of reference,

1 am confident that the Bank will continue to move
towards greater success. With our diversified Board of
Directars, value added offerings, unique emphasis on
customer satisfaction and dedication towards
excellence, we endeavor to succeed and thrlve, no
matter what the conditions or environment,

Future Qutlock:

In 2020, we are optimistic about the economic
prospects tn the country. The Bank will continue to play
Its innovative role in Pakistan's banking system.
Technology is reforming the world faster than ever. The
shifting customer preference for digltal products has
driven banks to transform the traditional way of
banking, and JS Bank Is among the leaders.

The Bank's strateglc prioritles In the years ahead include
continuous focus on broad based digitalization and
transformation through adoption of cutting-edge
technologies to enhance user interfaces and customer
service experiences.




Core strategies are based on identifying and fulfiling
customer needs through product Innovation, alllances
and altomnation of service delivery. Simplification of
banking for our customers by offering digitized
products and enabling secure payments through
effective use of technology are among our priorities.
Our Bank is mindful of the current developments and is
continually tmproving its infrastructure to excel
customer service, expand the scope of secured digital
offerlngs, enhance efficiencies and increase the diverse
business portfolic,

Several technology initiatives have been rolled out to
support the business, while digital applications will
help improve the speed and accuracy of credit
decision-making. We recognize that when we
implement cutting edge technalogy, we must remain
ever vigilant about infarmation and cybersecurity, The
Bank makes continuous afforts to strengthen its ability
to prevent, detect and respond to cyber-attacks by
improving governance and leveraging technology
advancements.

Across the world, Compliance Is a major area of focus
among banks, and we are also determined to evolve in
this area with strict implementation and monitoring in
every aspect of our business and operations.

We believe that our people are our strength and by
investing in their capacittes and enriching the
empleyee experience, it boosts both our productivity
and customer experience, We continue to provide best
learning Interventions, including a wide range of
e-learntng modules.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend appreciation for the continuous co-operation
extended by the regulatory bodies including the State
Bank of Pakistan, the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan and Federal Board of Revenue.
I would also like to thank our sharehaclders, for thelr
continuad commitment and confidence in our long-
term strategic vision.

Sincerely,
Kalim-ur-Rahman

February 27, 2020
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We are pleased to present herein the 14th Annual
Report of JS Bank Limited (“JSBL"} along with the
audited accounts and auditors” report for the year
ended December 31, 2019.

Economic Review

During the perlod under review, Pakistan entered into
a fresh UUSS$6 billion IMF program with two tranches
received during the year and the remaining release of
funds contingent upon achlavement of pre-defined
economic targets,

The country continued to find support on the external
front with higher Foreign Direct Investment {FDI) and
increased remittances, in addition to contraction of
imports, all of which helped to reduce the overall
Current Account Deficit (CAD). Overall 1HFY20 CAD %
to GDP dropped to 1.5% {1HFY19: 5.8%). The country's
Foreign Exchange {FX) reserves increased by USD 4.2
billion leading to rupee appreciation by 5% against the
USD in 2HCY19 as compared to 17% depreciation
during the 1HCY19,

International credit rating agency Moody's changed
the country's outlocok from Negative to Stable based
on improved economic canditlons and implementation
of reforms.

The Government was able to resolve the fiscal Issues to
a significant extent. Not only the fiscal deficit for
1QFY20 shrank to 0.7% of GDP {1QFY19: 1.4%), the
country reported a primary surplus of ¢.6% of GDP
(1QFY19:-0.089%). However, due to the increased policy
rate, the Large-Scale Manufacturing (LSM) sector
witnessed a negative growth of 3,35% during THFY20,
At the same time, headline inflation remalned a key
concern as the Consumer Price Index (CPI} for THFY20
averaged 11.11%, vis-a-vis CPl of 5.96% during the

same period last year, The State Bank of Pakistan (58P)

increased the Policy Rate by 325hps to 13.25% during
the year in vlew of the increased inflation, matnly due
to the rupee devaluation and subsequent hikes In
energy and utility prices during the year.

irectors’ Report

Banking Sector Reviaw

Following a 425bps hike in CY18, the State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) further increased the Palicy Rate by
325bps during CY19, taking the Policy Rate up to
13.25%. As a result, weighted average banking spreads
during CY19 have marked an Increase of 95bps YoY,
making a 5-year high at 5.85%.

Cn the deposits front, the banking sector witnessed
relatively slow growth of 10% YoY, which amounted to
PKR 14,632 billion. During the same period, Advances
growth rate was recorded at 3% YoY, reaching to PKR
8,158 billion and taking the Advances-to-Deposit Ratlo
{ADR) for the industry to 56%. Non-Performing Loans
{NPLs) saw an increase sector wide and grew by PKR 78
billion to PKR 758 billion by Sep-2019, This also took
the infection ratlo to 9.5%.

Investiments increased by 16% YoY to PKR 301 billion
with Banks opting to deploy deposits in government
sacuritles with the Investment-to-Deposit Ratio {IDR)
expanding to 60%.

Financial Perfermance

In 2019, the Bank launched multiple targeted offerfngs
aimed at a diverse customer base while undertaking a
program of consolidation and cost economization,

Core interest income continued to grow, however, the
offset of the legacy PIR portfolic as detailed in eailier
reviews Impacted overall profitability. With maturity of
the bulk of the portfolio expected to take place by
March 2020 it can be stated with confidence that the
coming year will witness improvement in inclusive
performance across atl business lines,

Prafit Before Tax — PKA million 133 %05
Prafit After Fax — PKR million 25 562
Eaznings Per Share {Basic) ~ PKR 04,0004 0.30
Return on Avg. Assets (ROAA) 0.005%% 0.13%
Return on Avg, Equity (ROAE) 0.95% 3.48%
Capital Adequacy Ratio {CAR) 12032 12.01%
Advances to Deposits Ratio [ADR) 65.74% 78.40%
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Summatized financlal data for the last six years Is glven below:

PKR "Million
Deposits 369,790 321413 290,078 226,099 141,840 108,740
Equity 17,333 15,617 16,669 16,650 15968 13,080
Total Assets 469,821 456,754 391,479 264,700 218476 176,717
investments-Net 142,568 148,690 169,612 133,727 116,030 84,258
Advances- Net 242,944 251,89 184,140 93,794 76,666 62433
Gross Mark-up Income 41,595 29,097 20,381 15,081 15328 131113
Net Mark-up Income 7,028 8,809 6,242 5,728 5,590 3,854
Non-Mark-up Income 3,043 2,141 4,051 4,861 3,290 2,590
Profit Before Tax 133 905 1,621 3,380 3,174 1,608
Profit After Tax 25 562 973 2,077 2,026 1,060
Branches 360 345 323 307 277 238
Employees 4,904 5127 4,998 4,163 2,946 2442

Earnings par Share (EPS)

The EPS for the year ended December 31, 2019 is PKR
0.0004 per share as compared to EPS of PKR 0.30 per
share in 2018,

Capital Adequacy

As at December 31, 2019, JS Bank’s Capital Adequacy
Ratio {CAR) stood at 12.93% as compared to 12.01%in
2018, Minimum required CAR (including Capital
Canservation Buffer) as prescribed by SBP is 12.509%.

Business Ovearview

The year witnessed continued balance sheet growth,
backed by prudent expansion in advances, aggressive
deposit mobilization and diversified fee business. The
Bank's overall product strategy is based on tdentifylng
and fulfilling niche market needs in an effort to stand
apart from the competition. JS Bank operates 360
branches across 180 cities including one overseas
wholesale banking branch in Manama, Bahrain.

Deposits

J5 Bankremained focused on core deposit mobilization,
particularly targeting growth In low cost deposit
{Current Accounts — CA). The Bank was able to close
2019 with a deposit base of PKR 370 billion, 2 growth of
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15.05% over 2018, Significant growth in the CA deposit
base has been augmented by focusing on affluent and
mass affluent market segment, providing greater
stabliity and strength to the Bank. The Bank has
embarked on several Initiatives to expand its deposit
relationships in various segments including business
accounts, employee banking, cash management
relationships, corporate deposits and technology-
based solutions.

Advances

Onthe assets side, the bank’s strategy involved prudent
expansion through a helistic product range designed
aroeund customer needs,

In addition to traditional lending segments, the Bank
enhanced its focus on the SME landscape through a
relationship lending model, operating through several
SME hub branches. Furthermore, the secured consumer
lending volumes remained strong through 2019. The
{easing businass has also developed a healthy portfolio
catering 1o all industrial sectors of the economy.

The Bank grew its Gold Finance and Solar Panel
financing portfolios by forming muitiple alliances to
promote the products within their value chalns, JS
Bank exceeded its SBP-assigned agriculture credit
targets with a clean portfolio, paving the way for
sustainable expansion in the coming years.
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Fea Business

The Bank is making concerted efforts to optimize the
revenue mix between interest and fee-based Income
through parallel growth by cross selling varlous fee-
based products to new and existing customers
alongside traditional fee income streams.

Investment Banking Group {IBG) concluded 2019 on a
strong note, 1t provided advisory services to the retail
sector and lent to entities across microfinance and oil
and gas sectors, Trustee and Agency services together
with Bankers-to-the-lssue business continued to yield
positive outcome. Going forward, I1BG shall be
increasingly focusing on enhancing the advisory
business by procuring advisory mandates from both
publlc and private sectors,

Service Management and Fair Treatment of
Customers

JS Bank Is committed to providing its custormers with
the highest level of service quality and satisfaction.The
Bank has established an Independent service
management function that oversees service quality,
phone banking, problem resolution and the falr
treatment of customers. The Bank’s Complaint
Handling Policy and Grievance Redressal Mechanism
ensure that complaints are resolved in a timely manner
and recurrence of complaints 1s prevented whera
possible. Customers have the option of registering
their complaints at the Bank’s branches, phone banking
center, JS Bank's website or via emall,

The Bank reviews all service level complaint reports
and Initiatives and focuses on simplifying processes for
improvement in service levels and overall customer
satisfaction, 'Falr Treatment of Customers’is an integral
part of our corporate culture, We also focus on financial
literacy of our customers, for promoting responsible
conduct and iInformed financial decisions by
consumers, through our ‘Consumer Education and
Financial Literacy Progeam’

Sustainable Finance

15 Bank undertook several Inltiatives to work towards
sustatnability and for contributing to the nation's green
projects, ane such being where the Bank pledged and
planted 100,000 plants on August 14, 2019, in
collaboration with WWF Pakistan.

As a responsible lender, the Bank has developed and
fully implemented SBPs Green Banking Guidelines

which focus on risk management, own impact
reduction and promotion of renewable and energy
efficient products, JS Bank also became the first
commerclal bank in Pakistan and the second in South
Asla to receive Green Climate Fund (GCF) accreditation,
GCF is the world’s largest climate fund and 1S Bank, as
an accredited entity, can apply to fund projects up to
UsD 250 million which would help mitigate climate
change impact.

Risk Management

The Board Is committed to adopting the best risk
management practices in letter and splrit, To maintain
effective risk management practices, the Bank follows
an appropriate risk management framework according
to the regulatory directives issued by S8P and other
related guidelines under the Basel Il / lil framewark. In
this regard, the Bank has a comprehensive set of risk
management policies, practices and procedures which
enable the Bank to take into consideration, in an
appropriate manner, all major kinds of risks including
credit, market, liquidity, operational and information
security.

The overall risk management framework of the Bank is
under the supervision of the Board of Directors {BoD)/
Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) while the
operational lavel day-to-day functloning Is carried out
by the senlor management of the Bank. In arder to
develop a holistic integrated risk management
approach, a dedicated and independent Risk
Management Group s in place to manage various
aspects of risk management In the Bank. To formalize
and strengthen the risk rnanagament approach within
the Bank, the following significant policies were
developed / reviewed and approved by the Board:

+  Risk Management Policy

«  Credlt Policy

+  Collateral Management Policy

+  Market Risk Management Policy

«  Operational Risk Management Policy
»  Liguidity Risk Management Policy

«  Country Risk Management Palicy

+  Business Continuity Policy

« Information Security Policy

BRMC keeps an eye on the overall risk profile of the
Bank, The Integrated Risk Management Committee
(IRMC), Credit Risk Committee (CRC}, Operational Risk
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Management Committee (ORMC), T Steering
Committee (ITSC) and Assets & Liabilities Committee
(ALCO} of the management operate within an
established framewark in order to monitor the Bank's
activities and maintain the risk level within predefined
limits. These Committees meet on a regular basis to
review market developments and the level of financlal
and security risk exposures of the Bank.

Risk Management plays a vital role in ensuring that an
appropriate balance Is struck between risk and reward
throughout the Bank. Towards thls end, the rlsk
management function and framework has been
significantly strengthened in the year under review.
This includes, but is not limited to the formation of
management committees for monitoring  credit
portfolio and operatlonal risks, introducing the
concept of enterprise risk management, undertaking
the automation of various processes and incorporating
the Information Security function Into the rlsk
management group.

Market risk measurement, monitoring and
management reporting Is done on a regular basis, The
Market Risk & Basel Unit supported by the Treasury
Middle Office is involved in daily monitoring of afl
related financial risk exposures in the form of Interest
rate risk, equity exposure risk, currency or foreign
exchange risk, cross border or country risk, financial
institutions (Fi) exposure risks, liquidity risk and capital
adequacy. The Bank is in the process of upgrading its
system capabilitles and has Implemented the market
risk madule of Temenos Insight Risk Intelligence
Solutlons to enhance analytical capabilities, and plans
to implement modufes for regulatory capital and asset
& liability management In the coming year.

On capital management side, the Bank’s practices
ensure that it has sufficlent capital to cover the rlsks
associated with its activities. It is the prime cbjective of
the Bank’s capital management to ensure that the
Rank complies with all regulatory capital requirements
and at the same time maintains strong credit ratings
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximize shareholders’value.

Apart from usual monitoring of Risks and Control Self-
Assessment (RCSA), operational loss data and Key Risk
Indicators {KRI), Operational risk management function
also maintains the Business Continuity Policy and
facilitates the annual testing of misston-critical systems
and services that may be disrupted due to any
eventuallty or disaster. The Bank has alse developed a
Disaster Racovery {DR) site to ensure maximum
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availability of system and services to customers and
partners for aitical {time sensitive) and support
functions.

Credit risk management Is an ongoing pracess. The
overall credit policy and the credit risk management
guidelines are isswed by the Board of Directors. In this
regard, a Central Credit Committee (CCC) is entrusted
with the responsibility of monitoring and controlling
credit risk in the Bank, CCC meats regularly to actively
supervise credit risk across the lending portfolio. In
ordar to maintain a healthy growth of the credit
portfolio, the Bank's Credit Risk Management processes
are consistently upgraded and Improved to meet
future challenges, Further, in order to holster credit risk
management monltoring activities, a Credit Risk
Monitoring Unit is In place for regular portfolio
monitoring, formulating and implementing cradit risk
management tools, inchuding setting up of industry,
geographic and sectorial limits, and devising credit risk
quantification / statistical technigues to meet SBP and
Basel HAI requirements. The health of the credit
portfolio  Is  being monitored through  Credit
Administration, which Isresponsible for house-keeping
elements along with management of credit limits,

The management of risks and uncertainties associated
with problem credit requires a different and more
intense approach than normal management. In this
regard, a Speclal Asset Management Unit is in place
following SBPS regulatory guidelines to focus on
remedial management issues, take ownership of
classified portfolio for effective management and to
determine the work-out modes for rehabilitation and
settlements, as stipulated inthe Remedial Management
Policy of the Bank.

In terms of information securlty, the Information
Security  Department  performs  security/risk
assessments and monitors critical IT and information
security-specific risks across the bank, To further
Improve the information security posture Advance/
Zero-Day Threat Protection solution is being evaluated
for implementation,

Statement on Internal Controls

The Bank places the utmost emphasis on establishing
stringent controls across all its operations, it is the
cornerstone of the Bank's policies to adhere to the best
industry practices, ethical standards and reguiatory
requirements. In this context, the Board of Directors
has promulgated policies that provide for assessing
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the overall effectiveness of the internal control
envirenment, It is the responsibility of senior
management to evolve systems and procedures that
ensure overall comprehensive controls In the light of
Board of Directors guidalines.

Internal controls are intended to provide a reasonable
measure of assurance regarding the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Bank's operations, reliability of
financial information and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, However, it is acknowledged that
the systems put in place can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurances against material
misstatement or loss since, they are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of unforeseen
loss is seeking to achieve the business objactives,

To ensure effective management of risk, the
governance structure of internal control functions at
the Bank consists of three levels of defense. The first
line of defense is the businass itself which owns its
risks, including its operational risk and is responsible
for its management, The second line of defense is the
oversight provided by the risk management,
Compliance and control functions who identify and
assess risks impacting existing and new business
initiatives, coordinate risk mitigation wilth risk
specialists and business and then report and escalate it
to the Risk Management Function for appropriate
corrective measures. The last line of defense is an
independent and effective Internal Audit Function
which reviews the effectiveness and adequacy of
internal controls and continues to monitor compliance
with policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors is regularly kept vp to date
ahout the state of compliance through the Board Audit
Committee, As a priority, all significant and material
findings of the internal and external auditors and
regulators are addressed by the management ensuring
that appropriate corrective actions have been
implemented. Adequate systems are in place to
minimize repetition of mistakes and strengthen the
contro! environment, In addition, the Compliance
Functlon s performing Its due role to ensure regulatory
compliance across the Bank.

The Bank diligently follows $BP’s Guidelines on Internal
Control to evaluate the effectiveness of the overall set
of internal controls including financial reporting
controls, A detailed documentation of bank-wide
processes and controls has bheen completed.
Furthermore, the Bank has developed a comprehensive

management testing and reporting framework for
ensuring operating effectiveness of key contrals and
has significantly addressed the Identified deskgn
improvement opportunities,

Upon satisfactory completion of the internal Control
over Financial Reporting {ICFR) Roadmap, SBP granted
axemption to the Bank in August 2016 from the
submission of a Long Form Report {LFR) by external
auditors, Annual assessment report for December 31,
2019 on efficacy of ICFR shall henceforth be submitted
to SBP duly approved by the Board Audit Committee,

The management considers that the internal contral
system presently existing is adequate, Implemented
effectively and continuously monitored, This statement
is also endorsed by the Board of Directors. The
management wiil endeavor to continue enhancing Its
caverage and compliance with the SBP guidelines on
Internal Controls and thereby strengthening its contral
environment on an ongoing basis.

Corporate Governance

The Bank prides itself onits good corporate governance
by maintaining high levels of professional and business
conduct, implementing effective intarnal controls and
audit functions, including risk management framework
and complying strictly with both local and international
codes of practice,

The Beard dosely reviews policy-related matters with
long-term implications as per regulatory obligations
which also meet the Bank’s operational requirements,
The Management and the Board Committees have
been duly constituted with a defined scope of work to
ensure that they perform their prescribed functions
precisely and efficiently as per their mandate and
respective terms of reference.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Directors confirm compliance with the Corporate
and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan Code of Corporate
Governance for the following:

» The financial statements prepared by the
management present fairly the state of affairs of
the Bank, the results of its operations, cash flow
statement and statement of changesin equity.

- Proper books of accounts of the Bank have been
maintained.
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+ Accounting polictes as stated in the notes to the  +  Outstanding statutory payments on account of

accounts have been consistently applled In the taxes, duties, levies and charges have been fully
preparationof financial statementsand accounting disclosed in the financial statements,

estimates are based on reasonable and prudent

judgment,

Holding Company

Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited, listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited, is the holding company of 1S
Bank Limited, owning 75.02% of the ordinary shares,

International Accounting Standards as applicable
in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of
the financlal statements.

.+ The system of internal controls is sound in design
and has heen effectively Implemented and

monitored, Subsidiary Companies
+  There are no doubts about the Bank’s ability as a  JS Global Capital Limited and J5 Investments Limited
galng concern. are subsidiaries of JS Bank with shareholdings of 83.5%

+  There has been no material departure from the — and 84.5% respectively. Performance of these
best practices of corporate governance, as detailed companies has been reviewed under the consolidated

in the listing regulations. Directors'Report.
The details of outstanding statutory payments, if

any, have been adequately disclosed in the
financial statements.

Aitendance of Diractors in the Board meatings

Five meatings of the Board of Directors were held during the year 2019, The attendance of directors at Board
Meetings was as follows:

Mr. Kalim-ur-Rahman - Chairman

Mr. Adil Matcheswala

Mr. Ashraf Nawabi

Mr. G.M. Sikandar

Mr. Hassan Afzal**

Mr. Munawar A, Stddiqui

Ms. Margis Ghaloo

Mr. Sohall Aman*

Mr. Suleman Lalani*

Mr. Shahab Khawaja**

Mr. Baslr Shamsie, President & CEO

V|~ | M= |w]|wn e [tn |
Wmi= | = | |wn (w | w e fun

The attendance of directors at Board Sub-Committees meetings was as follows:
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Ellgible Meetings Eligible Meetings Eligible Meetings Eligible Meetings
toattend attended toattend attended ftoattend attended toattend attended

My, Kalim-ur-Rahman - - 2 2 2 2 3 3
Mr, Adil Matcheswala 3 T3 - . 3 3 - -
Mr, Ashraf Nawabl - . 3 2 - - - -
Mr. G.M Sikandar 3 3 . . 4 4 - -
**Mr. Hassan Afzal - - - - - - 3 3
Mr. Munawar A. Stddigui 3 3 - - 3 3 - -
Ms. Nargis Ghaloo 2 2 2 2 1 i - -
*Mr. Sohall Aman - - - - - - 1 1

*Mr, Suleman Lalani - - - - - - - -

*Mr. Shahab Khawaja 1 i - ro - - - -

Mr. Basir Shamsie
Presldent & CEQ

- - 3 3 - - 3 3

*Mr, Suleman Lalani resigned as director and Mr. Sohail Aman was appeinted as director on casual vacancy we.f.
October 24, 2019,

**Mr. Hassan Afzal was elected as director at AGM on March 28, 2019 in place of Mr. Shahah Khawaja,

2

Changa in Directors Pattern of Shareholding

The election of directors of the Bankwas held on March  The pattern of shareholding at the close of Decamher
28, 2019 at the AGM wherein elght directors were 31, 2019 as required ufs 227{f) of the Companies Act,
elected by the shareholders for a period of three years. 2017 is given on page number 2 31,

During the year a casual vacancy created by resignation
of Mr. Suleman Lalznl as Director, was filled through

the appaintrment of Alr Chief Marshal (Retd) Sohail ~ Related Party Transactions
Aman as director w.e.f. October 24, 2019, Related party transactions are disclosed at note # 42,

to the unconsolidated finandial statements and note ¥

. {2, to the consolidated financial statements of the Bank
Directors Remuneration : for the year ended December 31,2019,

The remuneration of directors Is fixed by the Board of

Directors in accordance with applicable laws. The

remuneration for attending meetings of the Board
andfor Board Committees 1s wlthin the scale as §s  The Statement of Corporate & Social Responsibility is

reasonably determined by the Board. of Directors,  includedin the Annual Report.
provided that an Executive Director shall not be paid -
any remuneration for sttending Board/Board Sub
Committee meetings.

Corporate & Social Responsibility

Credit Ratings _

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has
maintained the long term rating of the Bank at ‘AA-
(Double A Minus) and the short-term rating of "A1+7 (A
One Plus) which is the highest possible short-term
rating,
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Dividend to Shareholders

No dividend 1s being pald to the shareholders on the
ordinary shares for the year 2019,

Employee Benefit Schemes

IS Bank operates a Staff Provident Fund (the Fund) and
funded Gratuity Scheme {the Scheme) covering all its
permanent employees,

The contrlbution made toward the Fund during the
yaar 2018 is PKR 209.87 million {2018 PKR 177 million).
Un-audited balance as at December 31, 2019 of the
Fund was PKR 1,795 million (2018: PKR 1,428 millicn).

The contribution to be made to the Scheme is PKR
151.88 million for 2019 {2018: PKR 102.49 mitlion). The
un-audited balance of the assets of the Scheme as at
December 31, 2019 was PKR 705 millicn (2018: PKR 570
miilion).

Auditors

The current audltors, EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered
Accountants {a member firm of Ernst & Young Globai
Limited), being retired offered themselves for
reappolntiment,

Auditors have confirmed that the firm s fully compliant
with the [nternatfonal Federation of Accountants’
Guidelines of Code of Ethics, as adopted by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {ICAP) and have
satisfactory rating under Quallty Control Review
Program of the ICAP.

On the recommendation of the Board Audit Committee,
the Board of Directors recommaends the appointment
of EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants for the year
ending December 31, 2020 at the upcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Bank,

Evaluation of the Board’s Performance

The Board of Directors of JS Bank sets the Bank’s
strategic direction and ensures that the organization
stays true to this dlrection - enabling it to achleve lts
long-term objectives while ensuring regulatory
compliance. To discharge its fiduciary responsibility of
safeguarding the stakeholders’ interests, a formal and
effective mechanism is put in place for an annual
evaluatlon of the Board's own performance, members
of the Board and of its Comimittees as required by the
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State Bank of Pakistan and the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

The Board of Directors of JS Bank has a good mix of
skills, core compestencies, diversity, experience and
knowledge and is at the same time committed to
strong corporate governance to protect the overall
interests of the Bank and its stakeholders. The Board
continually reviews the Bank’s financial and operational
soundness, governance, internal controls  and
significant policies as per regulatory requirements.
Further, the Board Committees have been constituted,
eachwith a prescribed mandate and terms of reference,

In line with the best practices of corporate governance,
the Board conducts a self-evaluation exercise on an
annuai basis by engaging Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance (PICG) as an external facllitator which is the
lead on Corporate Governance and has a team of
qualified consultants to conduct board evaluations for
companles and banks. The Board of JS Bank n
compliance with SBP’s Guidelines on Performance
Evaluation of Board of Directors and Listed Companies
{Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 has
conducted its self-evaluation for the year 2019 by
engaging PICG. The evaluation covered various aspects
of the performance of the Board including but not
limited to: Board Composition, Strategic Planning,
Control Environment, Committees, CEQ & Chairman
etc.

The evaluation was carried out using quantitative
method, based on subjective assessment and was
conducted via questlonnalres developed by the
consuitants. The quantitative technigue has the
advantage of being specific and measurable,
Measurement scale used In the Banks’s board evaluation
is the summated rating depending on how strongly
they agree or disagree with a given statement, The use
of this method ensures specific and measurable data
that can be benchmarked over time.

Compliance with the Listed Companies {Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2618

The reqguirements of the Listed Companies {Code of
Coiporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 set out by
SECP have been adopted by the Bank and have been
duly complied with. A Statement to this effect is
ahnexed with the report.
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Events after the Dote of Statement of Financial
Position

There have not been any material events that occurred
subsequent to the date of the Statement of Financial
Position that require adjustments to the enclosed
financlal statements,

Acknowledgements

On hehalf of J5 Bank, we would like to express our
gratitude toourvalued stakeholders for their continued
patronage and support. We would also lfike to thank
the Ministry of Finance, the State Bank of Pakistan
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their guidance and support to our Bank, At the close,
we extend our appreciation to all our colleagues at JS
Bank for their commitment towards ever greater
success and growth,

For and on behalf of the Board,
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President & CEQ Chairman
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To the members of JS Bank Limited

Review Report on Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
JS Bank Limited (the Bank) for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Bank.
Our responsibility is to review, whether the statement of compliance reflects the status of the Bank's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review Is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Bank's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Bank to comply with the
Regulations.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach, We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Bank's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations requires the Bank to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to assess and
determine the Bank’s process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm'’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compllance does not appropriately reflect the Bank's compliance, In all material respects, with the
best practices contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Bank for the year ended 31 December

2019,

Chartered Accountants
Date: 05 March 2020

Place; Karachi
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Statement of C

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)

Regulations, 2019 (the ‘Regulations’)

Name of company:

Year ended:

JS Bank Limited (the‘bank’}
December 31,2019

The Bank has complied with the requirements of the
Regulations in the following manner:

1.

The total number of directors are nine as per the
following:

a. Male:  Eight {Including CEQ)
b. Female: One

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Mr. G.M. Slkander
Mr. Sahall Aman
Ms. Nargis Ghaloo

i} Independent
Diractars

iy Non-Executive M. Kalim-ur-Rahman - Chairman

Directors Mr. Ashraf Nawabi
e Adil Matcheswala
Mr. Munawar Alam Siddigui
Mr. Hassan Afzat
i} Executive My, Basiy Shamsie — Prasident & CEQ
Diractor (Non-elected deemad directar)
iv) Female Ms. Nargis Ghalao
Director {independent Directar)

The directors have confirmed that none of them
is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this Bank;

The Bank has prepared a code of conduct and
has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to dissemtnate it throughout the Bank
along with its supperting policies and
procedures;

The Board has developed a vision/mission
statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the Bark. The Board has
ensured that complete record of particulars of

%JS BANK | Annual Report 2019

the significant policies along with thelr date of
approval or updating is maintained by the Bank;

All the powers of the Board have been duly
exerclsed and decisions on relevant matters
have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as
empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017 (Act) and the Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over
by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
diractor elzcted by the Board for this purpose.
The Board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect ta
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board;

The Board have a formal policy and transparent
procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and the Regulations;

Out of nine directors, five directors namely,
Mr. Kalim-ur-Rahiman, Mr. Munawar Alam Siddiqui,
Mr. G.M. Sikandar, Ms, Nargls Ghaloo and
Mr. Basir Shamsie have completed Director
Training Program and two directors namely, Mr,
Adil Matcheswala and Mr. Ashraf Nawabi of the
Bank are exempted from the requirement of
Directors’' Training Program in accordance with
the Regulaticns. Whereas, remaining two newly
elected/appointed directors namely Mr, Hassan
Afzal and Mr, Sohail Aman will certify themselves
in due course, and in any event within one (1}
year from the date of their appointment as
director;

No new appointment of Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit
has been made during the financlal year. The
Board has approved thelr remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment and
comptlied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations;

<9



1.

12

Chief Financlal officer and Chlef Executlve 13,
Officer duly endorsed the financial statements

before approval of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising 14

of members given below.-

a. Audit Committee:

Ms. Nargis Ghaleo Chalrparson
{Independent Director)

Mr. Adit Matcheswala Member
{Mon-Executive Diractan)

Me. G.M. Sikander Member
{independent Director)

Mr. Munawar Alam Siddigqui Member

{Mon-Executive Directornt

b. HR Remuneration & Nomination

Commitiee:

Mr, Schait Aman Chairman
{fndependent Directar) 15
Mr. Adil Matchaswala Membar
{Non-Executive Directar)
Mr. G.M. Sikander Member
{Independent Director)
Mr. Kalim-u-Rahman Member i6.
{Non-Executive Director)

¢ Risk Management Commitiea:
Mr. Ashraf Nawabi Chalrman
{Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Munawar Alam Siddiqul Mamber
{Non-Executive Directon
Ms. Nargls Ghaloo Member
{Independent Director
M. Basir Shamsle Member
(Executive Director and CEQ)

d. IT Committaa:
Mr. Hassan Afzal Chairman
(Mon-Executive Director)
Mr, Kalirn ur Rehman Mamber 17,
{Non-Executive Directar)
M. Sohail Aman Member
{Indepandent Director)
Mr. Basir Shamsie Mermnber

{Executive Diractar and CED)

Annual Report 2019

The terms of reference of the aforesald
cornmittees have been formed, documented
and advised to the committees for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the committee
was as per followlng:

Colomitteas Meatings
held duting
tha year
Audit Committes Theee
HR Remnuneration & Nomination Commlttes Four
Risk Management Committee Three
IT Commitiee Thrae

Due to reconstitution of the Board at AGM on
March 28, 2019, formation of Board Commiltees
was subject to prior clearance of the State Bank
of Paklstan, which was received on July 11,2019,
Hence, no Board Committees meetings were
held for the first quarter ended March 31, 2019,

The Board has set up an effective internal audit
function comprising of suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant
with the policles and procedures of the Bank;

The statutory auditors of the Bank have
confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control
Review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and
all their partners are Tn compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFACQ)
guidellnes on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the fim
tnvolved In the audit are not a close relatlve
(spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
chitdren) of the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, head of Internal audlt, company
secretary or director of the Bank;

The statutory auditors or the persons assoclated
with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the
Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requitemnent and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
reqard;

#JS BANK
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18.  We confirm that all requirements of regulations
3,6, 7,8, 27 32,33 and 356 of the Regulations
have been complied with,

For and behalf of the Board

Basir Shamsie Kalim-ur-Rehman
President & CEQ Chairman

Karachi; February 27, 2020

f;g]S BANK | Annual Report 2019
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iINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of JS Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsclidated financial statements of JS Bank Limited (the Bank), which
comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
unconsolidated profit and loss account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
uncensolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated cash flows statement for the year
then ended, along with unaudited certified returns received from the branches except 25 branches which
have been audited by us and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsclidated profit and loss account, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of ¢changes in equity and
unconsolidated cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in pakistan, and give the information required by the
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017), in the manner s0
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December
2019 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs} as applicable in
Pakistan. OQur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibillties in accordance with the Code, We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance inour
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.
=t
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Following are the key audit matters:

1, Provision against non-performing credit exposure (note 9.4)

The Bank's credit portfolics include loans and
advances, and non-funded credit facilities. The
credit portfolio is spread across various domestic
branches and overseas operation,

As per the Bank's accounting policy (refer note
4.7.1 to the financial statements), the Bank
determines provisions agalnst non-performing
financing exposures in accordance with the
requirements of Prudential Reguiations of State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in respect of potential
credit losses in the portfolio. The Prudential
Requlations require specific provisioning against
loan losses on the basis of an age based criteria
which should be supplemented by a subjective
evaluation of Bank's credit portfolio. The
determination of loan oss provisicn against certain
vulnerable corporate financing, therefare, involve
use of management judgment, on a case to case
basis, taking into account factors such as the
economic and business conditions, borrowers
repayment behaviors and realisability of collateral
held by the Bank.

in view of the significance of this area in terms of
its Impact on the financial statements and the level
of involvement of management’s judgment, we
identified adequacy and completeness of loan loss
provision as a significant area of audit judgment
and a key audit matter.

We applied a range of audit procedures including
the following:

- We tested Bank's compliance of Prudential
Regulations relating to the identification and
classification of non-performing loans into
various categories including an analysis of
downgrading of the classified loans and
declassification from non-performing to regular.

- We re-computed on test basis, the provision
calculated by the Bank, to check compliance with
the Prudential Regulations. We also reviewed, on
a sample basis, the underlying independent
valuations of the collaterals used against the
outstanding exposures to calculate the amount
of provision.

- We also tested internal controls over the
approval, recording and monitering of loans and
advances. In addition, we selected &
representative sample of borrowers from the
financing portfolios and other loans kept by the
Bank in the watch list category and performed
credit assessments. Qur procedures Includes
review of credit documentation, repayment
trends and ageing reports, borrowers financial
statements to assess its financial condition,
collateral held by the Bank and litigation status,
if any.

- We also reviewed the adequacy of disclosures
made in the accompanying financial statements
regarding non-performing loans and provisions
in terms of the requirements of Prudential
Regulation and applicable reparting framework,

Anember liom of Ernst & Yeung Global Limilsd
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2. tmpairment testing of goodwiil allocated te a cash generating unit (note

As of the balance sheet date, the intangible assets
of the Bank includes Goodwill of Rs, 1,463.62
million, which is required to be tested for
impairment in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard. Goodwill Impairment testing
of cash generating units (‘CGUs") relies on
estimates of value-in-use based on estimated
future cash flows which involve used of various
assumptions taking into account the factors such
as economic and business conditions of the
industry and environment in which entity operates.
Due to the involvement of key estimates and
judgments in evaluating the recoverable amount of
this intangible, we have considered the same as a
key audit matter. :

We applied a range of audit procedures to address
the risk as identified above including the following:

- We assessed the reasonableness of cash flow
projections and compared key inputs, such as
discount rates and growth rates, to externally
_avallable industry, economlc and financial data
and the Bank’s own historical data and
performance.

- We evaluated the assumptions, on which the
valuation is based, are realistic and consistent
with:

- the general economic environment, the
economic environment of the specific
industry, existing market information and the
entity's economic circumstances

- assumptions made in prior perlods the risks
associated with cash flows, including the
potential variability in the amount and timing
of the cash flows and the related effect on the
discount rate.

- We also assessed whether the financial
statements disclosures of application of
judgement in estimating CGU cash flows and the
sensitivity of the results of those estimates
adequately reflects the risk associated with
goodwill impairment.

- We used our own valuation specialists to test the
assumptions used in valuation.
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3. Adoption of IFRS 16 “Leases” (note 4.1.1)

IFRS 16 'Leases' (the standard) has become
effective for the current financial year as per the
SECP notification S.R.0. 434 (1)/2018 dated 09
April 2018 read with SBP's directive BPRD Circular
Letter No. 08 of 2019 dated 30 April 2019.

The standard has introduced a new accounting
model for operating lease contracts from the
standpoint of & lessee. As per the new
requirements, the Bank is required to recognize
right of use assets for leased assets and liabilities
for the lease payments over the lease term.

The impacts of the adoption of the standard on the
unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank
are disclosed in note 4.1.1 to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The application of the new standard requires
management to make significant estimates and
judgements such as in related to determination of
lease term and appropriate discount rate for
measurement of lease liability.

We considered the adoption of the standard as a
key audlt matter due to the significance of the
accounting change and the involvement of
significant management judgements in respect of
the application of the new standard.

We applied a range of audit procedures including
the following:

- We evaluated the appropriateness of the
new accounting policies for recognition of
lease contracts and their measurement in
the unconsolidated financial statements

- We obtained an understanding of the
process and controfs in  place for
identification of in-scope and material lease
contracts and capturing of relevant data
regarding the terms and copdition of the
lease contracts in lease database;

- We corroborated the completeness of lease
database by comparing the previously
identlfied operating lease contracts and the
lease/rent expenses with the contracts
appearing in the lease database;

- We also considered the use of automated
solutions for the lease accounting and IT
controls in place for such application;

We performed independent checks of {ease
accounting computations for a sample of
lease contracts through reperformance of
such computations;

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
assumptions used by the management in
measuring lease liabilitles such as discount
rate and {ease term;

We evaluated the adeguacy of disclosures
made regarding the application of the
standard and its impact on the
unconsolidated financial statements of the
Bank for the vear.

Information Other than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other Information. The other information comprises the Information
included in the Annual Report, but does not Include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial

statements and our auditors’ reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materlally Inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report }hit fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Acreenber figne of Ernsk & Young Glabal Limited
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Responsibiflties of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal controf as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ’

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management efther Intends to figuidate the Bank or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s

financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibllitles for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion, Reascenable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Paklstan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due {o fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinlon. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
colluslon, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion ¢n the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's abllity to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up te the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or condltions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves falr presentation,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

v e Lf?-
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outwelgh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
1. Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017) and the returns referred above from the branches have been found adequate for the

purpose of our audit;

b) the statement of financial position, the profit or loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flow (together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have

come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that

Ordinance.

2. We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total
loans and advances of the Bank.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shaikh Ahmed
Salman.

Pyfaa l o

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 05 March 2020

RRe
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J3 BANK LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
----- USD 1 000 ~-rv
165,256 207,371

2,889 8,255
196,809 12,511
920,702 960,234

1,568,927 || 1,827,348

62,695 40,332
14,668 14,013
57 1,854
100,568 79,783
2415 !
3,034,085 2,049,701
24,569 23,732
361,754 623,572
2,388,090 || 2,075,675
48,401 48,414
109,333 78,454

2,922,147 2,848,847

111,938 100,854
65,350 85,350
11,299 11,057

4,112 (6,588)

31,177 31,135
111,938 100,854

ASSETS

Cash and balances with freasury banks

Balances with other banks
Lendings to finangial institutions
Investments

Advances

Fixed assets

intangible assets

Peferred tax assets

Other assets

Assets held for sale

LIABILITIES

Bills payabls

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabllities against assels subject
{o finance lease

Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capltal - net

Reserves

Susplus / (deficlt) on revaluation
of assets

Unappropriated profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

14
15
18

17

18

19

20

21

2019 2018
----- Rupess in '000 -----
25,689,349 32,110,840
482,836 968,575
30,320,540 1,937,347
142,668,470 148,689,074
242,944,609 251,990,918
8,682,701 8,245,328
2,271,380 2,169,877
8,766 287,062
16,588,273 12,354,155
374,000 -
469,820,794 456,754,076
3,804,491 3,619,924
54,468,283 96,568,663
369,789,964 321,413,263
7,494,800 7,496,800
18,530,001 12,148,400
452,487,639 441,137,050
17,333,265 15,617,028
10,119,242 10,119,242
1,749,673 1,712,171
836,700 (1,035,589)
4,827,640 4,821,202

17,333,256

15,617,028

i

The annexad notes from 1 to 48 and annexure | & annexure I} form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial

statements.

President and
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial
Officar

Director

Director

Chalrman
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JS BANK LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LDSS ACCOUNT

2019 2018
waees USD I '000 sone-
268,617 193,720
223,228 138,830
45,389 58,890
18,469 17,236
1,941 705
6,220 4,334
304 108
(4,593) (9,261)
3,123 704
25,464 13,826
70,853 70,716
69,602 64,206
7 (1,070)
888 105
70,588 83,331
265 7,386
(594) 1,542
859 5,843
700 . 2,211
159 3,682
< US Dollar v---
. 0,002

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEGCEMBER M, 2019

Mark-up / return / interest earnad
Mark-up / return / interest expensed
Net mark-up / iMerest income

NON MARK-UP I INTEREST INCOME

Fae and commission income
Dividend Incoma

Foreign exchange Income

Incomse from derivatives

Loss on securliies

Other Income

Total non mark-up / Interest income

Total Income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES

Operating expenses

Workers Welfare Fund

Other charges

Total non-mark-up / interast expenses
Proflt bafore provigions

{Reversals) / provisions and write offs - net
Exiracrdinary ! unusual tems

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

02 Basic earnings per share

Note

23
24

25

26
27

28
29
30

3

32

33

2019 2018
== RUpERS in "000 ----u
41,694,699 29,997,028
34,566,342 21,187,732
7,028,367 8,809,298
2,858,042 2,688,923
300,497 109,243
963,190 871,035
47,120 18,707
(711,145) (1,434,034)
483,600 108,984
3,943,204 2,140,838
10,971,661 10,980,134
10,781,708 9,956,060
1,085 (165,674)
137,643 18,203
10,930,416 9,806,589
41,148 1,143,545
(91,930) - 238,788
133,075 904,757
109,422 342,419
am-- RUPQQ —~---
0.0004 0.30

The annexed notes from 1 1o 48 and annexure | & annexure (! form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statement:

[

Prasident and
Chlef Execultiva Officer

Chief FInancial
Offlcer

Director

Director

Chalrman



JS BANK LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
weens USD 1 000 -ommr

169 3,632

210 379
11,120 {13,951)
(378) _ 378
10,742 (13,673)
10,952 (13,194)
(72) 114

200 3,829

- (13)

128 3,930
11,238 (5,632)

Profit after taxation for the year
Other comprehensive income

ltems that may be reclassifled to profit
and loss account in subsequent periods:

Effect of translaiion of net investment
in forelgn branches

Movement in deficit on revaluation of
Investments - net of tax

Movement in general provision under IFRS 9 -
net of tax

Items that wlil not be reclassified to

2019

2018

---- Rupaes In ‘000 ----

profit and loss account in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement {loss) / gain on defined
bensfit obligations - net of tax

Maovement in surplus on revaluation of
operating fixed assets - net of tax

Movement in surplus on revaluation of
non-banking asseis - net of tax

Total comprehensive income ! (loss)

24,653 562,338
32,671 58,715
1,724,854 || (2,160,313)
{68,510) 58,510
1,663,344  (2,101,803]
1,895,915  (2,043,088)
{14,180) 17,580
30,985 592,943
- (2,088)
19,825 608,447
1,740,393 (872,303)
s

L2

The annexed notes from 1 1o 48 &nd annexura | & annexure Il form an integral part of these unconsclidated financlal

stalements.

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Director
‘ Officer

Dirgctor Ghairman

<




UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENY OF OHAHOES IN EQUITY

J8 BARK LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Rosarvey SurplustiDeflch] on revaluation ol
Exchange Hon Unappro-
Ehare Fraferance  Siatutary  tranalatlon Flxod Banking priaied
caplital shargs fesorvg * feservg Investments  Asseis Assels profit Tolal
Rupags In ‘000
Balange a9 &l Decamber 31, 2017 8,619,242 1500000 1,528,789 12,219 (78,310 473,538 05050 4518520 16569328
Profit alter taxalion l - H “ §52,23% §82,005
Other comprehansive Incoma § {loss) - net of tax - 715 2,101 aoa 592 943 2 oas 7,590 1,434,841
- 68,715 {2,101,803%) 692,942 {2,085) 570,928 (872,303)
Transler to slatulory (syarve - . 112,464 - - - - fi12468) .
Transfer from surplus on rovatuation of
a»x0lk Lo unappropriatod praff « net of tax
Fixed nsacts - - . - . {14,616} . 14,816 .
Non-banking assets acquired
In satisfaction of claims - . - - . - (126) 108 .
T 1lon with ow oo
diractly in equily
lssuanca of sydinary ahares on convarson of
preterence shares during the year 2,250,000 - - - - - - - 2,250,000
Diszount anvissus of ordinary sharas
during lhe yaar (750,000 - - - - . . .
1,400,000 . - - - - - - 1,640,000
Preference sharas concelled on conversion
Into erdinary shates during the year - {4,504,000} - . - - - - {1,500,000)
Prolerence dividend fof tha year endad
Decomber 34, 2047 @& 12% p.a. - . . . - . - {180,000)  (180.000)
Balance as al Decembar 31, 2018 10,199,242 - 1,041,237 10534 {2,180,143] 1,061,805 2058 4,821,202  16617.025
Profit aftor taxallon . - . . | T 1 . 74,050 34,853
Other camprehensive Incame /
{los1) - nel of 1ax -] . - L szEn 1,883,344 | 935 - 11,16 1,715,740
. - g 32,871 1,562,344 0,988 - 12493 1,740,393
Translat to slatulory /serve - - 494 . . . - 4,934)
Transtor from surp!us on rovaivation of
455015 Lo unappropriated profit - net of 1ex
Flxed assets . . . - . (21,508) - 21,558 .
Non-benking assets ecquired
In eatisfaction of cialms . . . - . . i82) 82 .
Trankzeilon with ovwners
racorded direetly In aquily
Freferance dividend for the year ended
Decambar M, 2018 @ 12% pa - . . . - . {25,504) {24,164)
Balsnce as at Desombar 11, 2010

* This represents reserve craaled under Section 2i(hia) ot he Sanking Companles Ordinence, 1862,

The annexed noles ffom 110 48 and annexure | & annexure I form an integral par of Lhese

Presidont and
ChisfExecutlvs OHicer

Chiaf Flnanelal Oflcer

o5datex] f fal sial

MMMMMMM&%M

—_—
Diractor

Director Chairman

{a




2019 2018
----- USD in "000 «...
a5 5,843
{1,841) (705)
{1,082) 5,138
4,969 4,440
11 4
5879 .
603 458
(594) 1,542
(3,123) (704)
32 -
870 sar7
7 83
7 (1,070)
{138) (47)
{425) {1,369)
11,3E2 4,376
10,210 9,313
{183,278) 7,585
(91,913 {212,548)
56,116 (440,874)
{23,243) {16,078)
{242,319) (660,913)
1,638 {1,988}
{272,892) 204,711
312,415 202,365
8,683 11,826
48,244 416,036
{194,075) (243,977)
(662) {(1,431)
(2,497) {8,818)
{186,564) (242,713)
87,247 || 337,207 I
3,656 (8514)
591 708
{11,664) (7.128)
{1,258) (1,709
8,828 1,000
210 379
147,218 321,967
13} 16,132
{6,602} .
{156) {1,162)
{8,871) 14,870
(48,197) 94,214
211,548 117,334
185,431 211,548

The annexpd neles from 1 {o 48 and annexure | & anagxure Il form an nlegral parl of these ungansalidatad financial

s

J8 BANK LIMITED
UNGONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING AGTIVITIES
Profit before laxaiion

Less: Dividend income

Ad|ustmanta:
Depraciation
Depracialion on non-banking assols
Papraclalion - Right of Use Assels
Amortisation
(Reversals} / provislons and wrlle ¢ffs - nat
Gain o sals of fixed assets « nat
Mark-up / return / intarest oxpensed on leass liabilily
against right-of-uso assets
Charge for defined bensfit plan
Unrealised io3s on ravaluation of invesiments classlfied
&3 held-for-trading - nat
Provision / {reversal) for Workers' Welfare Fund
Unrealised gain on revaluation of derivative instrumants - net
Unrealisad lass on ravalustion of forward foreign exchanga conlracts

{Increase) ! decroass in operailng assets
Lendings o financial institutions
Held-for-trading securlties

Advances

Other assets (excluding advance and curront faxation)

Ingrease / {dacrease) In operating liabliities
Blils payable

Borrowings
Deposils
Other labifittes

Gratuity paigd
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activitles

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Invastments in avallable-for-sale securities

Net investments In hald-to-maturity securities
Invesimant in assoclated companles

Dividands racslved

Investmant In fixed assals

{nveslment in inlanglble assets

Proceeds from sale of fived assots

Effect of ranslalion of net investment in foreign branch
Nat cash flows from Investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AGTIVITIES
(Payments) / raceipts of subordinaled debt

Paymant of teasa llability against right of use assets
Dividand paid 1o preferonce sharsholdars

Mot cash (used in) / lows from financging activities

{Decroage) { incraase in cash and cash equivalants
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at and of the yoar

President and

GChief Executive Officer

2019 2014
Mate = Rupees in '000 .-«
133,076 804 757
300,497 109,243
{187,422} 795514
10.2 769,378 G687 668
13.24 1,713 §73
4.1 $10,521 -
11.2 83,316 71,063
(92,245) 238,788
27 {483,600) {108.964)
4.1 607,361 -
36.56 134,712 128,555
28 2,618 12,906
29 1,085 (165,874)
’ {21,128 {7.318)
{65,065 (211,933%
1,767,556 846,674
1,580,136 1,442,088
{28,380,143) 1,174,540
{14,232,674) {32,912 268)
8,889,262 (68,268,318)
3,699,120 {2,334,716)
(37,522,555) (102,340,781}
284,567 {304,354)
(42,225,743) 31,698,987
48,376,701 31,336,857
1,034,778 1,831,288
7,470,303 54,661,598
(30,062,252} {37.779,183)
38.6 {102,494} {(175,118)
{340,273) (1,071,200}
{28,804,883) (37,583,483)
13,508,964 562,215,746
9,857,050 (1.318,447)
{214,239)| (180,000
1,540 109,243
{1,837,184) {1.108,720)
(194,799 (263,434)
1,337,287 156,235
32,579 58,716
22,775,102 49,674,336
{2,400) 2,498,000
4.9 {1,008,797) -
(24,164) {180,000}
{1,032,961) 2,318,000
(7,162,652) 14,408 855
32,677,913 18,169,058
34 25|415|261 32‘5??!91 3
Fal
staloments,

Chlef Flnancial Qfficer Director

Director

" Chairman




1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

J8 BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECENMBER 31, 2018

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

JS Bank Limited (the Bank / 4SBL} is a banking company incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on March 15,
2008. The Bank is a subsidiary company of Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Lid. {JSCL) and its shares are listed on Paklstan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX). The Bank commenced its banking operations on December 30, 2006 and ils registered office is
situated at Shaheen Commercial Complex, Dr. Ziauddin Abmed Road, Karachi.

The Bank is a scheduled bank, engaged in commercial banking and related services as described in the Banking Companies
Crdinance, 1962 and is operating through 359 {December 31, 2018: 344) branches / sub-branches in Pakistan and one
wholesale banking branch in Bahrain (December 31, 2018: oneg). The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limiled (PACRA) has
assigned the long-larm enkity rating of the Bank to AA- (Double A Minus) whereas short-term rating is maintained at '‘A1+' (A One

Plus), which is the highest possible short-term rating. The ratings denote a very low expectation of credit risk and Indicate vary
strona capbacity for timelv navment of financial commilments.

Jahangir Siddiqui Investment Bank Limited, JSIBL, (formery Cilicorp Investment Bank Limited which was acquired by JSCL on
Fehruary 01, 1989), and its holding company, JSGL, entered into a Framework Agreement with American Express Bank Limited,
New York (AMEX) on November 10, 2005 for acquisilion of its American Express Bank Limited - Pakistan Branchas, (AEBL).
Consequently, a new banking company, JSBL was incorporated on March 15, 2006 and a restricted Banking License was issued
by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBF) on May 23, 2006.

A Transfer Agreement was executed on Juns 24, 2006 between JSIBL and JSBL for the transfer of entire business and
underiaking of JSIBL to JSBL and & separate Transfer Agreement was alsc executed on June 24, 2008, between AMEX and
JSBL for the transfer of AEBL's commercial banking business in Pakistan with all assels and liabilities (other than certain
axcluded assets and liabilities) {AEBL business). The shareholders of JSIBL and JSBL in their respective extra ordinary general
meetings held on July 31, 2008 approved a Scheme of Amalgamation (the Schams) under Section 48 of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962. The Scheme was initially approved by the Securilies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECFP) vide its
letter No. SC/INBFC{J)-RASIBLI2006/517 dated September 28, 2006. Subsequently, the Scheme was sanctioned by the SBP

vide its order dated December 02, 2006 and, in accordance therewith, the effective date of amalgamation was fixed at December
AN 2N0A

The Bank is the holding company of JS Investments Limited, JS Global Capital Limited and JS$ ABAMCO Commoditias Limited.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These unconsalidated financial statements are separate financlal statements of the Bank in which the investments in subsidiaries
and associates are stated at cost and are accounted for on the basis of direct equity Interest rather than on the basis of reported
results. The consolidated financial statements of the Bank are being issued separately.

These unconsclidated financial statements have been prasented in Pakistan Rupees (PKR), which is the currency of the primary
aconomic envirenment in which the Bank operates and functional currency of the Bank, in that environment as well. The amounts
are rounded to nearest thousand except as stated otherwise.

The US Dollar amounts shown on the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, slatement of comprehensive
incoime and cash flow statement are stated as additional information solely for the convenience of readers and have not been
subject to audit by the external auditors, For the purpose of converslon to US Dollars, the rate of Rs. 154.8476 to 1 US Dollar has
been used for 2019 and 2018 as it was tha prevalent rate as on December 31, 2018,

Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financia! statements have been prepared in accordance wilh the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, Thess comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the Inlernational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
are nofified under the Companies Act, 2017:
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Gompanies Ordinance, 1962;
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Directives issued by the SBP and the SECP from time to time.
Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1862, the Companies Act, 2017, or the directives issued by

the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.



2.2

2.3

7 JS BANK LIMITED

The S8BP has deferrad the applicability of Internaticnal Accounting Standard (IAS) 3¢, 'Financial Instrumants: Recognition
and Measurement' and Internationat Accounting Standard (1AS) 40, 'Invesiment Property’ for banking companies vide BSD
Circular Letter Mo. 10 dated August 28, 2002 tilk further instructions. Further, the SECP has deferred the applicability of
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ on banks vide its notification S.R.O
A11(1/2008 dated April 28, 2008. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the
preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. However, Invesiments have been classified and valued in
accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through various circulars.

IFRS10 "Consolidated Financial Statements” was made applicable from period beginning on or after January 0, 2015 vide
5.R.0 633(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014 by SECP, However, SECP has directed through S.R.056(1)/2016 dated January28,
2016, that the requirament of consofidation under secfion 228 of the Companies Act, 2017 and IFRS-10 "Consclidated
Financial Statements” is not applicable in case of Investment by companies in mutual funds established under trust structure.
Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparalion of these unconsofidated
financial statements.

Through S.R.0. 229 (1/2019 dated February 14, 2018, the SECP has deferred the applicability of the IFRS @ 'Financial
Instruments' for a1l companies required to prepare their financial statements in accordance with the requirements of IFRS for
reporting pericdiyear ending on or after June 30, 2019 (earlier application is permitted). However, SEP has extended the
effective date of applicability of IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning on or after January 01,2021 vide SBP BPRD Clrcular
No.4 dated QOctober 23,2019, Therefore, the Bank has not considered the impact of IFRS 9 for its Pakistan oparations in
these unconsolidated financial statements.

Further, the Bank considers that as the Prudential Regulations and other SBP directives currently provide the accounting
framawork for the measurement and valuation of investments and provision against non performing leans and advances, the
implementation of IFRS 9 may require changes in the regulatory regime and for this SBP would issue guidance and
instruction on the application of IFRS 9 far the banking sector of Pakistan.

Standards, interpretations of and amendmertts to published approved accounting standards that are effactive In the
current year

Following are certain new and amended standards, interprelations and amendments that are mandatory for the Bank's
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

Standard, Interpretation or Amendment
- IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmenls
IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers
- IFRS 18- Leases
- Amendment to 1AS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Long Term Interests In Associates
- Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits - Plan Amendment, Curlailment or Settlement

- Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following
approved accounting standards;

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement
- 1AS 12 Income Taxes
- |1AS 23 Borrowing Costs

The adoption of the above standards / amendments to accounling standards are not considered to be relevant or did not
have any significant effect on the Bank's operations and therefore not detailed in these unconsalidated financial statements
other than IFRS 9 and IFRS 16. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of IFRS 18 are in 4.1.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounilng standards that are not yet
effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting
pariods beginning on or after January 01, 2020

Effective date (annual periods
Standard, Interpratation or Amendment beginning on or after)

IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business {Amendments) January 01, 2020
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The IASB has issued amendmeants aiming to resclve the difficulties that arise when an enfity determines whether it has
acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments ¢larify that to be considered a business, an acquirad set of
activitles and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the abifity to create outputs. The amendments include an election to use a cencentration test. The standard is effective for
transactions in the future and therefore would not have an imnact an past financial statements.

IAS 1 and IAS & — Definition of Material - Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 January 01, 2020

The amendments are intendsd to make the definition of materiat in 1AS 1 easier {0 understand and are not intended to alter
the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the |ASE has also issued guidance on how to make
materiality judgemants when preparing their general purpose financial slatements in accordance with IFRS Standards.

IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts' July 01, 2019

IFRS 14 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts' permits an entily which is a first-time adopter of International Financial Reporting
Standards to continue to account for, with some limited changes, ‘regulatory deferral account balances' in accordance with
its previous reporting framework, both on initial adoption of IFRS and in subseguent financial statements. Regulatory deferral
account balances, and movements in them, are presented separately in the statement of financial position and profit and loss
account and statement of other comprehensive income, and specific disclosures are required, IFRS 14 was originally issued
by IASB in January 2014 with Initial application date for a period beginning on or afier January 01, 2016. During Movember

2018, the SECP notified the effective date for applicability of IFRS 14 for the annual reporting periods begining on or after
Julv 01 26019

Tha above standards, amendments and inlerpretations are not expected to have any materlal impact on the Bank's financial
statements in the period of initial application.

In addition tc the above, the JIASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financlal Reporting (the
Conceptual Framework) In March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for
preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework, The revised
Conceptua! Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a
standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framswork is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop

consistent accounting policies i there is no applicable standard in place and to assist ali parties {o understand and interpret
the standards,

Further, following new standards have been Issued by IASB which are yet to be notifiad by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effactive date (annual periods

Standard heginning on or after)
IFRS 1 — First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021

Critical accounting estimates and key sources of estimatlon uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical
aceounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank's accounting
policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions in accounting
eslimates are recognisad in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Bank's financial statements or where judgment
was exercised in application of accounting policles are as follows:

Classification of Investments

. In classifying invesiments as 'held-for-trading’ the Bank has determined securities which are acquired with an intention
to trade by taking advantage of short-term market / interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 days of
acquisition.

- in classifying investments as 'held-to-maturity’ the Bank follows the guidance provided In SBP circulars on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. In making this judgment, the
Bank evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

- The investments which are not classified as ‘held-for-trading' or "held-te-malurity’ are classified as ‘available-for-sale’.

Provision against non performing loans and advances

The Bank reviews its loan portfalio to assess amount of non-performing leans and advances and provision required there-
against. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial position of the
borrowers, the value of securities and the requiremants of the Prudential Regulations are considered. For portfolio
impairment / provision on consumer advances, the Bank foliows requirements set out in Prudsntial Requlations. é
g_
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iii} Impairment on investments

The Bank detarmines that Investments are impaired when there has besn a significant or profonged decline in the fair value
below its cost. This determinaticn of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank
evaluates among other factors, the normal volatitity in securities price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there
is an evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the inveslee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flows.

iv) Incomes taxes

In making the eslimates for income taxes currently payable by the Bank, the management considers the current income tax
laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on cerlain issues in the past. [n making the provision for deferred taxes,
estimates of the Bank's future taxable profits are taken into account.

vi) Depreclation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets

In making estimates of the depreciation / amortisation method, the management uses a method which reflects the paltern in
which aconomic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The method applied is reviewed at each financial year
end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumplion of the future economic henefits embodied in the
underlying assets, the method is changed to reflect the change in paltern. Such change is accounted for as change in
accounting estimates in accordance with International Accounting Standard - 8, "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors",

vit) Defined benefits plans and other benefits

Liability is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Cradit Method.

viii} Impairment of Goodwill

Impairment testing involves a number of judgmental areas which are subject te inherent slgnificant uncertainty, in¢luding the
preparation of cash flow forecasts for the periods that are beyond the normal requirements of management reporting and the
assessmant of the discount rate appropriate to the business. The carrving amount of goodwll at the balance sheet date was
Rs.1,464 milion. The detailed assumptions underlying impairment testing of goodwill are given in note 11.5 to these
unconsolidated financial statements.

viii) Lease term

The Bank applies judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts In which it is a lessee that includs renewal
options.The assessment of whether the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which
sionificantly affects the amount of leass liabilities and right-of-use assels recognlised.

ix) Non-Current assets classifiod as held for sale

The Board of Directors accorded its in-principle approval and authorized the management of the Holding Company to explore

the possibility to sell a property. Accordingly, the Holding Company located a buyer and entered Into an agreement during the

year, to selt the Property subject to completion of certain legal formalities. The Board considered the property to meet the
. ¢riteria to be classified as held for sale at that date for the following reasons:

) The Property is available for immediate sale and can be sold in its current condition subject to completion of certain
legal formalities

ii) The actions to complete the sale were initiated and expected to be completed within one year from the date

ii) The Holding Company expects the legal and procedural formalities for the sale to be completed by end of first quarter
of 2020.

For mare details on the property classified as held for sale, refer note 10.3

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cosi convention except for:

- Certain classes of fixed assets and non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims which are stated at revalusd
amounts lass accumulated depreciation.

- Investments classified as held-for-trading and available-for-sate and derivative financial instruments, which are
measured at fair value.

- Net obligations in respsct of defined benefit schemes which are carried at their present values.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principat accounling policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statemants are consistent with
those of previous financial year except as disclosed below in note 4,1,

Adoption of IFRS 16 - Leases

International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) has issued IFRS 16 'Leases' in January 2016 which supersedes IAS 17
‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Leage”, SIC-18 'Operating Leases-1ncentives' and SIC-27
‘Evaluating the Substance of Transacticns Involving the Legal Form of a Leasa’.

The new standard sets out the principles for:

- Lessees to account for all leasss under a single on-balance sheet model and governs recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of [eases; and

- Lassor accounting which is substantially unchanged. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in 1AS 17.

Therefore, [FRS 6 did not have an impact for leases where the Bank is a lessor,

The Bank has lease contracis for various properties, Before the adoption of IFRS 16, the Bank classified each of its leases
{as lessee) at the Inception date as an operaling lease.

In an operating lease, the leased asset was not capitalised and the lease payments were recognised as rent expense in
profit or loss on a straight-fine basis over the lease term. Any prepaid rent and accrued rent were recognised under other
asset and other liabilitias, respectively.

The Bank has adopied IFRS 18 using the modified relrospective mathod of acdoption with the date of initia! application as
January 01, 2019. Under this method, the standard has been applied retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard, recognised at the date of initial application. Accordingly, adjusiment to the carrying amount of assets
and liabiliies were recognised in the current period.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the lessees are required to recognise a leasa liabilily for the obligation to make lease payments
and a right-of-use (Rol)) asset for the right to use the underlying asset for the lease lerm against a consideration. Under IAS
17, leased assets, under operaling lease mode, were not recognised on bank's balance sheats and it only required lessees

to recognise a periodic lease expense (rent) on a straight-line basis over the term for {eases tenure and relevant lease
commitments were disclosed.

New accounting policies of the Bank upon adoption of IFRS 16 are:

Right-of-use {Roll} assets

At the commencement date of the lease, the right-of-use asset is initially measured at the present value of Iease liabllity plus
prepaid rent. Subsequently, RoU assets are measurad at cost, less accumilated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any premeasurement of lease liabilities. RoU assets ars depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its eslimated useful life and the lease term.

Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises lease liability measured at the present value of the
consideration (Yease payments) to be made over the lease term and is adjusted for lease prepayments. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate Implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinabls, in which case the lessee may
use the incremental rate of borrowing. After the commancement dale, the carrying amount of lease liability Is increased to
reflect the accretion of interast and reduced for the lease payments made.

The effect of adoption of IFRS 16 as at January 01, 2019 {increase [ (decrease)) is as follows:

January 01,
2019

Rupees in '000
Assets
Right-of-use {RolJ) asset 4,461,250
Prepayments (308,006)
Tolal Assets 4,153,244
Liabilities
Lease liability 4,153,244

LY
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The canying amounts of tha Bank's right-of-use assets, lease liabilities and the movements during the period is as balow:

RoU asssets Lease Habilitles
-------- Rupees in '000 --------

As atJanuary 1, 2019 4,461,250 4,153,244
Additional impact arised during the pericd - net 42,563 42,563
Depreciation (910,321) -
Borrowing cost - 507,361
Payments - (1,008,797}
As at December 31, 2019 3,593,462 3,696 371

Had this standard not been applied, below impacts have not been arised in these unconsolidated financial statements:

As at
Decemhber 31,
2019
Rupees In ‘000
Impact on Statement of Financial Position

increase in fixed assets - right-of-use assets 3,593,492
Decrease in other agsets - advancas, deposits,

advance rent and other prepayments (225,683)
Increase in other assets - advance taxation .
increase in total assels 3,367,809

Increase In other liabilities - lease lability against

right-of-use assets / other payable 3,696,371
Decreagse in net assots (328,562)
For the ysar
ended
December 31,
2019
(Rs. in '000}
Impact on Profit and Loss account
Increase in mark-up expense - lease liability against right-of-use assets 507,361
{Increase) / decrease in administrative expenses
- Depreciation on right-of-use assets 910,321
- Rent sxpanse (1,089,120)
{178,799)
Decrease in profit before tax 328,562
Decrease in tax -
Decrease in profit after tax 328!562

When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Bank discounted laase payments
using its incremental borrowing rate at 01 January 2019,
Dacember 31,

2019
(Rs. In "000)
Operating lease commitments at January 01, 2019 as disclosad under |AS 17 6,591,658
Discounted operating lease commitments as at January 01, 2019 4,166,583
Less:
Commitments relating to short term leases (13,339)
Lease liabilities recognised at January 01, 2019 4,153,244

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents rapresent cash and halances with treasury banks and balances with other banks net of any
overdrawn nostro accounts.
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4.3 Lendings te financlal institutions

The Bank enters into transactions of fendings to / borrowings from financial instilutions at contracted rates for a specified
patiod of time, These are recorded as under:

(a) Sale under rapurchase obligation

Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statemsnls as investments and
fliability to counter party is included in botrowings. The difference in sale and repurchase value is accrued over the
peried of the contract and recorded as an expense using effective interest rate method.

{b) Other lendings

Other lendings include term lendings and unsecured lendings to financial institutions. These are stated net of
provision. Mark-up on such lendings is charged o profit and loss account on a lime proportionate basis using effective
interest rate method except mark-up on impaired/detinquent lendings, which are recognized on receipt basis in
accordance with ths requirements of the Prudential Requlaticns of the SBF.

4.4 Berrowlngs from finaneial institutions

The Bank enters into transactions of lendings to / borrowings from financial institutions at confractad rates for a spacified
pericd of time, These are recorded as under:

(a) Purchase under resale obligation

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo) are not included in statement of financial position as the
Bank does not obtain control over the securilies, Amount paid under these agreements is included in lendings to
financial institutions or advances as appropriate. The difference between the contracted price and resale price is
amortised over the period of the contract and recorded as income using effective interest method,

{b) Other borrowings

Other borrowings inctude borrowings from the SBP and unsecured call borrowings which are recorded at the proceeds
racaived. Mark-up pald on such borrowings is charged to the profit and loss account over the period of borrowings on
time proportionate basis using effective interest method.

4.5 Investments
4.5.1 [Ialtlal recognition and measurament

4.5.1.1 The Management determines the appropriate classification of its invesiments at the fime of purchase in held-for-trading,
available-for-sale or held-to-maturity as per SBP guidslines vide BSD circular Mo. 10 of 2004 daled July 13, 2004, These are
initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given plus, in the case of investments not held-for-
trading, directly allributable acquisition costs.

(a) Held-for-trading

These are securilies which are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices,
interest rate movements, dealer's margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit
taking exists. These securities are carried at fair value with any related galn or foss being recognized in profit and loss
account.

{b) Held-to-maturity

These ara sacurities with fixad or determinable payments and flxed maturities that are held with the intention and ability
to hold till maturity. Investments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortised cost.

{c) Available-for-sale

These ara investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-maturily categories. Thase are initially
recogrised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including the acquisition cost. These securities are
carried at fair value with any related surplus or deficit on revaluation shall e taken to other comprehensive income.

4.5.1.2 Assoclates

Associate Is an entity over which the Bank has significant Infiuence but not control. Investment in associate is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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4.5.1.3 Subsidiarles

Subsidiary is an entity over which the Bank has control Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

4,5.1.4 Ragular way contracts

Al 'regular way' purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which commitment
o purchase / sale is made by the Bank. Reqular way purchases or sales of financial assets are those, the contract for which
requires delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regutation or convention in the market place.

4.5.1.5 Premlum or discount an acquisition of investments

Premium or discount cn acquisition of investments is capitaised and amorlised through the prafit and loss account using
effective yield over the remaining period of the investment,

4.5.2 Subsequent measurement

In accordance with the requirements of the SBP, quoted securities other than those classified as ‘*held-to-maturity' and
invesiment in associates and subsidiaries, are subsequently remeasured on portfolio basis i.e. in case of government
securities at PKRV rates whereas in case of cther securities at market value, Invesiments classified as ‘held-te-maturity' are
carriad at amortised cost using the effective interest method {less impairment, if any).

Further, in accordance with the requirements of the SBP, gain or loss on revalualion of the Bank's held-for-trading
investments Is taken to the profit and loss account, In case of investments classified as available-for-sale, surplus or deficit is
taken direclly to equity. The surplus or deficit arising on these securities is taken to the profit and loss account when actually
realised upon disposal.

Unquoted equity securities, excluding investment in subsidiaries and associates are valued at lower of cost and the break-up
value in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations Issued by the SBP. Break-up value of equity
securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of lhe investee company as per the latest available audited financial
statements. Investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost, less accumulated impalrment losses, if any.

4.5.3 Impairment [ diminution in the value of securlties

Impairment loss in respect of quoted equity securitios classified as available for sale, associates, subsidiaries and held to
maturity is recognised based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
avents that may have an Impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. Objective evidence that the cost may
not be recovered, in addition to qualitative impairment criteria, includes a significant or prolonged dacline in the fair value
below averaaa cost. A decline to be considered as:

- Significant if the fair vatue is below the weighted average cost by more than 30 percent.
- Prolonged if the fair value is below the weighled average cost for a period of more than one year.

(a) Avallable-for-sale

If an available-for-sale equity securily is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in equity, shall be
reclassified from equity to profit and loss as a reclassification adjustment avan though the financlal asset has not bean
derecognised, any further decline in the fair value at subsequent reporting dates is recognised as impairment,
Therefore, at each reporting pariod, for an aquity sacurity that was determined to be impalred, additional Impairmants

is recognised for the difference between the fair value and the original cost basis, fess any previously recognised
imoairment.

If, in suhsequent period, impairment losses recognised In profit and loss for an investment In an equlty instrumeant
classified as available for sale shall not be reversed through profit and loss except in case of derecognition.

() Held to maturity, subsidiaries and agsociates

Impairment losses are incurred if, and only If, there Is objective evidence of Impairment after initial recognition of the
investment. The impairment [oss is recognised in the profit and loss account. If, in a subsequent period, any indication
that an impairment loss recognised in prior perieds no longer exist or may have decreased, the impairment loss shall
he reversed, with the amount of the reversal recoanised in profit or loss.

(c) Debt Securities
PTCs, TFCs, Sukuk and other debt securities will be classified on the valuation date on the basis of default in their

repayment in line with the criteria prescribed for classification of madium and long-term facllities in accordance with the
requirements of the Prudentlial Regulations issued by the SBP.

&



14 JS BANK LIMITED
4.5 Financial instruments

4.5.1 Flnancial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Bank becomes party to the contractual
provision of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual right to future cash flows from
the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognized
when obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or explred. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of
the financial asset and liability is recognized In the profit and loss account at the time of de-recognition. The
particular recegnition and subsequent measurement method for significant financial assets and financial liabililies
are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with them.

452 Derivatlve financlal instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using valuation techniques. Ali derivative financial
instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change
in the fair value of derivative financial instrumeanis is taken to the profit and loss account.

4.6 Off-setting of financial assets and financial Habilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount Is reported in the financial statements when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off and the Bank intends either to settle the assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise
the assets and to settfe the liebilities simultaneously. Income and expenses arising from such assets and liabilities are
accordingly offset.

4.7 Advances
4,71 Loan and advances

Advances are stated net of general and specific provisions. General and spacific provisions against funded loans are
determined in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP and charged to the profit
and loss account. Advances are written off when there are no reallstic prospects of recovery,

4.7.2 Finance lease recelvables

Leases, where the bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset 1o the lessee are
classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the lease payment
including any guaranteed rasidual value, if any. Net investment in finance lease is included In loans and advances to

4.8 Fixed assels
4,81 Property and equipment

Operating fixed assets except office premises are shown at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment fosses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the tems.
Office premises (which includes leasehold land and buildings) are stated at revalued amount less accumulated deprecialion
and impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation Is calculated and charged to profit and loss account using the straight-line method so as to write down the cost
of the assets fo their residual values over their estimated useful lives at the rales given in note 10. A full month's depreciation
is charged from the month in which assets are brought into use and no depreciation is charged for the month in which the
disposal is made. The residual values, useful lives and depreclation methods are reviewed and changes, if any, are treated
as change In accounting estimates, annually.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be
measured reflably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit and loss account during the period in which they are incurred.

An item of property and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is recognised in the profit and loss account in the
year the asset is de-recognised.

4.8.2 Surplus / deficit on revaluation of fixed asssis

The surplus arising on revaluation is credited to other comprehensive incoms. However, the increase shall be recognised in
profit and loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in prefit and loss

The deficit arising on a particutar property as a result of a revaluation is recognised in profit and loss account as an
impairment, However, the decrease to be recognised in cther comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. '
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Depreciation on buildings which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assels on
revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and an amount equal to incremental
depreciation for the year net of deferred laxation is transferred from *Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets Account” to
unappropsiated profit through Statement of Changss in Equity to record realization of surplus to the extent of the incramental
depreciation charae for the vear.

Gains or losses on disposal of assets are includad In the profit and loss account currently, except that the related surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets {net of deferred tax) is transferred directly to equity.

4.8.3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost tess impairment fosses, if any. These are transferred to specified assets as and
when assets are available for use,

4.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost lass accumulated amortisation and impairmsnt, if any. Intangible assets are amortised
from the month when the assets are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of the intangitle asset
is amortised over its estimated useful jife over which aconomic benefits are expected to flow to the Bank. The useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed and adiusted, if appropriate, annually.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are carried at cost less any impairment in value and are not amortised.
However, these are reviewed for Impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired.

4,10 Non-banking assets acquired In satigfaction of claims

4.10.1 Non-banking assets acquired in safisfaction of claims under Debt Property Swap (DPS} transactions, against the loans in
category of loss, are initially carried at cost and subsequently al revalued amounts at each year-end date of the statement of
financial position, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The valuation cf properties acquired under this head is conducted regularly, so as to
ensure that their net carrying value does not matedally differ from their fair value,

All direct cost including legal fees, valuation and transfer costs of acquiring tile to property shall be expensed when Incurred
through profit and loss account,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts only when it is probable that future benefits associated with
the item will fiow to the Bank and the cost of the item ¢an ba measured reliably. All other subsequent costs including repair
and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Depreciation on assets acquired in satisfaction of claims is charged to the profit and loss account in line with the depreciation
charged on operating fixed assets.

Any reductions In non-parforming loans and corresponding reductions in provisions hetd against non-performing loans, as a
rasult of tha recognition of such assets, are disclosed separately in the notes to these unconsolidated financial statements.

These assels are generally intended for sale. Gains and losses realised on the sale of such assets are disclosed separately
from gains and losses realised on the sale of operating fixed assets in the notes to these un-consolldated financial
statements. If such asset is subsequently used by the Bank for its own operations, the asset, along with any related suplus,
is transferred to operating fixed assets.

4.10.2 Surplus ! deficit on revaluation of non banking assets

Revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of ¢laims under DPS transactions is carried cut under criteria
given in regulations for DPS issued by SBP vide BPRD Circular 01 dated January 01, 2016 i.e. valuation of property shall be
done on individua! property basls and not on portfolio basis, whereas accounting traatment of revaluation is accounted for in
accordance with applicable financial reporting standards i.e. International Accounting Standard (IAS) 18,

Furthermore, revaluation surplus on such assets shall not be admissible for caleulating the Bank's Capilal Adequacy Ratio
and exposure limits under the Prudential Regulations. Howaver, the surplus can be adjusted upon realization of sale
proceeds.

411  Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its assets (other than investment and deferred lax
asset) to determine whether there is an indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to detenmine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Recoverable amaunt Is the higher of net sefling price (being fair vaiue less cost to sell) and value-in-use. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be tess than its carnrying amount, the carrying amount of the assels is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recoanised as an exoanse in profit and loss account immadiatelv.

Where Impairment loss subsequenily reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised racoverable
amount but limited to the extent of the amount which would have been determined had there bsen no impairment. Reversal
of impairment [6ss is recognized as income.
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4.12  Borrowings f deposlits and thelr cost

Borrowings / daposits are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing / deposit costs are recognised as an expanse in the
period in which these are incurred.

413 Suberdinated debt

Subordinated loans are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on subordinated lozns is recognised
separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to the profit and loss account aver the pericd on an accrual basis.

4.14  Taxation

4.14.1 Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable Income at the current rate of taxation after taking Intc account applicable
tax credit, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or minimum tax on turnover, whichever is higher. The charge for current
tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, relating to prior years arising from assessments made during
the vear.

414.2 Defarrad

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising between tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their canrying amounts appearing in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabllity is recognized on
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differencas and carry forward of
unused tax losses, if any only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax banafits
will be realised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences are expacted to reverse,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, Deferred tax is charged or
cradited to the profit and loss account.

Deferred tax, if any, on revaluation of investments is recognised as an adjustment to surplus / {deficif) arising on revaluation
in accordance with the requirements of |1AS-12 "Income Taxes".

418 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past avents, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimata.

Provision against identified non-funded losses Is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty exists for the Bank to
seltle the obligation. The loss Is charged to profit and loss account net of expected recovery.

4.16  Staff retirement benefits

4.16,1 Defined contribution plan

The Bank has established a provident fund scheme for all permanent employees effective from January 01, 2007, Equal
monthly contributions are made, both by the Bank and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 10 percent of basic salary
which has been revised to 7.1 percent with effect from July 01, 2015 due to change in salary structurs. Contribution by the
Bank is charged to profit and loss account,

4.18.2 Delined bonefit plan

The Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme covering all its eligible employees who have completed minimum
qualifying period. An actuarial valuation of defined benefit scheme is conductad at the end of every year or en occurrence of
any significant change. The most recent valuation in fhis regard was carried out as at December 31, 2019, using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. Under this method cost of providing for gratuity is charged to profit and loss
account so as to spread the cost over the service lives of the employees in accordance with the actuarial valuation. Past-
service costs are recognised immediately in profit and loss account and actuaria! gains and losses are recognised
immediatelv in other comorehansive income.

417  Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that economic benefits wili flow to the Bank and the ravenue ¢an be reliably measured.
Thess ara recognized as follows:;

- Advances and investments

Mark-up income / interest / profit an performing advances and debt securities is recognized on a time praportion basis
as per the terms of the contract.
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Mark-up income / interest / profit on non-performing advances and debt securities is recognized on & receipt basis in
accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Reguiations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Interest / returns / mark-up income/ profit on rescheduled / restruclured advances and debt securities are racognised
as permitted by the State Bank of Pakistan or by the regulatory authorities of the countries where the Bank operates,
except where, In the opinion of the management, it would not be prudent to do so.

Premium or discount on acquisition of debt investments is capitalised and amorised through the profit and loss
account over the remaining maturity of the debt security using the effective yield method.

tease flnanclng

Financing method is used in accounting for income from fease financing. Under this method, the unearned lease
income {defined as the axcess of the sum of total lease rentals and estimated residual value over the cost of leased
assets) is deferred and taken to income over the ferm of the lease period 50 as to produce a constant periodic rate of
return on the outstanding net investment in lsase.

Unrealised finance income In respect of non-performing laase tinance is held in suspense account, where necessary,
in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP,

Gains [ losses on termination of lease coniracts, documentation charges, front-end fees and other lease income are
recognized as income on receipt basis.

- Non Mari-up [ interest income

- Commission is recognised as income at the time of affecting the fransaction {o which it relates. Fees are recognised
wian earned.

- Financial advisory fee is recognised when the right to receive the fee is established,

- Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.

418 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves, except for statutory reserves, are recognised in the financial statements in the
periods in which these are approved.

4.19 Fareign currencies
4.19.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic envirenment In which
the Bank operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Bank's functional and
presentalion currency.

4,18.2 Transactions and halances

Transactions in foreign currencies are transtated into Pakisteni rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
and exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit and loss
account.

Forward contracts refating to foreign currency deposits are valued at forward rates applicable to the respective malurities of
the relevant foreign exchange contract. The forward cover received / paid on forward purchase contracts relating to forgign
currency deposits are realised / charged directly to profit and loss account,

4.19.3 Foreign operations

Assets and ligbilities of foreign operations are translated into rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
The results of foreign operations are translated at average rate of exchange for the year.

4.19.4 Translation gains and losses

Translation gains and losses arising on revaluations of net investment in foreign operations are taken 1o Exchange
Transiation Resarve in the statement of comprehensive income. These are recognised in the profit and loss account on
disposal.

4.18.5 Commitments

Commitments for cutstanding forward foreign exchange centracts disclosed in these financial slatements are translated at
contracted rales. Contingent liabilities/commitments for lelters of credit and leflers of guarantee denominated in foreign
currencies are exprassed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange ruling on the batance sheet date. é
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420 Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination before July 01, 2009 is initially measured at cost, being the excess of ths cost
of the business combination over the Bank's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, labilities and contingent
liabilities acquired. Folfowing initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost lass any accumulaled impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if evenls or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrving value mav be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Bank’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespeclive of whether other assets or liabililies of the acquirer ara assigned 1o those units or groups of
units.

4.21  Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
altributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank less prefemred dividend (if any) by the weighted average number of ordinary
sharas outstanding during the period / yvear. Diluted EPS Is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary

4,22  Non-current assets held for sale and associated liabilities

The Bank classifies an asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a safe transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must ba available for immediate sale in its presant
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets and its sale must be highly probable.
For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be commilted to a plan to sell the asset (or
disposal group), and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been iniliated. Further, the
asset must be aclively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable In refation to Its current fair value. 'n addition, the sale
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification and actions
required to complete the plan should indicate that it Is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the
plan will be withdrawn.

A held for sale asset is carried af the lower of its carrying amount and tha falr valus less costs to sell. Impairment losses are
recognised in the unconsolidated profit and less account for any initial or subsegquent write down of the asset to fair value
tess costs to sell. Subsequent gains in fair value less costs to sell are recognised to the aextant thess do not excesd the
cumulative impairment losses previously recorded. An asset is not depreciated while classified as held for sale.

4.23  Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is subject to risks and rewards {hat are different from those of
other segments. A business segment is one that is engaged either in providing certain products or services, whereas a
geographlcal seament is one engaged in providing certain products or services within a particular economic environment.

Segment information is presented as per the Bank's funcfional structure and the guidance given under International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 8. For management purposes, the Bank has been organised into five operating segments basad
on products and services, as follows:

4.23.1 Busliness segments

Corporate finance

This includes investment banking activities such as mergers and acquisitions, underwriting, privatization, securitization, Initial
Public Cffers (IPOs), specialised financial advice and trading and secondary private placements.

Trading and sales
This segment undertakes the Bank's treasury, money market and capital market activities.
Retail kanking

Retail banking provides services to small borrowers i.e. consumers, small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and agricultural
sactor. Itincludes loans, daposits and other transactions with retail customers.

Commercial hanking

This includes loans, deposits and other trangactions with corporate customers.
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The Executive Management Committee (ManCom) monitors the aperating results of its business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profits or losses and is measured consistently with
operating profits or losses in the consolidated financial statements. However, income taxes are managed on
a aroup basis and are not allocated to operating seaments.

interest income is reported net as management primarily relies on net interest revenue as a performance
measure, along with the gross income and expense

Transfer prices between operating segments are based on the Bank's internal pricing frameawork.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of
the Bank's total revenue in 2018 or 2019.

4.23.2 Geographical segment

The Bank operates with 359 (December 31, 2018: 344) branches / sub-branches in Pakistan region and one
wholesale banking branch in Bahrain (December 31, 2018: one).

4.24 Fiduciary assets

Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Bank in statement of financial position.

2019 2018
Note -—-—-- Rupees in '000 =--=a---
5, CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

In hand
Local currency 5,672,604 4,415,520
foreign currencies 896,523 488,292

6,469,127 4,903,812
With State Bank of Pakistan in:
Local currency current account 5.1 13,292,331 22,166,628
Foreign currengy current ascount - nonh remunerative 5.2 831,532 765,858
Foreign currency deposit account - remunsrative 5.3 2,568,714 2,409,442

16,690,577 25,362,028
With National Bank of Pakistan in:

Local currency current acceunts 2,286,206 1,839,386
National Prize Bonds 143,440 5,604

25,589,349 32,110,840

51  These include local currency current accounts maintainad with SBP as per the requirements of Section 22 of
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1862,

5.2  As per BSD Circular No. 9 dated December 03, 2007, cash reserve of 5% is required to be maintained with
the State Bank of Pakistan in deposits held under the New Foreign Currency Accounts Scheme (FE-25
deposits).

5.3  This represents deposit accounts maintained with SBP under the requirements of BSD Circular No. 14 dated
June 21, 2008 and mandatory reserve maintained to facilitate collection and settiement of foreign currency
accounts under FE-25, as prascribed by the SBP, carrying a mark-up rate 0.70% {2018: 1.5%) as per
specific circular issued by SBP at year end.

LF
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2019 2018
Note ~ - Rupsees in '000 =~
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
In current accounts 143,754 124,962
In deposit accounts 67 67
143,821 125,029
Oufside Pakistan
In current accounts 6.1 318,083 843,673
462,904 968,702
Less: General provision under IFRS 9 6.2 (68) (127}
Balances with other banks - net of provision 462,836 968,575

This includes amount held in Automated nvestment Plans. The Bank is entitled to earn interest from the correspondent
banks at agreed upon rates when the balance exceeds a specified amount which comes 1.05% per annum (2018: 1%-
2% per annumj.

This represents general provision held under IFRS 9 by Bahrain branch of the Bank.

2019 2018
Note e Rupees in '0040 -----

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Call money lendings 7.2 283,887 1,758,917
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo) 7.3 30,037,915 -
Due against bills re-discounting - 182,742

30,321,802 1,941,659
Less: General provision under IFRS 9 7.4 (1,262) (4,312)
Lending to Financial Instituticns - net of provision 30,320,540 1,937,347
Particulars of lendings - gross
fry local currency 30,037,915 -
in foreign currencies 283,887 1,941,659

30,321,802 1,941,669

These represent unsecured call money lendings to financial institutions carrying interest at the rates ranging from
2.50% 1o 4.52% (2018 2.85% to 8.06%) per annum. These will mature between January 30, 2020 and September 22,
2020 (2018: January 24, 2019 and September 23, 2018).

These are secured short-term lendings to various financial institutions, carrying mark-up rate from 12.00% to 13.60%
(2018: Nil} per annum. These are collateralized by Market Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds as shown in
note 7.3.1 below.

Market value of securities held as collataral against Lending to financial institutions
2019 2018

Further Further

Held by given as Held by given as
bank collateral Total bank collateral Total

Rupees in '000

Market Treasury Bills 24,252,002 - 24,252,002 - - -
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2,081,639 3,673,117 5,754,758 - - -

26,333,641 _ 3,673,117 30,006,758

This represents general provision held under IFRS 9 by Bahrain branch of the Bank.

6%
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INVESTMENTS

Investments by type

Held-for{radlng sacuritlos
Federal Govarnment Securifies

Avaitable-for-sale sacwiities
Federal Government Sacurities
Eharas

Hon Government Dabt Securilles
Foreign Securities

Heldta-maturity securities
Federal Government Secunties

Assoclates

SubskMaries

Total Investments

24
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2019 218
Costl Cost!
Amorlised  Provistonfor  Sumplus/ C:;rf}:’l:g Amortised  Provision for Burplus / C;ra?rul‘r:g
cost diminution {Deficit) cost diminution {Beficit)
Rupees In 000
66,601,087 (2,618) 55,509,460 41,381,420 . (12,008) 41,368,514
47,828,618 . (600,248)i[ 47,019,374 65,434,989 . (2.893,867)|] 82,541,123
2,092,887 (36,589} 20,675 1,976,753 3,141,045 {478,248) {94,766) 2,567 803
3,367,738 (370,0581) (6,461) 2,901,226 1,888,682 {373,504) 606 1,525,594
2,406 - - 2,406 6,326,797 - {458,000} §,870,788
§3,291,420 {506,640) {785,030) 51,989,769 56,801,283 {B351,940) {3,444,038) 62,505,407
32,859,882 - 32,859,882 42,716,932 - - 42,716,932
201,239 - - 201,229 180,000 - - 180,000
1,919,421 - - 41,819,121 1,219,121 - - 1,949,121
143,872,758 508,540} [797,648) 142 668,470 _ {52 058,868 (851,940) 13,456,942 148,680,974

Investmanits include cedain approved / government securilies which are held by the Bank to comply with the Stalutory Liquidity Requirement determined on the basls of the
Bank's demand and time labilifies as sel out under section 2¢ of the Banking Companies Qrdinance, $862,

Invesiments by segents:

Haldfor-frading secarities
Foderal Governmenl Securitlss
Market Treasury Bils
Paldsian Investment Bonds

Avallable-for-galo securities

Federal Government Sacuritios:
Market Traasury Bills
Pakislan Investmanl Bonds

Shearas:

Listed Companies
Qrdinary shares
Praference sharas
Unileted Companios
Crdinary shares

Mon Government Debt Sscuriles
Listod

Term Finence Cerificates

Sukuk Cenificates

UnkHsled

Tarm Financa Cartificates

Sukuk Cerlficatas

Praference shares

Farelgn Securltles

Government Dabl Securilies

Men Govermment Debl Securlies
Qedinary sharos

Held-lo-maturity securities

Federal Governmont Securilles:
Pakistan Invesiment Bonds

Associates
Omar Jibran Enginearing Indusiries

Veda Transit Solutions Prvate Limy
Infercity Touting Company Privale 1

Subsldiaries
J§ Global Capila! Limited
J3 Investmants Limitad

Taolal Investments

Mote

8.4.1
g4

8.51
8.5.1

852
852

8623

8531
8.5.3.2

8.53,3
4534
8535

5.5.4.1
854.2
8523

881

8.7
87
a7

a.7
8.7

201% 2018
Cost! Proviglon for  Surplus ! Carrying Cost/ Praovigion for Surplus f Carrying
Amortised diminution {Daficit) Value Amorlised diminution [Daticlt) Value
Rup In "00Q

Lua.sui 087 ” - " {2,818) | 56,508,469 41,376,085 “ - (12,344)” 41,364,161
. . . - 4,428 - (62} 4,383
55,601,087 - {2,618) 55,599,469 41,381,420 - {12,906) 49,356,514
12,074,266 " - ” |m}ﬂ 12,070,902 ” 3,010,820 IL - | (13} 3,010,907
35,757,352 - (808,880} 34048472 52,424,060 - 2,893 854 49,530,215
47,828,618 - (809,244) 47,049,374 £5434,959 - (2.803,867) 62,641,122
1,846,078 - 20,675 1,955,753 2,993,426 (341,757) {94.,766) 2,556,903

136,588 {136,588) - - 136,589 {138,589) - -
11,000 - . 11,000 11,000 - - 11,000
2,082,867 {138,589) 20,675 1,576,753 3,141,015 {478,348} {94,766} 2,567,903
306,183 {155,169} {14} 150,000 08,727 {158,742) {15) 150,000
398,750 - {6,447) 390,303 £29,000 - 621 529,621
1,179,739 {214,882) - 964,857 774,188 (214,882 - 564,308
1,458,333 . . 1,488,313 281,657 - - 281 867

27,733 - - 27,733 - . . .
3,267,738 {370,051} (6,451) 2,991,226 1,898 582 (373.594) €06 1,525,584
- - - - 3,424,088 - (202 ,845) 3,224,444
- . - - 2,890,302 - {253,364) 2,838,938
2,408 . . 2,408 || 2.408 - - 2405
2,408 - - 2,406 £,326,797 - (456,009) 5,870,788
32,850,882 - - 32,859,882 42,716 932 - - 42,716,932
180,000 . - 180,000 180,000 - - 180,000

o972 . - 872 - - - -

20,287 . - 20,267 - - - -
204,339 . . 201,239 180,000 - - 180,000
1,357,929 - " - " 1,367,829 | 1,357,929 " - - “ 1,357,929
§61,192 - 561,182 b61,192 - - 561,192
1,919,121 . . 1,819,121 1918121 . - 1,919,121
143,872,758 (606,840} {797,648] 142868470 152,999,856 {851,840} 3458,942) _ 148,680,074

&
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8.4

B.4.4

8.4.11

8.4.1.2
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2019 2018
Cost Market value Cost Markel value
Rupeesg In ‘000
investments glven as coliateral
Hald-for-trading sacuritios
Faderal Governmont Sacuritles
Markel Treasury Bills - . 19,927 891 19,922,073
Pakistan lnvastmenl Bonds - . 4,123 4,066
. - 19,932,014 19,926,139
Available-for-sale securitios
Fedoral Government Securities:
Market Treasury Bills | 4,453,166 “ 4,462,607 “ - " - I
Pakistan Invasimen! Bonds 22,232,264 21,475,720 1| 49,667,335 46 935,112
26,606,429 25028317 49,667,226 46 935,112
Foreign Debl Securltias
Govemment Debl Securilies I - ‘ - ﬂ 2,243,194 " 2,113,551
Non Government Debt Securitios - - 426,364 416,293
- - 2,668,648 2,529 844
~26,605.429 26928317 _ 72.267.898 _ 69.301.005
2019 2015
----- Rupees In “000 -----
Pravision for diminwtlon In value of investments
Cpening balance 554,940 1,071,861
Chargs for the year 281,675 " 30,032
Reversal on disposals / redemptions 1696,876) {249,943)
Reversals {345,300) (219.911)
Closing Balance 506,640 251,940
Particulars of provision agalnsl debl securitles 2012 203
Category of classification NFI Frovisfan NP Provislon
cosrarsreramnasrarans RURABS i1 DO -1oeeersmrarasnasves
Domestlc
Other assets especially mantioned - - - -
Substandard . - . -
Daubtful - - - -
loss 70,051 370,051 373,594 373,594
70,081 370,084 373,584 373,594
Quality of Held for Trading Securities
Details regarding guality of Hald for Trading {HF T} securlies are as follows:
2019 2018
Cogt Market value Cost Market value
Faderal Government Secuwyilies - Government guarantead Note L Rupepg In 'Q0¢ seservarsmrnnerar: e
Marke! Treasury Bils 56,601,087 || 665,585,480 || 44,376,895 “ 41,364,151 |
Pakistan Investment Bonds - - 4,425 4,363
B8.4.1.1 88,801,087 55,698,469 41,381,420 41,368,514
Principal terms of Investmant in Federal Govornmeit Securltles
Name of iny t Note Maturity Redemptlon Coupon
Market lreasury bills 8.4.1.2 January 02, 2020 to QOclober 08, 2020 On malurity Qn matarity

Market Treasury Bills are for the parlod of thres 10 twelve months. The effeclive rales of profit an Market Treasury Bills range fram 13.04% to 13.70% per annum {2018: 8.82%

to $0.30% per annum).
Quality of Available for Sale Securilies

Details regarding quality of Available for $ale (AFS) securifies are as follows:

2018 2013
Cost Markot valua Cost Markeot value
Federal Govarnment Sacuritles - Governmant guaranteed Note Rupees in 000
Market Treasury Bills I 12,071,266 " 12,070,902 " 3,010,920 ” 3,010,207
Pakistan Invesimen Bonds 35,787,962 34,048,472 || 52,424,069 49 830 215
85,11 47828818 47,049,374 55434 088 52 541,122
Prncipal terms of Invesimenl in Faderal Government Securifles
Name of investment Note Meturity Redamption Coupon
Marke$ reasury bills 8512  January 18, 2020 to Lecamber 17, 2020 Onomalurity On maturily
Pakistan invesiment bonds 8.51,3  March 26, 2020 1o Augusl 22, 2029 On makurity Half yearly

Markol Treasury Bills are for Lhe pariod of three to twelve menihs. The effeclive rates of profd on Market Treasury Bills range from 13.02% to 13.76% per annum {2018:

§0.20% per annum).

Pakistan lovestrent Bonds (PISs) are for the period of three to Wwenly years. The rales of profit ranging from 6.40% fo 14.27% par annum {2018; 6.30% to 10.42% per

annump.

Yo
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Mairket
Rallng lisdusiry Sector Number of Shares Cost valug Cost Market value
2018 2018 2019 2018
8,52 Shares Y YT YT T TR Ti R
LIstod Companles
Ordfnary shares
- Nalional Foods Limiled Al Food & Personal Care Producis 742,088 470,040 153,452 104,048 127,281 92,088
- Mateo Foods Limited A Faod & Personai Care Products 1,073,600 514,000 31,785 27,707 14,800 14,274
- Shifa inlernational Hospilals AA- Miscellaneous 264,300 264,300 68,273 88,509 68,273 54,557
- Pakistan Petroleum Limited Unrated  OIl & Gas Markeling Companles 849,800 - 149,212 130,268 - -
« Power Cemend Limiled A~ Comeont - 33,002,500 . . 600,167 258,410
~ Amrell Steels Limited A- Englneering . 4,302,200 - . 283,707 205,989
Invasimant in r¢lated parties
« EFU General Insurance Limiled Ahs Insurance 6440676 4,077,375 645,414 600,095 507,848 407,738
+ EFLU Life Assurance Limited Aht Insurance 4,189,500 1,188,300 260,736 275,478 262,148 272,881
« Sitara Chemical Industries Limited At Chemlcal 4,790,250 1,760,250 549,781 534,319 548,761 537,075
- TR Pakistan Limited Unrated Technology & Gommunicalion 6,882,760 32,023,760 107,376 144,445 580,311 714,130
1945078 1,905,753 2993426 _ 285695
Praference Shares
Agritech Limited (note 8.5.2.1 4 8.5.2.3) Unrated  Chomical 4,823,746 4,823,746 48,238 - 46,236 -
Chenab Limied (note B.5.2.2 5 8.5.2.3) Unrated  Textila Compuosite 12,367,000 12357000 98,283 - 98,353 -
136,689 - 136,680 -
Break-up value par Name of Chiet Breakup Breakup
share Executlve ! Managling Number of shares Cosl value Cost value
Unitsted Gompanles 2019 2018 2019 2018 204¢ 2019 2018 2018
meemnmeensmangene s RUPEES |71 TG mnememememeeceen
Ordinary shares

- i5E Towers REIT Managemenl Limlied
{formerly Islamabad Stock
Exchange Limited) (note 8.5.2.4) * 14.49 14,08 Mr, Sagheer Mushtag 1213841 1213841 41,000 17,592 11,000 17,106

Foreign securitles

Qrdinary shares

»  Soclely for Woridwide Interbank 838,661 672011 Mr, Golifled Leibbrand! € 6 2,406 3,831 2,406 4,037
Financial Telecommunieation
(SWIFT) {note 8.5.2.5)

* Baszed on audited acsounts as of June 30, 2019
** Based on audiled accounis as of December 31, 20HB

B.6.2.% These are non-voting cumulative preference shares, canrylng prefesence dividend @ 10% p.a and are converlible into ordinary shares al (he opllon of the Bank afler five years
from the date of fssusnce 8. February 2012, The invesies company also has the option to redeem thess preference shares plus any unpald dividend in full or In parl, within
ninety days afler explry of @ach anniversasy of the Issue date. The Bank has recognised full impairmen! on these shares amounting lo Rs. 48,238 million (2018: Rs.48.236 mllflon}
dug o weak financial posillon of the company,

8.5.2.2 Thase are cumulative praf ¢a sh . carrying preferance dividend @ 9.25% p.e and ara redeamabla In part afler four years from the dale of issuance |e. Augusl 2008, The
investee company also has an optian Lo redeam, in par, cumwlative greference shares after Aupust 2008, The Bank has recognized full Impalrment on these shares amounting to

Rs. 88 353 million {2018: Rs.88.353 million) duz 1o weak financia! pesilion of lhe company.

8.5.2.3 Surplus arising dua lo re-measurement of these ehares la lhe market value has nol been recognized as the managemant belleves thal the market value may not ba realized while
selling iher In apen markel.

8.5.2.4 In aceordance wilh the requisrements of the Stock Exchanges (Corporatizalton, Demulualization and Intagration) Act, 2042 (the Ast), the Bank has received 3,034,603 sharas of
R5.10 each inciuding (rading right entitfsment cerlificate (TREC) of the Islamabad Stock Exchange {SE), in lleu of Ita Membership Card helit by the Bank. Further, ugon
integration of |slamabad Slock Exchange under lhe “|SE Scheme of Inlegration” In 2016 TRE Cerlificates hotders of ISE have been [ssued 1,213,841 shares of "ISE Towers REIT
Managemant Limitad",

68.5.2.5 The Bank qualified a3 a member based on the financial contribution te SWIFT for network-based services. Tha Bank has made &n investment as per the requiremenls of Sy-Laws
of BWIFT, under the Share Re-allocalion Pracass, as a resuvlt becoming entitled to invest in for six shares, The paricipalion is mandatory 1o avail the desired nelwork-basad
sevices for financial message transmission for cross-border payments and recelpt. Further, the shere re-allocalion accurs every three years and will resull in efther an Increase,
decrease, o a stalus quo in individua! sharehofding.

Cost
843  Non Govarnment Dabt Sacur(ties | Preferance Shares {Debt Securities) 2019 2018

== Rupeas in 000 -----
Listed
Unraled 166,168 168,712
A 160,014 150,015
Adn 396,750 520.000

704,833 837727

Unlistod
AAA 142,857 214,286
Ad+ AA, AA- . 340,020
A+ A, A- 4,982,333 201,667
Unrated 530,616 214,882

2,865,806 1,060,855

T3367,708 1,896,502
Numbsr of
cartificates Rating 2018 2018
2019 2018 2049 218 Cost  Marketvalue  Cost Market value
8.5.2.4 Term finance certlficates - listed * vere NUMbETS =re vrvmrssmnanaes RUPEES 1A Q00 srvvsmminseress
\Worldeall Telacom
Limited (note 8.5.3.1.2) 90,650 90,650 Unmaled Unrated 155,168 . 168,712 -

Sonerd Bank Limited 30,000 30000 A A 150,014 150,000 150156 150,000

305,183 150,000 308,727 150,000

K

* Sacured and have a face value of R6.5,000 each unless specified ¢tharwise,
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8.5.2.1.1 Other particulars of Hsted term flnance certificates are as follows:

8.5.3.1.2

8.5.3.2

8.5.3.21

§45.3.3

8.5.3.21

8.533.2

8.5.3.4

Mame of the company

J% BANK LIMITED

Worldeall Telacom Limited
Sonari Bank Limited

Due to weak financis! position of the company the Bank has recognised full impairment loss on thase term finance cerlificales.

Semi-annually

6 Manth KIBOR ask raie plus 2.00%.

Ropayment
frequency Profit rate per annum Maturity date
Semi-annually 6 Manth KIBOR ask rale plus 1.60% Seplembar 20, 2026

Decamber 08, 2028

Numbar of
certificates Rating 2019 2018
2019 2018 2018 2018 Cost Market Gost Market
value value
Sukuk certificates - llsted FSRSN 311, 1731, B 1111 S —————
Byco Pelroleum Pakistan Limited 5,290 5,290 AAA AAA 396,750 390,303 $29,000 §20,821
388,750 390,303 528,000 520,621

Other particulars of unlisted sukuk cerificates are as Tollows:
Name of the company Repayment Profit rate per annum Maturity date
Byco Pelroleum Pakistan Limited Quarterly 3 Month KIBOR ask rale plus 1.05%. Janvary 18, 2022

(Chief Executive: Mr. Amir Abbasscly)

Numbser of Face valua par
certificates Rating certiflcate Cost
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2013
Term finance certificates «unlisted Rupges - ----- Rupges in '000 -----
Azgard Nine Limited - related party
{note 8,5.3.3.1) 20,998 20,998 Unrated Unrated 5,000 86,022 85022
Agritech Limited (note 8,5.3.3.1) 30,000 30,000 Unrated Unrated 5,000 149,860 149,860
Pakistan Walar & Powar Developmant
Authority [WAPDA) 100,000 100,000 ABA AAA 5,000 142,857 214,286
Khushhali Microfinance Bank Limiled 1,500 1,600 A A 100,000 160,000 150,000
Ajrlink Communication Private Limited B4 - A- - 1,000,000 384,000 .
Secure Logistics Group Private Limitad 288 - Unrated “ 1,000,000 288,000 -
Bank Al Habib Limited - 40,040 - Ab- 5,000 - 200,020
41,179,739 770,188
Due to weak financial pesition of the company the Bank has recognisad full impairment loss on these term finance cerlificates.
Qther particulars of unlisted term Hrance carlificates are as follows:
Mame of the company Repayment Prollt rate per annum Maturlty dato
Azgard Nine Limiled - related party Semi-annually 6 Month KIBOR esk rate plus 1.75%. December 04, 2017
{Chief Executive: Mr, Ahmed H. Shaikh}
Agritech Limited Semi-annually B Manth KIBOR ask rate plus 1.75%. November 29, 2019

[Chief Execulive: Mr. Faisal Muzammil)

Pakisten Water & Power Development
Authority (VWAPDA])
[Chairman; Liautenant Ganaral
Muzammil Hussain {Ratd.))

Semi-annually

6 Month KIBOR ask rate plus 1.00%.

September 27, 2021

Khushhali Microfinance Bank Limited Saml-annually & Month KIBOR ask rate plus 2.05%. March 18, 2028
{President 8 CEQ: Mr. Ghalib Mishtar)
Airlink Communication Private Limiled Quarterly 3 Monih KIBOR ask rats plus 1.00%. January 7, 2022
{President & CEQ: Mr. Muzaffar Hayat Piracha)
Secura Logistics Group Privala Limited Quarterly 3 Month KIBOR ask rala minus 1.00%. January 2, 2024
{Prasident & CEQ: Mr. Gulralz A. Khan}
Number of Face value per
certificates Rating cortiflcate Cost
2019 2013 2015 2018 2019 2018
Sukuk certlficates - unllsted RUPEOE «oevmmee —emee Rupees in 000 -----
Ghani Global Holdings Limited 2,600 2,000 A A 87,500 108,333 141,867
Pakistan Services Limited 1,350 - A+ - 90,000 1,350,000 -
Engro Ferlilizers Limited - 80,000 - Al 3,500 - 140,000
1,458,333 281,667

2



8.5.3.4.1

8.5.3.5

8.5.3.5.1

4.5.4

a8.5.4.1

B.£4.2

4.6

8.81

8.6.1.1

8.68.1.2
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Other particulars of unlisted sukuk centificates are as follows:

J% BANK LIMITED

Name of the company Repayment Proflt rate per annum Maturity date
Ghani Global Holdings Limited Quarterty 3 Monih KIBOR ask rate plus +.00%. February 03, 2323

{Chief Execulive: Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan})
Pakislan Services Limited Semt-annually 8 Manih KIBOR ask rate plus 1.40%. January 17, 2024

(Chief Executiva: Mr, Murigza Hashwani)

Face value par
Number of shares Rating ceartificate Cost
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Prefarence shares -unlisted Rupees in 000 ---v-cemeemmmenee
intercily Touring Company Private Limil 1,848,888 - - - 100,000 - 27,733 -

(note §.5.2.6) (relaled party)

As per the criteria given under Prudential Regulations, these instrumants are classified as a debt instruments as payment and distribution of dividend would
be cumulative and accrus in preference 1o any dividend on the Ocdinary Shares, and are convertible at any lima, at the option of tha Bank, into Qrdinary

Shares. Fellowing the direclives 13sued by SBP, these instruments are classified as & debl inslruments,

Foreign Securities

Coupon
rate per
annum
Name of Bond Rating Date of Maturity 2018 2018
) Market Market
2019 2018 Cost Value Gost Value
Government debt securlties % rrorssssmsnrensasnes RUPOES Iy QD0 meevncmvmmvmcmmirnnen
Saud! International Bond - At 2.38% Qctobar 26, 2021 . - 405,743 401,218
Reapublic of Kenya - B+ 6.88% June 24, 2024 - - 288,956 260,463
Arab Republic of Egypt - B 4.75% April 18, 2028 - “ 191,725 172,415
Isiamic Republic of Pakistan - B 825% September 30, 2025 . - 438,712 417,638
Istamic Rapublic of Pakistan - B 825%  April 15, 2024 - - 435,814 419,831
Araby Repuitic of Egypt - B 5568% February 21, 2023 - - 420,198 394,215
Islamic Rapublic of Pekistan - B 6.88% Decembar §, 2027 - - 336,731 34,491
Arab Republic of Egypt - B 7.50% January 31, 2027 . - 204,142 264,732
Arab Republic of Egypt - B 5.88% Juna 11, 2025 - - 274,682 252,005
The 3rd Pakislan [nternalional
Sukuk Cornprany Limited . B- 5.50% Oclober 13, 2021 - - 346,286 334,348
- - 3,434,089 3!231 Add
Non Government debt securitles
African Exporl - Import Bank - Baat 413% June 20, 2024 B - 280,628 260,438
PTA Bank - Baal 5.38% March 14, 2022 - - 141,083 137,297
Petrobras Global Finance - Ba2 7.38% January 17, 2027 - - 148,456 143,160
Petrobras Global Finance - Ba2 8.25% March 17, 2024 B - 144,790 140,653
State Qi Company of the Arerbaijan - BB+ 4.75% March 13, 2023 - - 138,506 138,343
Export Credit Bank of Turkey - BE- 5.38% October 24, 2023 - . 137,180 128,166
Turkiye Garanti Bankasi AS - BB- 5.88% March 16, 2023 - - 144,603 130,854
Turkiye Garanti Bankasl - B+ 5.25% Septoambar 13, 2022 - - 284,844 261,280
Turkiye Vakiflar Bankasi - B+ 575% January 30, 2023 - - 27211 243,428
Turkiye |s Bankasl AS - B+ 5.50%  April 21, 2022 - - 630,283 £63,822
Turkiye |s Bankasi AS - B+ 5368% Oclober 6, 2021 - - 68,357 83,234
Furkiye |s Bankagi A5 - B+ 8.13%  April 25, 2024 - - 281,758 233,480
Akbank Tas - B1 5.00% Octobar 24, 2022 - - 210,725 194 783
- - 2,800,302 2636038
Quality of Held to Maturlty Securlties
Datails regarding quality of Held te Maturily (HTM) sscurilies are as follows
Cost
2019 2018
Federal Government Securitios - Government guarantesd - Rupees In "000 -
Pakistan Investmant Bonds 32!859.882 42,718,932
Principal terms of investment n Federal Goverament Securities
Security type Maturity Redemption Coupon
Pakistan investment bonds March 26, 2020 ta August 22, 2029 On maturity Helf yearly

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PiBs) having maturily of three to fifleen years. The rates of profils ranging from 7.75% o 14.69% per annum {2018: 7.00% to
12.00% per annum). The market value of securities as at Decamber 31, 2012 amounted Rs. 31,341,410 miklon {2018; Rs, 39,836.881 millon}

72
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8.7 Invealment [n subsidiary and assoclated companies
Numbar of
Rating shares Percentage holding Cost
Nate 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
= Numberg... e Rupees in "000 ------
Subsidiary companles
J3 Global Capital Limited B.7.1 AA AA 256,625,169 B83.63% 67.16% 1,367,929 1,367,929
J§ Invesiments Limited 872&A73 A+ A+ §2,236,978 B84.66% B85.16% 561,192 561,182
1919124 1919121
Assoclated company - unllsted companies
Omar Jibran Engineering .
Industries Limited B.7.4 AA AA ¥,200,000 8.60% 9.80% 180,000 180,000
Veda Transit Solulions
Private Limlted 8.7.4 - 48,000 8.00% . 972 -
Intercity Touring Company
Private Limited 87.4 - 1,351,111 212% - 20,2687 -
___ 201289 180,000
.74

The Bank acquired effeclive controlling inlerest in JS Global Caplial Limited (JSGCL) on Decembar 21, 2011, April 15, 2016 and Qctober 03, 2019 of 51.05%,

18.11% and 16.37% respeclively. The ownership Interest has increased by 32.42%, without any change In the cost of Invesiment, dus to tha faci that JSGCL
has bought back its 19,443,000 ordinary shares out of ils 50 milllon ordinary.

8,7.2 The Bank acquired effgctive controlling Interest in JS Investments Limiled (JSIL) on November 04, 2012, December 22, 2015 and Augusl 3%, 2019 of
52.24%,12.92% and 19.40% respeclively. The ownership interes! has increased by 32.32% withoul any change in the cost of Invasiment, due to the fact that
JSIL has bought back its 38,225,744 ordinary shares out of ils 100 million ordinary shares,

8.7.3 The Bank also conlrols JS ABAMCO Commedilies Limiled (JSACL) Indlreclly through ils subsidiary JS Invesiments Limited which has 100% holding in JSAGL.

8.7.4 The investments classified as asscoclale on account of it's significant influence aver the investes company,

8.7.3 All subsidiaries and associated companies are incorporated in Pakistan.

8.7.4 Thefollowing is summarised audited financial informalion before inler-company eliminations with olher companies In the group.

Tolalincame f sales
Profit after 1ax
Other comprehansive (loss) / income

Tolal assets
Total iabliities
Not assats

Cash flow (used in} /from operating activilies
Cash flow from f{used in)invesling aclivilies
Cash flow (used in) f from financing activilles
Net increase / {decrease)

In cash and cash equivalonts

Total income / sales
Profit atter lax
Other comprehensive {loss) f income

Total assets
Total llabitities
Nel assets

Cash flow [used in) f from operating activities
Cash flow (used in) / from investing activities
Cash flow from ! {used in) financing aclivilies
Net Increase ! (decroase)

In cash and cash equlvalents

3. ADVANCES

Loans, cash credits, running finances, ele.
Bitly digcounted and purchased
Advances - gross

Provision against advances
General
General provision - under IFRS-9
Specific

Advances - net of provislon

Note
4.1

2.4

Subsidiary companies

J8 Global Capital Limited

J8 Invastments Limlled

Degcember 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2018 2018 2014 2018
Rupees' in 000
18,641 7h¥, 765 408,539 432,700
47,248 25,837 [86,645] 41,728
{2,649} (18,653 - (236,053}
4,091,885 4,840,047 2,562,025 2,435,728
1,858,302 2,231,648 747,237 285,048
2,233,653 2,508,401 1,814,788 2,160,677
{308,588} 812,827 {1568,745) (51,761}
427,747 {716,825) 522,027 83,018
(4B7,693) 8o {372,856) (3,779}
(368,544) {106,929} {9,574) 7478
Assoctated company
Omar Jibran Enginesring Vada Transit Solutions Intercity Touring Company
Industries Limitad Privale Limited Private Limited
Junie 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2019 2018 2018 2018 2019 2018
Rupeas' in 000
2,628,975 2241 313 922,200 842,732 280 -
117,746 129,548 47,438 {147,815} (21,636} {6,456)
343,981 2,092 . - - .
3,727,961 2,886 428 88,142 598,591 191,414 21
1,888,745 1,508 Ba0 743,324 888 203 60,879 15,456
1,638,216 1,377,539 {85,182, {188,702) 140,635 {16,406)
{73,759) (63651} 152,254 73311 (62,405} (90)
{233,030) (149,197) {189) (8,320) {141,183) -
212,71 364,445 {137,200 (60,120} 219,994 -
{94,006) 131,597 14,765 4,871 18,405 (90)
Perforiing Nen Performing Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rupeas in '000
224,886,868 232,162,203 13,353,164 8,309,467 235,340,022 240,471,770
1,413,144 14,675 443 - - 11,113,114 14,675 443
236,099,972 248,837,746 10,353,164 8,300,467 246,452,136 255,147,213
{161,166} {155,661) - - {164,168) {165,661)
{7,520} {40,746} - - {7,520) {10,746)
b h 13,339,941} {2 989 BER) (3,339,941} {2,680 888)
{168,686) {166,407) {3,339,941) {2,980,888) (3,508,627) {3,166,295)
235,931,286 246571,339 __ 7,013.223 5219579 _242944.609 261,890,918

4



8.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.4.1

943
9.4.4

8.5
8.51

9.5.2

9.8

Particulars of net Investment in finance lease
Leasa rendals raceivable

Guaranteed residual value

Minimum {ease paymenls

Finance charges for
future perods

Prgseant value of minlmum
|lease paymenls

Parllculars of advances (gross)

In local currency
In foreign cureencies

Categery of Classification
Domestic

Other Assets Especially Menlioned
Substandard

Boubtivl

Loss

Tolal

Particulars of provislon agalnst advances

Note

Qpening balance
Exchange adjustrments
Charge for the year
Reversals

Amounis wrilten off
Amounis charged off - transportation

Closing balance

9.5

Particulars of provislon agalnst advances

iIn lpcal currancy
In foreign currencias

27
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2018 2018
Latar than Later than
Not 1ater ong and Not later one and
than less than Over five than less than Ovar five
ona year five years years Total one year flve years years Total
Rup in '000
6,880,218 6,637,249 3,627 13,501,694 F 137,128 9,082 944 138,766 16,368,836
1,599,665 _ 2,535,848 10,783 4,149,236 1,008,255 3,852 926 7,138 4,568,318
8,459,823 9,176,797 14,310 17,650,930 8,145,361 12835870 146,904 20,927,158
1,468,867y {1,008,697) {258) (2,567,823 {1.246019) (1.229,811) {5,144) (2,480,974}
=5.990.066 8078100 14069 18003107 _ 6,899.382 11406059 __ 140.760 _ 18448787
2018 2018
wnee RifpE©S 0 000 weves
237,733,122 247,677,882
8,720,014 7,569 331
246,‘4“53I13§ 255,147,213
Advances include Rs.10,353.164 million [2018: Rs.8 308.467 million) which have been placed under non-parforming status as detailed below:
2018 2018
Non Non
Performing Parforming
Loans Provision Loans Provision
...................... Rupees In 000 veerrenremrrmnnnnsan
341,058 %721 231,430 -
1,169,072 64,681 1,486,618 83,845
2,442 270 426,283 3,188,709 448,592
5,910,764 2,847,256 3393712 2758351
10383964 _ 3330841 __ 8300467 _ 2080388
2019 2018
Genaral General
provision - provision -
SpecHfic General _ under IFRS-9 Totak Sopecific General  under IFRS-9 Total
Rupees In 000
2,989,888 155,661 10,746 3,156,295 2,638 960 100,363 - 2,738,313
- - 1,085 1,095 - - 1,321 1,321
BE0,994 £,605 - 886,499 422 994 55,308 9,425 A7, 727
{526,146) - {4,321) (630,467} {72.0586) - - {72,088}
364,548 5,608 {4,321) 356,032 350,828 55,308 8,425 415,861
{4,795) - - {4,798) - - - .
3,339,801 161,166 7,520 3,508,827 2 086,888 165,661 10,748 3,153!295
2049 2018
Specific General Total Spetific General Total
Rupees in '000
3,339,941 161,166 3,504,407 2,089,068 155,661 3,145,549
- 7,520 7,520 - 10,746 10,746
3,339,941 168,686 3,508,627  2,080.888 166,407 3,168,205

The general provision is mainteined 1o creale general resesves against following advances porifolios s accordance with the prudenial regulations issued by State Bank of

Pakislan as follows:

Consumer financing
Housing finance

This reprasents general provision held under IFRS 9 by Bahrain branch of the Bank.

2019

Securad portfollo

M8

Unsecured partfolio

1%

2018 2019
B el o 1111 o (-1 R
1% 4%
0.5% -

0.5%

4%

The Slate Bank of Pakistan through various circulars has allowed benefit of the forced sale value {FSV) of Plant and Machinery under charge, pledged stock and
mortgaged tesidential, commercial and industrial properlies (land and building only) held as collateral against non-performing loans (NPLs) for a maximum of five years
from the date of classification, As at Decamber 31, 2019, ths Bank has avalled cumulative benefit of FSV of Rs.4,120.009 million {2018; Rg.2,386.448 millicn) under the
directives of the SBP. Had tha bensfit not been taken the unappropriated profit afler tax would have reduced by R3.2,678.008 million {2018: Rs.1,651.191 million). Furlher,
as reaulred by the SB# directives. this unaonropriated nrofit will nol be avallable for distribution as dividend or other appropriations,

Particulars of Wrile Offs:
Against provisions
Directly charged o profit and 1055 account

Write offs of Rs.500,000 and above - Domeslic
Write offs of betow Rs.500,000

Detalls of (pan write off of rs. 800,000f- and above
In lerms of sub-seclion (3} of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the Statament in respact of wrilten-off loans or any olher financial relief of upees
five hundred theusand or above allowed to a person(s} during the year anded is given in Annexure-1.

2019

2018

weve Rupess In '000 «xa

4,795
k]

5110

4,796
318

5110

"
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1.2

10.2.1

FIXED ASSETS

Capilal work-in-progress
Property and equiprment
Righl-ol-use Assels

Caplial work-in-progress

Civil works

Advanca for purchase of furniture and fixtures
Agvanca for purchase of vehicles

Advanca for purchase of equipment

Property and equipment

Af January 1, 2019

Gosl/ Revalued amoum

Accumulated depreciation

Met book valve

Yoar ended December 2019

Qpaning net book valua

Additions

Movemenl in surglus on assels
revalued during the year 20,2

Cisposals - cost

Depreciation on disposal

Dapreciation charge
Exchange rate adjustments - cost
Exchange rate adjusimants - accumulated

Qther adjustments
Cost
Accumulated
10.3
Closing net book value
At December 31, 2019
Cosl f Revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Nat book value
Rate of depreciation {perceniage)

At January 1, 2018

Cosl/ Revalued amount

Accurutated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended December 2018

Opening net book value

Additians

Movamenl in surplus on assets
revaiued during the yeer

Adjustments in surplus

Disposals - cost

Depreciation on disposal

Depreciation charge
Exchangs rate adjustments - cost
Exchange rate adjustments - accumutated

Other adjustments - Cosl
COthar adjustments - Accumulated

Closing net book value

At Decamber 31, 2018

Cost f Revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation

Net baok value

Rate of dapraciation {perceniage)

Temporarily [dle properly and equipment

lL.easehold land
Building on leasehold land
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018 2048
s Rupees In 000

138,467 162,193
5,961,042 6,083,135
3,503,492 -

9,692,701 __ 6,245 328

118,365 133,028
290 4,470
- 14,182
21,512 9,604
13867 162193
218
Buliding on Electrical, cffice
Loasahold lease Leasshotd Furnitere  and compuler
tand haldland improvements and fixture equipment Yehicles Total
Rupaaes in "000
1,457,289 1,920,603 1,285,074 547,573 2,846,077 1,064,359 9,120,975
- {167,577) (691,448) _ (266,876) {1,661,236) {330,703) _ {3,037,840)
1,457,288 1,753,026 €93,628 260,887 1,184,841 ?33!656 6!083!1 5
1,457,289 4,763,026 893,626 260,697 1,184,841 733,656 6,083,135
649,228 221,724 78,548 559,189 349,137 1,857,821
62,965 {49,200} . - - . 13,765
. . {10,382 (4,024) {95,467) f1,282,023}| (1,381,906)
- - 7444 3,493 AT 218 440,084 538,218
- . (2,938) (541) (8,249 {841,959} {853,68T)
{76,365) {116,382) (57,353} (382,678) {136,591} {769,379)
- - 2,900 922 841 488 4,951
- - {814} (293} {288) (189} {1,564)
- . 2,088 629 353 319 3,387
- (427,044) - - - - {427,044)
- 53,044 - - . - 63,044
- {374,000) - . - - (374.000)
1,820,254 1,902,669 798,103 281,878 1,353,456 104,662 _ £0681.042
1,520,254 2,092,587 1,499,213 623,007 3,310,440 131,961 9,178,682
- {190,698} (701,210} (341,029) (1,956,984) (27,399) _ (3,297,520}
1,620,254 4,902,689 738,103 281,978 1,353,456 104!562 5!961 042
- 1.01 - 4.78 10 12.5 i2.8-33.3 20
2018
Buiiding on Electrical, office
Leasehold lease Leasehold Furniture  and computer
land holdland improv ts  and fixlure egulpment Vehicles Tolal
Rupees in ‘000
1,088 568 1,462,436 1,469,408 485,001 2,489,307 866,001 7,561,800
- (112,743} (537,810} _ (243,323) {1,370,954) {338,038 (2603874)
1,089 568 1,349,883 £31,590 241,872 1,518,353 H27,063 4 867,976
1,089,568 1,349,883 531,508 241672 1,118,353 527,053 4 857,026
50,000 13,510 186,211 70,684 393,883 382,576 1,098,924
317,723 420,204 - - - - 737,927
- 3,240 - - - - 3,210
- - {71,906) {9,608) {38,275) {185,178) (304,983)
- - 61,890 §,008 32,499 155,188 257,692
- - (9,918) {1,601) (5.776) (29,978) 47,271)
- (52 781) (114,537} (61,167} {322 447) (146 636} {667 568)
- - §,045 1.514 1,058 888 8,485
- - {1091} {385) {376} (227} {2.079)
- - 3,854 3,128 682 641 5,406
- 21,253 {3,685) - 24 - 17 6582
. {2,053) - - 42 - (2011)
- 19,200 {3,685} - 56 - 15,561
1,457 289 1,753,028 593 626 280,697 1,184,841 733 658 6,083 135
1,457,269 1,920,603 1,285,074 847,673 2,848,077 1,084,359 5,120,975
- {167,577) {591,448) _ (286,876) (1,661,235 {330.703) _ (3.037,840)
1,457 280G 1,753,026 393,625 260,897 1,184 841 733,656 5,083,135
- 1.01-4.78 10 125 12.5-333 20
Carrying value
2019 2018
----- Rupees in 000 -----
979,990 837,731
10.3 - 508,887
a79.980 1,346 628
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2019 2018
Fully depreciated property and equipment still lnwse | Rupees in "000 -----
Leasehold improvements 323,21 155,841
Furniture and fixture 138,146 113,313
Electrical, office and computer equipment 902,625 828,290
Vahicles 11,921 26.677

1,466,963 1,124,121

The details of disposals of assels to related parties are given in Annexure Il to these unconsolidalsd financial statements.

The properties of the Bank are revalued by indepandent prefessional valuers as at December 31, 2019. The revalualion was cairied out by
M/s. Tristar International Consultants Pvt Ltd. on the basis of professicnal assessment of present market values and resulted in an
increase in net surplus by Rs.13.765 milllon, The total surplus arising against revaluation of fixed assets as at December 31, 2019
amounls o Rs. 1,359.727 million.

Had there been no revaluation, the carrying value of revalued land and building on land as at Dacember 31, 2019 would have been lower
by Rs.505.342 miffion and Rs.854.385 million respectively, end net surplus on revaluation of fixed assets, deferred tax ligbility and
incremental depreciation expense would have been lower by Rs.1060.693 miftion, Rs.299.034 million and Rs,33.782 million respectively.

2019 2018
Assals held for sale e RUpES 10 0RO --an
Building on leasehold land 374,000 -

In 2019, the Board of Directors accorded its in-principle approval and authorised the management of ths Holding company to explore the
possibility to sell a property located at 13th floor of Ocean Tower, plot No. G-3, Khayaban-g-lgbal, Block 9, KDA Scheme Ne. 8, Clifton
Karachi, Pakistan ("Properfy"). Accerdingly, the Holding Company located a buyer and entered into an agresment to sell the Property
subject to completion of certain Jegal formalities, after which a formal convayance deed will be executed with the buyer. As per the terms of
the agreement the Holding Company has racelved ten percent of the agreed sale proceed as an advance token money and remaining
payment is:expecled to be received at the time of final execution of the lransaction when the fegat formalitios are complete. The Holding
Company has initialed the necessary lagal proceedings which are expected to be completed subsequent to the year end, accordingly, the
properly is classified as non-currenl asset held for sale.

Immediately before the classification of the properly as a held for sale, the Property was revalued resulting in a revalualion deficit of
Rs.123.320 million which has accordingly been adjusted in equily against the revaluation surplus pertaining to the said Property and the
cairying amount of the property, Following the classification as hald for sale, no impairment loss was racognised as fair value less cost to
sell of the property exceeds its carrying value,

2019 2018
INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note e Rupeos in '000 ----
Capital work-in-progress 11.1 97,744 75,760
Computer software and goodwill 11.2 2,173,616 2004117
2!271!330 2,169,877 -
Capital work-in-progress
Advance for purchase of software 97,744 75,760
2019
Computer Goodwil Total
sofiware
Computer software and goodwitt T ~ Rupees in "000 ----mcmmmeveeacene
At January 1, 2019
Cost 970,872 1,483,624 2,443,496
Accumutated amaortisation and impairment {349,379} - {349,379)
Net book value 630,493 1,483,624 2004147
Year ended Dacember 2019
Opening net book value 630,493 1,463,624 2,094,117
Additions;
- direchly purchased 172,381 - 172,381
Amortisation charge {93,316) - {93,316}
Exchange rate adjustments - cost 647 - 647
Exchange rate adjustments - accumulated (213 - (213)
434 - 434
Closing net book value 709,992 1,463.624 2,173,616
At December 31, 2019
Cost 1,152,900 1,483,624 2,616,524
Accumulated amorlisation and impairment {442,908) - (442,908)
Net book value 709,99§= 1,463,624 2,173,618
Rate of.amortlsatlon {percentage) 10 See note 11.5
Useful life 10

H
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2018
GComputer
software Goodwill Total
==meeeees RUP2ES IN 000 —v-veeeer
At January 1, 2018
Cost 673,321 1,463,624 2138945
Accumulated amorlisation and impainment {278,023} - {278,023)
Net book valtue 395,298 1,463,824 1,850,922
Year ended Decamber 2018
Opening net book valua 395,298 1,463,624 1,858,922
Additions: - direcily purchasad 305,240 - 305,240
Amortisation charge {71,069} - {71,089)
Exchange rate adjustments - cost 1,311 - 1,311
Exchange rate adjustments - accumulated {287} - {287}
1,024 - 1,024

Closing net book value 630,493 1,463,624 2,094,117
At December 31, 2013
Cost 979,872 1463624 2,443,498
Accumulated amortisation and impairment {349.379) - {349 378)
Net book value 630,493 1,463,624 2,084 117
Rate of amortisation {percentage} 10
Usefid life 10 Ses nole 11.6

2019 2018

=== RUPEES iN 000 werer
Fully amortized computer software still in use 148,687 100,838

For impairment tesling, goodwill has been allocated 1o 'Trading and Salss' Segment as Cash Generating Unit (CGU), which is alsc a
reportable segment.

Key assumptions used in value In use calculation

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on value In use calculation, using cash fow projections based on
business plan approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank covering a five year period. The discount rates applied to cash flows beyond
five years are exlrapolated using a terminat growth rate, The following rates are used by the Bank,

2019 2018
Percentages
Discount rate 22,87 28.13
Terminal growth rate 10.00 10.00

The calcwlation of value in use is most sansitive to following assumptions:
a} Interest margins
Intarest margins are based on prevailing indusiry trends and anticipated markel conditions.

b} Discount rates

Discount rales reflact managemant astimatas of the rate of return reguired for each business and are calculated afler taking inte account
Ihe prevaiting risk free rate, industry risk and business risk. Discount rates are calculated by using cost of equity of the Bank.

¢) Key business assumptions

The assumplions are imporant as {hey represent managament assessment of how the unit's pesition might change over the projected
period. Based on the expansion plans, management expacts aggressive growth in advances, investments and deposits during the
prolected periods and thereafter stabllisation in line with industiry trends.

Managament believes that any significant changs in kay assumptions, on which CGU's racoverable amount is based, may impact the
carrying amount ta further exceed its recoverable amount. Value in use calculation of the CGU are sensitive to changes in assumplions for
interest rate spreads, Non Funded Incoma {NFI}, long term growth rates and discount rates.

} Sensitivity to changes in assumption

The estimated recoverable amount of the ‘Trading and Sales' CGU exceeds its carrying amount by approximately Rs.5,554 million,
Management has identified two key assumplions for which there could be a reasonably possible changs that could cause the carrying
amount 1o exceed the recoverable amount. The foflowing table shows the amount that these two assumptions ars required to changs
individually in order for the estimated recoverable amount to be equal to the carrying ameunt.

Changes requlred for carrying
amount to equal recoverable

amount {%)
2019 2018
- Discount rale 4.85 0.21
- Termina! growth rate 9.00 (0.30}

12
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12. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

2019
Balance as at Recognlsed Recognlsed [n Balance as at
January 01,  in profit and other December 31,
2019 loss account comprehensive 2019
Note Rupess in "000
Deferred tax debits arlsing from:
Provision against investments 57,149 - - 67,149
Provision against loans and advances 34,278 98,027 - 132,305
Provision against other assets 124,078 504,491 - 628,569
General provision under IFRS-9 36,820 {33,723) - 3,087
Inlangible olher than Goodwill 2,246 268 - 2,514
Unrealised loss on revaluation of
investments clagsified as held for trading 4,517 {3,299) - 1,218
Deficit on revaluation of investments
classified as available for sals 20 1,173,807 - {895,646) 278,281
1,432,995 565,764 (895,648) 1,103,113
Deferred tax credits arising due to:
Fixed assets {225,855) (25,003) - (250,858)
Goodwilll {512,268) . . (512,268)
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets 20 {328,079) 11,828 17,220 (299,034)
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking
assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 20 {1,010) 43 - {967)
Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contractg (74,177) 51,092 - (23,085)
Uarealized gain on revaluation of -
derivative instruments (4,544) {3,601) - (8,145}
(1,145,933} 34,356 17,220 {1,094,357}
287,062 600,120 {875,426) 8,758
2018
RECOOMISEU T
Balance as at Recognised other Balance as at
January 01,  in profitand comprehensive December 31,
2018 loss account Income 2018
Rupeas in 000
Deferred tax debits arising from:
Provision against investments 57,149 - - 57,149
Provigion agalnst loans and advances 35623 30,755 - 34,278
Provision against other assets 15,682 108,396 - 124,078
General provision under IFRS-9 - 36,820 - 36,820
Intangible other than Gooadwill 1,997 244 - 2,246
Unrealised loss on revaluation of
invesiments classified as held for trading 871 3,646 - 4,517
Deficit / (surplus) on revaluation of Investments
classified as available for sale 20 42,167 - 1,131,740 1,173,907
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 26,145 {26,145} - -
147 534 153,721 1,131,740 1,432,995
Deferred tax credits arising due to;
Fixed assets {216,760) {9,065) - (225,855)
Goodwill {512,268) - - (512,268}
Surpius on revaluation of operating fixed assets 20 {187,861) 7.978 {148,196) (328,079}
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking
assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 20 (2,191) 57 1,124 (1,010)
Unrealized gain on revaluation of
derivative instruments (25,227) {53,494) - (78.721)
(944,337) {54,524) (147,072) (1,145,933}
(796,803) 99,197 OR4 668 287 062
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2019 2018
OTHER ASSETS Note Rupees in '000 -..--
Income/ Mark-up accrued in locel currency 8,731,263 5,686,015
Income/ Mark-up accrued in foreign currency 48,511 133,707
Advancas, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 4.1 446,321 535,055
Acceptances 3,221,212 3,217,002
Dividend receivable 208,948 -
Taxalion (payments less provision) 673,873 936 133
Receivable against bancassurance / bancatakaful 67,962 75,056
Stationery and slamps in hand 23,290 18,536
Raceivabla from other banks in respect of remittance 13.1 495,660 283 469
Non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims 13.2 1,088,662 91,421
Mark to market gain on derivative instruments 222 22,408 12,983
Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracls 65,955 211,933
Advance for subscription of TFC - unsecured 13.3 40,828 845,917
ATM sefliement account 106,119 195,027
Others 13.4 367,088 132,992
15,608,110 12,276,146

Lass; Provision held against other assets 13.4 (13.680) (15,860)
Other assets (net of provislons) 15,494,530 12,260,286
Surplus on ravaluation of non-banking assets acquired in

satisfaction of claims 93,743 93,869
Other assets - total 15,588,273 12,354,155

This includes an amount of Rs.455.370 million (2018: Rs.232.239 million) receivable from State Bank of Pakistan in respecl of home
remittance sefvices provided by the Bank.

Market value of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 1,182,426 185,280

Movement of Non banking assets acqulred In satisfaction of clalms af market value:

As at January 01 185,290 203,339
Addition during the yaar 908,848 1,285
Transferred during the year - (18,771)
Depreciation during the year (1,713} 573

1,182,425 185,290

Non-banking agsets acquired in satisfaction of claims are carried at revalusd amount according fo the requirements of the ‘Regutation for
Debt Proparty Swap' (the regulations) issuad by SBP vide the BPRD Circular No. 1 of 2016, dated January 01, 2046,

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims have been ravalued by Independent professional valuers as at December 31, 2019
and rasulted no changse is obsarvad in valuations of these assets with respect 1o last year, Therefore, no impact has been taken in these
unconsalidated financial statements. The revaluatlon was carried out by M/s, Tristar internalional Consultanis Pyt Lid., bfa (Pvt) Ltd. and
Engineering Pakistan Internationat (Pvt} Lid. on the hasis of piofessional assessmenl of present market values.

Had there been no revaluaticn, the carrying value of non-banking assels acguired In satisfaction of claims would have been lower by
Rs.93.743 milffon (2018: Rs.93.869 million), and surplus on ravaluation of asssts net, deferred tax lability and depraciation expense would
have been lower by Rs.92.776 million (2018: Rs.92.858 milllon), Rs.0.967 million (2018; Rs.1.011 million) and Rs.0.128 million (2018;
Rs.0,163 miflion) respectively.

2040 2018
Particulars of Non banklngassets s Rupees in '000 -----
Lease hold land 866,695 88,640
Buitding on lease hold land 221,987 2,781
1,088,682 81,421

Tha Bank has signed a Sharsholdar Agreement (SHA) and a Share Subscriplion Agresmant {SSA) with VEDA Transit Solutions (Private)
Limited for an investmant of approximately of Rs 40.828 million in a form of equify subject to the obtaining of schems of arrangement
approval from Lahore High Court. Subsaquentiy, the scheme of arrangement has been approved and shares wili be issued and transferred
to the bank once the regulatory formalities have besn complated.

Movement in provision hald against other assels

Opaning balance 15,860 58,667
Charge for the year - 2,581
Reversal for the year {2,280} {42,368)
Net charge for the year {2,280) {39,807)
Closing balance 13,580 15,860

BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan 3,683,600 3,326,585
Quiside Pakistan 220,991 193,329
3,804,491 3,519,924
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2019 2018
Note == Rupees in "000 <
BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan under:
Export Refinancing Schame (ERF) 15.2.1 17,792,778 15,329,309
Long-Term Finance Facllity (LTFF) 15.2.2 1,877,760 1,066 928
Firancing Facility for Siorage of Agricuitural Produca (FFSAP) 15.2.3 300,440 121,922
Repurchase agreement horrowings . 15.2.4 16,849,067 12 609,714

36,820,075 29116,873
Borrowing from financial institutions

Repurchase agreamant borrowings 15.2.5 12,746,732 57,228,252
Refinanting facility for morlgage loans 15.2.6 1,961,128 -
14,707,860 857,228,252
Total secured 51,627,935 86,345,125
Unsecured
Call borrowings 15.2.7 2,303,358 8,323,290
Overdrawn nostre accounts 636,992 501,629
Due against bills re-discounting 15.2.8 - 1,388,619
Total unsecured 2,940,348 10,213,538

§4,468,283 96,558,663

Particulars of borrowings

In local currency 51,527,936 89,413,109
In foreign currencies 2,940,348 7,145,654
54,466,283 86,558,663

The Bank has entered into agreement with the SBP for extending export finance to customers. As per the terms of the agresment, the Bank
has granted SBP lhe right to recover the outstanding amount from the Bank &t the date of maturity of finances by direclly dabiting {he
current account maintained by the Bank with SBP. Thaess borrowings are repayable on a quarterly basis and to be matured between
January 02, 2020 and February 08, 2027 (208: January 02, 2019 and February 08, 2027). These carry mark-up at the rate from 1% to 3%
{2018: 1% to 4.50%) par annum.

These borrowings have been obiained from the SBP for providing financing facllities to exporters for adoption of new technologies and
modetnization of their planl and machinery. These borrowings will matura between November 30, 2020 and August 08, 2029 (2018:
November 30, 2020 and November 30, 2028). These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 2.00% to 3.50% (2018 2.00% to 3.50%) per
annum,

These borrawings have been obtained from SBP under “Financing Facility for Storage of Agricultural Produce {FFSAPY to encouraga
Private Sector to establish Silos, Warehouses and Cold Storages. These borrowings will mature between May 08, 2020 and May 14, 2026
(2018: May 03, 2020 and July 23, 2025) and carry mark-up at the rate ranging from 2.00% to 2.50% {2018: 2% to 2.50%) per annum.

This represents borrowing against Pakistan Investment Bonds (2018: Markst Traasury Bills and Pakistan Investmant Bonds) carrying mark-
up at the rale of 13.32% (2018: 10.18%) per annum and wikk be matured on January 03, 2020 (2018; January 04, 2019). The cost and
market value of sgcurilies given as coltateral of amounling to Rs. 17,484.926 mllion (2018; Rs. 12,905.687 million) and Rs. 16,805.607
million (2018; Rs. 12,634.148 million) respectivaly.

This represents borrowing against Market Treasury Bills, Pakistan Investment Bonds and Bai Muajjal (2018 Market Treasury Bills,
Pakistan Investmenl Bonds, Bai Muajjal and Foreign Currency Bonds) carrying mark-up al the rates ranging from 12.70% to 13.19% (2018:
3.30% to 10.36%) par annum and will be matured hetween January 02, 2020 and March 28, 2020 (2018: January 02, 2019 and April 19,
2019). The cost and market value of securities given as collateral of amounting to Rs. 8,200.503 million (2018: Rs. §9,352.211 million) and
Rs, 8,122,620 million (20118 Rs, §6,756.947 million) respeclively.

The Bank has entered into agreement with the Pakistan Morlgage Refinance Company Limited (PMRG) for exlending housing finance
facifities to the Bank's customers on the agreed terms and conditions. The borrowing carries mark-up rate of 3 years PKRY less 100bps
and will be malured on February 28, 2022,

These represent call money borrowings from financial Institutions which will be matured batween January 16, 2020 and June 16, 2020
(2018: January 02, 2019 and February 28, 2018), carrying interest al the rates ranging from 2.65% to 3.61% {2018: 0.00% to 10.30%) per
annim,

This represents obligation to the forelgn corresponding banks on the discounting of foreign documentary bifls purchased by the Bank on
discount. These carry interest at the rate of Nil {2018: 4.22% ) per annum,
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16. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2018 2018
In Local In Forsign In Local in Forelgn
Currency Currencles Total Currency Currencies Total
-------------------- Rupees In "000 Rupees in "000 rrecrareasisianenns

Customers
Current deposits 70,341,319 6,412,941 76,754,260 71,943,824 5,321,812 77,265,638
Savings deposils 73,442,779 2,898,794 76,341,573 58,872,091 2,576,579 61,548,670
Term deposits 164,802,876 11,409,815 176,012,691 121,221,987 12,870,997 134,192,984
Margin accounts 5,455,706 15,234 5,471,020 3,566,455 4 937 3,671,392

313,842,760 20,736,784 334,679,544  2565704,357 20,874,325 276,576,682
Flnancial Institutions

Current deposits 859,151 - 869,151 740,325 - 740,325
Savings deposits 13,450,440 . 13,450,440 29,900,656 - 29,000,556
Tarm deposits 20,900,829 - 20,900,829 14,193,700 - 14,183,700

35,210,420 - 36,210,420 44,834,581 - 44,834,681

349,053,180 20,736,784 369,789,964 300,538,938 20,874,325 321,413,283

2019 2018
Note - Rupees in '000 -----
16.1 Composition of deposite
- Individuals 135,583,867 111,508 311
- Government (Federal and Provincial) 73,603,181 56,875,882
- Public Sector Entilies 37,475,517 11,242,328
- Banking Companies 2,928,436 8,541 316
- Nen-Banking Financial Institutions 32,283,984 35,406,690
- Private Sector 88,016,999 99,750,736

369,789,964 321,413,263

16.2 This includes deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements amounting to Rs. 87,425,180 millon (2018:
Rs.87,350.615 million).

17. SUBORDINATED DEBT

Term Finance Certificates - First 1ssue 17.1 2,996,400 2,997 600
Term Finance Certificates - Second Issue 17.2 1,988,400 1,999,200
Term Finance Cerlificates - Third Issue 17.3 2,500,000 2,500,000

7,494,800 7,496,800

17.1 In 2018, the Bank has issued Rs.3 billion of rated, privately placed, unsecured and subordinated term finance certificates ('"TFCs"
or "the Issua”) as an instrument of redeemable capital under Section 120 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and as oulllned by
State Bank of Pakistan, SBP, under the BPRD circular No. 06 dated August 15, 2013 and Basel III guidelines. Summary of terms
and conditions of the Issue are:

Purpose: To contribute toward the Bank's Tier Il Capltal for complying with the Capital Adequacy Ratic requirement and to
utilize the funds in the Bank’s business operations as permitted by its Memorandum & Articles of Association.

issue date December 14, 2016

Tenure; Up to Seven years fram the Issue date.
Maturity Date: December 14, 2023

Rating A + (Single A Plus)

Profit Rate: Floaling rate of return at Base rate + 1.4 percent per annum;
Base rate is defined as the average six months KIBOR prevailing on the Base Rate setting date. The Base Rate
will be set for the first time on the last working day prior 1o the Issue Date and subsequently on the immeadiately
preceding business day before the start of each six monthly period

Profit payment. Semi-annual

Redemption:  The instrument is structured to redeem 0.24% of the Issue amount during the first six years after the Issue date
and the remaining Issue amount of 99.76% in two equal semi-annual installiments of 48.88% sach in the last year.

Security, The Issue is unsecured and subordinated as to payment of Principal and profit to all other indebtedness of the
Bank. .
Call Option:; Exercisable in part or in full on or after the 10th redemption, subject to SBP’s approval.

Lock-in-clause: Principal and profit will be payable subject to compliance with MCR or CAR set by SBP. % e;\
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Loss Upon the occurrence of a Peint of Non-Viability event as defined by SBP's Basel lll Capital Rule vide BPRD
absorbancy Circular # 6 of 2013 dated August 15, 2013, SBP may at its option, fully and permanently convert the TFCs into
clause: common shares of the Bank and/or have them immediately written off (either partially or in fUEl). Number of shares

to be issued to TFC halders at the time of conversion will be equal to the ‘Outstanding Face Value of the TFCs'
divided by market value per share of the Bank's common share on the date of trigger as declared by SBP of the
non-viability event as declared bv SBP. subiect to a cao of 457.836.257 shares.

in 2017, the Bank has issued Rs.2 bilion of rated, privately placed and listed, unsecured and subordinated term finance
certificates ("TFCs" or "the Issue') as an instrument of redeemable capital under Section 86 of the Companies Act, 2017 and as
outlined by State Bank of Pakistan, SBP, under the BPRD circular No. 06 dated August 15, 2013 and Base! Il guidelines.
Summary of terms and conditions of the Issue are:

Purpose: To contribute toward the Bank's Tier H Capital for complying with the caplital adeguacy requirement and to utilize
the funds in the Bank’s business operations as permitted by its Memorandum & Arlicles of Association.

Issue date December 29, 2017

Tenor: Up to Seven years from the Issue date.

Maturity Date;  December 29, 2024

Rating A + (Single A Plus)

Profit Rate: Floating rate of return at Base rate + 1.4 parcent per annum;

Base rate is defined as the average six months KIBOR prevailing on the Base Rate setting date. The Base Rate
will be set for the first time on the last working day prior to the Issue Date and subsequently on the immediately
preceding business day before the start of each six monthly period

Profit payment: Semi-annual

Redemption.  The instrument is structured to redeem 0.24% of the Issue amount during the first six years after the lssue date
and the remaining Issue amount of 89.76% in two equal semi-annuat installments of 49,88% each in the last year.

Security: The Issue is unsacured and subordinated as to payment of Principal and profit to all other indebtedness of the
Bank. :

Call Option: Exercisable in part or in full on or after the 10th redemption, with prior approval of SBP.

Lock-in-clause: Principal and profit will be payable subject to compliance with MCR or CAR set by SBP,

Loss Upon the occurrence of a Point of Non-Viability event as defined under SBP BPRD Circular # 6 of 2013 dated
absorbency August 15, 2013, SBP may at its option, fully and permanently convert the TFCs into common shares of the Bank
clause: andfor have them immediately written off (either partially or in full). Number of shares to be issued 1o TFC holders

at the time of conversion will be equal to the "Outstanding Face Value of the TFCs' divided by market value per
share of the Bank's common share on the date of trigger of Point of Non-Viability (PONV) as declared by SBP,
subiect to a cab of 319,982 544 shares.

In 2018, the Bank has issued Rs.2.5 billion of rated, privately placed and listed, unsecured, subordinated, perpetual and non-
cumulative additional Tier | ¢capital term finance certificates ("TFCs" or "the Issue") as an instrument of redesmable capital under
Section 86(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 and as outlined by Stata Bank of Pakisian, SBP, under the BPRD circular No. 06 dated
August 15, 2013 {the "Clrcular"y and Basel {ll guidelines. Summary of terms and conditions of the issue are;

Purpose: To contribute toward the Bank's Tier | Capitat for complying wilh the capita! adequacy requirement and to utilize
the funds In the Bank's business operations as permitted by ils Memarandum & Articles of Assaciation.

Issue date December 31, 2018
Maturity date;  Perpetual
Rating A (Single A)

Profit Rate: Floating rate of return at Base rate + 2.25 percent per annurm;
Base rate is defined as the average six months KIBOR prevalling on the Base Rate seiting dale. The Base Rate
will be set for the first time on the last working day prior to the Issue Date and subsequently on the immediataly
preceding businass day before the start of each six manthiy period.

Profit payment  Semi-annually on a non-cumulative basis
frequency:

Redemption; Mot applicable

Security. The Issue is unsecured and subordinated as to payment of Principal and profit to all other clagims except gommon
shares,

Call Option: Exercisable in part or in full at a par valus on or after five years from the issue date, with prior approval of SBP.
The Bank shall not exercise the call option unless the called instrument is replaced with capital of same or better

auality.
%3
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Lock-in-clause: Payment of profit will me be mads from cuirent year's earning and subject to compliance with MCR or CAR set by
SBP.

Loss absorbency clause:

Pre-Specified  Upon the occutrence of a Pre-Spacified Trigger as defined under SBP BPRD Circular # 6 of 2013 dated August

Trigger (*PST"} 15, 2013, which stipulates that if an Issuer's Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET 1" ratio falls to or below 6.625% of
Risk Weighted Assets {"RWA"), the Issuer will have full discretion to determine the amount of TFCs fo be
permanently converted inte commaon shares or written off, subject to SBP ragulations / instructions, and the cap
specified below. The Bank will be ahle to exercise this discretion subisct to:

- if and when Bank's CET 1 reaches the less absorption trigger point, the aggregate amount of Additional Tier-1
capital to be converted must at least be the amount sufficient to immediately return the CET 1 ratio to above
8.825% of totat RWA (if possible);

- The converted amount should not exceed the amount needed to bring the CET 1 ratio i 8.5% of RWA (i.e.
minimum CET 1 of 6.0% plus capilal conservation buffer of 2.5%); and

- In case, cenversion of Additional Ties-1 capital Instrument is not possible following the trigger event, the amount
of tha Instrument must be written off in the accounts resulting in increase in CET 1 of the Issuer.

Point of Nan-  Upon the occurrence of a Point of Non-Viabilily event as defined under SBP BPRD Circular # 6 of 2013 dated

Viabitify August 15, 2013, which stipulates that SBP may, at its option, fully and permanently convert the TFCs into
common shares of the Issuer and / or have them immediately written off {either partially or in full), Number of
shares to be Issued to TFC holders at the lime of conversion will be equal to the ‘Outstanding Value cf the TFCs’
divided by market value per share of the |ssuers comimon / ordinary shara on the date of the PONV irlgger event
as daclared bv SBP. subiect to the cap specified below:

The PONV trigger event is the earlier of;

- A decision made by SBP that a conversion or temporary / permarent write-off is necessary without which the
Issuer would become non-viable;

- The decision to make a public sector injection of capital, or equivalent support, without which the Issuer would
have hecome non-vizble, as determined by SBP; and

- The maximum number of shares to be issued to TFC holders at the Pre-Specified Trigger and f or Point of Non
Viability (or otherwise as directed by S8P) will be subject to a specified cap of 328,595,478 ordinary shares, or
such other number as may be agreed to in consultation with SBP.

2019 2018
Note e Rupess in '000 <.
18, OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 4,092,845 2,638,441
Mark-up / return / inlerest payable in foretgn currency 72,782 107,641
Accrued expenses 304,088 575,043
Acceptances 3,221,212 3,217,002
Unclaimed dividends 4,214 4,214
Payable in respect of defined benefit obligation - net 36.5 161,881 102,494
Government duties 352,576 160,238
Donation payable 28.2.1 1,991 14,500
Lease key money deposit 4,149,235 4,568,145
Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 18.1 713,777 72,712
Payabte against remittance 446,387 442,811
Visa debit card payable 158,574 80,202
Retention money payable 34,248 35,053
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 4.1 3,686,371 -
Advance against assets held for sale 10.3 37,500 -
Others 132,323 130,008

16,830,001 12,148,400

18.1 As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution, tevy for the WWF was infroduced by the Government of Sindh
through the Sindh WWF Act, 2014, (the Act). As per the Act, Banks are liable to pay SWWEF. The Bank has challenged the issue
of jurigdiction claimed by Sindh Revenue Board before the Honorable High Court of Sindh (the Court) through Constitutional
Petition 1546/2017 i.e. the Act will be applied to frans-provincial companies to the extent that the obligation under the pravincial
law is to make distribution only to the proportionate profit of Sindh Provinge, The Court has restrained the Sindh Revenue Board
to collect f recover Sindh Worker Welfare Fund till the next date of hearing.

In 2018, the Bank reassessed the SWWEF provision which was previously held on the entire operating results of the Bank
{including other provinces, part of Pakistan, AJK and Bahrain Operations) and based on the above lzgal stetus and also based on
the legal opinion, is of the view that the Bank will only liabfe to SWWEF fo the extent to its operations within Sindh.

‘Y
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9.  BHARE CAPIYAL - NET

18.1  Authorised capital

19.1.1 Ordinary shares

2019 2018 2019 2018
-------- Number of shares ---w...x ----- Rupees in "000 ---.-
2,350,000,000 _2,350,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 23,500,000 23,500,000

19.1.2 Preference shares

150,000,008 150,000,000 Convertible preference shares of Rs.10 each 1,500,000 1,500,000

19.2  issued, subscribed and paid-up capltal

Ordlinary shares

763,550,965 763,558,865 Fully paid in cash 7,635,890 7,635,500
533,905,287 533,905,297 Issued for cansideration other than cash 6,338,063 5,339,063
1,297 464,262 1,287,464,262 12,974,643 12,974,643

- - l.ess: Discount on issue of shares (2,865,401) {2,855,401)

....1..... 297,464,262 1,287 464,262 10,118,242 10,119,242

19.3  As at December 31, 2019, Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. {the parent company} held 973,307,324 {December 31, 2018
973,307,324) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each i.e. 75.02% holding (December 31, 2018: 76.02%).

20.  SURPLUS/{DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Surplus / (deficit} on revalualion of:

Available-for-sale securities 8.1&211 (795,030) (3.354,020)
Fixed assets 20.2 1,359,727 1,379,744
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 20.3 93,743 93,869

658,440 (1,880,407)
Deferred tax on (deficit) / surplus on revaluation of:

Available-for-sale securities 278,261 1,173,907
Fixed assets {299,034) {328,078)
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of ¢laims (967} {1,011)

(21,740) 844,818

838,700 {1,035,589)

201 This includes general provision under IFRS @ of Rs. Mil (2018: Rs. 90.015 mllllon) by Bahrain branch of the Bank.

20.2  Fixed assets

Surplus on revaluation as at January 01 1,379,744 661,400

Recognised during the year - nat 13,765 741,138
1,393,509 1,402,538

Less: Transferred to unappropriated profit:

Incremental depreciation during the year {21,9568) (14,818)

Related defarred tax liability (11,824) {7.978)
Realised on asset classified under held for sale - -
Related deferred tax Hability

(33,'.;52) (22,7"94)

Surplus on revaluation as at December 31 1,389,727 1,378,744

Less: Related deferred tax liability on:

Surplus on revaluation as at January 01 (328,078) (187,861)

Recognised / transfered during the year 17,220 (148,195}

Transferred to profit and foss account on account of incremental depreciation 11,824 7,878

Realised on asset classified under held for sale - -
(299,034) (328,078)

1,080,693 1,051,666

8
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219 2018
20.3 Non-banking assets acquired in satlsfactlon of claims Nole === RUpoes in "000 «v..
Surplus on revaluation as at January 01 93,869 97,242
{Transferred} / recognized dusing the year - {3.210)
93,869 94,032
Lass: Transferred to unappropriated profit:
Incremental depreclation during the year {(82) (108)
Related deferred tax liability {44) {57)
{126) (183)
Surplus on revaluation as at Decernber 31 93,743 93,869
less: Related deferred tax liability on:
Surplus on revaluation as at January 01 {1,041} (2,192)
Transferred to profit and loss account on account of incremental depreciation 44 57
Fransferred during the year - 1.124
{987} (1.011)
92,776 92,858
21, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Guarantaas 211 45,650,803 41,116,520
Commitmanis 21.2 73,078,872 58,341,133

118,628,675 99,457 653

211 Guarantess:

Financial guarantess 2,464,411 3,552,003
Performance guarantees 21,483,841 19,549,043
Other guarantzes 21,702,551 18,015,474

21141 45,850,803 41,116,520

2111 Included heraln the outstanding guarantees of Rs. 14,217 million {2018; Rs.12.201 million) of relaled parties.

21.2 Commitments:

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions
- letters of credit 21,21 13,965,258 14,957,752
Commltments in respect of:
- Forward foreign exchange contracts 21.22 55,111,366 34,627,442
- Derivative instruments 21.2.3 4,688,972 8,327,868
- Forward lending 21.24 72,183 284,137
Commitments for acquisition of:
- Fixed assets 2125 131,093 143,934

73,978,872 58,341,133
21.21  Included herein the outstanding letter of cradits of Rs.44.368 million (2018: Rs.44.016 million) of relaled partiss.

21.2.2 Commlimenis in respoct of forward foreign exchangs contracts
Purchase 33,104,108 21,621,180
Sale 22,007,258 13,106,262
§8,111,386 34,627 442

The Bank ufilises foreign exchange instruments to meet the needs of its customers and as part of its asset and liability
management aclivily to hedge its own exposure to currency risk, At year end, all foreign exchange conlracts have a remaining
maturity of less than one year.

21.2.3 Commitments In respect of derlvative Instruments

Purchase 2,598,797 2,205,353
Sale 2,100,175 6,122,515
4,698,872 8,327,868
21.2,3.1 Interest rate swaps (notlonal principal}
Purchase 2,099,176 1,895,682
Sale 2,100,175 1,898,882
4,199,350 3,992,764
21.2.3.2 Options {notional principal)
Sale - 2.631.433
21.2.3.3 Commltments In respect of forward government securities
Purchase 499,622 208,471
Sale - 1,484,200
499,622 1,703,871

21.24 Commitments in respect of forward lending
Undrawn formal standby facitilies, credit lines and other commitments to lend 72183 284,137

21.2.4.1 These represent commitments that are irrevocable because they cannot be withdrawn at the discretion of the bank without the risk
of Incurring significant panalty or expeanse.

21.25 Commitments for acquisition of fixed assets 131,093 143,934
21.2.8 Tax related conlingencies are disclosed in notes 32.2 o 32.5. gg}




22,

22,2

39 J8 BANK LIMITED

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments. such as Forward Exchange Contracts, Inlerest Rate Swaps, Interes! Rale Swaps and Qptions, are forward lransaclions
that provide market making opporiunilies / hedge against the adverse movement of Interesl and exchange rates. [erivatives business also
provides risk sollons for the existing and potential custamers of the Bank,

The Bank has entered inlo a Cross Currency Swap transaction with #ts customer on back-to-back basis with an Authorized Derivative Dealer

(ADD) withoul carrying any open position In Its books. Specific approvals for the transaclions have been granted by State Bank of Pakistan.
Policies in line with SBP inslructions have been formulated and are operative.

The Bank has also entered into Foralgn Currency & Commedity Options from its Wholesale Banking Branch Behrain for market making

These lransactions cover the aspects of both market making and hedging. The risk management related to derivative is disclosed In note 45 to
the financial statements.

Accounting poficles in respect of derivalive financlal instruments are described in note 4.5.2.

2018
Interest Rate Swaps Forward securlties
Notional Mark to Notional Mark to
principal Markst prinecipal Market
Productanalyss e Rupeos In 00 seesmreasiaverunas
With Banks for
Hedging 4,199,350 22,212 - -
Marke! making - - 499,622 196
With Fls other than hanks
Hedging - . . .
Market making - . - -
Tota!
Hedging 4,199,350 22,212 - -
Market making - - 499,622 19¢€
2018
Interest Rate Swaps Options Forward socurities
HNotlonal Mark to Notional Mark to Notlonal Mark o
principal market pringlpal Markat principal Market
Rupoos In '000
With Banks for
Hedging 3,992,763 16,931 - - - -
Market making - . 2,631,433 {3,652) ] 1,703,671 {296)
WIlth Fls other than banks
Hedging - - - - . .
Market making - - - - - -
Total
Hedging 3,892,763 16,931 - - - -
Market making - - 2,831,433 {3,652} 1,703,671 {298)
Al the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Maturlty analysis 2019
Remalining maturity of Number of Notional Mark to market ]
Contracts contracta _ __ principal Positive Negative Mot
Upto 1 month 123 16,831,971 178,009 {71,0856) 106,944
1 b 3 months 61 10,868,070 179,585 (72,610} 106,985
3 to & months 54 10,257,016 99,766 {120,138) {20,372)
6 monihs to 1 year 20 3,171,089 32,045 {16,145} 15,900
1to 2 yaars - - . - .
2 to 3 years 4 1,827,163 67,492 (52,033) 15,459
3 to 5 yrars - - - - -
5to 10 years - - - - -
Abgve 10 years - - - - -
262 42,955,309 556,907 {331,991} 224,916
{202,508}
2018
Remaining maturity of Numher of Notional Mark to market
Contracts contracts principal  _ Positive Negative Nat
Upto 1 month 3 1,863,596 438 (566) {128)
1 to 3 months - - - - -
3 to 6 months 2 1,750,000 42,958 (42,122) 836
& months to ¥ year 14 2,887,108 12,961 (16,1485) {3,184)
1to 2 years - - - “ -
2 to 3 years 4 1,827,162 87,492 {62,033) 16,459
3to 5 years - - - - -
51010 years - - - - -
Above 10 years - - - - -
23 8,327,867 123,849 (110, B66) 12,983
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2019 2018
23. MARK-UP/RETURN {INTEREST EARNED Note -==-= Rupaes in '000 «re.
On:
Loans and advances 30,944,739 18,657,396
Investments 9,683,494 10,071,454
Lendings to financial institutions 52,679 141,081
Balance with banks 54,857 20,120
Sacurities purchased under resale agreements 858,930 136,977

41,594,698 78 697,028

24.  MARK.UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits 28,414,651 16,098,769
Borrowings 24.1 1,804,192 705,007
Securities sofd under repurchase agreements 2,810,910 4,875,964
Sub-ordinated loans 1,029,228 407,992
Lease liability against right-of-use assets 4.1 507,361

34,686,342 21,187,732

24.1 Borrowlngs

Export Refinancing Scheme (ERF} 337,918 260,801
Long-Term Finance Facility (LTFF) 35,388 12,606
Financing Facility for Storage of Agricultural Produce (FFSAP) 3,842 2,249
Cost of foreign currency swaps against foreign currency deposits f borrowings 936,986 124,709
Other borrowings 489,260 304,642

1,804,192 705,007

25. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees 174,723 176,703
Consumer finance related fees 21,093 32,640
Card related fees (debit and ¢redit cards) . 594,713 291,035
Credit related fees 328,927 239,168
Investment banking fees 471,997 335,639
Commilssion on trade §70,108 468,623
Commilssion on guarantees 266,999 313,885
Commission on cash management 5,966 4,423
Commission on remittances including home remittances 25.1 111,288 118,004
Commission: on bancassurance 180,770 188,040
Commission on distribution of mutual funds 117,298 183,824
Commission on online Services 186,396 157,052
Pastage & Courier income 22,143 13,890
Rebate income 224,598 144,081
Rebate on primary dealership 6,918 4,118

2,859,942 2,668,923

25.1  This includes Rs.82.373 million {2018: Rs.66.003 million) in respect of commission income from home remittance services
provided by the Bank. The amount is eamed from State Bank of Pakistan at the rate of Saudi Riyal 20 (2018: Saudi Riyal 20)
per transaction over USD 200 (2017: USD 200} and is shared between the Bank and various exchange companies as per
terms of agreement with them.

2019 2018

26, LOSS ON SALE OF SECURITIES - NET Note .« Rupees in '000 -----
Reazlised 26.1 {708,527) {1,421,128)
Unraalised - held for trading (2,618) {12,906}

(711,145) {1,434,034)

26.1 Reallsed (loss) / gain on;
Federal government securitles

Market treasury bills 3,518 (15,887}

Pakistan investment bonds (248,555) (1,042,947}

ljara sukuk certificates 633 572

(244,404) {1,057,962)

Shares

listed companies (393,203) (325,860)
Non Government Debt Securities

Term finance certificates {19) -
Mutua! fund units 3,272 1,367
Foreign currency bonds (74,323) (42.838)
Sukuk cerfificates 150 3,965

(708,527) __(1,421,126)
2%
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2019 2018
OTHER INCOME - NET Note - Rupees in '000 -----
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net 271 483,600 108,964

This includes gain of Rs.383.269 on disposal of Bank's vehicles which is a result of implementation of Car Monetization Policy as
approved by Board of Directors in their 86th meating dated Octobar 24, 2019 on recommendation of the 'Board HR, Remuneration &
Nomination Committee,

OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense 281 5,237,267 4,886,672
Property expense
Rent & taxes 4.1 23,622 1,061,698
Insurance 10,550 £.144
Utilities cost 345,722 263,416
Securily {(including guards) 364,826 353,030
Repair & maintenance (including janitorial charges) 242,838 228,620
Dopraciation 192,757 167,319
Depreciation - Right of Use Assels 4.1 910,321 -
Deprecialion on non banking assets 1,713 573
2,097,249 2,083,800
Information technology expenses
Software maintenance 162,489 125,023
Hardware maintenance 233,562 188,412
Deprecialion 173,734 141,947
Amortisation 93,216 71,068
Network chargas 415,973 104,620
779,074 532,071
Other operating expenses
Directors' fees and allowancas 12,050 14,450
Lagal & professional charges 114,265 58,126
inswance . 203,412 162,723
Cutsourced services costs 351 131,109 123,375
Travelling & conveyance 93,640 91,168
NIFT clearing charges 40,394 35,228
Dapraciation 402,887 378,302
Training & development 33,742 38,075
Postage & courier charges 81,069 72,422
Communication 119,523 95,657
Stationery & printing 271,491 212,657
Marketling, advertisement & publicily 324,628 362,558
Donations 282 2,609 21,244
Auditors Remuneralion 283 10,804 17,444
Staff Auto fuel & maintenancs 220,510 166,270
Bank Charges 63,284 47,995
Stamp Duty 55,633 27,698
Online verification charges 21,870 19,573
Brokerage, fee and commission 33,786 47,598
Card related fees (dabit and credit cards) 8,662 6,683
CRC and other charges 5,306 5,692
Consultancy fee 30,549 61,887
Deposil protection corporation 139,761 59,736
Entertainment expenses 63,921 58,764
Fee and Subscription 69,708 58,205
Employeas social sacurity 8,124 7.147
Generater fuel & maintenance 79,858 79,162
Others 35,223 31,878
2673.118 2,353,617
10,791,705 5,956,080
Total compensation expense
Fees and Allowances etc. 162,077 158,260
Managerial Remuneration
i) Fixed 3,689,496 3,320,747
ii} Variable
of which;
a) Cash Benus / Awards efc. 28.1.1 306,849 394,289
b) Commission 224 474 288,877
Charge for defined benefit plan 134,712 129,558
Contribution to defined conlribution plan 209,871 177,360
Leaving indemnity 4,246 2,313
Medical 357,269 324,836
Conveyance 81,851 13,708
Insurance staff 86,422 668,629
5,237,267 4,888,572

&9
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28.1.4 The Bank operales a short term employee benefit scheme which includes cash awards / special bonus for all employees. Under this

28.2

28.2.1

28,3

28.3.1

29,

29.1

30.

31.

scheme, the benus for all employees, including the Chlef Execulive Officer (CEOQ) is determined on the basis of employess’
evaluation and the Bank's performance during the year.

2019 2018
Donations Note ---- Rupees in 000 -----
Future Trust 28,21 1,991 14,500
Hope Uplift Foundation 618 -
The Supreme Court of Pakistan and Tha Prime Minister of Pakistan
Diamer-Bhasha And Mohmand Dams Fund - 8,744
2,609 21,244

This represents donation to a ralated party, wherein below mentioned persons are iruslees. The registered office of the donee is
located at 20th Floor, The Centre, Plot No. 28, SB-§, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi- 74400, Pakistan.

Mr. Sulaman Lalani Chief Executive Officar of Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd (the parent company)
Ms. Rukhsana Shah Director of the parent company
Mr. Kalim-ur-Rahman Director of the Bank
Mr. Hasan Shahid Director of JS Investments Limited, subsidiary company
Mr. Najmulul Hoda Khan Chief Financial Officer of the parent company
Ms. Tarig Usman Bhatt Head of Money Market And Forex of JS Global Capital Limited, subsidiary company
2019 2018

Auditors' remuneration Note - Rupees In '000 -----
Audit fes - Pakistan 1,794 1,631
Audit fee - Bahrain 1,640 1,131
Haif-yearly review 619 563
Fee for audit of employeas funds 143 130
Fee for olher statutory certifications 501 a0k
Special certification and sundry advisory services 4,103 10,438
Taxation services 275 180
Out of pocket expenses and sales tax on services 1,639 2,566

28.31 10,804 17,444
Geographical analysis
Pakistan 3,651 13,175
Bahrain 2,153 4,268

10,804 17444

WORKERS WELFARE FUND

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Charge during the year 181 &291 1,066 7,238

Reversal of prior years - [98,210)
1,085 {80,972)

Raversat of Federal Warkers' Welfare Fund - {74,702)
1,065 (165,674)

Provision held at 2% of the higher of profit before tax or taxable Income to the extert of operations carried out under Sindh Workers'
Welfare Act, 2014,

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan 131,444 14,748

Others 6,199 1,455
137,643 16,203

PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS - NET

Reversal in diminution in value of investments {345,300} {218,911)

Provisions against loans & advances 360,353 408,236

Other reversals {2,280) {38,807)

General (roversal) f provision - under IFR3-9 {105,018) 92,270

Bad debts writlen off direclly s -
{91,930) 238,788
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2019 218
TAXATION - Rupees in '000 -----
Current 708,542 440,917
Prior years - 699
Deferred {600,120} {99,197)
108,422 342,419
Relatlonship hetween income tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation 133,075 904,757
Tax on income @ 35% (2018: 35%) 46,576 316,665
Effect of parmanent diffarances 46,005 5,162
Effects of prior year deferred taxation - {12,878)
Effects of prier year current tax 20,559 33,468
Others {4,718) -
- Tax charge for the year 108,422 342,419
Incornea Tax

32.2

The incoms tax rsturns filed under Section 114 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax years 2007 through 2019. Thess returns filed
were deemed lo have been assessed in terms the provisions prevailing under income tax laws as applicable in Pakistan. However, the
Officers of Inland Revenue Services {OIR} conducted the proceedings for making certain amendments in the deemed assessments for fax
yaars 2008 lo 2017, This was done by taking recourse of conducting tax audit or alternatively a diract amendment In the assessment
contending that certain matters in the deemed assessments were not admissible as not conforming to the law and prejudiced the interest of
revanla.

Basad on the amendad assessments in tax year 2008 to tax year 2017, the department had made certain dis-allowances of expenses and
tax deductible claims besides creating minimum tax and Workers' Welfare Fund liabilities in the lax years 2010, 2011 & 2012 and tax years
2009, 2012 & 20+ 3 respeciively,

In respect of WWHF, the Supreme Court of Pakistan has held in Judgemenl, PLD 2017 SC 28, that the amendments made in the WWF
Ordinance through Finance Act, 2006 and 2008 were fllegal and without lawful authority i.e. the banks do not falt inlo definilion of indusirial
Undertsking and thus, not fiable to pay WWHF. Therefore based on this, the Bank’s contention is mandafed and it is likely that its pending
appeals i this will be decided favorably. The Bank has obtained appeal effect orders of respeciive years except 2013 and resultantly no
demand is navahle In this resnect.

As a consequence of introduction of Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund Act, the Bank is required to pay WWF fo Sindh Revenue Board effective
from lax year 2015. The Bank has fited petition before the Honourable High Court of Sindh 1o contest applicability of SWWF in ils case and
stay has been granted anainst recovary of SWWF.

In respect of minimum tax, the Commissioner Intand Revenue-Appeals (the CIRA) has he not accepled the Bank's contentions of gross
loss position and also decided that non-mark-up income is the fall in the definition of turnover including capital gains and dividand income.
As result the demand of Rs. 38.807 milion has been payable. The Bank has contested the matter in further appeals bsfere Appeliate
Tribumal Inland Revenue {ATIR) which are pendina for hearina.

For tax year 2008-2017, the Bank has not accapted the amendmants of Rs. 6.27 billion and havs filed appeals bsfore the Commisslonar
Infand Revenue-Appaals (the CIRA).

CiRA has admilted the contention of the Bank in ¢ase of tax year 2008 that the amended order is barred by time and dectded that any
addition made in impugned order is annulled and not required 1o be further adjudiceted, However, the deparlment has filed an appeal
against the decision of CIRA in ATIR which has been partly heard.

Wilh regard to appeals filed for tax year 2009 to 2017, the CIRA has decided the appeals accepting the Bank's conlentions in respect of
significant issues, and cerlain disaltowance including amorlization claim of goodwill have been decided in favar of department in all tax
years. However, ihe Bank and the tax department are contesting the matiers in furtier appeals before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenus
{ATIR) which are beina heared.

During the year, ihe tax departmen! has passed appeal effectiractification orders and allowed daleted and set-aside issues in the light of
CIR{A} orders for tax year 2008 to 2014. As a result of lhese orders, the Bank's taxable losses has increased to Rs. 3.464 bilion and
reduced the demand of Rs. 1,212 billion in relevant lax vears after adiustment of these losses.

Further for the tax year 2013, the ATIR has decided appeal filed by tax department in respect of calculaling the amount of provisions
against advances as allowable under Rule 1{¢} of Seventh Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and has maintained the CIRA
decision that the allowability of provision for advances to be calculated at 1% of gross amounl of advances as against the {ex department
contention 1hat the same is to be calculaled on net advances after deducting the amount of provisions created and allowed against
advances.

The matter of allowabifity of amortization relating te goodwill is contentious issue, therefore based on the opinion of lawyer there are
arguments available to contend that goodwill on merger is a tax claimable deduction. Especially in the recent dacision given by the High
Coutt of Sindh in the casa of merger of other bank In Pakistan whare lhe court has rulad favorably that goodwill genarated In merger is
‘infanaible’ and amortizatian relating to acodwill is allowable deductlion.

Thea Bank has not been accepling tavy of Super Tax and has baan contesting the malter in high court and other appellate forums.

Tha management of Bank is confident that the appeals filed on various forums in respect of the above matlers will bs decided in the Bank's
favor and accordingly no demand for payment would arise.
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Withholding tax monitoring

Withholding {ax monitoring was initiated against the Bank for tax year 2014-2019.Orders in raspect of tax years 2014, 2015 and 2017 has
been passed against which appeals have been filod before the CIR(A). CIR(A) has reminded back the matters for rectification in respect of
tax years 2014 and 2015 against which rectified arders has been passed and demands have bean ractifisd. Appeal for tax year 2017 has
been heard and reserved for erder. In respect of tax vear 2018 and 2019, proceadinas are pending.

Sales tax

The Bank as a registered person under Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 has been issued a Sales Tax Order fram the Sindh
Revenue Board {3RB} creating & demand cf Rs.4B.838 million (besides Rs.4.440 million is charged as penalty) against the Bank for
alfegadly non-payment of Sindh sales tax on certain ‘prasumed non-taxable services / incomes'{.e. Bancassurance, Home Remitlances
under Pakistan Remittance Initiative Scheme, SBP rebates on Government securities, Rebales from foreign correspondent Banks, and FX
gain on remittance by Western Unlon)' on tolal amounting to Rs.277.488 million for (he tax periods July 2011 fo December 2013, An appeal
was filed before Commiasioner (Appeals) Sindh Revenue Board, CA-3RB against the decision of AC-SRB which was declded in favor of
the tax department except tax imposed on FX gain on remiltance by Western Union. Thereafter, bolh the Bank and AC-SRB filed appeals
before the Appellate Tribunal SRB against the decision of CA-SRB. Thiough ils Order dated April 18, 2019, the Appellate Tribunal SRB
guashed the demand raised by deciding the Bank's appeal in the Bank's favour and dismissing the AC-SRB's appeal. The Bank and tax
depariment have filed appeals before Appellate Tribuna! which are pending for hearing.

The management of Bank is confident that the appeals filed in respect of the above malter will be decided in the Bank's favor and
accordingly no demand for payment would arise.

Azad Jammu & Kashmir Operations

The Bank has commencad opsrations In Azad Jammu & Kashmir from tax year 2009 and has filad returns for the tax yaars 2009 to 2018
with the 1ax authorities of such region. The Commissioner has issued nolices for amendment of assessment under section 122 of the
Inceme Tax Ordinance, 2001 (as adopted in AJK Region) for the tax year 2011 to 2017, All assessments orders are ractified and no
additional demand has been raised.

2019 2018

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE Note ---+--= Rupees in 000 --.---—-
Profit afler taxation for the year - attributabla to ordinary

equity holders of the Bank 24,653 562,338
Preference dividend paid for the year

December 31, 2018 @ 12% p.2 (2017: @ 12% p.a.) 334 {24,164} (180,000}
Profit afler laxation for the year - attributabls to ordinary

equity holders of the Bank for basic sarnings 489 362 338

memeenneess NUMIBET <oonennnnnm

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary

shares during the year for basic earnings 33.2 1,297,464,262 1,267,268,783

Rupee

Basic and diluted earnings per shars 0.0004 0.30

The shareholders of the Bank In thair meating held on March 28, 2019 approved non-cumulalive preference dividend of Rs.24,164 million
{2018: Rs.180 milfion) for the preference sharsholders. Since il was not recognised as & liability al reporting period as of December 31,
2018 due to non-adjusting event in accordance with International Accounting Standard - IAS 10 “Events after the Reporling Period”, the
basic earnings per share of the current period has been adjusted accordingly.

During 2018, the diluted earnings per share increased for the year when taking the converlible preference shares into accounl, therefore
the convertible prefarence shares are anti-dilutive and are excluded from the weighled average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted eamings per share,

2019 2018
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note @~ = e Rupees It "000 -----
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5§ 25,689,348 32,110,840
Balances with olher banks 6 462,904 968,702
Overdrawn nostro accounts 15 {636,992) (501,629)
25,415,261 32,577,813
(68) {127}
25,415,193 32,577,788
STAFF STRENGTH
wewmmrasees NUmMbEY conrneaee
Permanent 3,607 3,528
On Banrk's contract 825 1,148
Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year 4,432 4,676
Third party contract {other guards and janitorial) 472 451
4,904 5127
Geographical segment analysis
Pakistan 4,897 5121
Bahrain 7 6
4,904 §,127

12
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The Bank operales a recognized gratuity fund for all employees who opled for this schems introduced by the management

with effect from January 01, 2007.

The defined benefit is administered by a separate fund that is legally separate from the Bank. The plan is governed by the
{rust deed dated September 01, 2007. The krustess of the gratuity fund are composed of representatives from employers.
The trustees of the grafuity fund are required by the trust deed to act In the interest of the fund and of all relevant
stakeholders in the scheme, i.e. aclive employees, inaclive employees, retirees and amployers, The trustees of the

graluity fund are responsible for the investment policy wilh regard to the assets of the fund.

The plan in Pakistan typically exposes the Bank to actuarial risks such as: salary risk, discount rate risk, mortality risk and

investment risk defined as folow:

- Salary Increase risk:

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of services is greater than assumed. Since the bensfit is
calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconamic factors), the benefit amount

increases as salary increases.

- Dlscount rate risk

The discount rate is based on the yield on government bonds. If the market yield of bonds varies, the discount rate
would vary in the same manner and would affect the present value of obligation and fair value of assets.

- Demographic Risks
- Withdrawal risk:

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the

withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

- Longevity Risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more

pronounced in schemes where the age and servica distribution Is on the higher side.

- Investment risk

This is the risk that the assets are under-performing and are not sufficient to meet the liabilities.

Number of employees under the schomas

The number of employees covered under defined benefit scheme (gratuity fund) is 3,595 (2018 3,522).

36.4 Principal actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the end of the reporling period expressed as welghted averages. The actuarial
valuations were carried out on December 31, 2019 based on the Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following

significant assumntions:

Valuation discount rate for year end obligation
Valuation discount rate for interest cost for the year
Expected return on plan assats

Future salary increase rale
- upto one years
- from two to three years
- more than thres years

Effective duration of the discounted future cash flows
Normal retirement age
Withdrawai rates

Mortality rates

per annum
per annum

per annum

per anhum
per annum
per annum

years

years

1 Year

2018 2018
11.76% 13.75%
13.75% 9.50%
11.75% 13.75%
8.00% 10.50%
10.00% 10.50%
11.75% 13.75%

10 10
60 60
Moderate Moderate

SLIC 2001- SLIC 2001-
2006, Sethack 2005, Sethack

1 Year
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Movement In definod benefit obligations, falr value of plan assets and thelr components

Doafinad henofit Fair value of plan assets Net defined bansfit
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rupees in "000
Balance as at January 01 649,062 548,530 546,668 373 M2 102,494 175,118
Included in profit or {oss
Current service cosl 125,678 118,060 . - 125,876 118,060
Past service cost 2,113 2,525 - - 2113 2,525
Interest cost f income 87,582 51,168 80,969 43,197 8,923 7.971
215,681 172,753 B0,969 43,197 134,712 129,556
In¢luded in othar comprehansive income
Actuarial galns / logses arising from:
- financial assumplions (8,792)|[ (127,462 {(18,005) {25,329) 9,213 (102,133)
- experience adjustments 7,956 75,071 - - 7,966 756,071
(838) {62,391) {18,005) {25,329 17,168 {27,062}
Qthar movements
Contribution made during the year - - 102,494 175,118 {102,4¢4) (175,118}
Benefits paid during the year {19,895) {19,830) {19,695} {18.830) - -
(19,696} {19,830) 82,798 166,288 {102,4%4) (175,118)
Balance as al December 34 844,212 649,062 692,331 545, 568 151,881 102,494

The composlion of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows:

Cost Fair value of plan assets
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Note Rupeaes i1 '000 Rupees In '000 Parcentage
Cash and cash equivalents 171,000 245,411 171,000 245411 24.8% 44.7%
Debt securities 36.6.1 519,162 316,000 508,776 304,663 73.4% §6.3%
Ordinary Shares of listed companies 14,929 - 13,346 - 1.9% 0.0%
705,091 560,411 694,122 540,474 100% 100%

This represents investments held In Pakistan Invesiment Bonds (PIBs), Term Finance Ceilificates (TFCs) and Ordinary shares of listed
compantes. The fair values of these securitles are detarmined based on quoted marked prices in aclive markets.

Maturity profile

Expected maturlly analysls of undiscounted defined benefit obligation {benefit payments) for the gratuily fund |s as follows:

Over
10 and
Up to Ovar Over Qver above
Qne yoat 1-2 years 2-5years 610 yoars years Total
Rupees In '000
Balance as at Decembor 31, 2049 37,261 44,650 217,385 901,479 14,584,443 15,765,128
Balance as at Decombeor 31, 2018 27.065 38,029 184,327 848,062 18,055928 19,154,301

Sensitivity analysls

Significant actuarial assumptions for the detarmination of the defined obligation are discount rate, and expeciad rate of satary increase. The
sensilivity analysis below have been delermined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions accunring at the end
of tha reperling pesiod, while holding all other assumplions constant:

Present value of defined Net defined benefit
Partlculars Rate beneofit obligation Fair valua of plan assets [inhility
Rupaes In '000

Cirrrent rosults - 844,212 892,331 151,881
Discount rate

1% Increase 12.768% 768,104 652,331 75773

1% Decreass 10.75% 231,799 692,331 239,468
Salary Rate

1% Increase 12.75% 933,130 662,331 240,799

1% Decrease 10.75% 765,579 692,331 73,248
Withdrawal rate

10% [ncrease Maderate + one year 822,373 692,33 130,042

10% Decrease Moderaie - one year 867,979 692,3M 175,648
Mortality rate

One year age sel back Agjusted SLIC 2001- 843,784 692,3M 151,453

One year age sel forward  Adjusted SLIC 2001- 844,669 692,331 152,338

Fuihenmore in presenting the above sensitivily anhalysis, 1he present value of the defined benafit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unil credil method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation
liabllity recognisad In this unconsolidaled stalemant of financial position. 51 l’i
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36.9 Maturity profile
The weighted average duration of the defined benefil obligation works out to 10 years.
36.10 Experience Adjustments
The re-maasuremsnt gains / losses arise due to actual experience varying from the actuarial assumptions far the year.
2019 2018 27 2016 2016
Rupeas In *000
Partlculars
Defined benefit obligation 844,212 649,062 560,729 367,635 235,572
Fair value of plan assets (692,331) {546,568) (375,811) (2492,327) {171 567)
Net defined benefit liability 161,881 102,494 175,118 118,308 64 005
Re-measurement loss / (gain) on ebligation {836) (52,391} 75,269 55,598 12,774
Re-measurement loss / (gain} on plan assets 14,006 25,329 10,273 393 {3,104)
Other comprehensive income 17,169 (27,062) 85,642 58.991 9670
36.11 The average duralion of the paymant of benefit abligation at December 31, 2019 is within one year.
36.12 The Bank contributes to the gratuity fund as per actuarial’s expectad charge for the naxt financlal year. Based on actuarial advice and
management estimatss, the charge in respact of defined beneflt obligation for the next one year works out to be Rs.157.618 miltion.
The amount of re-measuremsnts to be recognised In other comprehensive income for year ending December 31, 2020 will ba workad
out as at the nexl valuation.
37. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
The Bank operates & contributery provident fund for all permianent employees, The employer and employee both contribute 7.1% of the
basic sataries (2018: 7.1% of the basic salarlas} to the funded scheme every month. Number of employees covered under this plan are
3,092 (2018: 2,726). During the year, the Bank has made a conbribution of Rs 209,871 million (2018: Rs.177.358 milfien) to the fund.
The emplovess have also made a contribution of equal amount to the fund.
38, COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
381 The aggregate amount charged in the financial slaternents for the year in respecl of the remuneration and benefils to the President
and Chief Exacutive Officer, Directors and Executives are as follows:
2019
Directors Other
Key Material Risk
Non- President/  Management Takers/
ltems Chalrman Executives CEOD Parsonnal Controllers
Rugees in ‘000
Fees and Allowances elc. 4,850 10,100 - - .
Managerial Remuneralion
i) Fixed - - 32,727 240,705 366,667
i) Total Variable - Gash Bonus / Awards - - - - 1,440
Chargs for defined benefit plan . - 1,934 14,767 20,606
Conlribution lo defined contribution ptan - - 3,279 20,306 30,326
Medical - - 3,273 24,934 38,557
Convayance - - 887 11,196 32,466
Car allowance - . - 4,924 11,852
Cthers . - 300 912 1,885
Total 4,850 10,100 42,180 326,734 500,699
Number of persons 1 7 1 24 87
2018
Diractors Key
Non- President Management Other
Items Chairman Executives CEO Parsonne! Exacutives
Rupees in '000
Fees and Allowances ete. 800 13,850 - - -
Managerial Remuneration
i) Fixed - - 26,833 246,458 1,158,103
ii) Total Variable - Cash Bonus { Awards - - 25,000 86,025 164,245
Charge for defined benefit plan - - 889 13,652 63,798
Contribution fo defined contribution plan - - 1,088 24 806 110,461
Medical - - 2,683 24 646 115,810
Conveyance - " 203 9744 117,064
Others * - - 381 808 4,566
Total 800 13,850 57,067 406,139 1,734 047
Number of persons ;| 7 1 27 6502
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38.1.1 The SBP, vide its BPRD Circular No. 01 datad January 25, 2017, issued Guidselinas on Reivunaration Practices. Certain disclosure
related to remuneration of Directors and key executives and other material risic fakars (MRTg) and matertal risk controllers {MRCs) of
the Bank were raguired to be presenied in the financial statemaents in tarms of such guidefinas with effective from December 31, 2018.
Therafore, the Bank has reported the disclosures on remuneration practices in these unconsolidated financial statements in
accordance with such ‘Guidelinas’ for December 31, 2019. Howaver, for 2018, due to deferment of above guidelines by SBP through
its circular number BPRCY R&PD/ 2018/ 17232 dated August 08, 2018, the Bank has disclosed numbars on the basis of definition
given under the Companies Act, 2017. Le. Executives from individuals wilh an annual basic satary exceeding Rs 1.2 million,

The CEO and daputy CEO are provided wilh free use of Bank maintained cars in accordance wilh their entilement.

All Executives, including the CEQ of the Bank, are also entitled to certain shorl term employee benefils which are disclosed in note
30.1 to these unconsolidated financial stalements.

2019
Board Committees
Human
Resource,
Remuneration Risk
Board Audit & Nomination  Management LT Total Amount
Meetings Commiftee  Committee Committee Comimitiee Paid

Rupees In '000
38,2 Meeting Fees and Allowances Paid

Name of Director

i My Kalim-ur-Rahman 1,250 - 200 200 300 700
2 M. Adil Matchaswala 1,000 300 300 - . 800
3 M. Ashraf Nawebi 1,000 - . 200 - 280
4 Mr. G.M. Sikander 1,250 300 400 - - 700
5 Mr. Hagsan Afzal* 7580 - - - 300 300
6 Mr. Munawar Alam Siddiqui 1,250 300 300 . . 600
7 Ms, Nargis Ghaloo 1,250 200 100 200 - 500
8 Mr. Sohall Aman* 250 “ - - 100 100
9 Mr. Suvlerman Lalani* - - - - - -
10 Mr, Shahab Anwar Khawaja** 250 100 - “ - 100
Total amount pald 8,251 1,200 1,300 600 700 3,800

*Mr. Suleman Lalani resighed as Director & Chairman of the Board of Directors of JS Bank Limited w.s.f. June 13, 2019 and Mr. Sohail
Aman has been appointed as Director of JS Bank Limitad with effect from October 24, 2014.

“*The lerm of Mr, Shahab Anwar Khawaja as Director of JS Bank Limited completed on March 28, 2019 and Mr. Hassan Afzal is
elecled as Director of 45 Bank Limited on March 28, 2019.

2018
Board Committees
Human
Resource,
Remuneration Risk
Board Audit & Nomination  Management LT Total Amount
Meetings Committee Commiftes Commitiee Committee Paid

Rupees in ‘000

Meaeting Fees and Allowances Pald

Name of Director

1 Mr. Ali Jehangir Siddigui 500 - 100 - - 100
2 Mr. Adi Matgheswala 1,500 400 - - 300 700
3 Mr. Ashraf Nawabi 1,250 - - 300 - 300
4 Mr. G.M. Sikander 1,500 400 200 - - 600
5 Mr, Kalim-ur-Rahman 1,500 - - 400 300 700
68 Mr. Munawar Alam Siddigui 1,500 . - 400 “ 400
7 Ws. Nargis Ghaloo 1,500 - 200 - 300 500
8 Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja 1,500 400 - - - 400

Total amount paid 10,750 1,200 500 1,100 elt]h] 3,700
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement” defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market particinants at the measurement date.

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based cn quoted market price. Fair
value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to absence of current and active market for assets and liabililies and reliable data regarding market rates for
similar instruments. The provision for impairment of loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with the
Bank's accounting policy as stated in note 6.6.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

The repricing profile, effective rates and maturity are stated In note 42.3.4 to these financial statements.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not signiﬁcantly
different from their carrying values since assets and liabitities are either short term in nature or in the case of customer
loans and deposits are frequently repriced.

Fair value hierarchy
IFRS 13 requires the Bank to classify fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of

the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has following levels:

Level 1:  Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabifiies that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither
directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  Unobservable inplts for the asset or liabilily.

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2
ltem Valuation approach and input used
Units of mutual funds Fair values of investments in unils of mutual funds are determined based on

redemption prices disclosed at the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP)
as at the close of the business days.

Shares of listed companies Fair values of Investments in listed equity securities are valued on the basis of
closing quoted market prices available at the Pakistan Stock Exchangs.

Pakistan Investment Bonds / Falr values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Market Treasury Bills are derived

Market Treasury Bills using PKRV rates (Reuters page).

Term Finance Certificates and Investments in debt securities (comprising Term Finance Ceriificates, Bends and

Bonds any other security issued by a2 company or a body corporate for the purpose of

raising funds in the form of redeemable capital) are valued on the basis of the rates
announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance
with the methodology prescribed by the SECP.

Derivatives The fair values of derivatives which are not quoted in aclive markets are determined
by using valuation techniquss. The valuation techniques take into account the
relevant underlying parameters including foreign currencies involved, interest rates,

yield curves, volatilities, contracts duralion, etc.

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 3

Fixed assets - Land and building Fixed assets and Non-banking assets under satisfaction of claims are carried at
revalued amounts determined by professlonal valuers (level 3 measurement) based
on their assessment of the market values as disclosed in note 10 and 13
respectively, The valuations are conducted by the valuation experts appointed by
the Bank which are also on the pane! of State Bank of Pakistan. The valuation
experts used & market based approach to arrive at the fair value of the Bank's

Non-banking assels under properties. The market approach wused prices and other relevant information
satisfaction of claims generated by market transactions invalving identical or comparable or similar
properties. These values are adjusted to reflect the current condition of the
properties. The effect of changes in the unobservable inputs used in the valuations
cannot be determined with certainly, accordingly a qualitative disclosure of
sensitivity has not been presented in these financial staternents,

%
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39.3 The Bank's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or

change in circumstances ihat caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers hetween levels 1 and 2 during the
year.

39.4 The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsecuent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped info Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

2019
Level 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Total
On balance sheet financial instruments Rupeses in "000
Financial assets classifled as 'held-for-trading securities’
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments
Federal Government Securities - 55,598,469 - 55,598,469
Financial assets classified as 'avallable-for-sale securitles’
Financial assets - measured at falr value
Investments
Federal Government Securities - 47,019,374 - 47,019,374
Shares 1,965,753 - . 1,965,753
Non Government Debt Securities - 540,303 . 540,303
1,965,753 47,859,677 - 49,525 430
FInancial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investments
Federal Government Securities - 31,341,410 - 31,341,410
1,965,763 134,499,556 - 136,465,309
Non-Financial Assets
Revalued fixed assels - - 3,797,180 3,797,180
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - - 1,182,425 1,182,425
- - 4,979,805 4,979,605
Off balance sheet financial instruments
Commitments in raspect of:
Forward forelgn exchange contracts
Purchase - 32,885,546 - 32,885,546
Sale - 21,722,741 - 21,722,741
Forward government securities
Purchase - 499.818 - 499,818
Derivative instruments
Interest rate swaps {(notional principal) . 5,765,069 “ 5,765,069

9%



51 JS BANK LIMITED

2018
Levael 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On balance sheet financial instruments Rupees in '000
Financial assets classified as ‘held-for-trading securitiss’
Financial asssts - measured at fair value
Investments
Federal Government Securities - 41,368,514 - 41,368,514
FInancial assets classified as ‘available-for-sale sscurities’
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments
Federal Governiment Securities - 52,541,122 - 52,541,122
Shares 2,556,903 - - 2,556,903
MNon Government Debt Securities - 679,621 - 679,621
Forelgn Securities - 5,868,382 . 5,568,382
2,556,903 58,089,125 - 61,646,028
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investments
Federal Government Securifies - 38,836,881 - 39,836,881
2,556,903 1405294!520 - 142 851,423
Non-Financial Assets
Revalued fixed assets - - 3,149,352 3,149,352
Mon-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - - 185,290 185,290
- - 3,334,642 3,334 642
Off balance sheet financial instruments
Forward foreign exchange ¢ontracts
Purchass - 21,846,624 - 21,946,624
Sale - 13,319,774 - 13,319,774
Forward government securities
Purchase - 209 530 - 209 530
Sale - 1,494 554 - 1,404,554
Derivative instruments
Interest rate swaps (netional principal) - 5,254,792 - 5254 792
Options (notional principal) - 2,627,781 - 2,627,781
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment Details with respect to Business Activities

32

J8 BANK LIMITED

2018
Corporate  Trading and Retail Commercial
Finance Sales Banking Banking Others Total

Profit & Loss Rupees in '000
Net mark-up/relurn/profit - 5,005,807 (7,592,022) 9,614,572 - 7,028,367
Inter segmant revenus - nat - (11,813,244} 19,091,812 (7,278,568) - -
Non mark-up / return / Interest income 59,843 437,628 1,986,345 865,788 483,600 3,943,204
Total Incoma 59,843 (6,369,809} 13,496,135 3,301,792 483,600 10,971,661
Segment direct expenses 115,306 136,150 5,506,958 719,110 852,887 7,330,411
Inter segmant expense aflacation - 323,430 2,003,084 1,273,491 - 3,600,005
Total expenses 115,306 459,580 7,510,042 1,992,601 852,887 10,830,416
Provisions . (424,361) (251,720) 584,160 - (51,930)
Profit before tax (55,463) (8,405,028) 6,237,822 725,001 {369,207) 133,075
Balance Shoot
Cash & Bank balancas - 47,163,413 8,898,772 . - 26,062,185
Investments - 142,568,470 - - B 142,868,470
Net inter segment lending - - 202,382,517 - 8,080,077 210,451,594
Lendings to financial instiutions - 30,320,540 - - - 30,320,540
Advances - parforming - - 94,201,743 || 141,898,229 - 236,099,072
Advances - non-perfarming - - 3,508,735 6,844,429 - 10,363,164
Advances - (Provisions)freversals - Net - - {469,382} {3,038,245) - {3,608,627)

- - 87,244,006 145,703,413 - 242,944,509
Others - 4,831,115 3,925,680 6,017,351 14,160,934 27,935,090
Total Assets . 194,873,638 312,428,075 150,720,764 22,250,011 680,272,358
Borrowings - 36,295,878 7.090,687 11,081,718 - 64,468,283
Subordinated debt - 7,494,800 - - - 7,494,800
Deposits & other accounts - - 295,347,361 74,442,613 - 369,759,964
Net inter segment borrowing - 160,649,213 - 59,832,381 - 210,451,594
Others - 463,647 9,990,037 8,364,052 4,918,756 20,734,492
Total liabilities - 194,873,536 312428078 160,720,764 4,916,756  €62,939,133
Equity - - - - 17,333,255 17,333,265
Total Equity & llabliities - 194,873,538 312,428,076 150,720,764 22,250,011 650,272,388
Contingancies & Commitments - 59,810,338 43,939,275 16,748,969 131,093 119,629,675

2014
Corporate  Trading and Retail Commercial
Flnance Sales Banking Banking Others Total

Profit & Loss Rupees In '000
Net mark-up/reluenfprofil - 4,684 203 {3.613,379) 7.828,472 - 8,809,286
Inter segment revenue - net - (5,978,814} 10,459,169 (4,480,355} - -
Non mark-up / return / interest Income 335,846 (544, 403) 1,526,940 713,390 108,965 2,140,828
Total Income 335,946 (1,929,014} 8,372,730 4,061,507 108,965 10,950,134
Segment direc! expenses 111,513 172,382 5,010,817 1,414,121 389,851 7,098,484
Inter segment expensge allocation - 232,680 1,106,741 1,368,684 - 2,708 105
Total expenses 111,513 405,082 8,117,358 2,782,805 389,851 9,806,589
Provisions - {11,844) 92 534 197,904 (39,808) 238,788
Profit before lax 224,433 (2,322,232) 2,162,838 1,080,798 (241,080) 904,757
Balance Sheet
Cash & Bank balances - 26,330,503 6,748,812 - - 33,079,415
Invastments - 148,649,974 - - - 148,689,974
Nat inter segment lending - - 142 567 445 - 6,556,733 149,124,178
Lendings to financial institulions - 1,937,247 - - - 1,937,347
Advances - perfarming - - 93,802,563 || 155,702,540 - 249,505 103
Advances - non-performing - - 1,647,088 3,895,026 - 5642111
Advances (Provisions) - Net - - (527 295} {2,629,001) - (3,156, 296)

- - 94,922,353 157,068,565 - 251,990,918
Cthars - 2622494 1,707,032 2587220 14,139,676 21,056,422
Total Assets - 179,580,418 245945642 159,655,785 20,606,400 605,878,254
Borrowings . 80,051,504 4,290,751 12,216,408 - 96,558,663
Subordinated debt - 7,496,800 - . - 7,496,800
Daposits & other accounts - - 232,859,517 88,553,748 - 321,413,283
Met inler segment borrowing - 91,475,842 - k7,648,336 - 148,124 178
Others - 556,372 8,795,374 1,237,295 5,079,383 15,668,324
Total liabilities - 179,580,418 245945642 159,655,785 5,079,383 590,261,228
Equity - - - - 15,617,026 15,617,026
Tota! Equity & liabilities - 179,680,418 245045642 159,855,785  20,606408 605,878,254
Contingencies & Commitments - 43,239,446 34,959,767 21,114,508 143,934 98,457 663
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40.2 Segment datails with raspect to geographical locatlons

Profit & Loss

Met mark-up/relurnfprofit

Inter segment revenue - nst

Mon mark-up / return / Intersst Income
Total Income

Segment direct expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Profit before tax

Balance Shaat

Cash & Bank balances
Investmants

Met inter segment lending
Lendings to financlal Institulions
Advances - performing
Advances - non-perferming
Advances (Provisions) - Net

Others
Total Assets

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Deposits & olher acgounis
Met inter segrment borrowing
Others

Tota! liabilities

Equity

Totai Equity & liabilifies

Contingencies & Commitments

Profit & Loss

Net mark-up/freturn/profit

Inter segmaent ravenue - nat

Non mark-up / return / interest income
Total Income

Segment direct expenses

Intar sagment expense aliocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Profit before tax

Balance Shest

Cash & Bank balances

Investments

Met intar segment lending

Landings to financial institulions
Advances - performing

Advances - non-performing

Advances - {Provisions)/reversals - Net

Others
Tota! Assets

Borrowings

Subordinated dabt

Deposits & other accounts
Net inter segmen! borrowing
Others

Total liabllities

Equity

Total Equity & Habilities

Contingencies & Commitments

83

J8 BARK LIMITED

2019
Pakistan Bahrain Total
wmreraams RUPEES in '000 coveverran
6,756,309 271,868 7,028,357
{21,863) 21,863 -
3,837 975 5,229 3,043,204
10,672,501 299,060 10,971,561
7,157,913 172,496 7,330,411
3,600,005 . 3,800,005
10,757,918 172,498 40,930,416
13,088 {105,018} (91,930}
{98,505) 231,560 133,075
25,973,213 78,972 26,062,166
142,568,470 - 142,668,470
208,787,632 1,663,962 210,461,594
30,037,273 283,267 30,320,540
232,347,686 3,762,286 236,009,872
10,353,164 - 10,363,164
(3,608,627) - {3,508,6827)
239,192,223 3,762,286 242,944,509
27,810,301 124,783 27,935,090
674,369,112 5,903,276 680,272,388
53,452,873 1,016,410 54,468,283
7,494,800 - 7,494,800
365,972,359 3,817,805 369,789,064
210,203,389 248,205 210,451,694
20,686,067 47,525 20,734,492
657,810,388 5,128,745 662,939,133
16,558,723 774,532 17,333,255
674,389,111 5,903,277 680,272,388
118,799,101 830,574 119,620,675
2048
Pakistan Bahrain Total
---------- Rupeas in '000 werewse
8,588,720 220,676 8,809,296
2,120 745 20,093 2,140,838
10,709,465 240,669 10,950,134
6,977,034 121,450 7,088,484
2,708,105 - 2,708,105
9,685,139 121,450 9,806,589
174,802 63,986 238,788
849,524 55233 a04,757
32,764,181 315,234 33,079,415
143,082,032 5,607,942 148,689,874
147,026,382 2,087,796 149,124,178
- 1,937,347 1,937,347
247,631 460 1,873,643 249 505,103
5,642,111 - 5,642 111
(3,156,296) - (3,166,296)
250,117,275 1,873,643 251,990,918
20,894,399 162,023 21,056,422
593 894,269 11,983,985 606,878,254
89,602,007 6,685,944 98,287,951
7,496,800 - 7,496,800
316,958,104 4,725,671 321,683,975
148,853,466 270,712 148,124,178
15,275,055 393,268 16,668,323
578,185,432 12,075,795 500,261,227
15,708,837 {91,810) 15,617,027
593,894 269 11,983,885 605,878,254
95,788,490 2,669,162 99 457 652
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TRUST ACTIVITIES

54

J3 BANK LIMITED

The Bank under takes Trustee and other fiduciary aclivities that result in tha holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals and other
organisations, These are not assets of the Bank and, tharefore, are not included as such In these unconsolidated financial statements. Assets

hetd under trust ars shown in the table below;

2019
Securities Held { Face Value
Pakistan
No. of (PS Market investment jlGovernment
Category Accounts || Treasury Bills Bonds lfara Sukuk Total
(Rupeaes In '000)
Assets Management Companies 7 320 1,843 - 2,163
Charitable Institutions 1 35 - - 35
Companies 5 4,709 9,009 - 13,808
Employees Funds 56 11,204 12,888 - 24,089
Individuals 48 1,136 404 - 1,540
Insurance Companles 10 16,931 89,467 598 116,995
Others 12 16,305 3,126 - 19,431
Total 149 50,637 126,827 588 178,062
2018
Securlties Held { Face Value
Pakistan
No, of IPS Market Investment [|Governmant
Category Accounts || Treasury Blils Bonds ljara Sukuk Total
{Rupees in '000)

Assels Management Gompanias 1 1 - - i
Charitable Instilutions 1 BOO - - 800
Companies 13 18,470 1,270 - 18,740
Employees Funds 54 i1,622 2,394 - 14,016
Individuals 18 230 133 - 363
Insurance Companies 10 42 595 45758 1,127 88,480
Others 10 4,115 1,318 . 5,433
Total 107 77,833 50,873 1,127 124,823
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capital Requirement {(MCR):
Pald-up capital (net of losges)

Capltai Adequacy Ratlo (CAR);

Ellgible Common Equity Tier 1 {CET 1) Capital
Eligible Additional Tler 1 (ADT 1) Capital

Total Eligible Tier 1 Capitat

Eligible Tier 2 Capital

Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2)

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
Credit Risk

Market Risk

Cperalional Risk

Total

Comimon Equity Tier 1 Capital Adeguacy ralic
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

Leverage Ratio (LR}
Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Total Exposures
Leverage Ralio

Liquidity Coverage Ratio {L.CR):
Total High Quality Liguid Assets
Total Met Cash Outflow

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
Total Available Slable Funding

Total Required Stable Funding
Net Stable Funding Ratio

JS BANK LIMITED

2019

2018

euus RUpees in *000 -----

10,119,242 10,119,242
14,618,807 13,417 429
2,600,000 2,500,000
17,119,807 15,917,429
4,308,766 4,260,437
21,426,382 20,177,866
144,380,673 148,178,402
924,762 1,895,567
20,468,261 17,946,043
166,773,686 168,020,033
8.82% 7.99%
10.33% 9.47%
12.93% 12.01%
17,118,807 15,917 429
501,440,747 484,067 925
3.41% 3.28%
83,221,592 55,404,403
556,819,412 52,473,282
149.09% 106%
308,715,926 298,128,452
274,288,842 280,704,715
112.65% 106%

The link to the full disclosure is available al hitps:/fwaww_jsbl.comiinformationfinancial-reports/

RiSK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is a discipline at the core of every financial instilution ang encompasses all the activities that affect its
risk profile. At the Bank, it involves identification, measuremenl, monitaring and controlling risks to ansure that:

a) The individuals who taKe or manage risks clearly understand if;

b} The Bank's Risk exposure is within the Bmits establishad by Board of irectors (BoD);
c) Risk taking declslons are in line with the husiness strategy and objectives set by BoD;
d} The expected payoffs compensate for the risks taken,

a) Risk taking dacislons are explicit and clear;

f) Sufficient capilal as a buffer is available to take risk; and

g) Risk management function is independent of risk taking unit.

The Bank has a comprehensive set of Risk Management policies, practices and procedures wihich enable the Bank to take
into consideration, In an appropriate manner, all major kinds of risks mainiy credit, market, liguldity, operationatl and IT
security risks. Keeping In view the dynamics of internal and external shvironment, wa reguiarly review and update our Risk

Managernent policies and procedures in accordance wilh regutatory environrnent and international standards.

Risk Management activities remain al the forefront of all activities of the Bank which places the highest priority on
conducting its business in a prudent manner in line with the relevant laws and reguiatory requirements.

Ay
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Risk management framework of the Bank includes:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Clearly defined risk managemsnt policies and procedures covering risk identlfication, acceptance, measurement,
monitoring, raporting and control;

Well constituted organizational structure, defining clearly roles and responsibilities of individuals invelved in risk taking
as well as managing . The Bank, in additien to risk management functions for various risk categories, has instituted an
Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC), Credit Risk Commitlee (CRC), Operational Risk Menagement
Committee (ORMC) as well as Central Credit Commiltee (CCC). IRMC oversaes the overall risk management at the
bank and provide guidance in setting sirategic targets as well as concentration fimits and monitor progress related to
earnings growth, keeping in view lhe capitai consiraints and also adhere to the concentration limits. The IRMC monitors
ihe strategic target and aggregate limlts at the Business Group level and concentration limits {by Indusiry, geography,
size, tenor) so that one category of assets or dimension of risk cannot materially harm the performance of the Bank.
CRC monitors the advances porifolio, concentrations limits, aggregate limlts at business level and various house
keeping elements under Credit Administration. ORMC oversees the effecliveness of operational risk management for
maintenance and implementation of opsrational risk management framework, It also monitors the Business Continuity
Planning and revlews findings of any other rmanagement or board's sub committee. Whereas, Central Credit
Committea (CCC) is enlrustad with the responsibility of monitoring lending risk profile of the bank. CCC meets regularly
to actively supervise credit risk across its lending portfolio.

An effsclive management Information system thal ensures flow of information from operational level to top
management and a syslem to address any exceplions cbserved; and

A mechanism lo ensure an onguing review of systems, policles and procedures for risk management and procedures
to adopt changes.

While the overall responsibility of risk management rests with the BoD, it is the duty of Senior Management to devise risk

management strategy by sefting up well defined policies and procedures for mitigating / controlling risks, duly approved by
the Board.

Giving due consideration {0 the above, the Bank has put in place the following hlerarchy of Risk Management:

Board Risk Management Commiitee (BRMC);

Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) comprises of the President / Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Daputy
CEOC, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Group Head Investment Banking & Emerging Business, Group Head
Operations & Technology, Head of Compliance, Chief of Staff, Head of Treasury and Head Internal Audit (guest
member),

Asset - Liabililty Committee (ALCO) comprises of the President / Chigf Executive Officer {CEQ), Depuly CEO,
Treasurer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer and attended by Other Business Heatls.

Central Credit Committee (CCC) comprising of the President / CEO, Depuly CEQ, Chief Risk Qfficer, Chief Financial
Officer, Group Head Investment Banking & Emerging Business, Chisf of Staff and Head of Operational and
Environmental Risk (for environmental risk only).

Credit Risk Commiittes (CRC) comprises of President/CEQ, Deputy CEO, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financiai Officer,
Group Head Investment Banking & Emerging Business, Regional Credit Heads, Head CAD, Head of Consumer Risk,
Head Enterprise Risk Management and Head Internal Audit {guest member).

Operational Risk Management Committee comprises of the Deputy CEO, Chief Risk Officer, Group Head Operations &
Technology, Country Head Branch Banking Operatlons, Group Head Human Resources Head of Compliance, Head of
Service Management, Head Enterprise Risk Managament and Head Internal Audit (guest member),

IT Steering Committee {ITSC} comprises of Prasident/CEQ, Deputy CEQ, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Group Head Operations & Technology, Chief Information Officer, Chief Information Security Officer, Chief of Staff,
Group Head Investment Banking & Emerging Business, Chief Digital Officer, Country Haad Branch Banking Operations
and Head Product Development & Consumer Business.

Risk Managemenl Group (RMG), a dedicated and independent set-up headed by Chief Risk Officer and comprises of
Regional Credit Heads, Heads of Market & Liguidity Risks, Operational Risk and Treasury Middle Offlce, Consumer
Risk, Cradit Administration, Speclal Assets Management, Information Sacurity, Strategic Projects & Quantitative
Analysis and Enterprise Risk Management.
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RMG is managed by Chief Risk Officer 1o suparvisa the following Divisions:

a} Credit Risk Management {CRM) covering Corporale / Commercial, Agriculiural and Retall Banking Risks
b} Operational Risk Management {ORM)

c) Markel Risk Managemant (MRM)

d) Treasury Middle Office

e} Basel i / Ill implementation Unit

f)  Credit Administration Department (CAD)

g} Special Assets Management (SAM)

ty IT Risk Management

i} Consumer Risk

i)  Slrategic Projects & Quantitative Analysis

The Bank's RMG generates the requisite risk reporting for the different tiers of managemeni. These are also subjacted to
interna! audit review.,

Risk Matrix / Categories

The Bank, in commeon with other banks, generates its revenues by accepting Country, Credit, Liquidity, Interest Rale Risk in
the Banking Book, Market, Operational and other risks. Effeclive management of these risks is the decisive factor in the
Bank's profitability,

Risk Appetite

The Bank's risk appetile is reflected in its endeavours to maintain a favourable credit rating and encompasses the following:

- The business strategy

-  Tha expectations of stakeholders at different lime horlzons

- The characteristics of the rlsk-bearing entities

~  The nature and characteristics of the risks undertaken

- The possible spread of risk siluations across organizational units, assets-at-risk, and future time horizons,

Risk appelile drives business activity. It combines anticlpations in risk and profitability with management preferences fo
control capital and resource allocation, as well as the distribution of exposure across activities and portfolios.

The Bank's hedging stralegy Is embedded in ils risk management praclices for addressing materfal calegories of rigk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one parly to a financial instrument will fail to discharge is
obligation and cause the other party to Incur a financial loss. Credit risk Is managed in terms of credit policies, approved by
the BoD and regulations issued by the S8F. The bank is exposed to credil risk on loans and advances, fund placements
with financial institutions and ¢ertain investments,

Credit risk management is an ongeing process. The overall credit policy and the credit risk instructions are issued by the
Board of Directors. In 1his regards, a Central Credlt Committee (CCC) Is antrustad with the responsibility of monitoring
lending risk profile of the bank. In order to maintain heallhy growth of the credit porifolio, the Bank’s Credit Risk
Management processes are consistantly upgraded and Improved to maat future challenges.

The Bank's stralegy is to minimise c¢redit risk through product, geography, industry and customer diversification. Credit
imits are sastablished for all counlei-partias after a careful assessment of their credit worthiness. An effeclive cradit granting
procedure, which requires pre-sanction svaluation of credit proposal, adequacy of security and pre-disbursement
examination of charge documents is in place and managed by Risk Management Group (RMG) & Credit Administralion
Depariment (CAD). The Bank malntains a sound portfolio diversified in nature to counter the risk of credit concentration and
further confines risk through diversification of Hs assets by geographical and industrial sector. For managing impaired
assets in the portfolio, the Bank follows the Prudential Regulations and Risk Management guidelines issued by SBP and the
Remedial Management Policy approved by the Board.,
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44.1.2 Credit risk: Standardised approach

The Bank has adopled the Standardised Approach of Base! It for risk weighing Its Cradit Risk Exposures.

The following table lHustrates the approved External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAls) whose ratings are being utilsed
by the Bark with respact to material categorles of exposures:

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA MOODY'S FITCH S&P
Corporale v v - - -
Banks v v v v v
SME's (retail

exposures) v v - - -
Sovereigns v v v v v
Securitisations NiA NFA NIA N/A N/A
Others (specify) N/A NIA N/A NfA MN/A

The Bank has used Issue Specific Ratings for rating / risk welighing Issue Specific Exposures and Entity Ratings for rating /
risk weighing claims against specific counterparties. Both short and long 1erm ratings have been used to rate corresponding
short and long term exposures. For this purpose, Mapping Grid provided by SBP as given below:

Long - Term Ratings Grades Mapping

SBF Rating PACRA JCR-ViS Fitoh Moody's Sap ECA Syores
Grade
1 Anp, AAD, AAA Aan ABA 1
AA+ Al Adt Ant AA+
AA A A Aa2 AA
Al Ab. AA- An3 Al
2 At A+ A+ Ad At 2
A A A A2 A
A- A- A- Al A-
3 BeB+ BBB+ BAB+ Baa1 BBB+ 3
BBR- BBR BEB Baa? BBR
BRB- BBB- BBB- Baa3 BBE-
4 BB+ BB+ BB+ Ba1 BA+ [3
BE BB [=]=3 Ba2 ag
BB- BBR- B8- 8a3 BB
5 B+ 8+ ar ai B+ 6 &
B B B a2 B
B- B- B- a3 B-
] CCC+ and CCC+ and CCC+ and Caoal and CCC+ and 7
below below balkaw Below balow
Shert - Term Ratlngs Grades Mapping
SBP PACRA JER-VIS Fiteh Moody's S&P
S1 A-1 A-1 F1 P-1 A1+ A1
52 A-2 A2 F2 P2 A2
53 A-3 A-3 F3 P-3 A3
54 Others Others Cthers Others Chhers

44.1.3 Policies and processes for collateral valuation and management as regards Basel |I;

For Credit Risk Mitigation purposes the Bank uses only the ¢ligible collalerals under Comprehensive Approach of Credit
Risk Mitigation under Standardised Approach as prescribed by SBP under Clrcular No. 8 of 2008, which includes Cash and
Cash Equivalent Securities including Government Securities (like Cash Margins, Lien on Bank Accounts, Foreign Deposit
Receipts, Term Deposit Receipts, Pledge of Defense Saving Certificates, Regular Income Certificates, Spacial Saving
Certificates, T-Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds efe.) and Shares Listed on the Main Index,

Under the Bank's policy all collaterals are subject to periodic valuations o moniter the adequacy of margins held, Shares /
Marketable securities are valued by the Bank on daily basis to calculate the Drawing Power (DP). In case of any shortfall in
the requisite margins, the DP is adjusted to the approprlate level and the business unils are informed to take appropriate
action as per the agreement wilh the customer.

| 6%



44.1.4 Lendings to financial institutions

Credit risk by public ! private sector

Public/ Government
Private

44,1,5 Investment in debt securities

Cradit risk by industry sector

Textile

Chemical and Pharmacelticals

Power (slectricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary
Refinery

Fortilizer

Transpor!, Storage and Communication
Financial

Cthers

Credit risk by pulic / private sector

Publicf Government
Private
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Gross lendings

Non-performing lendings

J8 BANK LIMITED

Provislon held

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 218
Rupees in '000
8,186,732 - - - - -
22 136,070 1,941,658 - - (1,262) {4,312)
30,321,802 1,941,659 - - {1,262) {4,312}

Non-parforming

Gross invesiments investmants Provision held
2019 2018 2019 2018 20149 2018
Rupees in '000
65,022 85,022 65,022 65,022 65,022 85,022
258,193 148,860 149,860 149,860 149,860 149,880
142,857 355,853 - - - -
390,303 529,621 - - - -

- 140,000 - - - -
854,902 168,712 155,169 168,712 155,168 168,712
300,000 500,020 - - . -

1,360,000 5,868,382 . - - -
3,361,277 7,767,570 370,051 373,594 370,051 373,504

Non-performing

Provislon hald

Gross Investments investments
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rupees in '000
- 3,231,444 - - " -
3,364,277 4,536,126 370,051 373,594 370,051 373,504
3,361,277 7,767,570 370,051 373,594 370,051 373,594

led
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Non-performing

Gross Advances Advances Provislon held
201¢ 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
44.1.6 Advances Rupees in '000

Credit risk by industry sector
Agri finance 5,285,334 4,260,641 207,192 73,275 397 824
Aulomobite and fransportation equipment 3,854,727 4,582 078 227,878 84,018 69,586 81,832
Brokerage 6,929,558 4,846 099 - 156,801 - 166,801
Cement 2,958,936 1,606,779 - - - -
Chemical 1,910,636 3,087,111 314,405 324 584 - -
Construclion 5,806,032 4,960,162 112,803 - 3,236 -
Electronics and electrical appfiances 237,458 260,812 35,914 - - -
Engineering, IT and other services 5,013,820 5,591,012 38,738 27,598 28,325 2,800
Ferlilizar 4,446,138 3,811,120 1,348,624 1,348,383 1,348,943 1,348,043
Financtal 2,110,683 2,194,635 - - . -
Food / confectionery f beverages 32,363,949 34,548,600 157,010 119,192 63,221 80,727
Individuals 31,512,186 32,981,120 1,533,451 658,355 235,185 114,847
Insurance and securily 176,116 168,843 - - - -
Matal and stesl 8,824,579 10,075,944 1,614,845 1,933,979 339,372 120,648
Mining and quarrying 158,089 56,972 - - - -
Paper / board / furniture 1,506,678 1,462,601 8,000 8,000 - -
Pstrolaum, oil and gas 4,135,890 4,530,087 80,053 32,559 29,618 21,357
Pharmaceuticals 5,722,234 5,300,071 4,877 - - -
Plastic 2,001,738 2,128,861 538,745 - 483 -
Power and water 27,878,817 26,446,393 169,806 - - -
Real esiate 3,493,350 2,305,823 4,300,000 1,300,000 - -
Shipbreaking 1,074,569 1,950,437 805,000 963,164 256,706 220,048
Storage 103,525 57,734 - - - -
Sugar 2,600,934 2,794,493 200,000 279,579 200,000 203,363
Tele-communication 2,709,181 2474279 - - - -
Textile
Composite 8,639,722 8,643 776 339,310 324114 303,004 302,781
Ginning 1,812,059 1,669,933 48,949 458,849 20,167 3,270
Spinning 5,349,247 7,857,631 278,441 278441 278,441 278,441
Weaving 9,988,010 10,360,474 47,284 46,650 3,726 |i -

23,589,038 28,231,814 713,984 698,154 605,418 584,492
Transportation 36,397,687 44,620,624 127,290 21,341 53,493 18,901
Trust and non-profit organisations 475,240 478,904 - - - -
Tyre 288,551 313,531 - - . -
Wholesale and retail trade 10,671,924 13,450,093 502,852 81,463 64,928 14,255
Olhers 9,215,480 6,160,550 324,800 186,022 40,020 60,250

_246,453136 _ 255,147,213 10,363,164 _ 8,308,467 3,339.941 2,400,888

Non-performing

Gross Advances Provision held
Advances
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rupess in '000
Cradit rigk by public / private sector
Public/ Government 56,471,970 59,571,898 - - - -
Private 189,981,166 195575315 10,353,164 8,309,467 3,339,841 2,989,888

246,453.136 285,147,213 10,353,164 8,309,467 3,338,941 2,989,858
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Contlngencies and
commitments

2019 2018
44.1.7 Credit risk by industry sector ceerencees RUPEES 11000 wonveress
Automobite and transportation eguipment 2,183,575 1,845,619
Brokerage 798,500 226,400
Cement 247,368 700,638
Chemical 779,205 614,360
Construction 18,350,013 20,726,873
Electronics and elactrical appliances 190,170 220,084
Enginesring, IT and olher services 3,033,858 5,822,923
Fertilizer 4,262,960 3,468,510
Financia! 60,105,009 44,428,613
Food / confectionery / beverages 3,054,819 2,664,450
Individuals 989,989 1,496,003
Insurance and security 42,197 20,197
Meial andg steel 3,709,350 1,944,885
Mining and quarrying - 148,415
Papar / board / furniture 888,015 816,484
Petroleum, oil and gas 586,138 1,243,540
Pharmaceuticals 721,858 664,106
Plaslic 324,358 453,318
Power and waler 495,524 1,790,608
Reai estale 4,299,209 3,000
Shipbreaking 77,614 120,887
Sugar 24,301 43,188
Tela-communicalion 1,460,186 128,882
Textila )
Composite 1,037,819 1,629,969
Ginning 369,793 316,425
Spinning 1,485,788 1,093,87¢
waaving 1,118,339 1,280,823
4,011,759 4,225,896
Transporlation 24,696 -
Trust and non-profit organisations 217,780 5,866
Tyre 9,584 23,010
Wholesale and retail trade 4,328,745 3,021,803
Others 4,483,909 2,488,485
119,629,675 99,457 653
Contingencies and
commitments
201¢ 2018
Credit risk by public / private segter e Rugpees in '000 -

Public/ Government - -
Private 119,629,675 99,457 853
119,629,675 99 457 653

|



44,1.8 Concentration of Advances

84

J8 BANK LIMITED

The bank {op 10 axposures on tha basis of lotal {funded and non-funded exposures) aggregaled to Rs, 85,938, million (2018: Rs. 91,153.787 million)

are as following:

2019 2018
wress RUpaos [0 '000 eurs
Funded 44.1.7.1 66,309,390 70,831,917
Mon Funded 44.1.7.2 20,628,677 20,321,870
Total Exposure 88,937,967 91,153,787
44.1.7.' There are no classified advances placed under top 10 exposures.
44.1.7.i The sanctioned limits against thesa lop 10 exposures aggregated to Rs 85,837.857 million {2018: 95,322.310 million).
44,1.9 Advances - Province/Reglon-wise Disbursement & Utilizatlon
2019
Disbursements Utilizatlon
KPK & AJK & Gligit-
Punjab Sindh FATA  Balochistan Islamabad Baitlstan Bahrain
Province/Region
Punjab 80,205,926 80,305,926 . - . . . .
Sindh 145,330,606 - 146,330,608 - - - - -
KPR, including FATA 1,456,326 - - 1,486,326 - - - -
Balochistan 111,734 - - - 111,734 n - -
isfamabad 13,423,194 - - - “ 13,423,194 . -
AJK including Gilgil-Baltistar 197,627 - - - - - 197,627 -
Bahrain 4,727,124 . - - - - - 4,727,124
Total o 246,852,535 80,305933 1,466,326 114,734 13,423,194 197,627 4727124
2018
Utllizatlon
KPK & AJK & Gliglt-
Dishurgemsents Punjab Sindh FATA Balochistan Islamabad Baltlstan Bahrain
Province/Region
Punjab 97,465,307 97 465,307 - - - - - -
Sindh 162,256,475 - 162,256,475 - - - - -
KPK including FATA 1,358,209 - - 1,356,209 - - - -
Balochistan 526,629 - - - 626,622 - - -
Islamabad 12,456 464 - - - - 12,456,464 - -
AJK including Gilgit-Baltistar 506,255 - - - - - 506,255 -
Bahrain 948,540 - - - - - - 948,540
Total 275,517,879 97465307 162,256,475 1356200 _ 526620 _12,456.464 _ 506265 _ 048540

2.
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44.2 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss due to adverse changes In interest rates, foreign exchange rales, equity prices and market
conditions. From the perspective of the Bank, market risk comprises of interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and equity
posilion risk, which the Bank is exposed to in its frading book.
The Bank has an approved market risk policy wherein the governance structure for managing market risk, measurement tools
used and the market risk exposure limits have been addressed. The Bank's strategy for managing market risk is to relate the
level of risk exposures 1o their risk appetlite and the capital at hand.
The Board of Directors {BoD) and the Asset and Liabilily Committee (ALCQ} are responsible for addressing market risk from a
strategic perspective and are assisted by the market risk function in meeting these objectives,
The Market Risk Unit reports directly to Chief Risk Officer and is responsible for ensuring the implementation of market risk
policy in line with the Bank's strategy.
Risk reporting undertaken by the markst risk function includes:
a) Pertfolio Reports
b) Limif monitoring reports
¢) Sensitivily analysis ; and
d) Stress testing of the portfolio
Currently, the Bank is uslng the market risk standardised spproach for the purpose of computing regulatory capital, the details
of which are set out above,
44.2.1 Balance shest split by trading and banking books
2019 2018
Banking Trading Banking Trading
hook hook Total boak book Total
Rupees in "000
Cash and balances
with treasury banks 25,589,349 - 25,589,349 32,110,840 - 32,110,840
Balances with other hanks 462,336 - 462,836 988,575 - 968,575
Lendings to financial institutions 30,320,540 - 30,320,540 1,937,347 - 1,837,347
Investmenls 86,970,001 55,598,469 142568470 107,321,460 41,368,514 148,689,974
Advances 242,944,509 - 242,944,509 251,990,918 - 251,990,818
Fixed assets 9,682,701 - 9,692,701 6,245,328 - 6,245,328
intangible assets 2,271,360 - 2,271,360 2,169,877 2,169,877
Deferred tax assets 8,766 - 8,756 287,062 - 287,062
Other assets 15,588,273 - 156,688,273 12,354,155 - 12,354,155
374,000 - 374,000 - - -
414,222,325 £5598,469 469,820,794 415385562 41,368,514 456,754,076
44.2.2 Foreign Exchange Risk

Main objective of foreign exchange risk management 15 to ensure that the foreign exchange exposure of the Bank lies within

the defined appetite of the Bank.

Daily reporls ara generated to monitor the intarnal and regulatory limits with respect to the overall foreign currency exposures.
The overall net open positien, whether short or long has the patential to negatively impact the profit and loss depending upon
the direction of movemant in foreign exchange rates.

3
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Foreign exchange open and mismatched positions are marked to market on a daily basis.

Currency risk arises where the value of financial instruments changes due to changes In foreigh exchange rates. In order to
manage currency risk exposure the bank enlers into ready / spol, forward and swap transaclions with SBP and in the interbank
market. The Bank's foreign exchange exposure comprises of forward contracts, foreign currancies cash in hand, balances with
banks abroad, foreign placement with SBP and foreign currencies assets and liabilities. The net open position is managed
within the stalutory limits, as fixed by SBPF. Counter parties limit are also fixed 1o limit risk concentration, Appropriate
segregation of duties exists between the front and back office funclions while compliance with the net open position limit is
independently monitored on an ongoing basis.

2019
Net foreign
Off-balance currency
Assets Liahilities sheet items exXposure

Rupees In 000 «r—rervmemmamcamim s

United States Dollar 12,248,588 20,805,267 8,586,023 29,344
Great Britain Pound 879,840 2,696,794 1,778,936 (38,018)
Euro £85,843 901,267 326,018 10,594
Other currencies 41,154 34,019 4,828 11,964
13,755,425 24,437,347 10,895,808 13,884
2018

Net foreign

Off-balance  currancy

Assatls Liabilities  shest items 8Xposure

Rupges in "000 srermerrersmmmunnnnnann

United States Dollar 17,831,833 24,723,033 7,101,304 210,104
Great Britain Pound 740,134 2,687,806 1,520,893 (426,779
Euro 1,054,817 873,899 (228,641) {45,723)
Qther currencies 203,665 || 366,289 217,570 54,946

19,830,448 28,661,027 8,613,126 (207,452)

2019 2018
Banking Banking
hook Trading book hook Trading hook
weommmmameaannos RUPEES N 000 memeemmennacnnases

Impact of 1% change in foreign exchange rates on
- Profit and foss account - 169 - (2,075)
- Other comprehensive income - - - -



44.2.3

44.24

67 J§ BANK LIMITED
Equlity position Risk

Equity positions in the banking hook include Investment in equities thal are available-for-sale or held for strategic Invesiment
purposas. These investments are generally regarded as riskier relative to fixed income securities owing to tha inherent volatility
of stock markel prices. The Bank miligates these risks through diversificalion and capping maximum exposures in a single
company, compliance wilh regulatory requirement, and following the guidelines faid down in the Bank's Investment Pollcy as
set by the Board of Directors (BoD). The Bank follows a dellvery versus payment setilement system thereby minlmizing risk
available in relation fo setilement risk.

Equity price risk is managed by applying trading lmit and scrip-wise and porifolio wise nominal limits.

2019 _ 2018
Banking Banking
hook Trading book book Trading book
mremsvimaanmnaane RUPEES [N 000 —=rereememmmemaen
Impact of 5% change in equily prices on
- Profit and loss account - - - -
- Other comprehensive income 105,788 - 127,845 -

Yield f Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)-Basel Il Speclfic

Yigld/ Interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet instruments is based on the earlier of confractual re-pricing or
malurity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on settlement date. This also refers to the non-trading market risk.
Apart from the gap analysis betwesn the market rale sensilive assets and lisbiliies as per the table given below, the
banks/DFls are required to disclose as lhe following also:

- The nature of IRRBB and key assumptiens, including assumptions regarding loan repayments and behavior of non-
maturity deposits, and frequency of IRRBB measurements.

- The increase {decline) in sarnings or economic value (or any other relevant measures used by management) for upward
and downward shocks accerding to management's method for measuring IRRBB, broken down by currencies (if any, and
than translated inlo Rupees).

2019 2018
Banking Banking

haok Trading book hook Trading book
wnnsssmmnnevanees RUPEES i1 000 woomnorinnrinnnnne

Impact of 1% change in interest rates on
- Profit and loss account 301,595 534,770 (487,440) 401,571
- Other comprehensive income 248,246 - 113,353 -

(e
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44.5 Operational risk

The Bank currenlly uses Basic Indicator Approach to Operational Risk for regulatory capital calculations.
We define operational risk as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, pecple
and system or from external events. With the evolution of Operational Risk Management into a separate
distinct discipline, the Bank's strategy is to further strengthen its risk management system along new
industry standards. Accordingly the Bank has set up a separate Operational Risk Management (ORM)
Unit. ORM Unit resides within Risk Management Group (RMG). its responsibility is to implement
Operational Risk management framework across the bank for effective measurement and monitoring of
operational risk faced by different areas of the Bank.

Bank's operational risk management process involves a structured and uniform approach across the Bank.
It includes risk identification and assessments, the monitoring of Key Risk Indicators {KRIs) and Risk &
Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) activities for key operational risks. In order to build a robust operationat
risk monitoring mechanism, an Operational Risk Management Commitiee (ORMC) has been constituted to
effectively address operational rigk issues.

The bank has implemented a comprehensive “Operational Risk Management Policy” which has also been
approved by the Board of Directors. The purpose of bank-wide Operational Risk Management Policy is
aimed at laying out clearly defined roles and responsibilities of individuals / units across different functions
of the Bank that are involved in performing various operational risk management tasks. Operational risk is
much more pervasive in a financial institution and every operating unit is exposed to operational risk,
regardiess of whether it is a business or a support function. This policy has been devised to explain the
various building blocks of the operational risk management functions and their inter-relationships. The
policy also captures both qualitative and quantitative guidelines for managing and quantifying operational
risks across the Bank.

The ORM Unit conducts operational risk assessment for all major functions of the Bank and assists
various functions of the Bank in developing RCSA and KR!s which are monifored against predefined
thresholds. Findings from KRIs are used as predictive indicators of potential cperational risks.

Operation risk incidents and loss data collection is governed by Bank’s Operational Risk Policy and
process documents which have been developed and implemented to collate operational [osses and near
misses in a systematic and organized way.

The Bank's Business Continuity (BCP) Policy includes risk management strategies to mitigate inherent
risks and prevent interruption of mission critical services caused by disaster events. The resilience of BCP
is tested and rehearsed on an annual basis by the Bank.

45, DERIVATIVE RISK

The policy guidelines for taking derivative exposures are approved by the Board of Directors (BOD). Bank's
Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for reviewing and managing associated risks of the
transactions,

The nature, scope and purpose of derivatives business, for trading purposes or hedging purpose and the
types of derivative in which they deal.

The overall responsibility for offering derivative products and sustaining profitabiiity lies with the Treasurer
and in his absence with his delegate. The Market Risk Unit / Treasury Middle Office of the Bank
responsible for measurement & monitoring of the market risk exposures, analysis of present and potential
risk factors,

|1 2
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The Market Risk Unit also monitors associated Credit, Markst and Ligquidity Risk in line with Board of
Directors approved limit framework. The unit coordinates with the business regarding approvals for
derivatives risk limits and produces various reports / analysis for ALCO / BRMC on periodic basis, These
reports provide details of outstanding un-hedged positions, profitability and status of compliance with limits,

Treasury Operations records derivatives acfivity in the Bank’s books and is responsible for reporting to the
sBP.

The derivative transaction such as Cross Currency Swaps carries credit risk which is the risk that a party to
a derivative contract will fail to perform its obligation. There are two types of credit risk associated with
derivative transactions; 1) settlement, and 2) pre-settlement risk. Bank's Central Credit Commitiee is
responsible for reviewing and managing associated Counterparty Credit Risks of the transaction.

The Bank has also entered inte Foreign Currency & Commodity Options from its Wholesale Banking
Branch Bahrain for market making activities. The Bank can hedge its risk by taking on & off-balance sheet
position in interbank market, where available.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION AND FAIR TREATMENT

The Bank is committed to providing its customers with the highest level of service quality and satisfaction
and have therefore set-up an independent service management function that oversees service quality,
phone banking, problem resoclution and the fair treatment of customers.

The average time taken to resclve thess complaints was 5 days. Its complaint handling policy and
grievance redressal mechanism ensures that complaints are resolved in a timely manner and recurrence of
complaints is prevented where possible. Customers have the option of ragistering their complaints at its
branches, phone banking center, the Bank's website and via email. Compiaint management process is
kept as ftransparent as possible through registration, acknowledgement, interim response where
applicable, resolution and root cause analysis of recurring complaints, Customers are aiso given the option
of contacting the Banking Mohtasib office in case they are dissatisfied with the response received from the
Bank.

To create enhanced visibility of the recourse mechanism available to its customers, the Bank has
incorporated awareness messages of its complaint handling function in several customer communications
such as account statements, ATM screens, letters and SMS messages. Complete grievance redressal
mechanism, contact channels and online feedback forms have been made available through the Bank
website, and email broadcasts have been sent fo the customers for customer education and awareness.

Fair Treatment of Customers is an integral part of our corporate culture. The Bank has institutionalized a
‘Consumer Protection Framework'. its priority is to keep customer benefits in mind while designing, selling
and managing products and services, without any discrimination. It has focus to maintain fairness in its
customer dealings, clarity in communication, develop a service culture and design an effective grievance
handling mechanism. The Bank has also focus on financial literacy of its customers, for promoting
responsible conduct and informed financial decisions by consumers, through our consumer education and
Financial Literacy Program.

GENERAL
47.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the revised
format for financial statements of Banks issued by the SBP through BPRD Circular no. 2 dated

January 25, 2018 and related clarifications / modifications.

47.2 The figures in the unconsolidated financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand.,
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48. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR [SSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements wers authorised for issue b

Y the Board of Directors of the Bank
in their meeting held on February 27, 2020, zen
President and Chief Financial Director Director Chairman
Chief Executive Officer Officer :
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For the year ended December 31, 2012

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to
present the Annual Report on the audited consolidated
financial statemants of JS Bank Limited {tha 'Bank) and
its subsidiaries and the auditors’ report thereon for the
year ended December 31, 2019,

Consolidated financial highlights

{PFKR Million)

{Loss) f Profit before taxation {86 1,071
Taxation 171 432
{Loss) f Profit after taxation {257} £39
{Loss) / Profit attefbutable to

non-conatrelling interest 11 (24)
(Loss} / Profit attributable to equity

halders of the Bank {345] G15
{Lass} / Earnings per share - Basic (fupaes) {0.21] 0.34
Investmenls -~ net 143,125 149,601
Total assets 473,213 460,541
Deposits 368,544 319,807
Shareholders' equlty $9,431 18,439

Pattain of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at December 31, 2019 is
included in the Annual Report,

Subsidiary Companles

18 Giobal Capital Lhmited

S Global Capital Limited is one of the largest securities
brokerage and investment banking firms in Pakistan
with a leadership position in the domestic capital
markets. It is in the business of equity, fixed Income,
currencles and commodities brokerage andinvestment
banking. It was incorporated in Pakistan on June 28,

RT

N CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

2000 and is the successor to the securities business of
Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. and Bear Stearns Jahangir
Siddiqui Limited. IS Bank has 83.5% ownership In the
company.

JS Global has a pald-up capital of PKR 305.570 milllion
and shareholder equity of PKR 2,224 million as at
December 31, 2019. It is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.

PACRA has assigned long-term and short-terrn entity
ratings to JS Global of “AA" {Double A) and "A1+" (A One
plus}, respectively. The ratings denote a very low
expectation of credit risk emanating from very strong
capacity for timely payment of financial commitments,

Summarized results of the company are set out below:

PKR Mllilon

Profit Before Tax 107 9%
Prafit After Tax 47 26
EP5 (Rupeas) 1.3 0.67

}5 lnvestments Limitad

JS Investments has a paid-up capital of PKR 617,742
million and shareholder equity of PXR 1,815 million as
on December 31,2019, Itis listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. JS Bank has 84,5% ownership In the
company,

The Company Is a licensed [nvastment Adviser and
Asset Management Company under the Non-Banking
Finance Companiles {Establishment and Regulation)
Rules, 2003 {the NBFC Rules} and the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 (the NBFC Regulatlons). In addition, the Company
is 2lso a licensed Penslon Fund Manager under the
Voluntary Pensicn System Rules 2005, Recently, JSIL
also acquired the Private Equity and Venture Capital

e
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Fund Management Services license{s) from the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,

Summarized results of the Company are set out below;

PKR Million

Profit Bafore Tax {59) 57
Profit After Tax e 42
£PS {Rupeas) (1.17] 0.52

J5 ABAMCO Commodities Limited {Sub-Subsidiary)

The Company has not commenced commerclal
operations with source of income being realized from
short term  investment in Collective Investment
Schemes [CI5) and saving account interest,

Summarized results of the company are set out below:

PKR Million

Prafit Before Tax 51 3.2
Prafit After Tax 4.2 2.7
EPS {Rupees) 1.13 0.71

For and on behalf of the Board,

Basir Shamsie Kalim-ur-Rahman
President & CEO Chairman

February 27, 2020

;’;/;;JS BANK I Annual Report 2019
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Chartered Accountants Tel: +9221 3565 0007-11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of JS Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of JS Bank Limited (the Bank) and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consclidated cash flows
statement for the year then ended, notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consclidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the vear then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, :

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described . in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities [n accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jJudgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addiessed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and In forming our epinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

’;‘t!a»
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Following are the Key audit matters:

" 1. Provision against non-performing credit exposure (note 9.4)

credit portfolio is spread across various domestic
branches and overseas operation. -

As per the Group's accounting policy, the Group
determines provisions against non-performing
financing exposures in accordance with the
requirements of Prudential Regulations of State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in respect of potential
credit losses in the portfolio. The Prudential | -
Regulations require specific provisioning against
Ioan losses on the basls of an age based criteria
which should be supplemented by a subjective
evaluation of Group's- credit portfolio. The
determination of loan loss provision against certain
vulnerable corporate financing, therefore, involve
use of management judgment, on a case to case
basis, taking into account factors such as the |-
economic and business conditions, borrowers
repayment behaviors and realisabifity of collateral
held by the Group.

In view of the significance of this area in terms of
its impact on the consolidated financial statements
and the level of involvement of management's
judgment, we identified adequacy and
completeness of loan loss provision as a significant
area of audit judgment and a key audit matter.

The Group's credit portfolios include loans and | We applied a range of audit procedures including
advances, and non-funded credit facilities. The | the following:

We tested Group’s compliance of Prudential
Reguiations relating to the identification and
classification of non-performing loans into
various categories including an anaiysis of
downgrading of the classified loans and
declassification from non-performing to regular;

We re-computed on test basis, the provision
calculated by the Group, to check compliance
with the Prudential Regulations. We also
reviewed, on a sample hasis, the underlying
Independent vaiuations of the coltaterals used
against the outstanding exposures to calculate
the amount of provision;

We also tested internal controls over the
approval, recording and monitoring of loans and
advances. In addition, we selected a
representative sample of borrowers from the
financing portfolios and other loans kept by the
Group in the watch list category and performed
credit assessments. Qur procedures includes
review of credit documentation, repayment
trends and ageing reports, borrowers financial
statements to assess s financial condition,
collateral held by the Group and litlgation status,
if any; and

We also reviewed the adeguacy of disclosures
made in the accompanying consolidated
financlal statements regarding non-performing
loans and provisions in terms of the
requirements of Prudential Regulation and
applicable reporting framework,

A menbee hrmof Ernst & Young Global Limited
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2. Impairment testing of goodwm aﬂocated toa cash generaﬂng unit (hofé 11 '7)

As of the balance sheet date, the intangible assets
of the Group includes Goodwill of Rs. 1,463.62
million, which is required to be tested for
impairment in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard. Goodwill impairment testing
of cash generating units ('CGUs") relies on
estimates of value-in-use based on estimated
future cash flows which involve used of various
assumptions taking into account the factors such
as economic and business conditions of the
industry and environment in which entity operates.
Due to the involvement of key estimates and
judgments in evaluating the recoverable amount of
this intangible, we have considered the same as a
key audit matter.

We applied a range of audit procedures to address
the risk as identified above including the following:

- We assessed the reasonableness of cash flow
projections and compared key inputs, such as
discount rates and growth rates, to externally
available industry, economic and financial data
and the Group's own historical data and
performance;

- We evaluated the assumptions, on which the
valuation is based, are realistic and consistent
with:

- the general economic environment, the
economic environment of the specific
industry, existing market information and the
entity's economic circumstances; and

- assumptions made in prior periods the risks
associated with cash flows, including the
potential variability in the amount and timing
of the cash flows and the related effect on the
discount rate.

- We also assessed whether the consolidated

financial statements disclosures of application of
judgement in estimating CGU cash flows and the
sensitivity of the results of those estimates
adequately reflects the risk associated with
goodwill impairment; and

- We used our own valuation specialists to test the

assumptions used in valuation.,

A member firen of Ernst & Young Glabal Limited
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3. Adoption of IFRS 16 "Leases"” (note 4.1.1)
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (the standard) has become | We applied a range of audit procedures including
effective for the current financial year as per the | the following:

SECP natification S.R.0. 434 (1)/2018 dated 09
April 2018 read with SBP's directive BPRD Circular | - We evaluated the appropriateness of the new
Letter No. 08 of 2019 dated 30 April 2019, accounting policies for recognition of lease
contracts and their measurement in the
The standard has introduced a new accounting unconsolidated financial statements

model for operating lease contracts from the
standpoint of a lessee. As per the new |- We obtained an understanding of the process
requirements, the Group is required to recognize and controls in place for identification of In-
right of use assets for leased assets and liabilities scope and material lease contracts and capturing
for the lease payments over the lease term. of relevant data regarding the terms and
condition of the lease contracts in lease
The impacts of the adoption of the standard on the database;

consolidated financial statements of the Group are
disclosed in note 4.1.1 to the consolidated financial | - We corroborated the completeness of lease
statements. database by comparing the previously identified
operating lease contracts and the |ease/rent
The application of the new standard requires expenses with the contracts appearing in the
management to make significant estimates and lease database;

judgements such as in related to determination of
lease term and appropriate discount rate for |- We also considered the use of automated
measurement of lease liability. solutions for the lease accounting and IT controls
in place for such application;

We considered the adoption of the standard as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the [ - We performed independent checks of lease
accounting change and the involvement of accounting computations for a sample of lease
significant management judgements in respect of contracts through reperformance of such
the application of the new standard. computations;

- We evaluated the appropriateness of the
assumptions used by the management in
measuring lease liabilities such as discount rate
and lease term; and

- We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made
regarding the application of the standard and its
impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year.

Information Other than the Consolidated and Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’
Reports Thereon

Management Is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not Include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsiblilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal contral,

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern. &

Aorizgenber lirm of Ernsl & Yeoung Global Limited
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e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Shaikh Ahmed
Salman.

ET(“** VLJ——-L

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 05 March 2020

A member firm of Ernst & Young Glabal Limited
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JS BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANGCIAL POSITION
A8 AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
----- US Dollars in '000 v
165,280 207,373
3,076 6,318
185,808 12,611
924,203 966,119
1,671,127 || 1,629,306
69,081 44,868
14,889 14,250
813 2,641
109,269 50,684

2,416 .
3,065,902 2,974,158
| 24,569 52,733
351,764 623,572
2,380,041 || 2,085,301
43,401 48,414
| 125418 95,062
i 2,930,183 2,855,081
125,909 119,077
65,350 65,350
11,299 11,057
: 8,450 (6,312)
L 37,428 37,622
122,527 108,717
. 3,202 10,360
125,809 119,077

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks

Balances with other banks
Lendings to financlal institutions
Investments

Advances

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assefs

Assets held for sale

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assels subject
to finance lease

Subordinated debt.

Deferred tax liabiities

Other ligbiiltiss

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY
Share capital - net
Reserves

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation
of assets

Unappropriated profit

Non-cantrolling interest

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

© W~

10

12
13
10.3

14
15

17

18

12

20

21

2019 2018
=== Rupees In ‘000 ...
26,690,173 | 32111176
478,302 978,024
30,320,640 1,937 347
143,124,823 || 149,601 215
243,285,308 || 252,308,417
10,693,945 6,947,725
2,302,474 2,206,512
126,367 408,092
16,919,996 | 14,042,139
374,000 ;
473,213,218 460,541 247
3,804,491 3.510.924
54,488,283 || 96558663
368,543,603 || 319,806,852
7,494,800 7,496,300
19,420,728 | 14,720,189
453,731,908 442,102,428 |
19,481,312 18,435,670
10,119,242 10,119,242
1,748,672 1,712,470 -
1,208,531 (822,532)
5,795,598 5,825,742 |
18,973,040 16,834,622
508,271 1,604,197 '
15,481,312 18,438.810"
s,

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 and annexure t & annexure I} form an Integral part of these consolidated financlal statsments.

President and

Chief Flnancial
Chief Exacutive Officer

Director Director Chairman
Officer
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J8 BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACGOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
===« US Dollars In ‘000 --vs NOte  weemmees Rupses n '000 =axe---r
"289.243 194,184  Mark-up / relurn / Interast earned 23 41,684,687 30,068,981
222,781 136,315 Mark-up / return / intarest expansed 24 34,497,048 _ 21,107,874
46,462 57,869 Net mark-up / nterest Income 7,194,639 8,961,007
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
22,038 21,434 | Fee, commission and brokerage incoma 28 3,412,160 3,318,986
1,281 1,280 | Dividend Income 198,432 195,185
8,220 4,334 | Forelgn exchange income §63,2080 671,061
305 395 | Income from derivatives 47,210 61,142
(4,301) (8,648)] Loss on securities 26 (665,997)]| (1,339,160
27 43 | Share of profit from associate 4,180 6,674
3,282 1,012 [ Other Income 27 505,189 156,832
28,830 19,830  Tota! non mark-up / Interest incoms 4,464,382 3,070,518
75,202 77,899 Total Incoma 11,658,921 12,031,528
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
76,956 70,707 | Operating expsnses 28 11,761,773 |[ 10,948,842
{4286) (1.049)| Workers' Welfare Fund 29 {85,991) (162,429)
889 105 ] Other charges 30 137,643 16,203
78,419 _ 69,763 Total non-mark-up ! interost aXpansas 11,833,428 10,802 616
(1,127) 7,938 (Loss)/ profit before provisions (174,504) ~ 1,228910
{573) 1,022 (Reversal) / provisions and write offs - net Y| {68,703) 158,298
- - Extraordinary / unusual items - -
(654) 6,814 (LOSS)/ PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION {85,001y 1,070,812
1,103 2,787  Taxation 32 170,807 431,577
{1,667} 4,127  {LOSS)/PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 266.,608) 839035
Attributable to:
{1,684) 3,973  Eqully holders of the Bank {245,285) 615,152
{73) 164 Non-controliing interest {11,323) 23 883
(1657) 4,127 ——[266.600) 530,035
seeeeee- U8 Dollat eeveesene RUpee «===rvim-o-
{0.001} 0.002  Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings pershare 33 {0.21) 0.34
The annexed notes from 1 to 48 and annexure | & annexure I form an Integral part of these consolidated financial statemants,
Preslﬁent and Chiof Financial Director Director Chairman
Chilef Executive Officor Officer
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J8 BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2018

----- US Dollars In '000 -----

(1,857) 4,127
210 aro
14,286 {15,596)
(378) 378
10,908 (15,218)
11,118 (12,638)
(72) 114
2,325 3,829
- (13)
205 8
7,458 3,038
1518 G773
12,648 (8,337)

{729
1,919

w7

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

{Loss}/ prafit after tax for the year
Other comprehensive income / {loss)

Items that may be reclassified to profit
and [oss account in subsequent periods:
Effect of transtation of net Investment
in forsign branches

Movement in surplus / (deflcit) on revaiuation
of investments - net of tax

Movement In genaral provision under IFRS © - net

Items that wii! not be reclassified to
profit and loss account In subsecuent perlods:

Remeasurement (loss)  gain on defined
bensfit obligations - net of tax

Movement in surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets - nat of tax

Movement in surplus on revaluation of
non-banking assets - net of tax

Share of other comprehensive
galn of an assoclate - net of tax

Total comprehensive Ihcome i {loss)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-centrolling interest

2019

2018

------- Rupegs [1 '000 -r.-----

(268,608) 639,035
32,671 58,715
1,747,831 1| (2.415,018)
{68,510} 68,510
1,888,121  (2,356,508)
1,721,692 (2,297,703)
(11,160) 17,690
358,994 592,043
- (2,086)
31,797 1,216
380,631 609,663

1,845,718 {1,049,005}

1,968,664

(881,418)

(112,9849) (67,677)
1,846,115 (1,049,095)

e

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 and annexure | & annexure Ii form an Integral part of these consolidated financlal statements,

President and

Chisf Executive Officer

Chlef Finanglal
Officer

Director

Director

Chalrman




Ja BANK LMITED
CONBGLIDATED 3TATEMENT OF CHAHORS IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EHCRD BECHMBER M, 2019

buta Iders of the Ba
Retyrvay Surplye ! [[allcit} on newatuation ¢f
Men Unappio- Hen.
Shar Prefsrmncs sulum-u Bxchange banking prialad eontrelling
capital sharg peerve®  tranwalion Investmante  Ficedassels  ssasls profit Sub-1olsf Intarea Total
Rupss In 600
Hulunoes ss uk Ducamber M, 2047 8410242 1500000 1,528,788 2210 100,258 589,839 85050 5453357 1TER02M 1,560,880 19,667,014

N N I A P PP P R i (Y W

6715 {2304.048) 502 442 (2,084} 631,058 [CLaa] ] [G'.",&?i".l [1.0“.0’93}

Transfar o slatulery revarve . . 2488 - . . . {112.488) . . -
S1¢ Irom aurplas on o
assete 10 unagpropriated profit- nat of ian
Flxed useals - - . . . (23,983} . T8 (3,154) LRI -
Non-binking avsats scquined
i ailatacBon of glaimy - - - - - . {108 108 . - -
Tranasaciton with ownare
recerded direelly In aquiy
Issuanca of ondinary share en convertien of
Preferencs sharss during the perod 2,250,000 - ., . - - - « |l zeseoe - 2,250,000
Discounl on lasue of ordinary sharet
" during the parded 50,60 . - . - - - B -
.. 1,500,000 B B . . M - . 1,500,000 . 3,800,900
Bretetance shaves canceted on convaralon iato
ordinary shares g the period . 1,608,000 - - - - . . 1,500,000 . (1,500,000
Preteranca dividend pald for the yaur
*nded Decombar 31, 2017 @ 12% p.a, . . . . - . . (180.000) (180,000 . (§80,000)
Blllnct ax ut Cacambar 34, 2018 10,410,242 - 1.641,238 TO0M 2,074,180 168,704 LY R T N T Y Y T 1B04,197 13436818
Loan aher taxgtion ‘ . '“ . " . " . [ lm.‘llﬂ
OLher comprehenyve lcoms / (losa) nelo{lu = . -
- . . LN R INTTY ﬂl,ll'.f {288, lll'} .m Olﬂ [t‘l 3! L1} 1.!4! T
Teanwfor to slatuledy reserve - . 43 . . . - {5.493) . - -
[ T
Yranefer from surpius on eayahustion of
Levets Lo unapproplated profit « el of tax
Fied apsots . . . . - 18.721) . a3 . . .
Noa-banking a3 16l acquinsd
" “In natistaction of Zalma . . . . . - v} 2 . - .
Trannacton whh owners
reaardsd direily In iquity
Intertn cash dividend to nocrcontroting lotere 5l
- hr SubsiSery company ff R, 4 par sharg . . - - - - * . - {0,588} [H,182)
Pmmm Svkiand pald for the year
i ended Decembir 31, 2018 @ 12% p.o. . - . . . . . (24,104} (24,104} . (24,194)
Bury-back of shards by autskfary from NG - . . . . . . . . {1,001,853) (1,001,683}
'Gah aeixed on by bikck of shanes by subsidiary - - - 2134513 29y 41,24 20,747
Balancs an a$ Decambar 31, 3014 N CKIL%LE m 1CR406 :m m TR T 7T X 5 Y S e M‘* 32
i s T
Ca This rapresends vanrve Croaled under Section 2i{@ie) of w Barking Companiss Ordinance, 1962,
m-mﬁmnmtw«md 14 ) Htorm ap integral padt of thaen Wdslod fnancial e
: Frasldend and ChisI Finarclul CiMear Diretlor Director Churman
Chief Exngiilve Offlesr
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JS BANK LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2049

2049 2018 2019 2018
— US Dollars In 000 -- Note  -ew- Rupees in '000 wm-e--
CABH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(654} 8,814 ({Loss}/ profit before axation : {85,801) 1,070,612
{1,281} {1,280} Less: Dividend Income (198,432) (155,185)
{27} {43) Shure of profit from assoclats [4,180) (6,674)
{1,862) 6,811 {285,413) 868,753
AdJustments:
5,529 4,829 | Depreclation 10.2 856,131 747,791
11 4 | Dapreclation on non-banking assets 13.21 1,713 673
6,384 - Bepreclation - Right of Use Assels 4.1 0a5,408 .
833 482 | Amortlsation of Intangibie asssts 11.2 07,9688 74,5680
(575) 1,022 | {Revarsals) / provisions / write offs - net i (89,018} 168,208
(3,188) {785)| Galn on sate of fixed assets - net 27 {493,680) (121,599)
Mark-up / return / Interast axpensed on lease llabliity
3.750 87 against right-of-use assels 4.4 580,810 10,441
870 837 | Charge for definad benefit plan : 385 134,112 129,556
Unrealised (gain) / loss on ravaluation of investments
{54} 380 | classified as held-for-trading - net (8,388) 56,773
{428) (1,048)| Reversals for Workere Walfare Fund 26 {66,994} (182,429)
{136) (47} Unsealisad galn on revaluation of derivative instruments {21,928) {7,315}
{428} {1,369 Unrealised gain on revaluation of forward forelgn exchange contracts [68,985) (211,933
12,352 4,361 1,912,494 6873.816
10,450 9,862 1,624,031 1,542,569
{Incraaze) / decrease In operating assots ;
(183,278) 7,585 | Lendings to financlal Institutlons {28,380,143) 1,174,640
{8B.218)1 (217,285} Held-for-trading securities (13,659.848)]| (33,842,507}
66,983 {442,703} Advances 8,665,632 (60,663,924)
(20,243} (18,169} Other assets (excluding advancs taxallon) {3,134,508)| {2,602,254)
{238,773)  (e6B.822) (28,608,918)  (103,524,545)
_ Increase / (decraase) In operating ifabilities )
1,836 (1,988} Bills payabls 284,507 (304,354)
(272802)|{ 204,711 | Borrowings (42,225,743 31,698,087
14,740 203,050 | Deposlts and other accounts 48,736,754 31,441,838
2,950 18,861 | Other lizbliittes 455,756 2,589,853
FELET 424 456 7:252,361 65,728,084 -
{188,937}  (244,188) {29,256,564) [37,608,481)
{682) {1,131) Gratully pald 36.5 {102,484) (175,118).
2 880 7,626} Income tax paid {445,904} {1,227 666}
{161,080) {243,263) Met cash fiows usadin operating activitles

{28,480,871) {37,668,668)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
86,662 338,001 | tat Investment In avallabla-for-sale socurtias

13,403,936 §2,493,495
63,658 (8.514)] Net Invastment in held-lo-maturily eacudllas 9,857,050 (1,318,447}
{131 {1,162)| Investmant In asscciated company (21,239) {180,000}
1,281 1,248 | Dividend Income recoived 198,432 193,320
(8,929} (8,077} Investments In fixad assets {1,382,668) (1,250,708}
{1,273) (2,610); Invesimants In Intangitle assets {187,157} {404,185)
210 379 | Effect of ransiailon of nat investment In farelgn branches 32,671 58,715
8,731 | 1,131 | Procerds from sale of Tixed assets 1,361,903 176,167
150,11 321,388  Net cash flows from investing astivities

23,242,328 48,767,359 -
CABH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{156} (1,182} Dividend pald on preference shares

(180,000}
(13} 18,132 | (Paymenis) / receipts of subordinated dabt 2,498,000
9,137} (88)| Payment of leass liability against right of uss assets 4.1 (13,576}
{246} - Dividand pald to non controlling Interest -
{4,785)] Shares bought back trom non-centroliing interest

(14,337} 14,882  Net cash flows used In financing activitias
{48,225} 83,015 Increasa In cash and cash squivalents

210,451 117,438 Cash and ¢ash equivalenis at baginaing of the yoar
184,238~ 710461 Cash and cash equivatents at end of the yeur

{2,220,104) 2,304,424

(TAB8,147) 14,403,087

42,687,698 18,184,611
34 26420881 32507600

. 5-«.'\
The annexed notes from 1 to 48 and annaxure | & annexure Il form an Intagral part of these consofidated financial statements.
Prasldant and GChiaf Financial Otficer Diractor Dlrector Chairman
Chiaf Exacutive Officer




JS& BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

1. STATUS AND NATURE QF BUSINESS
1.1 The "Group” consists of;
1.1.1  Holding Company: JS Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited (the Bank / JSBL) is a banking company incorporated in Pakistan as a public iimited
company on March 15, 2006, The Bank is a subsidiary company of Jahangir Siddigui & Co. Ltd. (JSCL) and
its shares are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). The Bank commenced its banking
operations on December 30, 2006 and its registered office is situated at Shaheen Commercial Complex, Dr.
Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

The Bank is a scheduled bank, engaged in commercial banking and related services as described in the
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and is operating through 359 (December 31, 2018: 344) branches /
sub-branches in Pakistan and one wholesale banking branch in Bahrain (December 31, 2018: one). The
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA} has assigned the long-term entity rating of the Bank to AA-
(Double A Minus) whereas short-term rating is maintained at 'A1+' (A One Plus), which is the highest
possible short-term rating. The ratings dencte a very low expectation of credit risk and indicate very strong
capacity for timely payment of financial commitmenits.

1.1.2  Jahangir Siddigui Investment Bank Limited, JSIBL, (formerly Citicorp Investment Bank Limited which was
acquired by JSCL on February 01, 1999), and its holding company, JSCL, entered into a Framework
Agreement with American Express Bank Limited, New York (AMEX)} on November 10, 2005 for acquisition
of its American Express Bank Limited - Pakistan Branches, (AEBL). Consequently, a new banking
company, JSBL was incorporated on March 15, 2006 and a resfricted Banking License was issued by the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) on May 23, 2006.

A Transfer Agreement was executed on June 24, 2006 between JSIBL and JSBL for the transfer of entire
business and undertaking of JSIBL to JSBL and a separate Transfer Agreement was alsc executed on June
24, 2008, between AMEX and JSBL for the transfer of AEBL's commercial banking business in Pakistan
with all assets and liabilities (other than certain excluded assets and liabilities) (AEBL business). The
shareholders of JSIBL and JSBL in their respective extra ordinary general meetings held on July 31, 2006
approved a Scheme of Amalgamation (the Scheme) under Section 48 of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962. The Scheme was initially approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan vide its letter No. SC/NBFC(J)-R/JSIBL/2006/517 dated September 28, 2008. Subsequently, the
Scheme was sanctioned by the SBP vide its order dated Decambear 02, 2008 and, in accordance therewith,
the effective date of amalgamaticn was fixed at December 30, 20086,

The ultimate parent of the Group is Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. which holds 75.02% shares of the Bank.

1.1.3 Composltion of the Group

Ownership interest and
voting powsr held by

2019 2013
The Group NCI The Group NCI

Subsidiary

JS Global Capital Limited 83.63% 16.47% 67.16% 32.84%
J§ Investment Limited 84.56% 15.44% 65.16% 34.84%
JS ABAMCO Commadities Limited 84.56% 15.44% 65.16% 34.84%

1.1.4 Composition of the Assoclated Companies

Associates

Omar Jibran Engineering Industries Limited 9.60% - 9.60% -
Veda Transit Solutions (Private) Limited 8.00% - - -
Intercity Touring Company (Private} Limited 9.12% - - -

bl



7 JS BANK LIMITED

Subsidiary Companies
JS Global Capital Limited (JSGCL)

J& Global Capital Limited is principally owned by the Bank, holding 83.53% of its equity interest. The Bank
acquired effective controlling interest in JSGCL on December 21, 2011, April 15, 2016 and October 03, 2019 of
51.05%, 16.11% and 16.37% respectively. The ownership interest has increased by 32.42%, without any change
in the cost of investment, due to the fact that JSGCL has bought back its 15,443,000 ordinary shares out of its 50
million ordinary. JSGCL is a public listed company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984. The shares of the JSGCL are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). Further, the JSGCL is
a corporate member of PSX and member of Paklstan Mercantile Exchange. The principal business of the JSGCL
is to carry out share brokerage, money market, forex and commodity brokerage, advisory and consultancy
services, Other activities include investment In a mix of listed and unlisted equity and debt securities and reverse
repurchase transactions. The registered office of the Company is situated at 17th Floor, The Centre, Plot No. 28,
5B-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi, Pakistan. The Company has fen branches (2018: eleven) in sight
cities of Pakistan,

JS Investments Limited (JSIL)

J§ Investments Limited is principally ownad by the Bank, holding 84.56% of its equily interest. The Bank acquired
effective controlling interest in JS Investments Limited (JSIL) on November 01, 2012, Decernber 22, 2015 and
August 31, 2018 of 52.24%,12.92% and 19.40% respectively. The ownership interest has increased by 32.32%
without any change in the cost of investment, due to the fact that JSIL has bought back its 38,225,744 ordinary
shares out of its 100 million ordinary shares. JSIL is a public listed company incorporated in Pakistan on February
22, 1995 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1884, The shares of the JSIL are lsted on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX}, formerly since April 24, 2007, The registered office of the Company is situated at The Cenire,
19th Floor, Plot No. 28, 3B-5, Ahdullah Harcon Road, Saddar, Karachl.

The JSIL has obtained the license of an “Investment Advisor” and “Asset Management Company™ (AMC) under
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 {the NBFC Rules) and the Non:
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations). |n addition, JSIL
has also obtained registration o act as Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005,

JSIL Is an asset management company of the following funds:

Open end funds! Private Equity & Venture Capital fund:
- J5 Value Fund - J8 Motion Picture Fund

- J3 Growth Fund

- Unit Trust of Pakistan Penslon funds:

- JS Income Fund - JS Pension Savings Fund

- JS Islamic Fund - J3 Islamic Pension Savings Fund

- J3 Fund of Funds

- JSIslamic Income Fund

- JS Cash Fund

- JS Large Cap. Fund

- JS Islamic Hybrid Fund of Funds{JSIHFOF)

- JS Islamle Hybrid Fund of Funds -2 (JSIHFOF2)
- JS Islamic Mybrid Fund of Funds -3 (JSIHFOF3)
- JS Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund

These funds have baen treated as related parties in these consolidated financial statements.
J5 ABAMCO CommodItles Limited (JSACL)

J8 Bank owns J3 ABAMCO Commodities Limited indirectly through its subsidiary JS Investment Limited (JSIL)
which has 100% holding in JSACL. JSACL was incorporated on September 25, 2007 as a public unlisted
company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1384 and is a wholly owned subsidiary company of JSIL (a
subsidiary of Holding Company). The principal activities of JSACL are to deal and effectuate commodity contracts;
to become member of commadity exchange including National Commodity Exchange Limited (NCEL) and to carry
on the business as brokers, advisory and consultancy services, dealers and represeniative of all kinds of
commodity contracts and commodity backed securities. The registered office of JSACL is situated at The Centre,
19th Fleor, Plot No. 28, $B-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi.

1My
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2.2

8 J5 BANK LIMITED

Associated Companles

Omar Jibran Engineering Industries Limited {OJEIL)

The Bank has invested in the shares of Omar Jibran Engineering Industries Limlted (QJEIL), a public unlisted
company. The Bank has classified the Investment as an associate on account of its significant influence over the
investee company. OJEIL was incorporated on June 25, 1987 in Pakistan as an unquoted public limited company
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the OJEIL is situated at DSU-19,
Pakistan Steel Industries Estate Bin Qasim, Karachi. The QJEIL is mainly engaged in the manufacture and sale of
autometive parts and armoring of vehicles.

Veda Transit Solutions (Private) Limited

The Bank has invested in the shares of VEDA Transit Sclutions (Private) Limited (VEDA), a private limited
company. The Bank has classified the investment as an associate on account of its significant influence over the
investee company. VEDA was incorporated on June 10, 2018 in Pakistan as private limited company under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1884. The registered office of the VEDA is situated at Raazig Logistics Centre 18
KM, Multan Road, Near Dina Nath Stop, Lahore. The VEDA is mainly engaged in the rural / urban, indracity /
intercity transportation of passenger and goods.

Intercity Touring Company (Private) Limited

The Bank has Invested in the shares of Intercity Touring Company (Private) Limited (ITC), a private limited
company. The Bank has classified the investment as an associate on account of its significant influence over the
investee company. ITC was incorporated on April 25, 2014 in Pakistan as private limited company under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the ITC is situated at 147-P Gulberg Ill, Lahore.
The ITC is mainly engaged in the transportation, touring, and logistics related services.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These consolidated financial statements include financial statements of JS Bank Limited and its subs|diary
companies, (the "Group"} and share of the profit / reserves of associates,

These consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistan Rupees{PKR), which Is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Holding Company operates and functional currency of the Holding
Company, in that environment as well. The amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as
stated otherwise, :

The US Dollar amounts shown on the statement of financlal position, profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income and cash flow statement are stated as additional information solely for the convenience of
readers and have not been subject to audit by the external auditors, For the purpose of conversion to US Dollars,

the rate of Rs. 154.8476 to 1 US Dollar has been used for 2019 and 2018 as it was the prevalent rate as on
December 31, 2019.

Statement of Compliancs

These consolidated financial statements have heen prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporiing
standards as applicable in Pakistan, These comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB} as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962;
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issued by the SBP and the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) from time to
time,

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017, or the
directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1982, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail,

| MY
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The SBP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 38, 'Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’ and International Accounting Standard {IAS) 40, ‘Investmant Property’ for hanking
companies vide BSD Circular Letter No. 10 dated August 28, 2002 till furlher instructions. Further, the SECP has
deferred the applicability of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, ‘Financial Instruments:
Cisclosures’ on banks vide its notification 8.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated April 28, 2008. Accordingly, the requirements
of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these unconsolidaied financial statements.
However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the
SBP through various ¢ircufars.

IFRS10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" was made applicable from perfod beglnning on or after January 01,
2015 vide S.R.O 633())/2014 dated July 10, 2014 by SECP. However, SECF has directed through
S.R.056(1Y2016 dated January28, 2018, that the requirement of consolidation under seclion 228 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and IFRS-10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" Is hot applicable in case of investmant by
companies in mutual funds established under trust structure, Accordingly, the requirements of these standards
have not been considered in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Through S.R.Q. 229 (1)/2019 dated February 14, 2019, the SECP has extended the applicability of the IFRS 9
'Financial Instruments' for all companies required to prepare their financial staternents in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS for reporting periodfyear ending on or after June 30, 2019 (eariier application is permitted).
However, SBP has further extended the effactive date of applicability of IFRS 9 from annual period beginning on
or after January 01, 2021 vide SBP BPRD Circular No. 4 dated October 23, 2019. Therefore, the Group has not
considered the impact of [FRS 9 for its Pakistan operations in these consolidated financial statements.

Further, the Bank considers that as the Prudential Regulatlons and other SBP directives currenfly provide the
accounting framework for the measurement and valualion of investments and provision against non performing
loans and advances, the implementation of IFRS 9 may require changes in the regulatory regime and for this SBP
would issue guidance and instruction on the application of IFRS 8 for the banking sector of Pakistan,

23 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
2.3.1 Subsidiary

- The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank (The Holding Company)
and its subsidiary companies together - "the Group".

- Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable retums from its investment with investee and has the ability to effect those return through its power
over the investee except investment in mutual funds established under trust structure where FRS 10

‘Consolidated Financial Statements' is not applicable in cage of investment by companies in mutual funds
established under Trust structure.

- These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of subsidiaries from the date
that control commences untii the date that control ceases.

- The financial statements of the subsidiary companies are prepared for the same reporting year as the
holding company for the purpose of consolidation, using consistent accounting policies.

- The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line by
fine basis.

Mon-contralling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of subsidiaries
aftributable to interest which are not owned by the helding company.

- Material intra-group batances and transactions are eliminated.
2.3.2 Associate

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but nof contrel, over the financial and
operating polices. Associales are accounted for using the equity method,

A
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2,33  Acquisition of business not under commen control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for using the acquisition methed. The
consideration transferred In a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculaied as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transfarred by the bank, liabilities incurred by the bank to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equlty interests issued by the bank in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit and loss account as Incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are racognised at thelr fair
value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill an acquisition after July 01, 2009 [s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the Identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and fiabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest In the acquiree (if
any}, the excess is recognised immediataly in profit or loss as a bargaini purchase gain,

Goodwill acquirad in a business combination before July 01, 2009 is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of business combination over the Bank's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liakilitles acauired.

Non-cantrolling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the Group's net assets in the event of liquidation is measured at proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree
at the date of the acquisition.

234 Acquisition of business under common control

Acquisition of business under common control are accounted for under ‘poocling of interest method'. The assels
and liabilities of the combining businesses for the period in which the combination occurs are merged on the date
of combination at their respective book values. Appropriate adjustments are made to the book values to reflect
appfication cansistent accounting policies in the combining businesses. Any difference between the amount of net
assets merged and consideration transferred in form of cash or other assets are adjusted agalnst equity.

Expenditure incurred in relation to the business combination are racognized as expenses in the pericd in which
thay are incurred,

2.4 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective In the current year

Following are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the
Bank's accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019:

Standard, Interpretation or Amendment

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty ovar income Tax Treatments

- IFRS 16 - Revenue from contracts with customers

- IFRS 16 - Leases

- Amendment to IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Long Term Interests in Associates
- Amendments to |IAS 19 - Employee Benefits - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to
following approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combirations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement
- 1AS 12 Income Taxes

- I1AS 23 Borrowing Costs { ‘f é
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The adoption of the above standards / amendments to accounting standards are not considered to be relevant or
did not have any significant effect on the Bank's operations and therefore not detailed in these consolidated
financial statements other than IFRS 9 and IFRS 16. The nature and effact of the changes as a result of adoption
of IFRS 18 is explained in Note 4.1 respactively.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not
yet affactive

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020;

Effectlve date (annual periods
Standard, Interpretation or Amendment beginning on or after)

IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business (Amendments) January 01, 2020

The |ASB has issued amendments aiming o resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it
has acquired & business or a group of assels. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an
acquired set of activilies and assets must include, at & minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create oulputs. The amendments include an election fo use a concentration
test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past
financial statements.

IAS 1 and IAS 8 — Definition of Material — Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 January 01, 2020

The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued
guidance on how to make materiality judgements when preparing their general purpose financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Standards.

IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ July 01, 2019

IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts' permits an entity which is a first-time adopter of International Financial
Reporting Standards to continue to account for, with some limited changes, for 'regufatory deferral account
balances' in accardance with its previous reporting framewark, both on initial adoption of IFRS and in subsequent
financial statements. Regulatory deferral account balances, and movements in them, are presented separately in
the statement of financial position and profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income, and
specific disciosures are required. IFRS 14 was originally issued by 1ASB in January 2014 with Initial application
date for a period beginning on or akter 01 January 2016. During November 2019, the SECP notified the effective
date for applicability of IFRS 14 for the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2019,

The above standards, amendments and Interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the
Group's financial statements in the period of Initial application

In addition to the above, the IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financlal Reporting {the
Conceptual Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020
for preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The
revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any
requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developng standards,
to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all
parties to understand and intaroret the standards.

Further, following new slandards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be nofified by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date (annual

Standard periods heginning on or after}
IFRS 1 — First time adoption of IFRSs January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021
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26 Critical accounting estimates and key sources of estimation uhcertainty

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with appraoved accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions in accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected,

The areas where varicus assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's financial statements or where
judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

i) Classification of investments

- In classifying investments as 'held-for-trading' the Group has determined securities which are acquired with
an intention to trade by taking advantage of shori-term market / interest rate movements and are 1 be sold
within 90 days of acquisition,

- In classifying investments as 'held-to-maturity' the Group follows the guidance provided in SBP circulars on
classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. In making
this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturily.

- Theinvestments which are not classified as 'held-for-trading’ or 'held-to-maturity’ are classified as ‘available-
for-sale’,

i} Provision against non performing leans and advances

The Holding Company reviews its loan portfolio to assess amount of non-performing loans and advances and
provision required there-against. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the
account, financial position of the borrowers, the value of securities and the requirements of the Prudential
Regulations are considered. For portfolic impairment / provision on consumer advances, the Bank follows
requirements set out in Prudential Regulaticns.

iil) Impairment on investments

The Group determines that investiments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decling in
the fair vaiue below its cost. This determination of what Is significant or prolonged requires judgment. in making
this judgment, the Bank evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in securities price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is an evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flows,

iv) Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Group, the management considers the current
income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues In the past. In making the provision for
deferred taxes, estimates of the Group's future taxable profits are taken into account.

v) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets
In making estimates of the depreciation / amortisation method, the management uses a method which reflects the
pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The method applied is reviewed at
each financial year end and if there is a change in the expected paltern of consumption of the future economic
kenefits embodied in the underlying assets, the method is changed to reflect the change in pattern. Such change
is accounted for as change in accounting estimates in accordance with International Accounting Standard - 8,
"Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".

vi) Defined benefits plans and other benefits

Liability is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
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vii) impairment of Goodwill

Impairment testing involves a number of judgmental areas which are subject to inherent significant uncertainty,
including the preparation of cash flow forecasts for the periods that are beyond the normal requiraments of
management reporting and the assessment of the discount rate appropriate to the business. The cafrying amount
of goodwiil at the balance sheet date was Rs.1,464 milion. The detailed assumptions underlying Impairment
testing of goodwill are given in note 11.7 to thess consolidated financial statements.

viii) Lease term

The Bank applies judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that
include renewal options. The assessment of whether the Bank is reascnably certain to exercise such options
impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assels

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

- Centain classes of fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims which are stated at
- revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation.

- Investments classified as held-for-trading and available-for-sale and derivative financial instruments, which
are measured at fair value.

- Net cbligations in respect of defined benefit schemes which are carried at their present vaiues.
4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

The principal accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those of previous financial year except as disclosed below in note 4.1,

4.1 Adoption of IFRS 16 - Leases

International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) has issued IFRS 16 'Leases’ in January 2016 which supersedeas
IAS 17 "Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease', SIC-16 '‘Operating Leases-
Incentives’ and SIC-27 'Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease'.

The new standard sets out the principies for:

- Lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model and governs recognition,
meagurement, presentation and disclosure of leases: and

- Lessor accounting which is substantially unchanged. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either
operaling or finance leases using similar principles as in 1AS 17,

Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where the Bank is a lessor.

The Group has lease contracts for various properties. Before the adoption of IFRS 16, the Bank classified each of
its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as an operating lease.

In an operating lease, the leased asset was not capitalised and the lease payments were recognised as rent
expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any prepaid rent and accrued rent were
recognised under other asset and other liabilities, respectively.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospsctive method of adoption with the date of initial
application as January 01, 2019. Under this method, the standard has been applied retrospectively, with the
cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised at the date of initial application. Accordingly,
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabllities were recognised in the current period.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the lessees are required to recognise a lease liability for the obligation to make lease
payments and a right-of-use {RoU) asset for the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term against a2
consideration. Under IAS 17, leased assels, under operating lease mode, were not recognised on Group's
balance sheets and it only required lessees to recognise a periodic lease expense (rent) cn a straight-line basis
over the term for leases tenure and relevant lease commitments were disclosed. ' L{ c}‘
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New accounting policies of the Group upon adoption of IFRS 16 are:

Right-of-use (RoU) assets

At the commencement date of the lease, the right-of-use asset is initially measured at the present value of lease
liability. Subsequently, RoU assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any premeasurement of lease liabilities. RoU assets are depreciated on a straight-iine
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease tarm.

Lease liabllity

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liability measured at the present value of the
consideration {lease payments} to be made over the lease term and is adjusted for lease prepayments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which
case the lessee may use the incremental rate of borrowing. After the commencement date, the carrying amount of
lease liablity s increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lsase payments made.

The effect of adoption of IFRS 18 as at January 01, 2019 (increase / (decrease)) is as follows:

January 01,
2019

Rupees in '000
Assals
Right-of-use (Rol) asset 5,068,076
Prepayments {320,934)
Total Assets 4,747,142
Liabilltles
Lease liability 4,781,777

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets, lease liabilities and the movements during the period is
as below:

Rs. in '000
Right-of-use assels,
As at January 1, 2019 5,068,076
Addition during the period 42,563
Deletion during the period {16,010}
Depreciation (985,497)
As at December 31, 2019 4,109,132
Lease liability
As al January 1, 2018 4,781,777
Addition /{deletion) during the period - net 24,333
Borrowing cost 580,688
Payments (1,128,440}
As at December 31, 2019 4,260,368

Had this standard not been applied, below impacts have not bean arised in thesa unconsolidated financial statemer

Dacembar 31,
2019
Rs. in "000

Impact on Statement of Financial Position as at:
increase in fixed assets - right-of-use assets 4,108,132
Decrease in other assets - advances, deposits,

advance rent and other prepayments (252,620)
increase in total assets 3,866,512

Increase in other liabilities - lease liability against
right-of-use assets / other payable 4,260,358

Dacrease in net assets {403,846)

1 $o
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BDecembaer 31,
2019
Rs. in "000
impact on Profit and Loss account durlng the year
Increase in mark-up expense - lease liability against right-of-use assets 580,688
{Increase) / decrease in administrative expenses '
- Depreciation on right-of-use assets 985,497
- Rent expense {(1,141,224)
__ (ss72n)
Decrease in profit before tax 424,961
Decrease in tax -
Decrease in profit after tax 424,961

When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Group discounted lease
payments using its incremental borrowing rate at January 01, 2019.

{Rs. In '000)

Operating lease commitments at January 01, 2019 as

disclosed under IAS 17 6,652,916

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at January 01, 2019 12.81%
Discounted operating lease cammilments as at January 01, 2018 4,221,881
Add:
Lease payments relating to renewal periods not included in operating lease

commitments as at December 31, 2018 573,235
Less:
Commitments relating to short tarm leages (13,339)
Lease liahilitias recognised at January 01, 2019 4,781,777

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and balances with treasury banks and balances with other banks net
of any overdrawn nostro accounts,

Lendings to / barrowings from financial institutions

The Group enters into transactions of lendings to / borrowings from financial institutions at contracted rates for a
specified period of time. These are recorded as under;

(a) Purchasge under resale ohligation

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo} are not included in statement of financial
pesition as the Bank does not obtain control over the securities. Amount paid under these agreements is
included in lendings to financial institutions or advances as appropriate. The difference between the
contracted price and resale price is amortisad over the period of the centract and recorded as income using
effective interest method.

(b} Other lendings

Other lendings include ferm lendings and unsecured lendings to financial institutions. These are stated net of
provision. Mark-up on such lendings is charged to profit and loss account on a time proportionate basis using
effective interest rate method except mark-up on impaired/delinquent lendings, which are recognized on
receipt basis in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations of the SBP.

{c} Sale under repurchase obligation
Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement (repo) are retazined in the financial statements as
investments and liability to counter party is included In borrowings. The difference in sale and repurchase

value is accrued over the period of the contract and recorded as an expense using effective Interest rate
method.
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(d) Other horrowlings

Other borrowings tnclude borrowings from the SBP and unsecured call borrewlngs which are recorded at the
proceeds received. Mark-Up paid on such borrowings is charged to the profit and loss account over the
period of borrowings on time proportionate basis using effective interest method.

4.4 Investments
4.4,1 Initial recognition and measuremsnt

4.4.1.1 The Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of purchase in held-for-
trading, available-for-sale or held-to-maturity as per SBP guidelines vide BSD circular No. 10 of 2004 dated July
13, 2004. These are initially recognised at cost, being the fair vaiue of the consideration given plus, in the case of
investmenis not hald-for-trading, directly attributable acquisition costs.

{a) Held-for-trading

These are- securities which are either acquired for generating profit from shert-term fluctuations in markst
prices, interest rate movements, dealer's margin or are securities included in a porifolio in which a pattern of
short-term profit taking exists. These securities are carried at fair value with any related gain or loss being
recognized in profit and loss account,

(b} Held-to-maturity

These are securitios with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that are held with the intention
and ability to hold till maturity. Investments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortised cost,

(¢} Avallable-for-sale

These are investiments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-maturity categories. These are
initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including the acquisition cost.
These securities are carried at fair value with any related surplus or deficit on revaluation shall be taken to
other comprehensive income,

4.4.1,2 Assoclates

Associales are all entitfes over which the Group has significant influence but not control. These are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, the investment In associates are initially recognised at cost and the carrying amount of
investment is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the post acquisition profits or losses,
share of other comprehensive income or loss and share of the post acquisition movement in other reserves. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds ils interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. However, in case where associates are considered as fully impaired and
financial statements are not available these Investments are stated at cost less provision.

4.4.1.3 Regular way contracts
All ‘regufar way' purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which
commitment to purchase / sale Is made by the Group. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
those, the contract for which requires delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

4.4.1.4 Premium or discount on acquisition of investments

Premium or discount on acquisition of investments Is capitalised and amortised through the consolidated profit and
loss account using effective yield over the remaining period of the investment.

VS 2
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44,2 Subseguent measurement

In accordance with the requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan, SBP, quoted securities other than those
classified as 'held-to-maturity’ and investment in agsociates and subsidiaries, are subsequently remeasured on
portfolic basis i.e. in case of Government securities at PKRV rates whereas in case of other securitiss at market
value. Investments classified as 'held-to-maturity' are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method
(less impairment, if any).

Further, in accordance with the requirements of the SBP, gain or loss on revaluation of the Group's held-for-
trading invastments is taken to the profit and loss account. In case of investments classified as available-for-sale,
surplus or deficit is taken directly to equity. The surplus or deficit arising on these securities is taken to the profit
and loss account when actually realised upon disposal.

Unquoted equity securities, excluding investment in subsidiaries and associates are valued at lower of cost and
the break-up value in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP. Break-
up value of equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the
latest available audited financial statements. Investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

4.4.3 Impalrment / diminution in the value of securities

Impairment loss in respect of quoted equity securlties classified as available for sale, associates, subsidiaries and
held to maturity is recognised based on management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that may have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments.
Objective evidence that the cost may not be recovered, in addition to qualitative impafrment criteria, includes a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below average cost. A decline to be considered as:

- Significant if the fair value is below the welighted average cost by more than 30 percent.
- Prolonged if the falr value is below the weighted average cost for a peried of more than one year.

(a) Available-for-sale

If an available-for-sale equity security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in equity,
shall be reclassified from equity to profit and loss account as a reclassification adjustment even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised, any further decline in the fair value at subsequent reporting dates
are recognised as impairment. Therefore, at each reporting period, for an equity security that was determined
to be impaired, additional impairment is recognised for the difference between the fair value and the ortgina)
cost basis, less any previously recognised impairment.

If, in subsequent period, impairment losses recognised in profit and loss for an investment in an aquity
instrument classified as available for sale shall not be reversed through profit and loss axcept in case of
derecognition,

(b) Held to maturity, Subsidiaries and Assoclates

(mpairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment after initfal
recognition of the investment. The impairment loss is recognised in the profit and foss account. If, in a
subsequent period, any indication that an Impairment loss recognised in prior periods no longer exist or may
have decreased, the impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in profit

{c} Debt Securltles
PTCs, TFCs, Sukuk and other debt securities will be classified on the valuation date on the basis of default

in their repayment in line with the criteria prescribed for classification of medium and long-term faciiities in
accordance with the requlrements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

RS
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4.5 Financial instruments
4.5.1  Financial assels and financial llabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Bank becomes party to the
contractual provision of the instrument. Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual right to future
cash flows from the asset expires or is {ransferred along with the risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities
are de-recognized when obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelied or expired. Any gain or loss
on de-recognilion of the financial asset and liability is recognized in the profit and loss account at the fime of de-
recognition. The particular recognition and subsequent measurement method for significant financial assets and
financial fiabllities are disclosed in the individual policy statements asscciated with them.

4.5.2 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is
enlerad into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using valuation technigues. All derivative financial
instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is hegative. Any change
in the fair value of derivative financial instruments is taken to the profit and loss account.

4.6 Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when
there Is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Group intends either to setile the assets and liabilities on a net
basis or to realise the assels and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses arising from such
assets and liabilities are accordingly offset.

4.7 Advances
4.7.1 Loan and advances

Advances are stated net of general and specific provisions. General and specific provisions against funded loans
are determined in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regutations issued by the SBP and charged
to the profit and loss account. Advances are written off whan there are no realistic prospects of recovery,

4.7.2 Finance lease receivables

L.eases, where the bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the
lessee are classified as finance leases. A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the
lease payment including any guaranteed residual value, if any. Net investment in finance lease is included in loans
and advances to customers,

4.8 Fixed assels
48,1  Property and equipment

Fixed assets except office premises are shown at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items, Office premises (which includes leasehold land and buildings) are stated at revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is calculated and charged to profit and loss account using the straight-line method so as to write
down the cost of the assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in note 10,
A fulil month’s depreciation is charged from the month in which assets are brought into use and no depreclation is
charged for the month in which the disposal is made. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed and changaes. if any, are treated as chanae in accounting estimates, annually.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoclated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised. Al other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account during the period in which they are incurred.

) CM
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An item of properly and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or less arising on de-recognition of the asset is recognised in the profit
and loss account in the year the asset Is de-recognised.

4.8.2 Surplus / deflcif on revaluation of fixed assets

The surplus arising on revaluation is credited to other comprehensive income. However, the increase shall be
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised In profit and loss account,

The deficit arising on a particular property as a resuit of a revaluation is recognised in profit and loss account as
an impairment. However, the decrease to be recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit
balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Depreciation on buildings which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assets on
revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss account; and an amount equat to
incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from “Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed
Assets Account” to unappropriated profit through Statement of Changes in Equity to record realization of surplus
to the extent of the incremental depreciation charge for the vear.

Gains or losses on disposal of assets are included in the profit and loss account currently, except that the related
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets (net of deferred tax) is transferred directly to equity.

4.8.3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, These are transferred to specified assets
as and when assets are available for use,

4.9 Intangible asssets

infangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. Intangible assets are
amortised from the month when the assets are available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost
of the intangible asset is amortised over its estimated usefut life over which economic benefits are expected to
fiow to the Group. The useful life and amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, annually.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are carrled at cost less any impalrment in value and are not
amortised. However these are reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be Impaired.

410  Assets subject to finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are initially recorded at the lower of the present value of minimum lease
payments under the lease agreemenis and the fair value of the leased assets. The related obligations under the
lease, net of financial charges allocated to future periods, are shown as a liability.

The financial charges are allocated to accounting periods in a manner so as to provide a period rate of interest on
the cutstanding liability,

411  Non-hanking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

4.11.1 Non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims under Debt Property Swap (DPS) transactions, against the
loans in category of loss, are initially carried at cost and subsequently at revalued amounts at each year-end at
date of the statement of financial position, being the fair value at the date of revaluatlon less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. The valuation of properties
acquired under this head is conducted as per DPS regulations, so as to ensure lhat their net carrying value does
not materiatly differ from their fair value.

All direct cost including legal fees, valuation and transfer costs of acquiring title to property shall be expensed
when incurred through profit and loss account.

Ne
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Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carrying amounts only when it is probable that future benefits
associated with the item will fiow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
subsequent costs including repair and maintenance are charged to tha profit and loss account as and when

Depreciation on assets acquired in satisfaction of claims is charged to the profit and loss account in line with the
depreciation charged on operating fixed assets.

Any reductions in non-performing lcans and correspending reductions in provisions held against non-performing
loans, as a result of the recognition of such assets, are disclosed separately in the notes to these consolidated
financial statements.

These assets are generally intended for sale. Gains and losses realised on the sale of such assets are disclosed
separately from gains and losses realised on the sale of fixed assets in 1he notes to these consoclidated financial
statements. If such asset is subsequently used by the Bank for its own operations, the asset, along with any
related surplus, Is transferred to fixed assets.

4.11.2 Surplus / deficit on revaluation of non banking asssts

Revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims under Debt Property Swap (DPS)
transaclions are carried out under criteria given in regulations for OPS issued by State Bank of Pakistan vide
BPRD Circular 01 dated January 01, 2018 i.e. vaiuation of property shall be done on individual property basis and
not on portfolic basis, whereas accounting treatment of revaluation is accounted for in accordance with applicable
financial reporting standards i.e. International Accounting Standard (1AS) 16.

Furthermore, revaluation surplus on such assets shall not be admissible for caiculating the Group's Capital
Adequacy Ratio and exposure limits under the Prudential Regulations. However, the surpius can be adjusted upon
realization of sale proceeds.

412 Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its assets {other than investment and
deferred tax asset) to determine whether there is an indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. Recoverable amount is the higher of net selling price (being fair value less
cost 1o sell) and valug-in-use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than lts carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the assets is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense in profit and loss account immediately,

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 1o the revised
recoverable amount but limited to the extent of the amount which would have been dstermined had there been no
impairment. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income,

413  Borrowings / deposits and thelr cost

Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing / deposit costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which these are incurred.

414  Subordinated debt
Sub-crdinated loans are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Mark-up accrued on subordinated loans is recognised separately as part of other liabilities and is
charged to the profit and loss account over the period on an accrual basis.

415  Taxatlon

4.15.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
laws for taxation on income. For income covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rate
under such regime. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, relating to
prior years arising from assessments made during the year.
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4.15.2 Deferrad

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising between
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts appearing in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax liability is recognized on taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses, if any cnly to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits wilf be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the ralated tax benefits will be realised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences are expected
to reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit and loss account.

Deferred tax, if any, on revaluation of investments, fixed assets and non banking assets is recognised as an
adjustment to surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation In accordance with the requirements of IAS-12 *ncome

4.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Provision against identified non-funded losses is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty exists for
the Group to settle the obligation. The loss is charged to consolidated profit and loss account net of expected
recovery.

417  &taff retirement benefits

Pefined contribution plan - the Group

The Group has established a provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees in accordance with the trust
deed and rules made there under. Equal monthly contributions are made, hoth by the Group and the employees,
to the fund at the rate defined below of basic salary. Contribulion by the Group is charged to profit and loss

account.

- The Bank (Holding Company) 7.10%

«  J3 Global Capital Limited (Subsidiary) 7.33%
JS Investmeant Limited (Subsidiary) 7.33%

4.17.1 Defined bensfit plan as revised {Holding Company)

The Bank operates an approved funded gratulty scheme covering all its eligible employees who have completed
minimum qualifying period. An actuarial valuation of defined benefit scheme is conducted at the end of svery year
or on occurrence of any significant change. The most recent valuation in this regard was carded out as at
December 31, 2019, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. Under this method cost of
providing for gratuity is charged to profit and loss account so as to spread the cost over the service lives of the
employees in accordance with the actuarial valuation. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit and
loss account and actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

4,18 Revenua recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that cconomic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. These are recognized as follows:

- Advances and investments
Mark-up income / interest / profit on performing advances and debt securities Is recognized on a fime
proportion basis as per the terms of the contract.

Mark-up income / interest / profit on non-perfarming advances and debt securities is recognized on a receipt

basis in accordance with the requirements of the Frudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of
Pakistan.
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Interest / retuns / mark-up income / profit on rescheduled / restructured advances and debt securifies are
recognised as permitted by the State Bank of Pakistan or by the regulatory autherities of the countries where
the Bank operales, except where, in the opinion of the management, it would not be prudent to do so.

Premium or discount on acquisition of debt investments is capitalised and amortised through the profit and
loss account over the remaining maturity of the debt security using the effective vield method.

Unrealised interest income in respect of non-performing loans and advances are held in suspense account,
where necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

- Lease financing

Financing method Is used in accounting for income from lease financing. Under this method, the unearned
lease income (defined as the excess of the sum of total lease rentals and estimated residual value over the
cost of leased assets) Is deferred and taken to income over the term of the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of return on the culstanding net investment In lease.

Unrealised finance income i respect of non-performing iease finance Is held in suspense account, where
necessary, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Reguiations issued by the SBP.

Gains / losses on terminalion of lease contracts, documentation charges, front-end fees and other lease
income are recognized as income on receipt bagls,

- Non Mark-up / interest income

- Commission is recognised as income at the time of affecting the transaction to which it relates, Fees are
recognised when earned.

- Financial advisory fae is recognised when the right to racaive the fee is established.
- Dividend income from investments is recognised when fhe Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.
4.19  Divldend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves except for statutory reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements in the periods in which these are approved.

4.20  Foreign currencies

4.20.1 Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani
Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

4.20.2 Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the exchange rates prevalling on the
transaction date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities dencminated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the profit and loss account.

Forward contracts relating to foreign currency deposits are valued at forward rates applicable to the respective
maturities of the relevant foreign exchange contract. The forward cover received / paid on forward purchase
contracts relating to foreign currency deposits are realised / charged diractly to profit and loss account.

4.20.2 Forelgn operations

Assets and Haviiities of foreign operations are translated into rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date. The results of foreign operations are translated at average rate of exchange for the year,

4,20.4 Translation gains and lossas
Transtation gains and losses arising on revaluations of net investment in foreign operations are taken to Exchange

Transiation Reserve in the statement of comprehensive income. These are recognised In the profit and loss
account on dispesal,
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4.20.5 Commitments

Commitments for outstanding forward forelgn exchange contracts disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements are translated at coniracted rates. Contingent labilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of
guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the rates of exchange ruling on the
consolidated statement of financial position date.

4.21 Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination before July 01, 2009 is initialiy measured at ¢ost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Holding Company's interest in the net fair value of the Identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabliities acquired. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of Impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisilion date,
allocated to each of the Holding Company’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expecied to benefit from the synergies of the combination, Irrespective of whether other assets or liabiiities of the
acquirer are assighed to those units or groups of units.

4.22  Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or
less attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding company less preference dividend, if any, by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the perfod / year, Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss aitributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighled average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

4.23  Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Holding Company classifies an asset as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through centinuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
assels and Its sale must be highly probable. For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of
management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset {or disposal group), and an active programme to locate
a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated. Further, the asset must be actively marketed for sale at a
price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. In addition, the sale should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification and actions required to complete
the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be
withdrawn,

A held for sale asset is carried at the lower of its carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell. Impairment
losses are recognised in the consolidated proflt and loss account for any initial or subsequent write down of the
asset to fair value less costs to sell. Subsequent gains in fair value less costs to sell are recognised to the extent
these do not exceed the cumulative impairment losses previously recorded. An asset is not depreciated while

Alaanificd nn hald fne Anls

4.24  Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is subject to risks and rewards ihat are different from
those of other segments. A business segment is cne that is engaged either in providing certain products or
services, whereas a geographical segment is one engaged in providing certain products or services within a
particular economic envircnment.

Segment information is presented as per the Group’s functional struclure and the guidance given under
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 8. For management purposes, the Group has been organised
into Seven operating segments based on preducts and services, as follows:

4,241 Business segments
Corporate finance
This includes investment banking activities such as mergers and acquisitions, underwriting, privatization,

securitization, Initial Public Offers (IPOs), specialised financial advice and trading and secondary private
nlacements. ) f‘ﬂ
1
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Trading and sales
This segment undertakes the Group's treasury, money market and capitai market activities.

Retail banking
Retall banking provides services to small borrowers I.€. consumers, small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and
agricultural sector. !t includes loans, deposits and other transactions with retail customers,

Commercial banking
This includes loans, deposits and other transactions with corporate custamers.

Brokerage
This includes brokerage commission earned on transactions in capital, money, foreign exchange and commodily
markets,

Asset management
This includes fee for services rendered in connection with advisory and management of mutual funds.

The Executive Management Committee (ManCom) monitors the operating results of its business units separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, Segment
performance is evaluated based on operating profits or losses and is measured consistently with operating profits
or losses in the consolidated financial statements. However, income taxes are managed on a group basis and are
not allocated to operating segmens.

Interest income is reported net as management primarily relies on net interest revenue as a performance
meastre, along with the gross income and expense
Transfer pricas hetween operating segments are based on the Bank's internal pricing framework.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the
Bank's total revenue in 2018 and 2019.

Others
This includes the head office related activities and other functions which cannot be classified in any of the above
segments.

4.24.2 Geographlcal segment

4.25

5.1

52

53

The Holding Company operates with 35¢ (December 31, 2018: 344) branches / sub-branches in Pakistan region
and one wholesale banking branch in Bahrain (December 31, 2018: one).

Fiduciary assets
Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Bank in statement of financlal position.

2019 2018
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note -cee-ee- Rupees in '000 --------
fn hand
Local currency 5,673,428 4,415,856
Foreigh currencies 896,523 488,292

6,469,951 4,904,148
With State Bank of Pakistan In:

Local currency current account 5.1 13,292,331 22,166,628
Foreign currency curient account - non remunerative 5.2 831,532 785,858
Foreign currency deposit account - remunerative 5.3 2,566,714 2,400,442

16,680,577 25,382,028
With National Bank of Paklstan in:
Local currency current accounts 2,286,206 1,839,398

National Prize Bonds 143,440 5,604

25,690,173 32,111,176

These include local currency current accounts maintained with SBP as per tha requirements of Section 22 of the
Banking Companies Crdinance, 1962,

As per B3D Circular No. 9 dated December 03, 2007, cash reserve of 5% is required to be maintained with the
State Bank of Pakistan in deposits held under the New Foreign Currency Accounts Scheme (FE-25 deposits).

This represents deposit accounts maintained with SBP undar the requirements of BSD Circular No. 14 dated June
21, 2008 and mandaltory reserve maintained to facilitate collection and settiement of foreign currency accounts
under FE-25, as prescribed by the SBP, carrying a mark-up rate 0.70% (2018: 1.5%) as per specific circular
issued by SBF at year end. J éC)
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2019 2018
Note -mremees Rupees in '000 --------
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
On current accounts 150,722 130,055
On deposit accounts 6.1 6,565 4,423
187,287 134,478
Outside Pakistan
On current accounts 6.2 319,083 843,673
476,370 878,151
Less: General provision under IFRS 9 6.3 (68) (127)
Balances with other hanks - net of provision 476,302 978,024

These carry mark-up at the rate of 6.75% to 12.75% (2018: 0% to 9.6%) per annum.

This inciudes amount held in Automated Investment Plans, The Holding Company is entitled to earn interest from
the correspondent banks at agreed upon rates when the balance exceeds a specified amount which comes 1.05%
per annum (2018: 1%-2% per annum).

This represents general provision held under IFRS 9 by Bahrain branch of the Holding Company.

2018 2018
Note «veemeee Rupees in '000 euum-mn
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS - NET
Call money lendings 7.2 283,887 1,758,917
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo) 7.3 30,037,915
Due against bills re-discounting - 182,742
30,321,802 1,941,659
Less: General provision under IFRS 9 7.4 {1,262) (4.312)
Lending to Financial Institutions - net of provision 30,320,540 1,937,347

el i,

Particulars of lendings
In local currency 30,037,915 -
In foreign currencies 293,887 1,937,347

30,321,807 1,057,347

These represent unsecured call money lendings to financial institutions carrying interest at the rates ranging frem
2,50% to 4.52% (2018: 2.85% to 8.06%) per annum. These will mature between January 30, 2020 and September
22, 2020 (2018: January 24, 2019 and September 23, 2019).

These are secured short-term lendings to varicus financizl institutions, carrying mark-up rate from 12.00% to
13.80% (2018: Nil) per annum. These are collateralized by Markat Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds
as shown in note 7.3.1 below.

Market value of securities held as collateral against Lending to financlal institutlons

2019 2018
Further Further
Held by given as Held by given as
hank collateral Total bank collateral Total
Rupees in '00Q
Market Treasury Bills 24,252,002 - 24,252,002 - - -

Pakistan Investment Bond 2,081,639 3,673,117 5,754,758 - - -

26,333,641 3,673,117 _ 30,006,758

This represents general provision held under IFRS 9 by Bahrain branch of the Bank.
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INVESTMENTS - NET

Invesiments by type

Held-for-traging securitles
Federal Govornmenl Securilias
Shares

Meon Governmenl Dabt Securnitlas
Open end mutual funds

Avallable-for-sale securitles
Federal Govarnment Securities
Shares

Hon Government Debt Securities
Open end mulual funds

Foreign Securilies

Held-ta-matuilty securities
Federal Govainment Securities
Assoc|alos

Tatal Investments

Investments Include ¢ertain approved / govemment securllies which gre held b
Bank's demand and lime ligbililles as sel out under saction 29 of the Banking C

Surplus / (deficll) Includss revatuation galn on available for sale lnvestments of subsidlariss arnounti
surplus and has been included here only for mesting with requiremant of the preseribed formal of Ba

Investmonts by sepments:

Held-for-trading securitles
Fedaral Government Securities
Marke! Treasury Bilis

Pakistan investment Bonds

Shares:
LIsted Compantes
Ordinary shares

HNon Government Debt Securltles
Listed

Tearn Finance Certificates

Sukuk Centificales

Open End Mutual Funds

Available tor-sale secwiitios

Faderal Government Securitles:
Marked Treasury Bills
Fakisten Investment Bonds

Shares:

Listed Companles
Ordinary shares
Preference shares
Unlisted Companies
Ordinary sharas

Hon Government Drabt Securlties
Llsted

Term Finance Certificates

Sukuk Cerificatles

Unlisted

Term Financa Cerlificates

Sukuk Cenlificates-unlisted
Prejerence shares

Open End Mutual Funds

Foralgn Securlllas

Govarnment Debd Securilies
Non Govemment Debt Securities
Qrdinary shares

Held-ta-maturlty securlties

Fodaral Governmenl Securitles:
Pakistan Investmenl Bends

Hasoclales

Omar Jibran Engineerng Industries Lid

Veda Transi Solutions Private Ltd

Intercity Touring Company Private Ltd

Total knvastments

841
341

842

84341
84,32

8.4.4

8.51
8.5.1

852
452

8.5.3.1
8532

8533
8.5.34
8535

38.5.1
8.5.5.2
8.5.2

5.6.1

a7
a7
87
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2010 2018
Castf Cost/
Amortised  Provislonfor  Surplusi c;:‘::“ Amortised  Pravislon for Surplus ¢ c;:rl;::g
cost diminution {Deficlt) oot diminution [Dafich)
Rupeas In ‘000

55,601,087 (2,818} 55,598,468 41,381,420 - (12,808) 41,368,514
486,624 - 551 487,185 1.037,824 - (44.012) 983,812
- - - - 133,616 - (260) 133,356
444,902 - 11,070 455,972 | 377,541 - 1.404 379,848
56,632,623 . 9,003 86,641,626 42,930,401 - {55,774} 42,074,627
47,828,618 - (800,244)|| 47,019,374 55,434,980 B (2,893,06Mf 52,541,122
2,116,728 {136,509} 26,107 2,004,245 3,164,076 {478,348) (87,928) 2,597,602
3,931,204 {696,807) {6,889) 3,227,598 2,354,043 (700.050) 606 1,854,699
969,276 (26,023) 279,816 1,222,369 971,353 (26,023) 212,125 1,957,455
2406 - - 2,408 6,325,797 - {458,000} 5,870,788
54,847,322 (858,119) (511,410) 53,476,793 68,261,258 {1,204,419) (3,226073) 83,821,768
32,850,882 - - 32,850,582 42,716,932 - - 42,716,932
246,322 - - 248,322 187,890 - - 187,890
144 488,149 fa69,118) {602,407) _143,134823 164086487 (1,204,419} (3,280,847) _ 140,601 215

¥ 1he Holding company to comply with the Statutory Liquidity Requirement determined on the basls of the
ompanles Crdinance, 1962,

ing ta Rs.80.378 milllon {2018: Rs.80.378 million) which repressnis the pre-acqulsition
nks / DFls issued by the Stale Bank of Pakistan,

2019 2018
Cosl ! Provislon for Surplas / Carrylng Costi Frovision for Surplus } Carryfng
Amortised dimtnutlon {Deflclty Value Amorlsed diminution [Doficit) Value
Rupees In '000
55,601,087 ” - ” (2,618} 55,580,469 " 41,376,895 ” . ]L {12,844} ' 41,364,151
- - - . 4,425 - 62 4,363
55,601,087 . [2,618) 56,698,469 41,387,420 . (12,908) 41,368,614
486,624 - 551 487,185 1,037,624 - (44,012) 993,812
[ N N I 1 N '
. - - - 3,308 - (215} 3,094
- . . - 133616 . {260} 133,356
444,302 . 11,070 456,072 377.541 - 1,404 378,048
12,071,266 . (384)(| 12,070,902 3,010,920 " . | {13 3,010,907
35,767,352 . 908,980 94,948,472 52,424,060 - {2,893.854)|| 49,530,216
47,828,618 . {809,244) 47,019,374 55,434,989 - (2,893,887 52541122
1,960,138 - 25407 1,992,246 3,016,487 {341,767) {87.928) 2,586,802
136,569 {136,589} . . 136,569 {136,569) - -
11,000 - - 14,000 14,000 - - 11,000
2,118,728 {136,588} 26,107 2,004,246 3,164,078 {478,346) {87,928) 2,597,802
445,183 {165,169) {124} 289,860 323,727 (168,712 (15 165,000
493,850 - [6,788) 487,005 643,005 - B21 643,626
1,506,495 {541,318) . 984,857 1,105,644 {541,338) - 864,306
1,458,333 - - 1,458,333 281,667 - - 281,667
27,733 . . 27,733 - . - .
3,931,294 {e86,507) {6.83%) 3,227,898 2,354,043 {700,050) 806 1,654,599
969,276 {26,023) 279,016 1,222,889 971,353 (26,023} 212,125 1,157,456
. . . 3,434,080 | . {202,645) 3,231,444
- - - - 2,860,302 - (253,384) 2,636,938
2,406 - - 2,408 24406 -1 - 2 408
2,406 . - 2,408 6,323,797 - {455,009 5,870,768
32,859,892 - . 32,869,882 42,716,932 - - 42,716,932
224,762 - . 224,782 187,820 - - 187,890
4,774 . . 4,774 - . - -
18,768 - . 18,786 - . - .
248,322 . . 245,322 187,890 - - 187,290
144,486,149 {859,119) (502,407) 143,124,627 — 154,006,481 (1,204 4197 (2.280,847) _ 149,600 518

142




B.3

B.3.1

832

B4

8.4.1

8419

8412

B.4.2

invostments aiven as sotfateral
Neld-for-trading securilios
Foderal Gavemmant Securities
Markel Treasury Bills
Pakistan Invasimenl Sonds

Availzble-for-sale sucuntios

Federaf Government Securities:
Karkat Treasury Bitls
Pakislan Investment Bonds

Faoreign Securities
Govemment Dabt Secuntiag
Hen Govemnment Debt Securitles

Prov|s|on for diminution in velue of invostmants
Cponing balancea

Charge for Lhe year

RR | on disposats / redemptions

(Charpe} / revarsals

Closing Balance

Parlcutars of provision against debl seaurities
Category of classifioation

Pamestic

Cithot a14ets espedaly mantionsd
Substandard

Doubtivl

Lass

Quality of Held for Trading Securilles

27

Datails regarding qua¥ty of Held for Trading (MFT) securities are a3 inflaws

Foderal Gevernment Sacuritles - Goyernment guarantead

Karhet Troasury Bils
akistan Investmant Bonds

F pal terms of i

L] | L1

Markot reagury bilts

In Federal Govemmant Securities

Note
84.1.1
Mote Medurity
84.1.2 January 02, 2020 to Oclober 0B, 2020

43 BANK LIMITED

2019 2018
Cost Market value Cost Market valup
Rupaes In 000
| . | l - 19,927,091 || 18822073
- - 4133 4,066
- - 10,832,014 49,926,139

| 4,453,185 | 4,432,597 - -
22 9,687, 3 46,935,112

28,685429

25 929,317

49867338

48,935,112

2,658,548

- I 2243, 194 2,113,651
= 425,354 418,303

2,529,844

46,685,423 £5.928.317 12,207,998 69,391,095

e

2018

sewsine RUPERS B "0 —emees

1,204,419

1,504,819

251,678 a0,052
546,976 330,43

{345,200] (300,400%
858,118 1,204,419
2019 2018
HFI Frovision KRl Pravision
Bupass in "800
696,507 596,507 700,050 00,050

696,507

——————— Ture—byy —

695,507

700,050

J00,050

2019 2048
Cost Market Valug Cost Murksat Yalua
Rug In "4

55,601,067 55,590,463 Il 41,276,995 41,264,151
- . 4425 4,383

55,601 0BT 55 598 469 41381420 41 3681514

Redemption Coupon
On maturity T maburily

feaknt Treasury Dilx are far the periad of ihree 1o twatve months, The eliactive rates of grofil on Market Treasury Bills range from 13.04% o 13.70% par annum (2018: 6.62% ta 10.30% par annum).

Shares

Listed Companies

QOrdinary shares

- Pak Elektron Lirmded

- Cherat Cemen Company Limiled

» D.G. Khan Cament Limited

- Fauj Cemanl Company Limited

- Lucky Cament Limited

- Maple Leaf Cemenl Factory Limitad
- Pignaor Cament Limiled

- Power Cement Limided

- Dgscon Quychem Limited

+ Enpro Polymar & Chamicals Umited
- Lolta Chemlical Pakistan Limited

- Askari Bank Limiled

- Amreti Staels Limitad

- Mgkl Bank Limifed

- Hatonal Bank ¢f Fakislan Lim:ed

- Tha Bank of Punjab

- Fauf Farbizer Biny Gasim Limted

- Metonal Refnery Limited

- Tha General Tyre and Rubber

- The Hub Power Company Limiteg

- k-Eioctric Limited

- Mughal lron and Steel industias Umited
- HelSol Technolesies Limiled

- Paklgtan Petroleurn Limited

+ United Bank Limited

- internatonal Slasds Limited

- Engre Corporation Limited

« Engro Ferditizar Limited

- Fatma Ferfizer Company Limited
« Engro Foods Limited

- Fauji Foods Limited

- Qii & Gas Devslopment Company Limitad
- Pakislan Oifields Limited

- Pekislan Stale Chl Limiad

- Sui Nothem Gas Pipalines Limited
- Sul Seutham Gas Company Limited
~ The Soare Company Limited

- Mizhal Chunian Lirmited

- Alteck Refingry Umitad

- Gul Ahmed Textila Mdls Uimited

» Mishel Mills Limited

- Urity Foods Limited

Rating Industry Seclor

At

Ad-
Unrated

Unrated

Unraled
Unrabed
BAN
At
AN
Ah
Unrated
Unrated
AAA
Unraled
Al

At
A
A

HA
AA
A

Eharas 2013 e
2048 2018 Cosl Warkeat valua Coat Marjet valua
weesee HUMBRES —oeen Rupaos in'000
Cable & Eleclrical Goods 13,000 2,849,500 13,682 13,087 75232 TO,953
Comanl - B6,000 . - 5,900 5,990
Comend 633,000 1,033,000 AT 218 47013 J:1:%: 21 82 795
Cemant 283,000 02000 2,980 3937 1,904 1,928
Cemenl - 8,500 - - 3946 3.59%
Camanl 190,000 138,500 4,158 4,397 8,088 5830
Cemanl 163,500 72000 4,585 4,680 3092 M8
Camanl - 1,069,000 . - 8205 8,370
Chemicat - 1,000 - - 287 258
Chemicst 549,000 £2.000 18,758 18,231 2521 2,303
Chemicat 227,000 1§1,00Q 3,154 3,183 1,883 1875
Commercial Bank - 85,000 . - 1,881 2,033
Enginesring 227500 8323 817 - -
Commercial Bank 6,000 745,000 #50 945 B2028 80,735
Commercial Bank 519,500 1,401,000 21894 22494 §3.087 548,884
Commercial Bank 558,500 3,088,500 £.801 5,781 50,322 A7 142
Feiiilizer 211,500 - 4,039 4,128 - .
Refinery 5,000 - T 105 - -
Automeblle Pads and Accessoras 12,000 - 868 L1:1) - -
Powar Generation And Distibuliar 61,000 - 5483 5,684 - -
Powsr Genaration And Clistibutior 1,985,500 - 8182 BEFT - -
Engineering 19,000 . 751 778 - .
Technelogy and Communication 5,400 - 4951 4812 . .
Cil & Gas Exploration Companiss 25,000 - 11,80 11,857 - -
Commaria) Bank 3,500 375,500 saY 578 49,014 48,051
Englnearing £38.000 838,000 £3,700 54,627 43,445 41,981
Ferilizar . 84,500 - . 19,954 18,775
Farblizer 3600 1,187,000 22967 23,241 BE.409 &1882
Farblizer 21,800 3,619,600 2,191 2,482 107,040 #1011
Food & Personal Care Products 3.500 22,500 280 ife 1,904 1,704
Food & Personai Cane Products 158,500 197,000 2,255 2393 G.142 5.865
Gil & Gas Exploration Companies 153,000 324,000 21283 21,775 42,477 49,472
Gil & Gas Exploretion Companias 18,000 3,000 8,162 8,041 1,248 1214
il & Gas Marketing Companias 382 500 27,000 724,233 T3A02 &,508 8,087
Ol & Gas Marketing Companies - 1,453,000 - - 115,148 311,083
Ol & Gag Marketing Companias 559,500 902,000 12,365 12,049 23872 22,222
Pharmaceuticaly 319,500 I7.000 61227 60,302 8,805 8,087
Powtre Ean And Distib 40,500 1,462,000 1,714 1,72r BO.710 58,450
Refinary 420,000 210,000 A7, B5T 45519 34,527 0,979
Texile Composite - 5,000 - - 235 23
Textite Comaosity 17,000 1,000 1,818 1,808 133 127
Vunaspali & Alied Induslrigs 458,000 857,500 f.098 7,540 24,405 22,083
468 534 487,185 1,007,824 £83.812

f£2



B4

8439

8.4.3.2

Bdd

8.4

B51

B8.5.1.1

8.5.1.2

8.9.1.3

Non Governmant Cebl Securitics

Listud
- AL+ AL, AA-
- Unrabed

Datalls of investment in term financa carlificates - listed *

Name of the company

Jahangy Siddiqut & Co. Limited. - vill

- refated party
Bank AL-Hatit Limited

J3 BANK LIMITED

Cost
3l FISH]
«— Rupews In 00 -oe

| - || 133818 I

1335616

* Secwed and have a face value of Rs.5,000 gach unless specified cthemise,

Sukuk carlificates - lisled

Nameo of the company

Engre Corperation Umited - Isiamic Rupiye Il

Open End Mulual Fund

Namae of fund

Investment In refatad parties

JS Income Fundg

JS Matlon Piciure Fund

JS Cash Fund

JS Islamig Income Fund (Fomery: JS IGSF)

Quality of Availlable for Sale Seeuritios

Dl zils rogarding quekity of Avaitable Tor Safe (AFS) secunitios are ay Follows:

Fegeral Government Secudities - Govemmant guaranieed

Ifarke! Troasury Bills
Fakistan Invesiment Sonds

Beinn|

P | berms f Iy

Hame of investment

Markel reasury bilts
Pakistan invasimant bonds

t in Faderal Govarnmenl Securilles

Certificatas Aating 2018 M8
e 2 2018 2018 Market valug Cost Market valve
Numb Rupess In '004
- 8,000 . Al . 5,307 5,262
- 25,000 - Ah- - 125,000 125,000
e et SO307 | 20,282
Certiflaatas Rating 2019 2013
2019 2018 2099 w18 Karket value Cosl Markak valug
bl 1 Rupecs n ‘000
- 547 - AAt - 3,308 3024
- 3,309 3,094
Met assed
value
Units Ratlng par unit 2018 2018
2019 2013 019 w012 Rupess Market value Cost Market value
h Rupsesin 000
3,541,402 924,042 At A+in 058,93 344,902 168,082 1,385 81,504
1,000,000 - - - - 100,000 49,950 - -
B 2,358,284 - Ads () 102.1a - 240,737 241,040
- 442285 - Al () 104.91 . 45438 48,401
—_MAS6z _assgia _ aTiBAl _ 37046
2019 2018
Markat Valua Cost Hariet Value
Holo flupona fn ‘000
120?1 268 120?0 g2 3,010,920 3,010,907
35 ¥57,352 34 848,472 62,424,083 49,530 215
BH.1.1 47,045 818 M 55,434,909 53541122
Nate Maturity Redamption __ Coaupon
8512 January 18, 2620 Lo Dacember 17, 2020 On maturly On mabwity
8513 March 28, 2020 10 August 22, 2020 On maturity Half yearty

Markat Traasury Bils are for lhe pediod of thieo Lo tvalve manths. The effective rates of prefil en Markel Troasury Bils range from 13.02% 1o 13.75% par annumn (2018: 10,20% par annum).

Hakislan lnvestrmant Bonds (PIAs) are for the pariod o1 thrae 1o byenty years. The eatas of profit ranging from 6.40% to 14.27% par annum {2018: B.20% to 10.42% par annum,

S



29 J8 BANK LIMITED

8.5.2 Shares
Rating Industry Soctor Number of Shares Cost Mayiel value Cost Market value
Listed GCampénles 2610 2018 Figk: ) 2018
Numb Rup In "00d
Qrdinary shzres
- Mational Foods Limited AA- Feod & Persanal Care Products 742,208 470,940 153,492 184,945 127,261 92,0600
- Mates Foods Limiled A Fanu & Personat Care Products 1,070,500 514,000 31,795 21707 14,900 14,274
- Shila International Hosplials Ah- Miscelfanesus 254,300 284,300 58,27} 88,509 88273 54 B&T
«  Pakistan Petroteum Limiled Unrated  Cil & Gas Marketing Companias 945,800 - 138,212 130,258 - -
- Power Cemant Limited A Cement - 33,002,500 - - 600,167 258,410
- Anveli Stanls Limitad A Enginearing . 4,202,200 . . 203,707 205,989
- Pakistan Stock Exchanga
Limited (PSXL) Unrated  Invasimant Company 2,201,953 2,202,953 23,081 27,4393 25,0081 26,898
Inyestment in relaled parties
- EFU General Inawrancs Limited AAt insurance 540,575 HU77.375 645,414 800,095 507,548 A07. 735
- EFL Lite Assurance Lmited Adt Insurance 1,585,600 1,395,300 250,135 275,476 252,148 272,651
- Silara Chemical Ingustries Limited A+ Chem'cal 1,790,250 1,790,250 548,781 534,318 548,721 G37,075
- TRG Pakistan Limitad Unralad Tect gy &C Fcali 5,083,760 32023760 107,378 144 446 Se0311 714,130

—L9E8.139 993248 _ D.010A87 . 2580802

Preferenco Shares

Agrilech Limited {note 8.5.2.1 £ 8.5.2,3) Unratad Chamical 4,003,744 4 823,748 48,236 - 46,238 -
Chensb Limited {note 8.5.2.2 & 8.52.3) Unraled Textite Composite 12,357,000 2,367,000 88,353 = 86353 -
115,589 - 138&89 -
Name of Chief Executive / Breakup Ersalup
Brenk.up valug per share Managing Diracter Humber of shares Cost value Cost vajua
2019 2018 Flg k] 2014 2089 2018
Un-Ysled Compantas R e

Qrdinary shargs
M ISE Towers REIMT Managamenl Limitad
[fermary |stamabad Stock
Exchanga Limited) (note 8.5.2.4) *14.49 14.09 #r, Saghwer Mushtag 1,213,841 1213801 11,000 17,592 11,000 17,108

Foroign seguritios

Qrdinary sheres
- Saciely for Worddwide interbank 434,554 672,011 Mr. Goltrisd Leibbrandt 8 8 2,408 3,834 2408 4037
Financlal Telacommunication
ISWIFT) (nole B.5.2.6)

* PBased on avdited accounts as of June 30, 2019
** gnged oh audiled accounts as of Oecember 31, 2018

8521  These ara nonyoting cumulative preference shares, canying preference dividend £ 10% p.e and are convartible into crdinery shares et the option of the Bank alter five years from tha date of Issuance
i.g. February 2012, The invesles company alse has the oplion (o redaam these pisfarenco shares plus any unpaid gividand in fulk or in pan, within rinaty days after explry of sach anniversary of tha
issue data. The Holding Company has recoprited Rl imgainment on these shares smounling to Rs. 46,238 mition £2018: As.49.236 milion) dus 1o weak finandal pesition of the company.

8522 Those are cuomutativa prafarence sharas, carmying pratarence dividand () 9.25% p.a and are radeemable in part after fowr yaars from the date of [ssuance e, Augusl 2008, The Invastea company also
has an oplion ko redesm, In part, curmulative preference shares after Augusl 2008, The Bank has recegnized fu¥ impalrmend on these shares amounting fo Re. 88.353 milion {2018: Rs.68.353 mfllom)
dus te weak inancial pesition of the company.

8.52.3 Surplus afising due 10 ra-measuremant of thesa sharas 10 the market valua has not been recognized os the managament balieves thet the markel value may nol be reclizad white seliing them in open
Bk

8524 In accordance with the reguirements of the Stock Exchanges (Corperabzation, Demutualization and Integration) Acl, 2042 {the Acl), the holding company has racaived 3,034,602 shares ol R5.10 wach
Inchuching trading right antitemen cerbficate (TREC) of the [stamabad Stock Exohanga {ISE}. In fiau of ity Mumbership Cerd hetd by the Benk. Further, upon iniegration of 1slamabad Stock Exchange
under the “ISE Schame of Integration™ in 20445 TRE Certificates holders of 1SE have heen Issued 1,213,641 sharas of *ISE Towers REIT Managament Linited”.

8526  The toding Company qualified as a member based on the financial cenbibution to SWAFT lor natwori-based servicas. Tha Holding Company hae mada an i tas per Lhe regul ts of By-
Laws of SWIFT, undar the Share Re-allocation Process, as a result becoming entitled 1o invest in for six shares. The garlkipation 15 mardalosy to avail the dasired netwerkbased servicas for inanclal
message transmission dor cross-border payments and recelpt. Furher, the share re-altocatlon sccurs every threg yoars and will rasull in either an increase, decraase, of @ stalus quo in individuel
sharehoiding.

1Es



8.6.3.1

8.5.3.1.1

§.53.1.2

8.5.3.2

8.5.3.2.1

8.6.3.3

Hon Government Debt Securities

Listed

AAA

Alt, AA AA-
At A A-
Unrated

Linlisted
AdD,

Al AB AA-
At A, A
Unrated

a0

J8 BANK LIMITED

Cosl

2019 2018
+eees RUPRASG i '040 =eoe-

398,250 631,000
236,600 127,005
150,044 150,015
155,168 158,712
939,032 968,732
142,857 355,952

- 240,020
1,892,333 150,000
857,071 541,938
2,852,261 1,387,311

3,931,294 2,354,043

Humber of
cartificatos Rating M9 019 2048 2018
29 20148 2019 2018 Cost Market valus Cost Market velue
Torm finance certificales - fsted * - Mumbers --- e Rupoas 10 000 «eoncscrasineas
Woerdeall Telecom
Limited (note 8.6.3.1.2) 90,650 20.650  Unrated Unrated 156,169 - 188,712 -
Jahangir Siddiqui & Ca. Lid, - X1
- Istated party 3,000 3,000 AA+ AA 15,000 14,880 15,000 15,000
Bank Al Habib Limiled 26,000 - AA- - 125,000 126,000 - .
Soneri Bank Limited 30,000 30,000 A A 180,014 150,300 160,045 150,000
445,183 289,580 323,727 165,000
' Secured and have a face value of Rs.5,000 each unless specified otherwise.
Qther particulars of listed term finance certificates are as follows:
Name of the company Reapayment frequency Profit rate par Maturliy date
Wondcall Telecom Limited Seml-annually & Monih KIBOR ask rate plus 1.80% Sgptember 20, 2026

Jahangir Slddiaui & Co, Lid, - X|
- ralated party

Bank Al Hablb Limited

Soner Bank Limited

Seml-annually
Seml-annually
Seml-annually

6 Months KIBOR ask rate plus 1.75%
& Months iIBOR ask rate plus 1.50%
6 Manth KIBOR ask rala plus 2.00%.

Due to weak financia! position of the company, tha Greup has recegnised full impalrment Joss en thase ferm finance cedificates,

March 6, 2023
Perpelual
December 08, 2028

Sukuk cortificates - listed

Byco Petroleum Pak/stan Limited
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited - Sukuk - |
Dawood Hercules Corparation Limied - Sukuk - |1

Othar parliculars af fistad sukuk carllffcatas are as fallows:

Nami of the company

tiyco Pelroleum Pakistan Limited
{{Chief Execudive: Mr. Amir Abbassciy)

Dawond Herculas Corporatian Limilad - Sukuk - |
{Chief Executiva: Inam ur Rahman)

Dawood Hercules Gorporation Limited - Sukuk - 1l
[Chief Execulive: Inam ur Rzbman)

Term finance cerilicates -
unlisied, secured

Azpard Nine Limited - ralated parly
(nole 8.5.3.3.1)

Azgard Nine Limiled {relaled parly)
(privately placed TFCs) (ncle 8.5.3.3.2)

Agnlech Limiled (note 8.6.3.3.1}

Pakistan Water & Power Davelopment
Autharity (WaPDA)

¥hushhali Microfinance Bank Limilad

Airfink Communication Private Limilad

Secure Logistics Group Private Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited

Number of
conificates Rating 201% r 2049 2018 2018
2019 a8 2019 2018 Cost Markel valuo Cost Market value
e NUmberg - e Rupogs In 900 s reererererer
5,31¢ 5310 AAA AAR 396,260 391,779 531,000 531,621
520 520 AA AA 41,600 41,492 52,000 52,000
500 800 AA AA 54,000 53,824 60,005 60,005
493 850 487 038 843 005 843 826
Rapaymeant frag ¥ Profit rate per anhum Maturity date
Quartery 3 Manth KIBOR ask rale plus 1.05%. January 18, 2022
Quarterly 3 month kibor +1.00% November 16, 2022
Quartery 3 month kibor +1,00% March 01, 2023
Mumber of
carlificates Reling Faca value par cetificate Cosl
2019 ams 2019 2018 2019 2018
---- Rupeos ----- - Rupeos - ----- Rupaes in '000 -----
29,998 20,988 Unraled Unraled 5,000 65,022 65,022
12 i2  LUnraled Unraled 5,000 324,450 326 466
30,000 3ac,000 Unrated Unrated §,000 149,860 149,860
400,000 100,000 AAA ABA 5,000 142,057 214,286
1,500 1,500 A A 100,000 150,000 150,000
284 - A - 1,000,000 384,000 -
288 - Unratad - 1,000,080 288,000 -
. 40,000 . Ade 5,000 . 200,020
1,508,195 1,105,644

1 bé



M

8.6.3.3.1 Due to wesk financial peaition of the company, the Group has recognised full impeirment loss on these term finance cerlificates,

45 BANK LIMITED

5.5.3.3.2 These PPTFCs are held by J5 Globa! Capital Limiled, a subsidiary company has recognised full provision censidering the financia) position of tha issuar amounting lo

Rs.326.456 million (2018: Rs.326.456 millon).

8.5.3.3.3 Other particutars of untsted term finance certificates are as follows:

3.4.34

§.4.3.4.1

8.6.3.6

8.5.3.5.1

854

8.5.4.1

Name of the company Repayment frequancy Profit rate per annum Maturity date
Azgard Nine Limited - relalad pady Sembannually 8 KMonth KIBOR ask rate plus 1.756% and December 04, 2017 and
(Chinf Executive: Mr, Ahmed H. Shaikh} 11%. OQclober 19, 2020

Agritech Limited Semi-annualiy & Monih KIBOR ask rale plus 1.75%. Noverber 29, 2019

(Chicf Execulive; dr. Faisal Muzemmii}

Pakislan Water & Power Development
Authorily (WAPDA)
{Chairman: Lleutenanl Ganaral
KMuzammil Hussain {Retd.))

Khushhal Microfinance Bank Limiled
{President & CEO: Mr. Ghalib Nishtar)

Allink Communication Private Limijed

Semi-annually

Bemi-annually

& Month KIBOR agk rate plus 1,.00%,

& Month KIBOR ask rale plus 2.05%,

Seplembar 27, 2011

Marzh 19, 2028

{President & CEO: Mr. Muzalfar Hayat Firacha) Quarlady 3 Menih KIBOR ask rate plus 1.00%. January 7, 2022
Securs Loglstles Group Private Limitad
(President & CEQ: Mr. Gulraiz A, Khan) Quarery 3 Month KISOR ask rate minus £.00%, January 2, 2024
Number of
certificatas Ratlng Face value par cortificats Cost
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
e Numbers ----ee- --------- Rupees --------- ----- Rupeas in "000 ----
Sukuk corllficates - unlisted
Gheni Global Holdings Limfted 2,000 2,000 A AAA 87.500 108,333 141,667
Pakistan Services Limited 1,350 - Ax - 0,000 1,350,000 -
Engro Ferifizers Limited 80,600 - Ady 3,500 - 140 000
1,458,323 281 667
Other partlculars of unlisted sukak cartiflcatas are as follows:
Namg of the company Repayment frequency Profit rate per annum Maturity date
Ghani Global Hokiings Limited Quartery 3 Month KIBOR: ask rate plus 1.00%. February 03, 2023

{Chisf Execulive: Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan)

Fakistan Services Limied
(Chie! Execulive: Mr. Murlaza Hashwani}

Sami-annually

& Month KIBOR. ask rale plus 1.00%,

January 17, 2024

Shares Rating Faco value per cortificate Cost
2019 2018 2018 2048 2019 1B 2019 2018
Prafl shares -unlisted = e Numbers wemrteenen e RUPESS N 000 - s
Intercity Touring Gompany Prvate Limited
(note 8.5,3.5.1) (related paity) 1,845,888 - Urrated - 10 - 21,733 -

As per the citeria given undar Prudentia! Regulations, thesa insluments are classied as a debl instrumenls as paymenl and distibution of dividend would be
cumulative and accrue in preferenca lo any dividend on the Odinary Shares, and are convedible at any ime, at the option of the Halding Campany, Inlo Qrdinary
Shares. Following the directives issued by SBP, these Inslrumenis are classified as a debt insiruments.

Open End Mutwal Fung
Mot asset
value

Name of fund Units porunit 2019 2018

2019 2018 Rupecs Cost Market value Cost Markat value

--------- Numbarg wrsaaes oo RUp@@s 10000 oo e e e

Retaled parties {nole: 8.5.4.1)
JS IAAPZ . 100,000 . - 10,000 8781
JS ICPAPS 167,204 150,000 107.12 16,720 48,840 15,000 15,054
JSICPAP4 153,847 - 108.10 16,365 46,508
JS Valus Fund 1,716,379 1,718,378 198.87 344,336 341,336 348,796 349,286
43 Growth Fund 1,803,801 1,803,901 169.36 6,417 322,403 G447 302,073
JS Fund of Funds 2772887 2,772,987 58,70 146,286 62,774 146,286 144,034
J§ Islamic Penslon Savings

Fund - Equity 182,354 182,354 573.68 48,238 104,809 18,235 101,074
JS Islamic Pension Savings

Fund - Dekt 213,852 213,852 225 54 21,185 49,088 21,385 44,359
J5 Islamic Pansion Savings

Fund - Monay Market 222,303 222,303 198.97 22,230 44232 22,230 39,980
JS Penslon Savings Fund -

Meoney Market 177,453 177,463 222,16 17,746 39,428 17,748 35328
45 Panslon Savings Fund - Debl 137,349 137,349 280,53 13,738 38,511 13,735 34,079
J§ Pension Savings Fund - Equity 208,210 205,210 42227 20,521 886,854 20 521 85,299
J5 Islamic Capilal Preservation 3,308 - 87.13 300 258

959,276 1,222 864 971,353 1,157,458

The Group has recogrisad impairmen! on thase unils amouniing to Rs 26 D23 million {2018: Rs.26.023).
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32 J§ BANK LIMITED
Foreign Securitios
Name of Bond Rating Coupon rate Date of Maturity 2019 2018
2019 2018 % Cost Market value Cost Market value
--------------------- Rupeaes in 000 s--resmemmemmeennes
Government Debl securitios
Arab Republic of Eqypt - B 4.75% - - - 191,725 172,415
Istamic Republic of Pakisian - B $.25% - - . 438,712 417,536
Islamic Republic of Pakislan - B 8.25% - - . 435,814 419,831
Tha Jrd Pakistan International
Sukuk Campany Limilad - 8- 5.50% - - - 348,386 334 348
Republic of Kenya B B+ 6,88% - - - 288,956 260 463
Saudi International Bond - A+ 2.38% - . - 405,743 401,218
Arab Republic of Egypt - B 5.58% . . - 420,128 394,315
Islamie Republic of Pakislan - B 6.88% - . M 338,731 314,491
Arab Republic of Egypt - B 7.50% . . u 294,142 264,732
Arab Republic of Eqypt - 8 5.88% - - - 274,682 252,095
- - 3,434,080 3,237 444
Mon Governmant Debt securlllos
Turkiye Garanli Bankasi . B+ 5.25% - - - 284,844 261,280
Petrabras Glebal Flnance - Ba2 6.25% . . . 144,790 140,653
Turkiye Vakiflar Bankasi B+ 5.75% - - . 217,24 243,428
Turkiye Is Bankasi A.S - B+ 5.50% - M - 830,283 563,822
Turkiye |s Bankasi A.S - B+ 5.38% - - - 88,257 63,234
Turkiye |s Bankasi A.5 - B+ 5.13% - - - 281,768 233,480
State O Company of the Azerbaijan - BB+ 4,75% - - - 139,506 138,243
Expar Credit Bank of Turkey - B8- 5,38% . - - 137,180 128,168
PTA Bank - Baal 5.30% . - - 144,063 137,297
Akbank Tas - 81 5.00% . . . 210,725 184,783
Petrobras Global Finance . Baz2 7.38% - - . 148,456 143,160
Turkiye Garantl Bankasi A.S - B8- 5.88% - - . 144,603 130,854
African Export - Imporl Baenk - Baa1 4.13% n - - 280,626 250,438
. . 2,880,302 2,636,938
Quallty of Held to Maturlty Sacurltlos
Details regarding quality of Held te Maturity {HTM) securilies are a3 follows
Cost
Fadoral Government Securities - Government guarantead 2019 2018
---- Rupees in '000 -«
Pakistan Investment Bonds 32,859,882 42,716,932
Security lype Matarity Redemption Coupon
Pakistan invesirent bonds March 28, 2020 ko August 22, 2028 On maturity Half yearly

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) having maturity of three to Bfteen yeers. The rates of profils ranging frem 7.75% 1o 14.69% per annum {2018: 7.00% to 12.00% per
annum). The market value of securities as al Dacemnber 31, 2019 ameuntad Rs. 31,341.410 million {2018: Re. 39,836 884 milton)

Investmant In pssoclated company

Omar Jibran Engineening
Industries Limilad

Weda Transit Solulions
Private Limited

Intercity Tawring Company
Private Limited

Note

8.7.1

8.7.1

Rallng Shargs Percentage holding Cosl
2019 2018 2019 2016 2018 2018
--- Numboers - w-seee RUpags [0 000 weeer
Al Al 7,200,000 8.60% 8.60% 167,680 167,890
- . 45,000 B.D0% - 972 -
- - 1,351,111 9.12% - 20,257 -
208,120 187,890
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33 J8 BANK LIMITED

8.7.1 The investments classified as associale on account of it's significant influence over the Investes companies. All associated companles sre incorparated In Pakistan.

8.7.2 The tollewing is summarsed financlal information before inter-campany sliminations with olher companiss in 1he group:

8.1

9.2

Assoclated companles
Veda Transkt Solutions

Omar Jikran Englneering Intarcity Touring Company

June 30, June 39, June 30, June 30, June 30, Junae 30,
2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2018
woes RUpes in 000 - ---- Rupees In '000 ------ -=-=r Rupoos kn 000 ------
Tolal incgme { sales 2,628,975 2,241,313 922,200 642,732 290 -
Profit alter tax 147,798 128,548 47,436 {147 815} (21,636} {8,456)
Tolal comprehensive income 343,881 2,082 . - - -
Tolal assels 3,727,984 2,806,438 686,142 698,591 191,414 51
Tolal liabilties 1,888,745 1,608,898 743,324 888,293 50,879 15,458
Hot asaets 1,839,216 1,377,538 {86,162) [180,702) 140,535 {15,405)
Cash Row from cperaling aclivities {73,769) {83,851) 152,284 73,211 (62,405) {90)
Cash flow trom investing aclivities (233,038) {148,197) [169) (8,920) {141,183} -
Cash flow from financing activilies 212,791 354,448 (137,300) {80,120) 219,994 -
Nol increase [ (decrease)
in cash and cash equivalents {84,008} 131,657 14,786 4,871 16,408 (A5}
ADVANCES
Parforming Non Paiforming Tatal
2019 2018 2019 M3 2019 018
Note Rupesas In '000
Leans, cash credils, eunning finances, ele, 9.1 225327 B6T 232479502 40,353,184 8,300,467 235,680,821 240,788,963
Bills discounied and purchassd 11,113,114 4675443 - - 11,113,114 14,675 443
Advantes - gross 236,440,711 247,154,945 10,353,164 8,308,467 248,793,935 265,464,412
Provision against advances
Genaral {181,156) (165,661) . - {181,1€8) {155 6681)
Gonaeral provision - under IFRS-9 943 {7.520) {10,748) . - {7,620 {10,748)
Spedific - - {3,333.941) (2,989,888) [3,338,941) {2 689 888
94 {166,656) {i56407) 13,339,941) {2,999,808) (3,508,627) {3,156,295)
Advances - nel of provision 235,272,088 246,988,536 7,013,223 5310.,579 243,285,308 252,308,117
Partlculars of net Investment in flnance lease
2018 2018
Later than Later than
Hot latar one and lass one and less
than than five Ovarflve Not latar than then flve Over five
one year yaars years Tolal one year yoars yoars Total
LT e Rupggs 51 Q00 vannmisnaravaravassninnnnn mamamnunn. nane Rupges I 000 serrvinsmnmnmn e rravarnn
Lease rentals recelvable 4,360,218 6,637,948 1,527 13,501,694 7,197,128 0,082,944 138,768 18,358,838
Guarantead residual value 1,509,806 2,838,848 10,783 4,149,238 1,008,255 3,662,826 7,138 4,568,319
Winimum lease payments 8,450,823 9,176,707 14,310 17,660,930 8,148,381 12,635,870 45,904 20,927 185
Finance charges for future periods  [1,468,867) 1,096,697} (259}  (2,567,823) {1,248,119) (1,220,811) (5,144) (2,480,974)
Present yalue of minimum
leass paymants 930,966 8,078,100 14,081 15,083,107 8,809,362 11,408,058 140,760 18,446,181
2019 2018

Paricwlars of advances {gross)

In Incal currency
In foreign cursencies

Advances include Rs. 10,353 184 milion (2018:

Category of clagsification

Domeslic

{ther Assets Especially Menlionad
Substandard

Doubtiul

Loss

Total

....... Rupeas In 00 cvens

238,073,521 247,895,081
8,720,014 7,569,331
246.793,%35 265,464,412
Fs.8,309.488 milion) which have been placed under non-perdorming status as delailad below:
2018 2048
Hon Hon
Parforming Provision Performing Proviston
Loans Loans
S Rupaas | i T 11 1] AT
841,066 1,721 231,430 -
1,459,072 64,661 1,488,616 53,945
2442270 426,263 3,189,700 148,592
5510764 2,847,258 3399712 2 759,361
10,353,164 3,338,541 5,309,467 2 669 BE&
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9.5
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J& BANK LIMITED

Partitulars of provision agzinst non-perferml
2019 2018
Qanoral Goneral
provisien - provislon -
Speclilc General under IFRS-S Total Speciflc Ganeral under IFRS-9 Total
Nate T IATY A JTT. 11 [ 1 11« EREEE PP PR serernsarasssanassesssasss RUDGES (N 'GOD vererseessinsananananaras
Cpening balance 2,889,888 165,881 10,746 3,156,208 2,838,980 100,353 - 2,739,313
Exchange adjusimenls - - 1,095 1,085 - - 1921 1,321
Charge for the year £80,994 | 5,505 " - 886,400 422,994 I 55,308 | 9,425 ” 487,727
Reversals 528,148 - 4.321) 530,487} | 72,086 - - (72,086)
354,848 5,505 4,321) 356,032 350,628 55,308 9,425 415,661
Amount wrilten off from
the opening balance 9.5 (4,795) . - (4,795) - - - -
Closing Balanca 3,338,941 161,166 7,520 3,608,627 2,589,588 155,681 10,746 3,158,285
Particulars of provision against non-perfarming advances
2018 2018
Spocific Ganoral Total Spacific General Tetal
Ruppas in 000
in locai currancy 333594 161,166 3,501,107 2,999,908 155,661 3,145,549
in forglgn currencies - 7,520 7.520 - 10,746 10,746
bt 30081 183888 3508827 2900308 166,407, 356295

The general provision is mainlained 10 create genaral raserves against following advances poitfolios in accordance with ihe prudential regulations issued by Stala Bank
of Pakistan as follows:
M9 2018 209 2018
Secured portfolte Unsecured porifolia
........................... Percentageg arrasTeraTaTR e anpnmnanan
Consumar financing 1% 1% 4% A%
Housing financa 0.5% 0.5% - -

This represenis general pravision held under IFRS 8 by Bahrain branch of the Holding company.

Tha Slate Bank of Pakistan through various circulars has allowed benefit of the forced sale value {F3V} of Planl and Machinery under charge, pledged slock and
morgaged residential, commerclal and Industial properties {land and builkding only) held as colfataral against non-pedorming loans (NFLs) for & maximum of five years
fram he date of classificalion, As al December 31, 2018, lha Group has availed cumulative benefit of FSY of Rs.4,120.008 milion {2018: R5.2, 386 448 million) under the
directives of the SBP. Had the benefit not Deen laken the unappropriated profit after tax woutd have reduced by Rs.2,678.006 millien {2018: Rs.1,551.191 millon}.
Further, as required by the SBP directives, this unapprogriated profit will not he available for distribution as dividend or olhar appropriations.

2018 2018
-~ RUP@AS 0 Q00 «uevees
Pariculars of Write Offs:

Against provisions 4,795 .
Pirectly charged Lo profit and lass account s -
E,110 -
Wiite offs of Rs 500,000 and above 5,110 -
Wrile offs of below Re.500,000 - -
5,110 -

Dotalls of loan write off of Rs, 500,000/ and above
In 1erms of sub-gection (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1862 the Statemant in eespect of writlen-off foans or any othar fingncial relief of rupses
Mive hundrad {housand or above allewad to a person(s} during the year ended 15 given in Annaxure-i,

2019 2018
Hote  =reeeene Rupoes 10040 s

FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-prograss 10.1 146,181 438,198
Properly and equipment 10.2 8,418,832 8,508,528
Right-of-usa assals 4.1 4,108,132 -

10,603,945 8,847 725
Capltal work-In-progress
Civil works 124,350 388,449
Advance for purchase of fumnilure and fixtures 200 4479
Advance for purchase of vehiclas - 18,175
Advance for purchase of squipment and software 21,541 28,086

146181 439,199
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress
Computer software and goodwill

Capital work-in-progress
Advance for purchase of software

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At January 1, 2018

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 20418
Opening net book value
Additions:
- diractly purchased
Impairment loss recognised in
the profit and loss account - net
Disposals
Amorlisation charge
Exchange rate adjustments - cosl
Exchange rate adjustments - accumulated

Other adjustments
Closing net book value

At December 31, 2018

Coslt

Accumulated amortisalion and impairment
Nel book value

Rate of amortisation {percentags)

AtJanuary 1, 2048

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairmenl
MNet book value

Year ended December 2018

Opening net book value

Additions:

- directly purchased

Disposals

Amorlisation charge

Exchange rate adjustments - cost
Exchange rate adjustments - accumulated

Closing net book valua

At December 31, 2018

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book valus

Rate of amortisation (parcentage)

Usefui kife

g

J3 BANK LIMITED

2019 2018
Note ~meeee== RuUpees in ‘000 «-ve--

107,533 86,801

2,194,941 2,119,711

2302474 2,208,512

107@_@& 86,801

20149
Membership
Trading right  card - Paklstan
entitloment Mercantile
certificate Exchange Computer
{TREC) Limited software Goodwli Total
Rupess In 000

5,727 3,500 1,046,019 1,463,624 2,518,870
- - {399, 169) - {299,159)

5727 3 500 646,860 1,463,824 2119741

5,727 3,500 646,860 1,463,624 2,119,711

- - 176,994 . 175,991
{3,222) - . - {3,227)
. - (87,968) - (97,968)

. - 847 " . 647
- - {21314l - {213)

. - 434 - 434

2,500 3,500 725,317 1,463,624 2,184,941

5,727 3,500 1,222,657 1,463,624 2,695,508
- - {497,340} - {497,340)

5,727 3,500 725,317 1,463,624 2198148

- - 10% __ “Soo note 1.7

2018

Trading right Membership
entittoment  card - Paklstan Computer

cartificate Mercantile software Goodwill Total
{TREC) Exchange
Rupeas in ‘000
5,727 3,500 728,348 1,463,624 2,201,199
- - {324,212} - {324,212)
5727 3500 404,136 1,483,624 1,876,987
5,727 3.500 404,136 1,463,624 1,876,987
- - 316,380 - 316,360
- - {74,660) - {74,660
- - 1,311 - 1,311
. - {287} - (287}
- - 1,024 - 1,024
5727 3,500 646 860 1,483,624 2,119,711
5,727 3,500 1,045,019 1,463,624 2,518,870
- - {389,158} - (399,159)
5,727 3.500 645,860 1463624 2419711
- - 10% See note 11.7
N . 10 -
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39 J5 BANK LIMITED

2019 2018
=== Rupeés in '000 ---.-

Fully amaortized computer softwara still in use 148,887 100,838

This represents Trading Right Enfitlement Certificate {TREC) received from PSX in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchanges (Corporalisation, Demutalization and integration) Act, 2012 (the Act). The company has also received shares of PSX after
completion of the demutualisation process.

This represents membership cards of Pakistan Mercanlile Exchange. |t has an indefinite useful life and is carried at cost.

For impairment testing, goodwilll has been allocated to 'Trading and Sales' segment as Cash Generating Unit ({CGU), which is also a
repostable segment.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculation
The recoverable amount of the CGU has bean delermined based on value in use caleulation, using cash flow projections based on

business plan approved by the Board of Diractors of the Holding Company covering a five year period, The discount rales applied to
cash flows beyond five years are sxtrapolated using a terminal growth rale. The following rates are used by the Holding Company,

2019 2018
Percentages
Discount rate 22.87 28,13
Terminal growth rate 10.00 10.00

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to following assumplions:

a) Interest marginsg

Interest margins are based on prevailing industry frends and anticipated market conditions,

b} Discount rates

Discount rates reflact management gstimates of the rate of return raquired for each business and are calsulated after taking into
account the prevailing risk free rate, industry risk and business risk. Discount rates are calculated by using cost of eguily of the Bank.
¢} Kay businass assumptions

The assumplions are imporlant as they represent management assessmant of how the unit's position mighl change over the projected
period. Based on the sxpansion plans, management expects aggressive growth in advances, investiments and deposits during the
projected periods and thereafter slabilisation in line with industry trends.

Managément believes that any significant change in key assumptions, on which CGU's recoverable amount [s based, may Impact the
canying amount to furlher exceed its recoverable amount. Value in use calgulatlon of the CGU are sensltive to changes in
assumptions for interest rale spreads, Non Funded tncome {NFI}, long term growth rates and discount rates.

d) Senslitivity to changes In assumption

The estimated recoverable amount of the "Trading and Sales' CGU exceeds its carrying amount by approximately Rs.5,554 million,
Management has identified two key assumptions for which there could be a reasonably possible change lhat could cause the carrying

amount to exceed the recoverable amount. The following table shows the amount that these two assumptions are required to changs
individually in order for the estimated recoverable amount to be equal to the carrying amount.

Changes required for carrying
amount to equal racoverabls

amount (%)
2019 2018
- Discount rate 4.85 0.21
- Terminal growth rate 9,00 (0.30)
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

Mevement in tamporary differences durlng the year:

Deforrad tax deblts arising from:

Provision against investments

Provision against [oans and advances

Provision against other assets

General provision under IFRS-9

Intangible other than Goodwill

Unrealised {loss) / gain on revalualion of
investiments classified as held for trading

Surplus { {deficit) on revaluation of invesimenis
classified assets as available for sale

Provision for donation

Provision for workers' welfare fund

Deferred tax credits arlsing due to:
Operating fixed assets
Liahility against assels subject to finance lease - net
Goodwill
Suwiptus on revalualion of eperating fixed assets
Surplus on ravaluation of non-banking
assets acquired in salisfaction of claims
iark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracls
Unrealized {loss) / gain on ravaluation of
derivative financial instrumenis

Deferred tax debits arising from:

Provision against investmenis

Provision against loans and advances

Provision against other asssis

General provision under IFRS-9

Intangible Other than Goodwill

Unreatised (loss) / gain on revaluation of
investments classified as held for trading

Surplus { {Deficit) on revaluation of investments
classified assets as available for sale

Provision for donation

Provision for Workers' Wellare Fund

Deferred tax credits arising due to:
Operating fixed assels
Goodwill
Surplus on revaluaiion of oparating fixad assels
Surplus an revalualion of non-banking
assels acquired in satisfaction of claims
Unrealized {loss) / gain on revalualion of
derivalive financial instruments

40

J5 BANK LIMITED

2019

Recognised

Balance asat  Recognised in in other Balance as at

January 01,  profit and loss comprehensiv December 31,
2019 account 8 lncoma 2019
-------------------------- Rupees in 000 ---r-mmrmmmme i eaas

57,149 - - 57,142
147,207 102,060 - 249,267
171,041 557,270 . 728,281

36,820 (33,723) - 3,097

2,235 272 - 2,607
3,976 {3,575} 264 665
1,188,415 - {834,788} 253,627

186 (186} - -
17,114 {13,971) - 3,143
1,824,113 608,147 {934,524} 1,297,736
(232,731) {27,372) - - {260,103)
- 7,082 - 7,082
{512,288) - - {512,268)
{380,381) {1,223) 17,220 {374,394)
{1,010} 43 - {987)
51,002 - £1,002
(78,721) (3,600) - (82,321)
{1,216,121) 26,022 17,220 {1,171,879)
408,982 634,189 {917,304} 125,857

2018
Recognised

Balance as at Recogalsed In in other Balance as at

January 01, profitand loss comprehensiv December 31,
2018 account e Income 2018
mmresermrenneeassesannes RUPEES (N 000 -roneeeemrmresmanes e ans

57,149 - - 57,149
124,618 22,689 - 147,207
63,725 107,286 - 171,011
- 36,820 - 36,520
1,997 238 - 2235
620 3,356 - 3,976
48 941 - 1,141,474 1,188,415
197 (11) - 186
46,332 {29,218} - 17,114
341,479 141,160 1,141,474 1,624,113
(222,460) {10,271) - (232,731)
(512,268) - - {512,288)
(268,274) 24,079 {148,196) (390,391)
(2,191) 57 1,124 (1,010}
(26,227) (63,494) - (78,721)
(1,028,420 {39,629) {147,072) (1,215,121}
(686,241} 101,531 994 402 408,892

As of December 31, 2019, the JSIL has accumulated losses of Rs, 239,238 miltion. The deferred tax on such losses works oul to Rs.
69.379 miltion, however, the JSIL has recognised deferred tax asset on such losses to the exlent of deferred tax liability of Rs. 24,352
militon. Unrecognized defetred tax asset on carried forward business losses as at December 31,2019 amounted to Rs. 45.027 million.

194



a1 JS BANK LIMITED

2019 2018
13. OTHER ASSETS Nota  ———-- — Rupees in "000 --------
Income/ Mark-up accrued [n local currency - net of provislon 8,746,909 5,508,744
Incomea/ Mark-up accrued [n foreign currency 48,511 133,707
Trade receivable from brokerage and advisory business - net 976,902 1,505,318
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 4.1 1,040,356 723,501
Accaptances 3,221,212 3,217,002
Taxation {payments lass provision} 794,463 1,147,526
Dividand receivable . 1,865
Balances due from funds under managament 123,074 112,825
Receivable against bancassurance / bancatakaful 67,952 75,056
Stationery and stamps in hand 23,290 18,536
Recaivable from other banks in respect of remiltance 1341 495,660 283,469
Mon-banklng assets acguired in satisfaction of claims 13.2 1,088,682 91,421
Mark to market gain on derivative instruments 22,498 57,418
Mark fo market gain on forward fereign exchange contracts 66,958 211,933
Advance for subscription of investmenls securities 13.3 63,108 845917
ATM settlement account 106,119 195,927
Others 13.4 374,470 162,893
17,269,161 14,383,458
Less: Provision held against other assets 13.5 {432,908) {435,188)
Other assets {nel of provisions) 16,826,263 13,948,270
Surplus on revalualion of ner-banking assets acquired in

satisfaction of claims 93,743 93,8688

16,919,596 14,042,139

131 This includes an amount of Rs.456.370 million (2018: Rs.232.239 mitlion) raceivable from State Bank of Pakistan in respact of home
remiftance services provided by the Holding company,

13.2  Non banking assets acauired in satisfaction of claims

Market value of non-banking assets acquired in satlsfaction of claims 1,182,425 185,280

13.2.4 Movement of Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims at market value:

Asg at January 01 185,250 203,339
Addition during the year 13.6.2 098,848 1,295
Transferred during the year 13.5.4 - (18,771}
Dapreclation during the year {1,713} {573}

1,182,425 185,280

13.2.2 Non-banking assefs acquired in satisfaction of claims are carried at revalued amount according to the requirements of the ‘Regulalion
for Debt Property Swap’ (the regulations) issusd by SBP vide the BPRD Circular No. 1 of 2016, dated January 01, 2018,

Non-banking assets acquired in salisfaction of claims have heen revalued by independent professional valuers as at December 31,
2018 and rasulted no change in observed In valuations of these assetls with raspect to lasl year. The revaluation was carried out by
M/S. Tristar international Consultants Pwl Lid., bfa (Pvt) Lid. and Englneering Pakisian International Limited. on {he basis of
professional assessment of present marke! values,

Had there been no revaluation, the carrying value of non-banking assets acqulred in satisfaction of ¢laims would have been lower by
Rs.93.743 miltion (2018: Rs.93.869 million), and surplus on revaluation of assets net, deferred tax liability and depreciation expanse
would have been lower by Rs.92.776 milllon (2018: Rs.82.858 milllon), Rs.0.867 miliion (2018: Rs.1.041 mlllion) and Rs.0.126 million
(2018: Rs.0.163 million) respectively.

Written down value:

Leasehold Land 866,595 88,640
Building on leasshold tand 224,987 2,781

1,088,882 91,421

134  Advance for subscription of investments securities

13.4.1 This includes Halding Company has signed a Shareholder Agreement {(SHA) and a Share Subscription Agreement (SSA) with VEDA,
Transit Sotulions (Private) Limited for an investment of approximately of Rs 40.828 million in a form of equity subject to the obtaining of
scheme of arrangement approval from Lahore High Court. Subsequently, the scheme of arrangament has been approved and shares
will be issuad and transferred to the Holding Company once the regulatory formalitias have heen completed.

13.4.2 This includes advance of Rs. 2.280 against subscription of righ!l sharas of Maple Leaf Cement Factory {(MLCF). Thess sharas ware
released by the investee company subsequent to the year end.

13.4.3 This includes advance of Rs. 20 million against subscription of Sukuk certificates of Bank Islami Pakistan Limited - Ehad Sukuk | {a
rolated party) having perpetual lenure and carrylng mark-up at lhe rate of 2.75% + 3 months KIBOR.

' 79



42 J§ BANK LIMITED

2019 218
13.5 Provision hald against other assets Note ----= Rupees in '00¢ -
Trade receivable from brokerage and advisory business - net 403,218 403,318
Qthers 29,580 31,870
432,908 435,188
13.5.1 Movemant in provislon held against other assets
Opening balance 435,188 474,895
Charge for the year - 2,561
Raversal for lhe year {2,280 {42 368)
Net {reversal) / charge for the year {2,280) {30,807}
Closing balance 432,908 435,188
14. BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakislan 3,683,500 3,226,595
Quiside Pakistan 220,99 103,329
3,804,491 3,519924
18, BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan under:
Export refinancing scheme (ERF) 16.2.1 17,792,778 18,329,309
Long-Term Finance Fagility (LTFF) 15.2.2 1,877,760 1,055,928
Financing Facility for Storage of Agriculfural produce (FFSAP) 15.2.3 300,440 124,922
Repurchase agreement borrowings 18.2.4 16,848,007 12,609,714

36,820,075 29,116,873
Borrowing from financial institutions

Repurchase agreement borrowings 15.2.5 12,746,732 57,228,252
Refinancing facility for mortgage loans 16.2.6 1,961,128 -
14,707,880 57,228,252
Total secured 651,627,936 86,345,125
Unsecured
Call borrowings 1827 2,303,356 8,323,290
Overdrawn nostro accounts 838,992 501,629
Due against bills re-disgounting 15.2.8 - 1,388,619
Tota!l unsecured 2,940,348 10,213,538

54,468,283 96,558,663

151 Particulars of borrowings

fn local currency 51,627,836 89,413,108
In foreign currencies 2,840,348 7,145,554
54,468,283 96,658,853

15.2.1 The Holding company has entered into agreement with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for extending export finance to cuslomers. As
per the terms of the agreement, the Holding company has granted SBP the right to recover the outstanding amount from the Bank at
the date of maturity of finances by directly debiting the currenl account maintained by the BHolding company wilh SBP. These
borrowings are repayable on a quarterly basis and to be matured between January 02, 2020 and February 08, 2027 (2018: January 02,
2019 and February 08, 2027). These carry mark-up at the rate fram 1% te 3% (2018: 1% o 4.50%) per annum.

156.2.2 Thesa borrowings have baen sbtained from tha SBP for providing financing faciliiies to exporters for adoplion of new technologles and
modernization of their plant and machinery. Thase borrowings will mature between November 30, 2020 and August 08, 2029 (2018;

MNovember 30, 2020 and November 30, 2028). Thase carry mark-up at retes ranging frem 2.00% to 3.50% (2018; 2.00% to 3.50%) per
annum,

15.2.3 These borrowings have been obtained from SBP under “Financing Facility for Storage of Agricultural Produce (FESAP)" to encourage
Private Sector to establish Silos, Warehouses and Cold Storages. These borrowings will mature between May 09, 2020 and May 14,
2026 (2018: May 09, 2020 and July 23, 2025} and carry mask-up at the rate ranging from 2.00% to 2.50% (2018: 2% to 2.50%) per
annun.

15.2.4 This reprasents borrowing against Pakistan Investment Bonds {(2018: Market Treasury Bills and Pakistan Inves!ment Bonds) carrying
mark-up at the rate of 13.32% (2018; 10.18%) per annum and will be matured on January 03, 2020 (2018: January 04, 2019). The cost
and market value of securities given as coliateral of amounling to Rs. 17,484,926 miflion (2018: Rs. 12,905.687 million) and Rs.
18,805,897 million (2018; Rs, 12,634.148 million) respectively.

15.2.5 This represents borrowing against Market Treasury Bifis, Pakistan Investment Bonds and Bai Muajal (2018 Market Treasury Bills,
Pakistan Investment Bonds, Bal Muajjal and Foreign Curiency Bonds) carrying mark-up at the rates ranging from 12.70% to 13.19%
{2018: 3.30% 1o 10.36%) per annum and will be matured between January 02, 2020 and March 26, 2020 (2018: January 02, 2019 and
April 19, 2019), The cost and marke! value of securilies given as collateral of amounting to Rs. 9,200.503 million (2018: Rs. 58,362.211
million) and Rs. 8,122.620 million (2018: Rs. 56,756.947 milllon) respactively.

15.2.6 The Bank has enlerad intc agresment with the Pakistan Morgage Refinance Company Limited (PMRG} for extending housing finance
facilities to the Bank's customers on the agreed terms and conditions. The borrowing carries mark-up rate of 3 years PKRV less
100bps and will be matured on February 28, 2022.
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16.2.7 These represent call money harrowings from financial Institutions which will be matured between January 18, 2020 and June 18,

1528

16,

16.1.

16.2,

17.

17.1

2020 {2018: January 02, 2019 and February 28, 2019), carrying interest at the rates ranging from 2.65% to 3.61% (2018: 0.80% to
10.30%) per annum.

This reprasents obligation to the foreign corresponding banks on the discounting of foreign documentary bills purchased by the
Bank on discount. These carry interest at the rate of Nil {2018; 4.22% ) per antum.

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2019 20138
In Logal In Forelgn In Local In Forelgn
Currency currencies Total Currency currancles Total
Rs.000
Customers
Gurrent accounts 70,341,319 6,412,941 76,764,260 71,824,038 5,321,812 77,145,850
Savings deposits 73,442,779 2,898,794 76,341,673 61,444,549 2,676,579 64,021,128
Term depositls 164,602,876 11,409,816 176,012,681 118,807 475 11,430,120 130,237,505
Margin accounts 5,455,786 15,234 5,471,020 3,568,455 4 937 3,571,392
313,842,760 20,736,784 334,579,644 255,642,517 19,333,448 274,975,965
Financial Institutions
Current accounts 858,906 - 868,905 880,064 - 860,084
Savings deposits 12,204,325 - 12,204,325 26,021,734 - 26,021,734
Tarm deposits 20,900,828 - 20,900,629 16,408,212 1,540,877 17,949,089
33,964,059 - 33,964,059 43,290,010 1,540,877 44,830,887
347,808,819 20,736,784 _ 368,543 803 _ 208,032527 20,874,326 319,806,852
2019 2ms

Composltion of deposits

~«=w=eae RUpBES [FL IR0 [ 1] 1 JS———

- Individuals 135,583,867 111,586,311
- Government {Federal and Provincial) 73,503,161 56,875,862
- Public Sector Entities 37,475,517 11,242,328
- Banking Companies 2,926,436 8,641,316
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 31,037,623 31,800,279
- Private Sector 88,016,999 09,750,736

368,543,603 319,806,852

m#

This includes deposits eligible to be covered under Insurance arrangements amounting to Rs. 87,425.18¢ million {(2018:

Rs.87,350.615 million).

2019 2018
Note e Rupees in '000 -----
SUB-ORDINATED DEBT
Tarm Financs Certificates - First Issue 17.1 2,996,400 2,997,600
Term Finance Cerlificates - Second Issue 17.2 1,998,400 1,599,200
Tarm Finance Cerificates - Second Issue 17.3 2,500,000 2,500,000

Summary of terms and conditions of the Issue are:

494,800 7,496 800

ln 2018, the Holding company has issued Rs.3 billion of rated, privately placed, unsecured and subordinated term finance
certificates ("TFCs" or "the |ssue") as an instrument of redeemable capital under Seclion 120 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984
and as outlined by State Bank of Pakistan, SBP, under the BPRD circular No. D6 dated August 15, 2013 and Basel 1l guidelines,

Purpose: To confribute toward the Bank's Tier )l Capital for complying with the Capital Adeguacy Ratio requirement and 1o
utilize the funds in the Bank's business operations as parmitted by its Memorandum & Aricles of Association.

Issue date December 14, 2018

Tenura: Up to Seven years from the Issue date.

Maiurity Date:
Raling

December 14, 2023
A+ {Single A Plus}

7




17.2

Profit Rate:

Profit payment;

Redemption:

Security:

Call Option:

L.ock-in-clause:

44 J8 BANK LINMITED

Floating rate of return at Base rate + 1.4 percent par annum;

Base rate is defined as the average six months KIBOR prevailing on the Base Rate setting date, The Base Rate
will be set for the first time on the last working day prior to the Issue Date and subsequently on the immediataly
preceding business day before the start of each six monthly period

Semi-annual

The instrument is structured to redeem 0.24% of tha Issue amount during the first six years after the Issue date
and the remaining Issue amount of 99.76% In two aqual sami-annual installments of 49.88% each in the last year,

The Issue is unsecured and subordinated as to payment of Principal and profit to all other indebtedness of the
Bank.

Exercisable in part or in full on or after the 10th rademption, subject to SBP's approval.

Principal and profit will be payable subject to compliance with MCR or CAR set by

Loss absorbency Upon the accurrence of a Peint of Mon-Viability event as defined by SBP's Basel Ill Capital Rule vide BPRD

clauss:

Circular # & of 2013 dated August 15, 2013, SBP may at its option, fully and permanently convert tha TFCs into
common shares of the Bank andfor have them immediately wilttan off (either partially or in full). Number of shares
to be izsued to TFC holders at the time of conversion will be equal to the 'Oulstanding Face Value of the TFCg'
divided by market value per share of the Bank's common share on the date of trigger as declarad by SBP of the
non-viability svent as declared by SBP, subject to a cap of 467,836,257 shares,

In 2017, the Holding company has issued Rs.2 billion of rated, over the counter listed, unsecured and subordinated term finance
certificates {("TFCs" or "the Issue"} as an instrument of redeemabla capital under Seclion 66 of the Companies Act, 2017 and as
outlined by State Bank of Pakistan, SBP, under the BPRD circular No. 06 dated August 15, 2013 and Basel |1l guidelines, Summary
of terms and conditions of the tssue are;

Purpose:

Issue date
Tenure:
Maturity Date;
Rating

Profit Rate;

Profit payment:

Redemption:

Security:

Call Option:

Lack-in-¢lause:

To contribute toward the Bank’s Tier Il Capital for complying with the capital adaquacy requirement and to utilize
the funds in the Bank's business oparations as permitted by its Memorandum & Articles of Association.

December 29, 2017

Up to Seven years from the Issue date,

December 29, 2024

A + (Single A Plus)

Ftoaling rate of return at Base rate + 1.4 percent per annum;

Base rate is defined as the average six months KIBOR prevailing on the Base Rate setting date. The Base Rate
will be sat for the first time on the last working day prior to the Issue Date and subsequenlly on the imimediately

preceding business day before the start of each six monthly pariod.

Semi-annual

The instrument is structured to redesm 0.24% of the Issue amount during the first six years after tha Issue date
and the remaining {ssue amount of 89.76% in two equal semi-znnual instaliments of 49.88% sach in tha last year.

The Issue is unsecured and subordinated as to payment of Principal and profit fo all other indebtadness of the
Bank.

Exercisabla in part or in full on or after the 10th redamplion, subject to SBP's approval.

Principal and profit will be payable subject to compliance with MCR or CAR set by SBP.

Loss absarbency Upon the ocoutrence of a Point of Non-Viahility svent as defined under SBP BPRD Circular # € of 2013 dated

clause:

August 15, 2013, SBP may at its option, fully and permanently convert ihe TFCs into common shares of the Bank
andfor have them immediately written off (either partially or in full}. Mumber of shares to be Issugd to TFC holders
at the time of conversion will be equal fe the 'Outstanding Face Value of the TFCs' divided by market value per
share of the Bank's ccmmon share en the date of trigger of Point of Non-Viabillty (PONV) as declared by SBP,
subject to a cap of 319,982,644 shares.

VLo
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During the current year, the Holding company has isstted Rs.2.5 blllion of rated, privately placed, unsecured, subordinated,
perpetual and non-cumulative term finance certificates ("TFCs" or "the lssug") as an instrumant of redeemable capifal under Section
66(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 and as outlined by Slate Bank of Pakistan, SBP, under the BPRD circular No. 05 deted August
15, 2013 ({the "Circular") and Basasl 11} guidelines. Summary of terms and condltions of the lssue are;

Purpose;

Issue date
Maturity Date:
Rating

Profit Rate:;

Profit payment
frequency:

Redemplion:

Security:

Call Option:

Lock-in-glause:

To contribute toward the Bank's Tier | Capital for complying with the capital adequacy reguirement and to utilize
the funds in the Bank's business operations as permitted by its Memorandum & Arlicles of Association,

December 31, 2018

Perpetuat

A {Single A)

Floating rate of return at Base rate + 2.25 percent per annum;

Base rate is defined as the average six months KIBOR prevaillng on the Base Rate sefling date. The Base Rate
will ba set for the first time on the last working day prior to the Issue Date and subsequently on the immedialely

preceding business day before the start of each six monthly period

Semi-annually on a non-cumulative basis

Not applicable

The lzsue is unsecured and subordinated as to payment of Principal and profit {o all other claims excapt common
shares.

Exercisable in part or in full at a par value on or after five years from the issue dete, with prior approval of SBP.
The Bark shall not exercise the call option unless the called Instrument is replaced with capital of same or better
guality.

Payment of profit will me he mads from current year's earning and subject to compliance with MCR or CAR set by
SBP.

Loss absarbency clause:

Pre-Specified

Trigger ("PST")

Point of Non-
Viability

Upon the occurrsnca of a Pre-Specified Trigger as defined under SBP BPRD Circutar # § of 2013 datad August
15, 2013,, which sfipulates that if an lssuer's Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET 1"} ratio falis to or below 6.625% of
Risk Weighted Assets ("RWA"), the lssuer will have full discretion to determine the amount of TFCs to be
parmanently converted into common shares or written off, subject to SBP regulations / instructions, and the cap
specified below. The Bank will be able to exercise this discretion subjact to:

- If and when Bank's CET 1 reaches the loss absorption trigger point, the aggregate amount of Additionel Tier-1
capital to be converted must at least be the amount sufficient to immediataly return the CET 1 ratio to above
6.625% of total RWA (if possible);

- The converted amount should not exceed the amount nesded to bring the CET 1 ralio to 8.5% of RWA (i.e.
minimum CET 1 of 6.0% plus capital conservation buffer of 2.5%);

- In case, conversion of Additional Tier-1 capital Instrument is not possible foliowing the trigger evant, the amount of
the Instrument must be writien off in the accounts resulling in increase in CET 1 of the Issuer,

Upon the occurrence of a Point of Non-Viability event as defined under SBP BPRD Clrcular # 6 of 2013 dated
August 15, 2013, which stipulates that SBP may, at its option, fully and permanently convert the TFCs into
common shares of the Issuer and / or have them immediately wiitten off {aither parially or in full}. Number of
shares to be issued to TI-C holders at the time of conversion will be equal to the ‘Outstanding Valug of the TFGs'
divided by market value per share of the Isstrer's common / ordinary share on the date of the PONV trigger evant
as declared by SBP, subject to the cap specified below;

The PONV trigger event is the earller of:

- A decision made by SBP that a conversion or temporary / permanent write-off i3 necessary without which the
Issuer would become non-viable; '

- The decision to make a public sector injection of capilal, or equivalent support, without which the lssuer would
have become non-viable, as determined by SBP.

- The maximum number of shares to bg issued to TFC holders at the Pre-Specified Trigger and / or Point of Non
Viabifity {or otherwise as directed by SBP) will be subject to a specified cap of 329,595,476 ordinary shares, or
stich othar number as may he agread to in consultation with SBP, :

1%
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2019 2018
Note weveenus RUPRGS [11 'CO0 worennen
18. OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / inderest payable In local currency 4,168,772 2,679,842
Mark-up / return / iderest payable in foreign currency 72,782 107,641
Accrued expenses 418,112 707,824
Acceplances 3,224,212 3,217,002
Trade payable from brokerage business 1,428,057 2,064,051
Payable in respect of defined benefit obligation - net 36.5 161,381 102,494
Unclaimad dividends 7,676 10,529
Dividend payable 41,102 -
Ponation payable 2821 1,991 15,248
Lease key money deposit 4,148,235 4,568,145
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 18.1 113,795 178,890
Government duttes 477,870 268,880
Payable against remiltance 446,387 442,811
Retaniion monay payabls 34,248 35,053
Visa debil card payable 458,674 80,202
Lease Babllity against right-of-use assets 4.1 4,280,358 46,422
Agvance against assets held lor sale 10.3 37,500 -
Qthers 238,277 204,154

19,420,728 14,720,189

18.1 As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Censtitwlion, levy for the WWF was inlroduced by the Government of Sindh through the Sindh
WWF Acl, 2014 (the Acl). As per the Act, Banks are liable to pay SWWHF. The Group has chalienged the issus of Judsdicllon claimed by Sindh
Revenue Board hefore the Honorable High Cour of Sindh {the Courl} through Conslilutional Petition 1546/2017 i,e. the Acl will be applied to
trans-provincial compantes to the exient that tha ebligation under the provinciat law is to make distribution only to the proportionate profit of
Sindh Provinge. The Court has restrained the Sindh Revenue Board to collect f recover Sindh Worker Welfare Fund till the next date of hearing,

The Group has reassessed the SWWF provision which was previously held on the enlire operaling results of the Group finchuding ether
provinces, part of Pakistan, AJK and Bahrain Operations) and based on the abova lagal slatus and also based on {he legal oplnlon, Is of the
view that the Bank will enly liable to SWWF Lo the extent to its oparations within Sindk.

19. SHARE CAPITAL
19.1 Authorised capital

19.1.1  Qrdinary shares

2019 2018 2019 2018
weeee Number of ghares --xe--- Note === RUp0Q8 10 ‘000 =reneean
2,350,000,000 2,350,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 sach 23,500,000 23,500,000

12.1.2 Praforence sharas

150,000,000 150,000,000 Converible preference shares of Rs.10 each 1,500,000 1,600,000

18.2 Issuad, subscrlbed and patd-up capital

Ordinary sharos
763,558,965 763,558,885 Fully paid in cash 7,636,590 7,835,590
533,806,287 533,805,287  Issued for consideration other than cash 5,336,053 5,329,053
1,297 484,262 1,297,484, 262 12,974,643 12,974,643
- - Lass: Discount on [ssue of shares {2,866,401) {2,856,401)
1,297,484.262 1,207,484 262 10,119,242 10,116,242

19.3 As at December 31, 2019, Jahangir Siddigui & Co. Ltd. (the parent company) held 873,307,324 (2018: §73,307,324) ordinary shares of Rs.10
each L2, 75.02% holding {2018: 75.02%}).

20. SURPLUS | {DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

(Deficity / surplus on revaluation of:

Avallable-for-sale securilies 81 %202 {691,788} {3.2156.435)
Operaling fixed assels 203 1,955,840 1,628,892
Non-banking assats acquired In satisfaction of claims 204 93,743 93,869

1,457,895 (1,492,574}

Deferred lax on {deficily / surplus on revaluation of:

Available-for-gale securities 253,627 1,188,153

Operating fixed assetls 203 (374,390} {403,434)
Mon-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of ¢laims 204 {867} {1,011)

(121,730} 783,708

1,336,165 {708,866)

20,1 Group's share 1,308,531 {822.532)
Non-controlling interest 27,834 113,666
1,336,165 {708.886)

] 83
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20.3

20.4

21.

2141

2111

a7

This includes general provislon under IFRS 8 of Rs. Nif (2018: 90.015 milllon} by Bahrain branch of the Bank,

Flxed assots

Surplus on ravatuation as at January 01
Recognised during the year - net

L.ess: Transferred to unapprepriated profit:
Incremental depreciation during the year
Related deferred tax liability

Realised on assel elassifiad under held for sale
Related deferred tax llablity

Surplus on revaluation as at December 31

Laess: Related deferred tax liahility on:

Surplus on revaluation as at January 0t

Recognised / transferred during the year

Transferred to profit and toss account on account of incremanial depreciation
Realised on assel classified under held for sale

Non-banking assets acqulred in satisfaction of claims

Surplus an revaluation as at January 01
{Tranafarred) / recognlzed during the year

Lass: Traasferred to unappropriated profit;
Ingremental depraclation during tha year
Related deferred tax liability

Surplus on revaluation as at December 31
Less: Related deferred tax liability on;
Surplus on revaluation as at January 01

Transferred during the year
Transferred to profit and loss account on account of Incramental depreclalion

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Guarantees

Commilments

Guarantaos:

Financial guarantees

Perfarmance guaranieas
QOther guaraniees

includsd herain the outstanding guarantaess of Rs.14.217 milllon (2018: Rs.19.201 milifion) of ralated parties.

Commitments:

Documaentary cradits and short-term trade-related transactions
- letters of credit

Commitments in respect of:
- Forward {oreige exchange contracls
- Dervative Instruments
- Forward lending
- Bank Guarantee from a commercial Bank in favar
of Natlonal Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
- Quistanding selllements agzainst margin financing contracts - net

Commltments for acquisition of:
- operaling fixad assels

Note

N

2144

21.21

21.2.2
23.2.3
21.24

21.2.5
21.2.6

21.2.7

J5 BANK LIMITED

2019

2018

-------- RuUpees n '000 -----r--

1,626,892 922,871
374,493 741,138
2,003,485 1,664,009
(38,721) (23,083
{11,824) (11,034
{47,645) (35,017)
1,965,940 1,628,652
{403,434) {256,273)
17,220 (148,195)
41,824 14,024
(374,380) {403,434)
1,581,650 1,225,558
93,869 07,242
- {3,210)

93,869 94,032
(82) 1106)
(44} {57)
{126} {163)
93,743 93,869
{1,011} 2,192)

- 1,124

44 57
(967) (1,01%)
02,776 02,868
45,650,803 41,116,520
74,966,958 69,868,870

120,617,761 _100.985.300

2,464,411 3,852,003
21,483,841 19,549,043
21,702 6619 18,015,474

45,660,803

650, 41,116,520

13,065,258 14,957,752
65,111,366 34,627 442
5192,075 8,331,236
72,183 284,137
400,000 400,000
6,308 12,348
220,771 255,985

74,966,968 59,868,870

X
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21.2.2
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Included harein the oulsianding letter of credits of Rs.44.388 million {2016: Rs.44.018 miilion) of refaled parties.

2019 2018
seasenes RUpRES 11 "G00 «neranes
Commilments in respect of forward forelgn exchange contracts

Purchase 33,104,108 21,521,180
Sale 22,007,268 13,108,262
£8,111,368 34,627 442

The Helding company ulilises foreign exchange instruments te meel the needs of its customers and as part of lis assel and lablity
management aclivity to hedge s own exposura {o currancy risk. At year and, all foralgn exchange contracts have a ramalning maturily of less
than one year.

Commitmoents In respect of darlvative Instruments

Purchase 2,698,797 2,205,353
Sale 2,593,278 7,125,883
5,192,075 9,331,236

21.2.3.1 Interest rate swaps (notlonal principal)
Purchase 2,099,175 1,995 882
Sale 2,100,175 1,986,882

4,199,360_ 3,892,764

21,2.3.2 Options (notional principal)

Sale - 2,631,433

24.2.3.3 Conunitments in respect of forward govarnment sacurltles

21.2.4

Purchase 499,622 200,471
Sale 493,103 2,497,568

892,726 2,707,039

Commitmants In respoci of forward lending

Undrawn formal standby Facilities, credit linas and other commhiments 1o land 72,183 284 137

21.2.4.1 These represent commitmenls that are irrevocable because they cannol be withdrawn at the discretion of the bank without the risk of incurring

21.2,6

21.26
21.2.7
21.2.8

22,

slgnificant penalty or expense.

Bank Guarantee from a commercial Bank in favor

of Nattonal Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 400,000 400,000
Outstanding settlemants agalnst margin financlng contracts - net 5,306 12,348
Commitments for acquisition of operating flxed assels 220.771 255,955

Tax related comingencies are disclosed in noles 32.2 to 35.4,

Darlivative Instruments

Derivative instrumants, such as Forward Exchange Contracts, Interest Rata Swaps, Intarest Rale Swaps and Options, ara forward transactions
that provide marke! making cpporlunities / hedge against the adverse movement of interes! and exchange rates. Desivatives business also
provides risk solutions for the exisling and poientlal customars of the Bank.

The Bank has entered inte a Cross Currancy Swap lransaclion with ils customer on back-to-back basls with an Authorized Darivative Dealer
{ALD) without carrying any open position in it3 books. Speclfic approvals for the trensaclions have been granted by Slate Bank of Pakislan.
Policies in line with SBP Instruclions have been formulated and are operalive,

The Bank has also entered Imo Foraign Currancy & Commadily Oplions from its YWholasale Banking Branch Bahrain for market making
aclivities.

Thesa fransactions cover tha aspacts of both marke! making and hadging. The risk management related to derivatlve is disclosed In note 45 to
the financial statements.

Accounting policies In respect of dervalive financial instrumen!s are described In note 4.5.2,
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22,2

23,

Product Analysls

With Banks
Hedging
Market making

With Fis other banks
Hedging
Marke! making

Total
Hedging
tMarket making

With Banks
Hedalng
Markel making

With Fis ather banks
Hedging

Markel making

Total

Hedging

Markel making

Malurlty Analysis

Remaining maturlty of contracts

Lipto 1 manth

1 fo 3 months

3 o B monlhs

5 monihs to 1 year
11to 2 years

210 3 years

3o Syears

510 10 years
Above 10 years

Remaining maturity of contracts

Upta 1 month

110 3 months

310 § months

& months to 1 year
ilo 2 years

2 1o 3 years

3o S years

510 10 years
Above 10 years

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On:

Loans and advancas

Investments

Lendings to financial institutions

Balance with banks

Securities purchased under resale agreements

49

JS BANK LIMITED

2019
Interest rate swaps Forward securities
Notional Mark to Notional Mark to
principal market princlpal market
Rupees in '000 Rupees [n '000
4,199,360 22,212 - -
“ - 992,725 285
4,989,350 22,212 - "
- - 992,726 286
2018
Intarest rate swaps Qptiong Forward securitles
Notional Mark to Notlcnal Mark to Notlonal Mark to
principal markef principal market princlpal market
Rupees in '000 Rupees In '000 Rupess in ‘000
3,992 783 16,931 - - - -
v - 2,631,433 (3.652} 2,707,038 44,139
3,992,763 16,931 - - - -
- - 2,631.433 {3,652} 2,707,039 44,139
2019
Number of Notlonal Mark to market
contracts principal Positive | _ Negative | Not
Rupass in '000
166 17,325,074 173,099 {71,085) 107,034
81 10,868,070 179,595 (72,610) 106,965
54 10,257,016 89,766 {120,138) (20,372}
20 3,171,089 32,045 (16,145) 15,900
4 1,827,183 87,492 {52,033 15,459
295 43!448!412 556,987 (331,891} 225,006
2018
Number of Notlonat Mark to market
contracts principal Posilive |  Nogative | Net
Rupess In '060
36 2,886,964 44,873 {566) 44 307
2 1,750,000 42,958 (42,122} 836
14 2,887,108 12,961 {16,145} (3.184)
1,827,163 67,492 {52,033} 15,459
58 9331235 168,284 {110,866) 57,418
2019 2018
Note sasssers RUPOOS IN 'O0D wemnernn
31,003,043 19,717,645
9,717,118 10,082,338
62,679 111,081
£9,817 20,943
858,930 138,977
41,691,587 30,068,981

| %6
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241

25,

25,

26.1

27.

MARK-UP | RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits

Borrowings

Securilies sold under repurchase agreements
Sub-ordinated debi

Lease Habifity against right-of-use assels

Borrowings
Export refinancing scheme (ERF)
Long-Term Flnance Facility (LTFF)

Financing Facility for Storage of Agricultural praduce (FFSAP)

50

Note

241

Caost of foraign currency swaps against forelgn currency deposits / botrowings

Other short term borrowings

FEE, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE INCOME

Branch banking customer fees

Consumar finance related fees

Card related fees (debit and cradit cards)
Credil related fees

Invesiment banking faes

Commission on frade

Commission on guarantees

Commissicn on ¢ash management
Commission on remiltances including homa ramittances
Commission on bancassurance
Commission on distribution of mulual funds
Commission on online Services

Postage & Courler income

Rebate Income

Rebate on primary daalership

Brokerage incame

Managemeni fae

25.1

J8 BANK LIMITED

2019 2018

ccarvees RUPOOS i1 000 —-momems
28,272,108 15,019,011
1,504,192 705,007
2,810,910 4,975,964
1,029,228 407,992

450,610 .
34,497,088 _ 21,107,074
337,916 250,801
35,388 12,608
3,942 2,248
938,086 124,708
489,960 304,642

—1.804192 705007

174,567 174,419
21,008 32,640
694,713 291,035
328,927 239,156
86,244 401,959
570,108 468,623
266,999 313,685
5,956 4423
111,288 116,004
180,770 188,040
93,343 178,971
186,396 157,052
22,143 13,890
224,598 144,081
8,918 4,118
327,604 387,025
210,488 203,854
3,412,160 3,315,085

This includes Rs.82.373 milllon {2018: Rs.86.003 million) in respect of commission ncome from home remiltance services provided by the
Bank. The amount is eamed from State Bank of Pakistan at the rale of Saudi Riyal 20 {2018: Saudi Riyal 20) par lrarsaction over USD 200
(2017: USD 200} and is shared between the Bank and various exchange companles as per terms of agreement with them,

{LOSS) / GAIN ON SECURIYIES - NET

Realised
Unrealised - held for trading

Reallsed gain on;

Federal governmant securities
Market treasury bills
Pakistan invesiment bonds
ljara sukuk cerilficates

Shares
Listed companies
Unlisted companies

Non Government Debt Securitles
Tarm finance cerificates
Sukuk certlficates

Mutual fund units
Forelgn currency bonds

OTHER INCOME - NET

Rent on Property
Gain on sale of fixed assets - net
Others

Note

26.1

Note

271

2019 2018
-------- Rupaas in '000 -vemevn
{874,365) (1,283,387)
8,368 {55,773)
{866,987) (1,239.160)
3,871 {15.687)
(247,328) {1,042 574)
633 572
{388,858} (297,488)
- 4,488
21,443 6,383
150 3,985
8,246 99,692
{74,323) (42,838)
(674,365} {1,283,387)
2019 2018
-------- Rupess In "000 svvereme
4,079 16,083
493,680 121,598
7,430 18,970
505,189 156,632

This includes gain of Rs.383.269 milkon on disposal of Bank's vehicles which resull of imptementation of Car Monetization Pollcy as approved
by Board of Directors in their 86th mesting dated Oclober 24, 2019 on racommendation of the 'Board HR, Remuneration & Nominatlon

Commiltee.

) B9 i
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OPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expense

Property expense

Rent & taxes .

insurance

Utilities cost

Security (including guards)

Repair & maintenance (including janitorial charges)
Depreciation

Depreciation on right-of-use assels

Depreciation on non banking assets

Information tachnology expenses
Software maintenance

Hardware maintenance
Depreciation

Amortisation

Network charges

Other operating expenses
Directors' fees and allowances
l.egal & professional charges
Insurance

Oufsourced services costs
Travelling & conveyance

NIFT clearing charges
Depreciation

Training & development
Postage & courier charges
Communication

Stationery & printing

Marketing, advertisement & publicity
Danations

Auditers remuneration

Staff auto fusl & maintenance
Bank charges

Stamp duty

Online verification charges
Brokerage, fee and commission
Card related fees (debit and credit cards)
CDC and other charges
Consuitancy fee

Deposlt protection corporation
Entertainment expenses

Fee and Subscription
Employses soclal securily
Generator fuel & maintenance
Fee and aliowances to Shariah Board
Royalty

ljarah rentals

Others

Add: Reimbursement of selling and distribution expenses

Note

28.1

4.1

4.1

38.1

282
28.3

28.4

285

J8 BANK LIMITED

2019

2013

wwssm-= RUPEBS iN '000 wsvsscnu

5,713,741 5,365,443
39,866 1,084,279
10,563 8,610

365,688 376,663
368,296 354,517
271,036 254,095
247,053 263,088
985,498 -
1,713 573
2,287,893 2,341,825
170,840 131,238
249,723 199,316
184,504 148,129
97,968 74,660
125,505 143,113
328,540 666,456
15,825 17,108
151,056 89,742
209,998 171,831
135,005 127,430
145,186 144,836
40,394 35,228
424,574 336,574
35,074 40,458
82,010 73,674
134,985 109,754
278,707 218,080
338,130 389,448
2,809 22,592
14,203 21,927
224,923 160,373
63,468 50,519
55,570 27,897
21,870 19,573
34,668 46,689
8,662 6,683
34,186 42,964
36,949 71,932
139,761 59,736
67,337 64,456
106,166 96,742
9,035 8,479
80,002 79,289
46 79
30,000 27,500
. 3,284
38,026 33,984
2,953,485 2,598,560
11,783,459 10,972,284
{21,686) (23,442)
11,761,773 10,948,842

%38
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28.11

28.2

28.21

283

28,31
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2019 2018
-------- Rupesas In ‘000 --------

Total compensation expense
Fees and Allowances etc. 191,025 185,761
Managerial Remuneration:
i) Fixed 4,031,180 3,686,405
iiy Variable of which;

a} Cash Bonus / Awards etc. 344,693 421,789

h) Commission 252,556 320,611
Charge for defined benefit plan 134,712 129,566
Contribution to defined contribution Plan 233,459 200,790
Leaving indemnity 4,246 2,313
Medical 357,750 324,857
House rent allowance 1,581 1,456
Utilities 176 162
Conveyance 81,851 14,611
Insurance Staff 74,841 76,139
Others 5,661 1,993

5,713,741 5,365,443

The Group operates a short term amployee benefit scheme which includes cash awards / special bonus for all
employees, Under this scheme, the bonus for all employees, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ} is

determined on the basis of employees’ evaluation and the Bank's performance during the year,

Donations
Future Trust 28.2.1 1,991 16,256
Hope Uptift Foundation 618 -
Bait-ul-Sukoon Cancer Hospital 200 -
The Supreme Court of Pakistan and The Prime Minister of Pakistan
Diamer-Bhasha And Mohmand Dams Fund - 7,336
2,809 22,592

This represents donation to a refated party, wherein below mentioned persons are trustees. The registered office of

the donee is located at 7th Floor, The Forum, Block 9, Clifton, Karachi.

Mr. Suleman Lalani Chief Executive Officer of Jahangir Siddigul & Co. Ltd (the parent company)

Ms. Rukhsana Shah Director of the parent company

Mr. Kalim-ur-Rehman Director of the Bank and the parent company

Mr. Hasan Shahid Director of JS Investments Limited, the Subsidiary Company

Mr. Najmul Hoda Khan Chief Financial Officer of the parent company

Mr, Tarig Usman Bhati Head of Money Market And Forex of JS Global Capital Limited, subsidiary company

2019 2018

Note =ammmma= RUPEES N '000 -oevsenn

Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee - Pakistan 3,442 3,212

Audit fee - Bahrain 1,640 1,431

Half-yearly review 1,169 1,083

Fee for audit of employees funds 143 130

Fee for other statutory certifications 763 805

Special certification and sundry advisory services 4,473 12,038

Taxation services 275 180

Out of pocket expenses and sales tax on services 2,398 3,348
28,31 14,203 21,927

Geographical analysis

Pakistan 12,140 20,296

Bahrain 2,153 4,631

14,293 21,927
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Royalty represents amounts payable to Mr. Jahangir Siddigui on account of use of name In the subsidiary of
the Bank.

The SECP vide Circular 40/2016 dated December 30, 2016, prescribed certain conditions on Asset
Management Companies (AMC) for charging of selling and marketing expenses to open end equity funds, for
opening of new branches in cities, except Karachi, Lahore, !stamabad and Rawalpindi. Expenses can be
charged to the extent of 0.4% per annum of net assets of fund or actual expenses whichever is lower,

2019 2018
Workers' Welfare Fund Note crearees RUPEOS iN 000 wonermne
Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Charge during the year 29.1 3,358 10,483
Reversal of prior years 18.1 - (98,210)
3,358 (87,727)
Reversal of Federal Workers' Welfare Fund 18.1 69,349) (74,702)
65,991) {162,429)

Provision held at 2% of the higher of profit before tax or taxable income to the extent of operations carriad out
under Sindh Workers' Wellare Act, 2014,

OTHER CHARGES
Penaities imposed by State Bank of Pakistan 131,444 14,748
Others 6,199 1,485
137,643 16,203
(REVERSALS) / PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS - NET
Pravisions for diminution in value of investments (345,300) (300,401)
Provisions against Ioans & advances 360,353 406,236
Other reversals (2,280) -
General provision - under IFRS-¢ (105,018) (39,807)
Bad debts written off directly 316 92,270
Impairment loss against intangible assets 3,227 -
(88,703} 168,298
2019 2018
TAXATION Note - RUpees In 000 ------
Current 791,261 537,643
Prior years 13,715 {4,5635)
Deferred (634,169) (101,531)
: 321 170,807 431,677
Relationship between income tax expense and accountlng profit
Profit before taxation {85,801) 1,070,612
Tax at applicable rates in the Group 80,035 362,828
Effect of permanent differences 34,014 71,020
Tax effect of income charged at different tax rates-net 18,617 (11,966)
Tax effect of exempt capital gains - {30,213}
Effect of prior year deferred taxation 11,251 (12,876)
Effects of current and prior year super tax 31,608 51,169
Deferred tax recognised at higher rate - (2,598)
Others {4,718) 4,213
32.1.1 170,807 431,577

The Group has recognised taxation impact on the basis of deemed tax return to be file on applicable tax rate
with tax authorities, which are as follows:
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Tax Rate
2019 2018
JS Bank Limited 35% 35%
JS Investments Limited 29% 28%
JS Global Capital Limited 29% 29%
4§ ABAMCO Commedities limited 28% 28%

J§ Bank Limited (Holding Company, the Bank)

Income tax

The income tax returns filed under Section 114 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax years 2007
through 2019, These returns filed were deemed to have been assessed in terms the provisions prevailing
under income tax laws as applicable in Pakistan, However, the Officers of Inland Revenue Services (QIR)
conducted the proceedings for making certain amendments in the deemed assessments for tax years 2008
to 2017, This was done by taking recourse of conducting tax audit or alternatively a direct amendment in the
assessment contending that certain matters in the deemed assessments weare not admissible as not
cenformina to the law and preiudiced the interest of revenue.,

Based on the amended assessments in tax year 2008 to tax year 2017, the department had made certain dis-
allowances of expenses and tax deductible claims besides creating minimum tax and Workers' Welfare Fund
liabilities in the tax years 2010, 2011 & 2012 and tax years 2009, 2012 & 2013 respectively.

In respect of WWF, the Supreme Court of Pakistan has held in Judgement, PLD 2017 SC 28, that the
amendments made in the WWF Ordinance through Finance Act, 2006 and 2008 were ifegal and without
lawful authority l.e. the Holding companys do not fall into definition of Industrial Undertaking and thus, not
liable to pay WWF. Therefore based on this, the Holding company's contention is mandated and it is likely
that its pending appeals in this will be decided favorably. The Holding Company has obtained appeal effect
orders of respective vears except 2013 and resultantly no demand is pavable in this respect,

As a consequence of introduction of Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund Act, the Holding Company is required to
pay WWF to Sindh Revenue Board effective from tax year 2015, The Holding Company has filed petition
before the Honourable High Court of Sindh to contest applicability of SWWF in its case and stay has been
granted against recovery of SWWF.

In respect of minimum tax, the Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (the CIRA) has the not accepted the
Holding Company's contentions of gross loss position and also decided that non-mark-up income is the fall in
the definition of turnover including capital gains and dividend income. As result the demand of Rs. 38.907
million has been payable. The Holding company has contested the matter in further appeals before Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which are pending for hearing.

For tax year 2008-2017, the Holding Company has not accepted the amendments of Rs. 6.27 billion and have
filed appeals before the Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (the CIRA),

CIRA has admitted the contention of the Holding Company in case of tax year 2008 that the amended order is
barred by time and decided that any addition made in impugned order is annulled and not required to be
further adjudicated. However, the department has filed an appeal against the decision of CIRA in ATIR which
has been partly heard,

With regard to appeals filed for tax year 2009 to 2017, the CIRA has decided the appeals accepting the
Holding Company’s contentions in respect of significant issues, and certain disallowance including
amortization claim of goodwill have been decided in favor of department in ail tax years. However, the Helding
Company and the tax department are contesting the matters in further appeals before Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue {ATIR) which are being heard.

During the year, the tax department has passed appeal effect/rectification orders and allowad deleted and set-
aside issues in the light of CIR(A) orders for tax year 2008 to 2014. As a result of these orders, the Holding
Company's laxable losses has increased to Rs. 3,464 billion and reduced the demand of Rs. 1.212 billion in
relevant tax years after adjustment of these losses,
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Further for the tax year 2013, the ATIR has decided appesl filsd by tax department in respect of calculating
the amount of provisions against advances as allowable under Rule 1(¢) of Seventh Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 and has maintained the CiRA decision that the allowability of provision for advances to
be calculated at 1% of gross amount of advances as against the tax department contention that the same is
to be calculated on net advances after deducting the amount of provisions created and allowed against
advances,

The matter of aliowability of amortization relating to goodwill is contentious issue, therefore based on the
opinion of lawyer there are arguments available to contend that goodwill on merger is a tax claimable
deduction. Especially in the recent decision given by the High Court of Sindh in the case of merger of other
Bank in Pakistan where the court has ruled favorably that goodwill generated in merger is ‘intangible’ and
amortization relating to goodwill is allowable deduction.

The Holding Company has not been accepting levy of Super Tax and has been contesting the matter in high
court and other appeliate forums.

The management of Holding Company is confident that the appeals filed on various forums In respect of the
above matters will be decided in the Holding Company's favor and accordingly no demand for payment would

Withholding tax monitoring

Withholding tax monitoring was initiated against the Holding Company for tax year 2014-2019.Orders in
respect of tax years 2014, 2015 and 2017 has been passed against which appeals have been filed before the
GIR(A). CIR(A) has reminded back the matters for rectification in respect of tax years 2014 and 2015 against
which rectified orders has been passed and demands have been rectified. Appeal for tax year 2017 has been
heard and reserved for order. In respect of tax year 2018 and 2019, proceedings are pending.

Sales Tax

The Holding Company as a registered person under Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 has been issued
a Sales Tax Order from the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) creating a demand of Rs.48.838 million (hesides
Rs.4.440 million is charged as penalty} against the Holding Company for allegedly non-payment of Sindh
sales tax on certain 'presumed non-taxable services / incomes'(i.e. Bancassurance, Home Remittances
under Pakistan Remittance Initiative Scheme, SBP rebates on Government securities, Rebates from foreign
correspondent banks, and FX gain on remittance by Western Union)' on total amounting to Rs.277.488
million for the tax periods July 2011 to December 2013. An appeal was filed before Commissioner (Appeals)
Sindh Revenue Board, CA-SRB against the decision of AC-SRB which was decided in favor of the tax
department except tax imposed on FX gain on remittance by Western Union. Thereafter, both the Holding
company and AC-SRB filed appeals before the Appellate Tribunal SRB against the decision of CA-SRB.
Through its Order dated April 18, 2019, the Appeliate Tribunal SRB quashed the demand raised by deciding
appeal in the Holding Company's favour and dismissing the AC-SRB's appeal. The Helding Company and tax
departmant have filed appeals before Appellate Tribunal which are pending for hearing.

The management of Holding Company is confident that the appeals filed in respect of the above matter wil
be decided in the Holding Company's favor and accordingly no demand for payment would arise.

Azad Jammu & Kashmlr Operations

The Holding Company has commenced cperations in Azad Jammu & Kashmir from tax year 2009 and has
filed returns for the tax years 2009 to 2018 with the tax authorities of such region. The Commissioner has
issued notices for amendment of assessment under section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (as
adopted in AJK Region) for the tax year 2011 to 2017, All assessments orders are rectified and no additional
demand has been raised.

JS Global Capital Limited (Subsidiary, the Company)

Inceme tax

Except for tax year 2009, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 income tax assessiments have been filad and are
deemed to have been assessed under the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 (the Ordinance} unless selected by
taxation authorities for audit purposes.
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For tax year 2009, an ITRA no. 07/2013 was filed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue against an order
passed by the Learned Appefiate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) in ITA no. 923/KB/2011 dated August 28,
2012 which was related to the apportionment of expenses, aliowability of expensas and claiming of tax
deducted at source aggregating to Rs. 61,16 million. However, the same is pending for decision befere the
Sindh High Court (SHC).

For tax year 2014, an amended assessment order dated April 28, 2016, has been passed under section 122
(6A) of the Ordinance by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR). Through said order, the ACIR
raised demand amounting to Rs. 20.081 million. The Company has filed rectification appiication identifying
various errors / details not considered by the ACIR and requested ACIR to rectify the same. In addition to
that, the Company has also filed an appeal to the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIR-A) which is
pending. The Company has also obtained stay against recovery of demand from SHC till the decision of CIR-
A

For tax year 2015, an order dated November 23, 2016 was passed under section 4B of the Ordinance by the
Deputy Commissioner Intand Revenue (DCIR). Through said order, an income of Rs.810.584 million was
computed under section 48 of the Ordinance and resultant demand of super tax of Rs. 24.318 million was
raised. An appeal was filed against the above order before CIR-A on December 01, 2016 identifying various
errors / details not considered. The CIR-A, has confirmed DCIR's order vide his order dated May 30, 2017. In
pursuance of the order of CIR-A, the Company has filed appeal before ATIR along with application for stay
against recovery of demand. The appeal before ATIR has been heard and order is reserved whilst ATIR vide
order dated July 18, 2017 has granted stay for 60 days and subsequently the said stay was further extended
vide various orders by ATIR. Subsequently, recovery of aforesaid tax demand has now been stayed by the
Hon'able SHC through C.P No 4815 of 2018 vide order dated June 28, 2018 with direction to the Department
not to enforce recovery of tax demand till the decision of ATIR.

For tax year 2016 and 2017, notices dated December 27, 2016 and January 3, 2018 were issued under
section 4B of the Ordinance by the DCIR. In the said notices the DCIR has contended that the Company is
liable to pay Super Tax amounting to Rs. 24.483 million and Rs. 19.490 million on ‘income’ of Rs. 816.122
million and Rs. 649,676 million for Tax Years 2016 and 2017 respectively. The Company has challenged both
notices through writ petition before SHC on constitutional grounds wherein the SHC has, vide its orders dated
January 16, 2017 and January 11, 2018 for Tax Years 2016 and 2017 respectively, has stated that no
coercive action shall be taken against the Company. The DCIR passed the orders under section 4B vide
order dated April 23, 2018 and May 4, 2018 for tax years 2016 and 2017 respectively to levy Super tax of
above mentioned amounts under the view that SHC has not restrained the department from passing the
orders. In pursuance of the said orders, Company filed appeals which confirmed by CiR-A vide its order dated
Qctober 12, 2018 for both years. The Company has filed appeals before Appeliant Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) against the orders of CIR-A. Meanwhile, the Company paid 50% of tax demand of both tax years to
maintain the above suits in light of judgment of Hon'able Supreme Court of Pakistan (Civil Appeals No.
1171/2017 and other connected appeals) wherein, the pending suits are daclared to be entertained on the
conditicn that a minimum of 50% of tax demand is deposited with tax authoritles during the pendency of
appeal. During the year the appeal has been heard before ATIR and is reserved for order.

For tax year 2018, a notice under section 4B of the Ordinance by the DCIR dated December 7, 2018 was
issued, contending that the Company is liable to pay Super Tax amounting to Rs. 45.211 million on ‘income’
of Rs. 1,507.039 million. The Company has challenged the notice on constitutional grounds before SHG
through C.P. No. 8670 of 2018. The SHC, vide its order dated December 14, 2018, has statad that no
coercive action shall be taken against the Company.

For tax year 2018, an amended assessment order has heen passed under seclion 122(5A) of the Ordinance
by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR). Through the said order, the ACIR raised demand
amounting to Rs. 241.217 million. Upon appeal filed, CIR-A confirmed the ACIR’s order vides its order dated
December 12, 2017. In pursuance of the order of CIR-A, the Company has filed appeal before ATIR. During
the year ATIR has decided the matter has annulied CIRAs action on confirming disaliowances made in the
order passed by ACIR dated November 02, 2017, with directions to CIRA to pass speaking and reasoned
order after providing due opportunity of being heard. As a result, the likely assessment position after appeal
effect of ATIR's order under section 124 of the Ordinance is that only tax demand on account of undistributed
reserves is outstanding, which has alsc been stayed by SHC vide interim order in CP No, 0-2343 of 2019
dated April 09, 2019.

Furthermore, during the year a rectification application has been filed for erroneously considered share
premium reserves while computing excess reserves under section 5A of the Ordinance by the ACIR, in its
order dated November 2, 2017. As a result of which tax demand under section 5A would be reduced to Rs.
7.523,230. r(;! 5.
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For tax year 2017, an amended assessment order has been passed under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance
by the ACIR. Through the said order, the ACIR raised a demand amounting to Rs. 17.649 million. The
Company has filed an appeal before CIR-A which has been heard, however, no order has been passed till
date. The total tax demand was partially stayed by the order of SHC vide CP No. 5431 of 2017 dated August

16, 2017, while the remaining liabllity was adjusted from the available refunds as declared in the return for tax
year 2017.

For tax year 2017, a show-cause notice under section 161/205 of the Ordinance has been issued by tax
authority. Through the said order, the Company was alleged for non-deduction of tax under section 150 of the
Crdinance on payment made to shareholders in respect of buy back of shares. The said notice has been
challenged before Sindh High Court (SHC) through legal counsel of the Company and SHC has prohibited tax
department from passing any order without its permission, On the directions of court, detailed reply to show-
cause notice has also been submitted vide our letter dated January 26, 2018. Tax authorlties have issued a
subsequent notice dated March 6, 2018, requesting to provide certaln factual details which have also been
submitted vide our letter dated March 16, 2018,

Sales Tax

Ouring 2013, the Company received a show cause notice from the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB} under
seclion 47 of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011. Subsequently, an order was passed reducing the
demand to Rs. 8.86 million along with default surcharge. The Company filed an appeal before the CIR-A and
after being dacided against the Company, it subsequently filed an appeal before Appeliate Tribunal SRB.
During the year 2014, the Company paid an amount of Rs. 7.15 million in respect of the abovementioned
liability before June 28, 2014 under the nalification SRB 3-4/8/2014 to avall the exemption from application of
penalty and 75% of default surcharge. Appellate Tribunal SRB vide order dated November 29, 2017 decided
the issue of Sindh Sales Tax (SST) in favor of the Company. However, the issus of SST on advisory and
consultancy services and commission earned on purchase/sale of mutual funds have been remanded back
whilst the issue relating to SST on commission on foreign exchange dealing , services rendered outside
Sindh and levy of default surcharge and penalty have been decided against the Company. The Company has
filed a reference application before SHC in respect of the issues decided against the Company and remanded

LERENEN

During 2014, the Company also received another show cause notice from SRB under section 47 of the Sindh
Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011. Subsequently, an order was passed raising a tax demand amounting to Rs.
10.77 million. The Company has filed an appeal against the order with CIR-A which is pending. Further, in
respact of the same, rectification application has also been filed with the department. The Company and other
stock brokers have also filed pefition with the SHC and has been granted interim stay against recovery of
demand. However, the Company has paid an amount of Rs. 9.24 million before June 25, 2014 undsr the
notification SRB 3-4/8/2014 to avail the exemption of penalty and 75% of default surcharge.

Furthermore, for fiscal year 2014 and 2015, SRB alleged short payment of SST vide Notice dated February
02, 2017. The Company has submitted all the required detalis in response to the notice and no order in this
respect has been passed.

Federal Excise Duty {(FED)

Tax department has issued show cause notice dated June 08, 2015 confronting (alleged) non payment of
Federal Excise Duty (FED) on Company's services under Federal Excise Act, 2005 and subsequently issued
an order raising a demand amounting to Rs.78.003 million for tax year 2010 to tax year 2013, The Company
filed a rectification appeal, in addition, to filing an appeal in the SHC, through Stockbroker Association (of
which the Company is also the member) against aforementioned order on the grounds that after 18th
amendment to the Constitution, the services that were previously subjected to FED under the federal laws are
now subject to the provincial sales tax and the Company has accordingly discharged its tax obligation. The
SHC initially, stayed Federal Board of Revenus from demanding sales tax on services from stockbrokers and
subsequently, disposed of the order in Company's favor. However, CIR-A on the matter of appeal filed by the
Company issued an order in favor of the department vide its order dated January 31, 2017. In pursuance of
the order of CIR-A the Company has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal SR8 along with application for
stay of demand which was granted initially for 30 days and was subsequently extended vide various orders.
Appeliate Tribunal SRB has decided the matter vide order dated December 20, 2017, received by us on April
09, 2018, whereby ATIR decided that FED is applicable only on the commission earned from trading of
shares and no other type of commission comes under the ambhit of FED. With this opinion, ATIR has
remanded back the issue related to pre amendment era. For post amendment era, ATIR has relied upon the
decision of SHC (stated above) and declared the charge of FED after July 01, 2011 nulf and void.
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J8 Investments Limited {Subsidiary, the Company)

Income tax

In respect of the appeals filed by the Company before Commissioner Inland Revenue {Appeals) [C
(Appeals)] against orders passed for tax years 2006 and 2009 against demand of Rs.162 million and
million respeclively, the CIR (Appeals) had not accepted the basis of additions by tax authoritles and set asi
both the orders in respect of allocation of expenses between various sources of income for fresh proceedin:
with the directions to apportion the commaon expenditure according to actual incurrence of expenditure to tl
various sources of income,

In respect of above said order of CIR (Appeals) for tax year 2006 and 2009, the Company filed second appe
before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) in respect of apportionment of expenses. The ATIR vi
order dated April 20, 2017 delsted the additions on proration of expenses for tax year 2008 howeve
confirmed the CIR{A)'s order whereby CIR(A) remanded back / set-aslde the Issue of apportionment
expenses,

The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue vide order dated May 21, 2016 was deleted the additions of t
amortization of management rights and remand back the issues of disallowed provisions and adverliseme
expenses for the tax year 2009.

The tax autherities issued orders giving effect {hereinafter referred collectively as ‘appeal effect orders’) to t
order of CIR {Appeals) for both tax year 2006 and 2009 whereby demands for these tax years were reduc
at Rs.77.33 million and Rs.59.93 million respectively. As the allocation of expenditure in the said appeal effe
orders were not made according to actua! incurrence of expenditure to the various sources of incom
therefore, the Company again filed appeals kefore the CIR (Appsals} against the said orders,

In respect of second round of appeal filed by the Holding company bafore CIR (Appeals) against appeal effe
orders for tax year 2006 and 2008, the CIR {(Appeals) for tax year 2006 confirmed apportionment
expenditure made by the {ax authorities in appeal effect order, howsver, adjustment of allowable expens
were set aside, For tax year 2009, CIR (Appeals) had set aside the appeal effect order in entirety for fre
assessment, which is yet to be made by tax authorities

The CIR (Appeals) also rectified the order passed by his predecessor for tax Year 2006, whereby the additi
regarding the portion of capital gain included in dividend received from mutual funds was held delete
Resulted appeal effect order refiects refund of Rs.29 million. The tax authorities have filed an appeal befc
ATIR against said order of CIR (Appeals) in respect of deletion of addition regarding the portion of capital g
included in dividend. The ATIR vide order dated December 07, 2016 set-aside with the direction that t
ACIR should examine the issue in the light of FBR Circular letter dated September 10, 2002.

In respect of tax year 2006, managament contends, based on views of its tax advisor, that amendment
assessment for such tax year by tax authorities is time barred. Accordingly, the Company has filed an appe
before the Appallate Tribunal Inland Revenue. The ATIR of the view that the amendment of assessment
net time bared however, the ATIR deleted the addition of tax amortization of management right vide orc
dated February 10, 2017,

Qrder under section 122(1)/(5) dated December 30, 2017 for the tax year 2015 passed by the DCIR creat
demand of Rs.40 miflion against which Company filed appeal before the CIR(A). The DCIR consider ¢
request for rectification and passed order under section 221 dated February 27, 2017 as a result of the abc
order the demand reduced to Rs.36.904 million. The CIR(A) vide order dated May 8, 2019 was pal
considered our submissions put before him. Company submitted appeal before the ATIR against the order
the CIR(A).

The DCIR passed order under section 122(1)/(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 dated June 23, 20
and reduce the refund claimed of Rs.8.499 million to Rs.3.102 million for the tax year 2012, The learned C
(Appeal) vide order dated May 6, 2019 was confirmed the ACIR's order and held that the appeal was 1
entertainable being barred by time limitation for the tax year 2012. Company submitted appeal before |
ATIR against the order of the CIR(A)}.

Management, based on views of its legal counsel, is confident of a favorable outcome in respect of abc
matters.
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2019 2018
Note coemeee Rupees in '000 --------

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE
Profit after taxation for the year - attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Holding company for difuted earnings (245,288) 616,152
Preference dividend for the year

December 31, 2018 @ 12% p.a (2017: @ 12% p.a.) 33.1 (24,164) {180,000)
Profit after taxation for the year - attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Holding company for basi¢c earnings (269,449} 435,152

............ Numbers seessassasua
Weighted average number of hasic outstanding

ordinary shares during the year 1,297,464,262 1,267,258,783
summmmnmmece RUPEE memmemniias
Basic and diluted earnings / (loss} per share (0.21) 0.34

The shareholders of the Holding company in their meeting held on March 28, 2019 approved non-cumulative
preference dividend of Rs.24.164 million (2018; Rs.180 million) for the preference shareholders. Since it was
not recognised as a liability at reporting period as of December 31, 2018 due to non-adjusting event in
accordance with International Accounting Standard - IAS 10 “Events after the Reporting Pericd”, the basic
earnings per share of the current period has been adjusted accordingly.

During 2018, the diluted earnings per share increased for the year whan taking the convertible preference
shares into account, therefore the convertible preference shares are anti-dilutive and are excluded from the
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share.

2019 2018
Note —momeeen Rupees in '000 ---m--

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 25,690,173 32,111,176
Balances with other banks 8 476,370 978,151
Overdrawn nostro account 15 (636,992) {501,629)

25,429,551 32,687,698
Less: General provision under IFRS 9 (68) (127)

25,429,483 32,587,571
8TAFF STRENGTH s Numbers -—------
Permanent 3,904 3,848
On Group's contract 832 1,148
Group's own staff strength at the end of the year 4,736 4,997
Outsourced services 351 472 496

5,208 5,493
This represents third party contracts other than guards and janitorial services.
Geographical segment analysis
Pakistan 5,201 5,487
Bahrain 7 B
5,208 5,493
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The Bank operales a recognized gratuity fund for all employees who opted for this scheme introduced by the management with

effect from January 01, 2007.

The dafined benefit is administerad by a separate fund that is legally separate from the Bank. The plan is governed by the trust
deed dated September 01, 2007, The trustees of the gratuity fund are composed of representatives from employers. The trustees
of the gratuity fund are required by the trust deed to act in tha interest of the fund and of all relevant stakeholdars in the scheme, i.6.
active employees, inactive employeas, retiress and employers. The trustees of the gratuily fund are respensible for the invesimant

policy with regard to the assets of the fund,

The pfan in Pakistan typically exposes the Bank to acfuarial risks such as: salary risk, discount rate rlsk, mortality risk and

investment risk defined as follow:

- Salary increase risk:

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of services is greater than assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the
final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benafit amount Increases as salary

increases.
- Discount rate risk

The discount rate is based on the yield on government bonds. If tha market yield of bonds varies, the discount rate would vary
in the same manner and would atfact the prasent value of obligation and fair value of assets.

- Demographic Risks

Withdrawal risk:

The risk of actual withdrawals experience Is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the
withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

Longevity Risk

The risk that the actual morality experience is different than the assumed montallty. This effact is more pronounced in

schemes wheve the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

- Investment risk

This is the risk that the assets are under-performing and are not sufflcient to mest the llabilities.

Number of employees under the schemes

The number of employsas covered under defined benefit schame (gratuity fund) is 3,595 (2018: 3,522).

Principal actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions &t the end of the reporting period expressed as weighted averages. The actuarial valuations were
carried out on Decembar 31, 2018 based on ths Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following significant assumplions:

Valuation discount rate for year end obligation
Veluation discount rate for interast cost for the year
Expected return on plan assets
Fulure salary increase rate

- uptoc onhe years

- from two to three years

- more than three years
Effeclive duration of the discounted future cash flows
Mormal retirement age

Withdrawal rates

Mortality rates

per annum
per annum
per annum
per annum
per annum
per anhum

years

years

2019 2018
11.75% 13.75%
13.75% 9.50%
11.76% 13.75%

8.00% 10.50%
10.00%
11.75% 13.75%
10 11
60 860
Moderate Moderate
SL1C 2009- SLIC 2001-
2005, Setback 20085,
1 Year Setback 1
Year

197



36.5

6.6

36.6.1

36.7

36.7.1

36.8
36.81

61

Movement in defined benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets and thelr components

Balance as at January 01

Included in profit or loss
Current service cost
Past service cost
Infersst cost / income

Included in other comprehensive
incoms
Actuarial gains / losses arising from:
financial assumptions
experience adjustments

Other movements

Contribution made during the year
Benefits paid during the year

Balance as at December 31

Nate

Cash and cash equivalents
Debt securities 36.6.1
Ordinary Shares of listed companies

JS BANK LIMITED

Dafined benefit Net defined benefit liability
obligations Fair value of pian assets {asset)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rupees in '000
845,062 548,530 546,568 373,412 102,494 176,118
125,676 118,060 - 125,676 118,060
2,113 2,525 . - 2,113 2,525
87,892 51,168 80,969 43,197 6,923 7,971
216,681 172,763 50,969 43,197 134,712 128,556
{8,792) (127 462) (18,0085) {25,329} 9,213 (102,133)
7,966 75,071 - - 7,956 75,071
(836} {52 381) (18,005) {25,329) 17,188 {27,062)
- - 102,494 175,118 {102,494} (175,118}
{19,695} {19,830) {19,695} {19,830) . -
{19,695) {19,830) 82,799 155,288 {(102,484) (175,418)
844,212 649,062 892,331 546,568 151,881 102,494
The composition of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows:
Cost Fair value of plan assets
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000 Percentage
171,000 245,411 171,600 245411 24.8% A44.7%
519,162 315,000 509,776 304,063 73.4% £5.3%
14,928 - 13,346 - 1.9% 0.0%
705,081 580,411 694,122 549,474 100% 100%

This represents investments held in Pakistan Invesimenl Bonds (PIBs), Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) and Ordinary shares of
listed companiss, The fair vatues of these securilies are delermined based on quoted markat prices in aclive markets.

Maturity profile

Expected maturity analysis of undiscountad defined benefit obligation (benefit payments) for tha gratuity fund is as follows:

Balance as at December 31, 2019

Balance as al Decamber 31, 2018

Sensitivity analysis

Over
10 and
Upto Qver Over Over above
one year 1-2 yoars 2- 5 yeara §-10 years years Total
Rupees in 000
37,261 44,650 247,395 901,479 14,564,443 __16.765.128
27,055 38,922 184,327 848,062 18,055,928 19,154,301

Significanl actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, and expecled rate of salary
increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while helding all other assumptions constant:
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Present value
of defined Fair valua of Net defined

henefit any plan benefit
Particulars Rate obligation assols liability
smanemmneeeee RUPRES N 000 -cnomemmaeans

GCurrent rasults - 844,212 692,33 161,881
Discount rate

1% Increase 12.75% 768,104 692,331 75,773

1% Decrease 10.75% 931,799 692,33 239,488
Salary Rate

1% Increase 12.75% 933,130 692,331 240,798

1% Decrease 10.75% 765,579 892,331 73,248
Withdrawal rate

10% Increase Moderate + one year 822,373 692,331 130,042

10% Decreass Moderate - one year 867,979 692,331 175,648
Mortality rate

One year age set hack Adjusted SLIC 2001-2005 - one yaar 843,784 892,331 161,453

QOne year age set forward Ad]usted SLIC 2001-2005 + one year 844,869 692,331 152,338

Furthermore in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present valus of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unil credit method at the and of the reporting perlod, which is the same es applied in calculating the defined
benefil obligation Hability recognised in this unconsolidated statement of financial position.

Experience Adjustments

The re-measurement gains / losses arise due to actual axperience varying from the actuarial assumptions for the year.

2019 2018 2017 2016 2016
-------------------------- Rupees in "000 «ocreemmmrmmme e

Particulars

Defined benefit obligation 844,212 649,082 560,728 367,635 235,572
Fair value of plan assets (692,331} {546,568) {(375,611) {249,327) (171,567)
Net defined benefit liability 151,881 102,484 175,118 118,308 64,005
Re-measurement loss / (gain) on obligation {836} (62,381} 75,269 56 598 12,774
Re-measurement loss / (gain} an plan assels 18,005 25,329 10,273 393 {3,104}
Other comprehsnsive income 17,169 {27,062} 85,5642 56 991 9,670

The average duration of the payment of banefit obligation at December 31, 2019 is within ong year.

The Bank contributes to the gratuity fund as per acluarial's sxpscted charge for the next financial year. Based on aciuarial advice
and management estimates, the charge in respect of defined benefit oblfigation for the next one year works out to be Rs.157.616
million. The amount of re-measurements to be recognised in other comprehensive income for year ending Dacamber 31, 2020 will
be worked out as at the next valuation.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Group operates a contributory provident fund schame for all permanant employaes. The employer and employee both make a
contribution of equal amount t6 the fund as follows:

Contributlon Confribution made dusing
hasic salary Number of smploveeas the year
2019 2018 2019 2018
Percentages ====nee Numbers ------ - ==meee== RUpees in 000 «eeeees
Holding company
- JS Bank Limited 7.1% 3,002 2,726 209,871 177,359
Subsidiary companies
- JS Global Capital Limited 10.0% 163 195 13,586 14,400
- JS Investments Limited 8.0% 102 103 8,990 9,030

[9
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXEGUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statemenis for the year in respect of ihe remuneration and benefits to the President
I Chief Executive, Direclors and Exacutives are as follows:

2019
Birectors Other
Key Matarial Risk
Non- President/ Management Takersf Other
ltemns Chalrman  Executives CEQ Personnel Controllers Executives
Rupees In "000
Feas and Allowances etc. 1,960 13,675 - - - .
Managerial Remunaration
i) Fixed - - az,727 283,506 "~ 365,567 188,486
iy Total Variable - Cash Bonus / Award - " - 14,670 1,440 16,513
Charge for defined benefil plan - - 1,934 14,757 20,608 -
Contribution to defined contribution pla - - 3,279 22,833 30,326 11,920
Medical - - 3,273 26,903 36,557 16,929
Utilities
House rent allowance
Conveyance - - 667 11,196 32,466 “
Car allowance - - . 4,924 11,852 -
Others * - - 300 943 1,885 4,478
Tolal 1,950 13,676 42,180 379,732 500,699 238,326
Number of persons 1 21 1 26 87 g3
2018
Directors Koy
Non- President/ WManagement Other
ltems Chairman  Execulives CEO Personnal Executives
Rupees in '000

Faes and Allowances elc. 600 16,5611 - - -
Managarial Remuneration
i) Fixed - - 26,833 275443 1,327,444
ii) Total Variabla - Cash Bonus / Awards - - 25,000 98,625 174,553
Charge for defined benefit pfan - - 889 14,771 75,695
Conlribution to defined contribution plan - - 1,068 26,008 110,461
Madical - - 2,683 26,644 132,744
Convayance - - 203 9,744 117,064
Rent & house maintenance - - - 1,473 -
Ulilities - - - 164 -
Others * - - g B4i 7,711
Total 600 16,511 57,067 453,611 1,845 572
Number of persons 1 21 1 29 568

In case of the Holding Company, the SBP, vide its BPRD Circular No. 01 dated January 25, 2017, issued Guidelines on
Remuneration Practices, Certain disclosure ralated to remuneration of Directors and key exacutives and other material risk takers
(MRTs) and material risk controllers (MRCs) of the Bank were required to be presentad in the financlal statements in terms of such
guidslinas with effective from December 31, 2019. Therefore, the Holding Company has reported the disclosures on remuneration
practices in these consolidated financial statements in accordance with such 'Guidelines' for Decembar 3, 2019. Howavar, for
2018, due to deferment of above guidelines by SBP through its circutar number BPRD/ R&PD/ 2018/ 17232 dated August 08, 2018,
the Halding Company has disclosed numbers on the basis of definition given under the Gompanies Act, 2017, i.e. Execulives from
Individuals with an annual basic salarv exceeding Rs 1.2 million.

In 2018, the Companies Act, 2017 has changed the definition of Exacutives from individuals wilh an annus! basic salary exceading
Rs.0.500 million: to individuals with an annual basic salary excesding Rs 1.200 million, therefors, the subsidiaries companies have
disclosed their executive numbers accordingly.

The CEO and Deputy CEO are provided free use maintained cars in accordance with their entitiement,

All Key Managsment Personnel! including the CEO and other executives, of the Bank, are alsc entitled to cerlain short term
employee benefits which are disclosed in note 28.1 to these consolitatad financial statements.

Ao0
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38.2 Meeting Fees and Allowances Paid

34,

2019
Board Committees
Human
Resource,
Remuneration Risk Total
Board Audit & Nominatlon Management LT Exscutive Amount
Mestings _Commlitee _ Commiltee Committee  Commlttes Committee Pald
wremsernrrnsnsnnanaveasans RUPEOS §N Q00 remrrersrarsersnnsiniensnn
Name of Director
1 Mr. Kalim-ur-Rahman 1,250 - 200 200 300 - TH0
2 Mr. Adil Matchaswala 1,000 300 300 - - - 600
3 Mr. Ashraf Nawabl 1,000 - - 200 - - 200
4 Mr. GM Sikander 1,260 300 400 - - - TOO
5 Mr. Hassan Afzal** 760 “ - - 300 - 300
6 Mr. Munawar Alam Siddigui 1,260 300 300 - - - 600
7 Ms_ Nargis Ghatoo 1,250 200 100 200 - - 500
8 Mr. Sohail Aman* 260 - - - 100 - 100
8  Mr. Sulemarn Lalani* - - - . - - .
10 Mr, Shahab Anwar Khawaja™ 260 100 - - - - 100
11 Mr. Abdul Hamid Mihrez 300 - 100 - - 100 200
12 Mr. Munir Hassan 300 - - - - 100 100
13 Mr. Ammar Talib Hajeyah 300 100 - - . . 100
4 Mr. Khurshid Hadi 500 €00 300 - - - 900
5 Mr. Asif Raza Sana 250 125 - - . - 125
16 Mr. Ahsen Ahmed 300 100 75 - - 25 200
Total amount pald 10,200 2126 1,775 600 700 225 6,425
2018
Board Committees
Human
Rasource,
Remuneration Rlsk Total
Board Audit & Nominatlon Management LT Executive  Amount
Meetings _Committee _ Committes Committee  _Commitlee Commlties Paid
--------------------------- Rupees in '000 v e
Name of Director
1 Mr. All Jehangir Siddigui 600 - 100 - - - 100.0
2 Mr, Adil Matcheswala 1,500 400 - - 300 - 700.0
3 r, Ashraf Nawabi 1,250 - - 300 - - 300.0
4 Mr. G.M. Sikander 1,500 400 200 - - - 600.0
5 Mr. Kalim-ur-Rahman 1,500 - - 400 300 - 700.0
& Mr. Munawar Alam Siddiqui 1,500 - - 400 - - 400.0
7 Ms. Nargis Ghalog 1,500 - 200 - 300 - 500.0
8 Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja 1,500 400 - - - - 400.0
S Mr. Abdul Hamid Mihrez 300 - 100 - - 100 200.0
10 Mr. Munir Hassan 300 - - - - 100 100.0
11 Mr. Ammar Talib Hajeyah 300 100 - - - - 100.0
12 Mr. Khurshid Hadi 300 400 136 - - - 536.0
13 Mir. Asif Raza Sana 275 - - - - - -
14 Mr. Ahsan Ahmed 175 . 75 - - - 75.0
Total amount paid 12,400 1,700 811 1,100 400 200 4,711

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMEMTS

IFRS 13 "Fair Valus Measurement” defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid {o transfer a liability in an
arderly transactlon between market pasticipants al the measurement date.

The fair valug of quoled securities other lhan those classified as held to maturily, is based on quoted market price. Fair value of fixed term
loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposils cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to absenge of current and active
market for assets and liabifities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments. The provision for impairment of loans and
advances has heen calculated in accordance with the Bank's accounting palicy as stated in note 4.5 to these consolidated financial statements.

The repricing profile, effaclive rates and maturity are stated in note 42.3.4 to these financial stalemeants.

In the opinion of the managemant, the falr value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their carrying
values since assets and Habilities are eilher shorl term In nature or in the case of customer loans and deposits are frequently repriced.
Db
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IFRS 13 requires the Bank to classify fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements, The fair value hierarchy has following levels:

Level1 Quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date,

Level 2  [nputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

Level 3  Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

3.1 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2

Item

Valuation approach and input used

Units of mutual funds

Fair values of investmanis in units of mulual funds are determined based on
rademption prices disclosed at the Mulual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP)
as at the close of the business days.

Shares of listed companies

Fair values of investments in listed equity securities are valued on the basis of
closing quoted market prices available at the Pakislan Stock Exchange,

Pakistan Investment Bonds /
Market Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Market Treasury Bills are derived
using PKRV rates (Reuters page).

Term Finance Certificates and
Bonds

Investments in debt securities (comprising Term Finance Certificates, Bonds and any
other security issued by a company or a body corporate for the purpose of raising
funds in the form of redeemable capital) are valued on the basis of the rates
announced by the Mutual Funds Assoclatlon of Pakistan (MUFAP} in accordance with
the methodology prescribed by the SECP,

Derivatives

The fair values of derivatives which are not quoted in active markets are determined
by using valuation technlgues. The valuation fechniques take inte account the
relevant underlying parameters including foreign currencies involved, interest rates,
yield curves, volatilities, contracts duration, ete.

39.2 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within leve! 3

39.3

38.4

Fixed assets - Land and building

Non-banking assets undar
satisfaction of claims

Fixed assets and Non-banking assets under safisfaction of claims are carried at
revalued amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3 measurement) based
on their assessment of the market values as disclosed in note 10 and 13
respectively. The valuations are conducted by the valuation experts appointed by the
Bank which are also on the panel of Stale Bank of Pakistan. The valualion experts
used a market based approach to arrive at the fair value of the Bank's properlies.
The market approach usaed prices and other relevant information generated by
market transactions involving identical or comparable cr similar properlies. These
values are adjusied to reflect the current condition of the properties, The effect of
changes in the unohservable inputs used in the valuations cannol be determined with
certalnty, accordingly a qualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in
these financial statements,

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hlerarchy levels at the date the event
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during

the year.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognilion at
fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observahle,

DO
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As at December 31, 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tofal
Rupees in '000
©On balance sheet financial instruments
ltems carried at fair value
Financial assets classified as 'held-for-trading securities*
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments
Federal Government Securilies - 55,598,469 - 55,598,489
Shares 487,185 - - 487,185
Nen Governmeant Debt Securities - - - -
Open end mutual funds - 455,902 ~ 455,802
487,185 56,054,371 . 56,541,556
Financial assets classified as "available-for-sale securifies'
Financial assets - measured at falr value
Investments
Fedsral Government Securities - 47,019,374 - 47,019,374
Shares 1,993,246 - - 1,993,248
Non Government Debt Securities - 776,975 - 776,975
Open end mulual funds - 1,222,869 - 1,222,869
Fareign Securities - - - -
1,993,246 49,019,218 - §1,012,464
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investments
Federal Government Securifies - 31,341,410 - 31,241,410
- 31,341,410 - 31,341,410
2,480,431 _ 136,414,999 - 138,895,430
Non-Financlal Assets
Revalued fixed assets - - 3,797,180 3,797,180
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - " 1,182,425 1,182,425
- - 4,979,605 4,979,605
Off balance sheet financial instruments
Commitments in respect of:
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Purchase - 33,445,100 - 33,445,100
Sale - 22,159,074 - 22,169,074
Forward government securities
Purchase - 499,818 - 499,818
Derivative instruments
Interest rate swaps (notional principal} - 5,765,969 - 5,765,969

r.:)n.ﬁ) ?}
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As at Decomber 31, 2018

JS BANK LIMITED

Level 1 Laval 2 l.evel 3 Total
Rupees in '000
On balance shoet financlal instruments
Items carried at fair value
Financial assets classified as 'held-for-trading securities’
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments
Faderal Government Securities - 41,368,514 - 41,368,514
Shares 993,812 - - 993,812
Non Government Debt Securities - 133,356 - 133,356
Open end mutual funds - 378,945 - 378,945
993,812 41,880,815 - 42 874,627
Financial assets classified as 'available-for-sale securities'
Financlal assets - measured at falr value
Investments
Federal Government Securities - 52,541,122 - 52,541,122
Shares 2,586,797 - - 2,586,797
Non Government Debt Securities - 808,526 - 808,626
QOpen end mutual funds - 1,167 455 - 1,167,456
Foreigh Securities - 5,868,382 - 5,868,382
2,586,797 60,375,585 - 62,962,382
Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at falr value
Investments
Federal Government Securities - 39,836,881 - 39,836,581
- 39,836,881 - 36,835,881
3,580,600 142,093,281 145,673,890
Non-Financial Assets
Revalued fixed assels - - 1,659,236 1,659,236
Non-banking assets acguired in satisfaction of clalms - - 185,290 185,200
- - 1,844 526 4,844 526
Off balance sheet financial instruments
Commitments in respect of;
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Purchase - 21,946 624 - 21,946 624
Sale - 13,319,774 - 13,319,774
Forward government securities
Purchase - 209,530 - 209!530
Sale - 1,494 554 - 1,494,554
Derivative instruments
Cross currency swaps (notional principal} - 5,254,792 - 5,254,792
Options (notional principal) - 2,627,781 - 2627 781

oL
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Mintmum Capital Reguirement {MCR):
Paid-up capital {nei of lossas)

Capital Adequacy Ratio [CAR):

Efigible Common Equity Tler 1 (CET 1) Capital
Efigible Additlonal Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital

Total Eliginie Tier 1 Capital

Eligible Tier 2 Capital

Totai Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2}

Risk Welghted Assets (RWAS):
Credit Risk

Market Risk

Operational Risk

Tolal

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratlo
Tolal Capital Adequacy Ratle

Banks should specify the capital requirements applicable to thern including the minimum capital adequagy ratio

requirements.

J8 BANK LIMITED

{Current Year)

(Prior Year)

Rupees in '000

10119 242 10,119,242
16,145,623 14,588,320
2,118,958 1.031.067
18,264,581 15,619,387
4,965,069 5,211,580
23,229,650 20,830,067
142,862,324 140,564,647
4,218,390 5,604,964
22,096,562 17,009,023
168,178,286 163,178,634
8.54% 8.84%
10.80% 9.57%
13.73% 12.77%

Banks should also disclose the approach followed by them for determining credit risk, market risk and operational risk exposures in

the capilal adequacy calculation.

Leverage Ratic (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Total Exposures
Leverage Ratio

Liquldity Coverage Ratio [LCR):
Total High Qualily Liquid Assets
Total Net Cash Ouifiow

Liguidity Coverage Ralio

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
Total Avaitable Slable Funding
Totat Required Stable Funding

Net Stabfe Funding Ratio

The link lo the full disclosure is available at htips:/ivww.jsbl.com/informationffinancial-reports/

RISK MAMAGEMENT

18,284,582 15,618,387
544 436,725 463,731,398
3.35% 3.37%

83,221,592 123,802,091

65,819,412 47,805,907

149.09% 280.06%
308,715,925 237,773,400
274,288 842 225,716,392

112.56% 106.34%

Risk Managemenl is & discipline at the care of every financial institution and encompasses all the activities that affect
its risk profile. At the Bank, it involves identification, measurement, monitaring and controlling risks to ensure thai:

a) The individuals who take or manage risks clearly understand it;

h) The Bank's Risk exposure is within the limits established by Board of Directors (BoD);

¢) Risk taking decisions are in fine with the business strategy and objectives set by BoD;

d) The expected payoffs compensate for the risks taken;
&) Risk taking decisions are axplicil and clear;
f}  Sufficient capital as a buffer is available to take risk; and

g} Risk management function is independent of risk taking unil.

pEy)



76 J8§ BANK LIMITED

The Bank has a comprehensive set of Risk Maragement Policies, praclices and procedures which enable the Bank to
take into consideration, in an appropriate manner, all major kinds of risks mainly credit, market, liquidity, operational
and IT security risks. Keeping in view the dynamics of internal and external environment, we regularly review and

update our Risk Management policies and procedures in accordance with ragulatory environment and international
standards.

Risk Management activiles remaln at the forefront of all activilies of the Bank which places the highest priotity on
conducting its business in a prudent manner In Iine with tha relevant laws and regulatory raquirements.

Risk managament framework of tha Bank includes:

a) Clearly defined risk management policies and procedures covering risk identification, acceptance, measurement,
monitoring, reporting and control;

b)  Well constituted organizational structure, defining clearly roles and responsibilities of individuals invelved in risk
taking as well as managing It. The Bank, in addition o risk management funclions for various risk categories, has
instituted an Integrated Risk Managemen! Committee (IRMC), Credit Risk Committee {CRC), Operational Risk
Management Commitlee (OCRMC) as well as Central Credlt Committee (CCC). IRMC oversees the overall risk
management at the bank and provide guidance in setting strateglc targets as well as concentration limits and
monitor progress refated to earnings growth, keeping in view the capital conslraints and also adhere to the
concentration limits. The IRMC monitors the sirategic target and aggregate limits at the Business Group level and
concentration limits (by indusiry, geography, size, tenor) so that one category of assets or dimension of risk
cannot materially harm the performance of the Bank. CRC monifors the advances portfolio, concentrations limits,
aggregate Hmits at business level and various house keeping elements under Credit Administration. ORMC
oversees the effectiveness of operational risk management for maintanance and implementation of operational
risk management framawork. It also moniters the Business Continuity Planning and reviews findings of any other
management or board's sub commillee. Whereas, Central Credit Commitlee (CCC) Is entrusted with the
responsibility of monitoring lending risk profile of the bank, CCC meets regularly to actively supervise credit risk
across its lending portfolic.

¢) An effective management information system that ensures flow of information from operational level to top
management and a system to address any exceptions observed; and

dy A mechanism to ensure an ongoing review of systems, policies and procedures for risk management and
procedures to adopt changes.

While the overall responsibility of risk management rests with the BoD, it is the duly of Senior Management to devise
risk management strategy by setting up well defined policies and procedures for mitigating / controlling risks, duly
approved by the Board,

Giving due consideration to the above, the Bank has put in place the fallowing hisrarchy of Risk Management:
- Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC);

Integrated Risk Management Committee {IRMC) comprises of the President / Chief Executive Officer (CEQ),
Deputy CEQ, Chief Risk Officer, Chisf Financial Officer, Group Head Investmsnt Banking & Emerging Business,
Group Head Oparations & Technology, Head of Compliance, Chief of Staff, Head of Treasury and Head Internal
Audil {guest member).

- Asset - Liabllity Commitlee {(ALCO) comprises of the President / Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Deputy CEO,
Treasurer, Chief Risk Cfficer, Chief Financial Officer, Group Head tnvestment Banking & Emerging Business,
Head of Product Management & Business Head Consumer Banking and attended by Other Business Heads.

- Central Credit Committee (CCC) comprising of tha Prasident / CEQ, Deputy CEQ, Chief Risk Officer, Chief
Financial Officer. Group Head inveslment Banking & Emerging Business, Chief of Staff and Head of Operational
and Environmental Risk (for environmental risk onlv)

- Credit Risk Commiltze (CRC) comprises of President/CEQ, Deputy CEQ, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial

Officer, Group Head Investment Banking & Emerging Business, Regional Credit Heads, Head CAD, Head of
Consumer Risk, Head Enterprise Risk Management and Head Internal Audit (guest member)

JREN



77 J8 BANK LIMITED

- Operational Risk Management Commiltee comprises of the Depul'y CEOQ, Chief Risk Officer, Group Head
Operations & Technology, Country Head Branch Banking Operations, Group Head Human Resourses Head of
Compliance, Head of Service Management, Head Enterprise Risk Management and Head Internal Audit (guest
member).

-  IT Steering Commilttes (ITSC) comprises of PresidentYCEQ, Deputy CEQ, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Group Head Cperations & Technology, Chief Information Officer, Chief Information Security Officer, Chlef
of Staff, Group Head Investment Banking & Emerging Business, Chief Digital Officer, Country Head Branch
Banking Operalions and Head Product Development & Consumer Business.

- Risk Management Group (RMG), a dedlcated and indepsndent sel-up headsed by Chief Risk Officer and
comprises of Regional Credit Heads, Heads of Market & Liquidity Risks, Operational Risk and Treasury Middle

Office, Consumer Risk, Credit Adminislration, Special Assets Management, Informalion Securily, Strategic
Projecls & Cluanlitative Analysis and Enterprise Risk Management.

RMG is managed by Chief Risk Officer to supervise the following Divisions:

a) Credit Risk Management (CRM) covering Corporate / Commercial, Agricultural and Retail Banking Risks
b} Operational Risk Management (ORM)

¢) Market Risk Management {MRM)

d) Treasury Middle Office

&) Basel 11/l Implementation Unil

fy  Credit Administration Dapartmant (CAD)

q) Speclal Assels Management (SAM)

hy  Information Secuerity

i) Consumer Risk

)  Strategic Projects & Quantitative Analysis

The Bank's RMG generatas the requisite risk reporting for the different tiers of management. These are also subjected
to intarnal audit review.

Risk Matrix / Categories

The Bank, in common with olher banks, generates its revenues by accepting Country, Credit, Liquidity, Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book, Market, Operational and other risks. Effective management of these risks is the decisive
faclor in the Bank's profitability.

Risk Appetite

The Bank's risk appelite is reflected in its endeavours to maintain a favourable credit rating and encompasses the
following:

- The business strategy

«  The expectations of stakeholders at different time horizons

- The characteristics of the risk-bearing entities

- The nature and characleristics of the risks undertaken

- The possible spread of risk situations across organizationa! units, assets-al-risk, and future time horizons.

Risk appetite drives business activity. it combines anticipations in risk and profitability with management preferences to

contrel capital and resource allocation, as well as the distribution of exposure across activities and portfolios,

The Bank's hedging strategy is embedded in its risk management practices for addressing material categories of risk.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibilily that one party to a financial instroment will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the
olher parly to incur a financial loss. Credil risk is managed in terms of credit policies, approved by tha BoD and regulations issued by the
SBP. The bank is sxposed to credit risk on loans and advancas, fund placements with financlal Institutions and csdain Investmants,

Credit risk managemeni is an ongoing process. The overall credit policy and the credil risk Instructions are issued by the Board of
Dlreclors. In this regards, a Central Credit Committea (CCC) is entrustad with tha rasponsibllity of monltaring lending risk profile of the
bank. In order to malntain healthy growth of the cradil porifolio, the Bank's Credit Risk Management processes are consistently upgraded
and improved to meet fulure challenges.

The Bank's strategy is to minimise credit risk through product, geography, indusiry and cusfomer diversification. Credit limits are
ostablished for alf counter-parties after a careful assessment of their credit warlhiness. An effeclive credit granting procedure, which
requires pre-sanclion evalualion of credil proposal, adequacy of security and pre-disbursement examination of charge documents is in
place and managed by Risk Management Group (RMG) & Credit Administration Depariment (CAD). The Bank malntains a sound portfollo
diversifled in nature to counter the risk of ¢redit concentration and further confines risk through diversification of ils assels by geographical
and industrial sector. For managing impaired assels in the porifolio, the Bank follows the Prudential Regulations and Risk Management
adelines issued by SBP and the Remedlal Manaaament Pollcy aporoved by 1he Board.

Crodit rlsk: Standardised approach
The Bank has adopted the Slandardised Approach of Basel It for risk weighing ils Credit Risk Exposuses.

The following table illustrales the approved Extarnal Credit Assassment Institutlens (ECAls) whose ratings are being ufillsad by the Bank
wilh eespect 10 malerial categories of exposures:

Exposures JCR-VIS PACRA MOOCDY'S FATCH S&P
Corperate ¥ e . - - .
Banks v v v ¥ '
SME's (retait

eXposures) v 4 - - -
Soveraigns + v v v v
Securitisations N4, NfA, NIA Ny WA,
Others (spacify) NIA NfA NA NIA MNIA

The Bank has used Issue Spacific Ratings for ratlng / risk welghing [ssue Speclfic Exposures and Entity Ralings for rating f risk welghing
claims against speciflc counterpartias. Bolh short and long tarm rafings have bean used to rate corrasponding shor and long farm
exposures. For this purpose, Mapping Grid has been provided by SBP as given below:

Long - Term Ratings Grades Mapping

SBP Rating PACRA JCR-VIS Fltoh Moody's B&P BECA Scores
Qracle
1 BB, A, F-v.v.y Aan AbA, 1
BA Adv+ Ab+ Aai Ab+
AA Al AA Aa2 Ay
b V. Ade And A
2 At At At Al A 2
o, A A Az A
A~ fald A A3 A
K] BBS+ BED+ BBO+ Baa1 BBEB+ 3
Boa aBB 2]=1=]) BaaZ [=]=1=3
BER BBB- BBB- Baaa BBB-
4 ag+ BB+ BB+ Bai Ha+ q
BB BB BB Baz BB
BE- BH- BB- Bn3 B28-
S B+ g+ B+ B1 B+ )
B B B B2 B
B- B- B- B3 8-
] CCC+ and CCC+ and CCC+ and Caal and CEEand 7T
below below below Below below
Shorl - Term Ratings Grades Mapping
SBP PACRA JOCR-VIS Fitch Moody's S&P
S1 A= A1 =1 /-1 A-1+, Al
52 A2 A-2 F2 P-2 A2
S3 A-3 A-3 F3 P-3 A-3
54 Others Others Others Others Others

Pollcles and processes for collateral valuation and management as regards Basel II;

Far Credit Risk Mitigation pusposas the Bank uses only the eligible collaterals under Comprehensive Approach of Cradit Risk Mitigation
under Slandardised Approach as prescrived by SBP under Circular No. 8 of 2006, which includes Cash and Cash Equivalent Securities
including Government Securities tiike Cash Margins, Lien on Bank Accounts, Foreign Deposlt Recelpts, Term Deposil Receipis, Pledge of
Oefense Saving Cerlificales, Regular Income Certificates, Special Saving Cerlificates, T-Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds elc.} and
Shares Listed on ihe Main index.

Under the Bank's palicy all coliaterals are subject to perfodic valuations 1o meonitor the adequacy of marging held, Shares / Marketable
securities are valued by the Bank on daily basis to calculate the Drawing Powar (DF). In case of any shorifall In the requisite marglns, the
DP is adjusied to the appropriste level and the business unils are informed fo lake appropriale action as per the apreement with the
customer.

Parliculars of bank's significant on-balance sheel and off-balance sheal cradit risk in various sectors are analysed as follows:

217



44.1.3

44.1.4

79

Gross lendings

Non-performing lendings

J& BANK LIMITED

Provision held

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Lendings to financial institutions Rupees in '000
Credit risk by public f private sector
Publie/ Government 8,186,732 - - - - -
Private 22,136,070 1,841,659 - - {1,262) {4312)
30,321,802 1,941,669 - - {i,2682) 4312)

Non-perforining

Gross investments investments Provision held

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Investment in debt securities Rupeas in '000
Credit risk by industry sector
Textile 391,478 391,478 391,478 391,478 391,478 391478
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 258,193 149,560 149,960 149,860 149,860 149,860
Construclion - 141,667 - - - -
Power {electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 142,857 214,286 - - -
Refinery 380,303 531,621 - - - -
Fertilizer - 265,099 - - - -
Transport, Storage and Communication 854,902 158,712 165,169 158,712 155,169 158,712
Financial 536,672 645 282 - - - -
Cthers 4,350,000 5,568,382 - - . -

3,924 405 8,356,387 896,607 700,060 698,507 700,050

Non-performing

Gross investments fnvestments Provision held
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Credit risk by public / private sector Rupees in '00Q
Publi¢/ Government . 3,231,444 - - - -
Private 3,924,405 5,124,943 596,507 700,050 696,607 700,050
3,924,405 8,356,387 696,507 700,050 696,607 700,050
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Gross Advances Non-performing Advances Provision held
201¢ 2018 2019 2018 2019 20118
44.1.5 Advances Rupees in '000

Credit risk by industry sector
Agri finance 5,286,334 4,260,641 207,192 73,275 397 824
Autornablle and transportation equipment 3,854,727 4,682,078 227,878 84,018 69,596 61,832
Broksrage 6,929,668 4 846,098 - 156,801 - 156,801
Cement 2,958,936 1,606,779 - - - -
Chemical 1,810,636 3,037,111 34,405 324,584 - -
Construction 5,806,032 4,960,152 112,803 - 3,236 -
Electronics and electrical appliances 237,458 260,812 35911 - - -
Engineering, |T and othar services 5,013,828 5,591,012 38,738 27,5488 26,325 2600
Farlilizer 4,446,138 3,811,120 1,348,824 1,348,383 1,348,943 1,348,843
Financial 2,410,683 2,194,635 - - - -
Food / confectionery / beverages 32,353,949 34,546,609 167,010 119,192 83,221 60,728
Individuals 31,512,188 33,308,319 1,533,451 668,385 238,185 114,847
Insurance and security 176,116 168,843 - - - -
Metal and sleel 8,824,679 10,075,944 1,614,845 1,833978 338,372 120,648
Mining and guatrying 159,069 56,973 . - . -
Paper { board / furniture 1,606,878 1,462,601 8,000 8,000 - -
Petroleum, oil and gas 4,135,890 4,530,087 80,053 32,559 29,618 21,357
Pharmaceulicals 5,722,234 5,300,071 4577 - - -
Plastic 2,004,738 2,128,861 538,745 - 483 -
Power and water 27,878,617 26,446,393 159,806 - - -
Real astate 3,493,350 2,305,823 1,300,000 1,300,000 - -
Shipbreaking 1,074,589 1,850,437 805,000 863,164 256,706 220,048
Storage 103,528 57,734 - . . ;
Sugar 2,609,984 2,794,493 200,000 270579 200,000 203,363
Tele-communication 2,709,181 2,474,279 - - - -
Textils

Composite 6,639,722 8,543,776 339,310 324,114 303,094 302 781

Ginning 1,612,059 1,669,933 48,949 48,949 20,157 3,270

Spinning 5,349,247 7,657,631 278,441 278,441 278,441 278 441

Weaving 9,988,010 10,360,474 47,289 45,650 3,726 || -

23,589,038 28,231,814 743,984 698,154 605,418 584,492

Transportation services 39,397,887 44,020,624 127,290 21,341 53,493 18,901
Trust and non-profit organisations 475,240 478,304 . - . -
Tyre 286,551 313,531 - 8 . .
Wholesale and relall irade 10,671,924 13,490,993 602,862 81,462 64,928 14 265
Others 9,658,279 6,169,550 321,800 199,024 40,020 650,249

246,793,936 255464 412 10,353,164 _ 8,309,467 3,339,941 2 980 888

Gross Advances Non-performing Advances Provision held

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rupees in "000

Credit risk by public / private sector

Publicf Government 656,471,870 59,571,898 . - - -
Private 190,321,965 195,8082,514 10,353,164 8,309,467 3,338,841 2,989,888

246,793,935 _ 256,464,412 10,363,164 8,309,467 3,339,941 2,889,868

2N



81

44.1.8 Credit risk by industry sector

Automobile and tfransportation equipment
Brokerage

Cemeni

Chemical

Construction

Elsctronics and electrical appliances
Engineering, |T and other services
Ferilizer

Financial

Food / confactionery / baverages
Individuals

Insurance and security

Metal and sisel

Mining and quatrying

Paper { board / furniture
Petroleum, vil and gas
Pharmaceulicals

Plastic

Power and water

Real astate

Shipbreaking

Sugar

Tele-communication

Textile

Compaosite

Ginning

Spinning

weaving

Transportation

Trust and non-profit organisalions
Tyre

Wholasale and retall trade
Others

Credit risk by public / private secfor

Publicf Government
Private

J5 BANK LIMITED

Contingencies and

commitmants
2019 2018
svemaneees RUPBBS 10 '000 - 2memnene

2,183,676 1,845,619
796,600 226,400
247,288 700,638
779,205 614,360
18,360,813 20,726,673
190,170 220,084
3,033,858 5,822,923
4,262,060 3,469,510
80,505,009 45,956,350
3,064,819 2,664,450
989,889 1,498,003
12,187 20,197
3,709,350 1,944,885
- 148,415
888,015 816,494
586,136 1,243,540
721,858 664,106
324,366 453,318
495,634 1,780,508
4,299,200 3,000
77,614 120,987
24,301 43,198
1,460,186 128,892
1,037,819 1,629,969
369,793 316,425
1,485,788 1,098,879
1,118,339 1,280,623
4,011,739 4,325,898

24,896 -
217,780 5,666
9.584 23,010
4,328,745 3,021,803
5,051,806 2,488,465

120,61 1 86380

Contingancles and
commitments

2018

=e-ememee= RUpEES In 000

2018

120,617,761 _ 100,985,389

120,517,764

100,985,389
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44.1.7  Conceniration of Advances

The Holding CGempany top 10 exposures gn the basis of tota) {funded and non-funded exposures) aggregaled to Rs. 85,938, milflon (2018: Rs.
91,153,787 million) are as following:

2049 2018
Note == Rupees In '000 -----
Funded 44,474 66,309,390 70,831,917
Non Funded 20,628,577 20,321,870
Total Exposure 44,1.7.2 86,937,967 91,153,787
44.1.71 There are no classified advances placed under top 10 exposuras.
44.1.7.2 The sanctioned limils against these top 10 exposures aggregated to Rs.85,937.967 million (2018: Rs.95,322.310 million).
418 Advances - Province/Region-wise Disbursement & Utilization
2019
Utllizatlon
Dishurs- KPK & AJK & Gilgit .
ements Punjab Sindh FATA Balochistan Islamabad Baitistan Bahrain
Province/Ragion
Punjab 80,305,925 80,306,925 . - . - - .
Sindh 146,335,149 . 146,335,149 - - “ - -
KPKincluding FATA 1,466,326 - - 1,456,326 - - - -
Balochistan 111,734 - - - 111,734 - - -
Islamabad 13,423,194 . - - - 13,423,194 - -
AJK including Gilgit-Baltistan 197,627 - - “ - - 197,827 -
Bahrain 4727124 - - - - - - 4,727,124
Tolal 246,657,079  _80.305.925  _146,335149 _1,486326 114,734 13,423,194 197,827 _ 4.727.124_
2018
Utilization
Risburs- KPK & AJK & Gilgit-
ements Punjab Sindh FATA Balochistan  lIslamabad Baltlstan Bahrain
Province/Region
Punjab 97,465,307 97 465,307 - - - - - -
Sindh 162,261,019 - 162,281,019 - - - - -
KPK including FATA 1,358,209 - - 1,358,208 - - - -
Balochistan 526,629 - - - 526,620 - - -
Islamabad 12,456,464 - - - - 12,456,464 - -
AJK including Gilgit-Ballisten 606,255 - - - - - 506,255 -
Bahrain 948 540 - - - - - - 948,540
Total 275,522,423 07465307 162261019 1338200 626620 74b5464 50655 048540
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Market Risk

Market risk ig the risk of loss due to adverse changes In Interest rates, foreign exchange rales, equity prices and market conditlons. From

the perspective of the Bank, market risk comprises of inlerest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and equily position risk, which ihe Banl¢ is
exposed to in its trading book.

The Bank has an approved market risk policy whersin the governance structure for managing market risk, measurement tools used and
the market risk exposure fimits have been addressed. The Bank's strategy for ntanaging market risk is to refata the level of risk exposures
to {heir risk appetite and the capital at hand.

The Board of Directors {BoD) and the Asset and Liability Committee {(ALCQ) are rasponsible for addressing market risk from a stralagic
perspective and are assisted by the market risk funclion in meeting these objectives.

The Market Risk Unit reporis directly to Chief Risk Officer and is responsibte for ensuring the imptementation of market risk policy in line
with the Bank's strategy.

Risk reporting undertaken by the market risk funclion includes:

a) Porlfolio Repods

by Limit moniloring reports

¢)  Sensilivity analysis , and

d)  Stress testing of the porifolio

Cudrently, the Bank is using lhe market risk standardised approach for the purpose of computing regulatory ¢apital, the details of which
are set out above.

Balance sheet split by trading and banking books

2019 2018
Banking Trading
hook book Total Banking book  Trading book Total
T Rupees in 000 o
Cash and balances
with reasury banks 25,680,349 - 26,689,340 32,110,840 - 32,110,840
Balances with othar banks 462,838 - 462,836 968,575 - 958,674
Lendings o financial institutions 30,320,540 - 30,320,540 1,937,347 - 1,937 347
Investmenls 86,970,001 55,598,489 142,568,470 107,321,460 41,368 614 148,689 974
Advances 242,844,509 . 242,944,508 251,890,918 - 251,980,918
Fixed assets 9,692,701 - 9,692,701 6,245,328 - 6,245,328
Intangible assets 2,274,360 - 2,271,360 2,169,877 - 2,169,877
Deferred tax assets 8,756 - 8,756 287,082 - 287,062
Other assets 15,668,272 - 15,588,273 12,354,155 - 12,354,155
Assets held for sale 374,000 - 374,000 - - -
414,222 328 55,598 489 469 820,784 415,385,562 41,368,614 456,764,076

Foreign Exchange Risk

Main objective of foreign exchange risk management is to ensure that the foreign exchange exposure of the Bank lies within the defined
appetite of the Bank.

Daily reports are genarated to monitor the internal and regulatory Emits with respect to the overall foreign cuirency exposures, The overall
net open position, whether short or long has the potential to negatively impact the profit and loss depending upon the direction of
movement in foreign exchange rales.

Foreign exchange opsn and mismatched posltions are marked to market on a daily basis.

Currency risk arises where the value of financial instruments changes due to changes in foreign exchange rates. In order to manage
cufrency risk exposurs the bank enters into ready / spot, forward and swap transactions with SBP and In the Interbank market. The Bank's
foreign exchange exposure comprises of forward contracts, foreign cuirencies cash in hand, balances with banks abread, forelgn
placement with SBP and foraign currencies assets and labillitias. The net open positlon is managed within the statutory limits, as fixed by
SBP. Countar partlas limit are also fixed to limit risk concentration. Appropriate segregation of duties exists between the front and back
office functions while compliance with {he net epen position limit is independantly monitored on an ongoing basis.
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Net forefgn

Cff-balance currency

Assets Liahilities sheef ifems exposure

memmmmremmmnaceanane RUPEOS N 000 ---rmmmmeemeen
United States Dollar 12,248,588 20,805,267 8,586,023 29,344
Great Britain Pound 879,840 2,696,794 1,778,936 (38,018)
Eurg 585,843 901,267 326,018 10,594
Other currencies 41,154 34,018 4,829 11,964
13,755,425 24,437 347 10,695,806 13,884
2018

Nef foreign

Off-halance currency

Assets Liabillties sheet items exposure

smmmmmrremeaceeennse RUPEES IN '000 ommeeeanaminanan

United States Dollar 17,831,833 24,723,033 7,101,304 210,104
Great Britain Pound 740,134 2,887,806 1,520,883 (426,779)
Euro 1,054,817 873,899 (228,641} (45,723)
Other currencies 203,665 366,289 217,570 54,946
19,830,449 28,651,027 8,613,126 (207,452)

Equity position Risk

Equily positions in the banking book Include Investmant in squities that are available-for-sale or hald for strategic investment purposes.
These investmends are generally regarded as riskier relalive to fixad income securities owing to the inherant volatilily of stock market
prices. The Bank mitigates these risks through diversification and capping maximum exposures in a single cempany, compliance with
regulatory requirement, and following the guidelines laid down in the Bank's Investment Policy as sel by the Board of Direclors (BoD), The
Bank follows a delivery versus payment settlement system thereby minimizing risk available in relation to settlement risk.

Equity price risk is managed by applying trading limit and scrip-wise and poriolio wise nominal Emits.

2018 2018
Banking book  Trading book  Banking bhook

Rupees in '060

Trading book

Impact of 5% change In equity prices onh
- Profit and loss account
- Other comprehensive income

105,788 - 127.845 -

Yiald / Interest Rate Risk in tha Banking Book (IRRBB}-Baset Il Spacific

Yialdf Interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheel instruments is based on the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity date
and for off-palance sheet instruments is based on seltlament dale. This also refers to the non-trading market risk. Apart from the gap
analysis between the market rate sensitive assets and liabililies as per the table given below, the banks/DFIs are required to disclose as
the following also:

The nature of IRRBB and key assumptions, including assumptions regarding loan repaymen!s and behavior of non-maturity deposits, and
frequency of IRRBB measurements.

The increase (decline} in eamings or economic value {or any olher relevant measures used by management) for upward and downward
shocks according to management's mathod for measuring IRRBB, broken down by currencies (if any, and than translated into Rupees).

2019 2018
Banking book  Trading book  Banking book
Rupess in "000

Trading book

impact of 5% change in equily prices on
- Profit and loss aceount 301,595 534,770 {487,440) 401,571
- Other comprehansive income 248,246 - 113,383 -
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91 JS BANK LIMITED

Operational risk

The Bank currently uses Basic Indicator Approach o Operational Risk for regulatory capital calculations. We
define operational risk as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
system or from external events. With the evolution of Operational Risk Management into a separate distinct
discipline, the Bank's strategy is to further strengthen its risk management system along new industry
standards. Accordingly the Bank has set up a separate Operational Risk Management {ORM) Unit. ORM Unit
resides within Risk Management Group (RMG). Its responsibility is to implement Operational Risk
management tools across the bank for effective measurement and monitoring of operational risk faced by
different areas of the Bank,

Bank’s operational risk management process involves a structured and uniform approach across the bank. It
includes risk identification and assessments, the monitoring of Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) and Risk Contro!
Self-Assessment (RCSA) activities for key operational risks. In order to build a robust operational risk
monitoring mechanism, an Operational Risk Steering Committee {ORSC) has been constituted to effectively
address operational risk issues.

The bank has implemented a comprehensive “Operational Risk Management Framework” which has also
been approved by the Board of Directors. The purpose of bank-wide Operational Risk Management
Framework is aimed at laying out clearly defined roles and responsibifities of individuals / units across
different functions of the bank that are involved in performing various operational risk management tasks.
Operational risk is much more pervasive in a financial institution and every operating unit is exposed to
operational rigk, regardiess of whether it is a business or a support function. This framework has been
devised to explain the various building blocks of the operational risk management processes, and their inter-
refationships. The framework also captures both qualitative and quantitative guidelines for managing and
quantifying operational risks across the Bank.

The ORM Unit conducts operaticnal risk profiling for all major opsrational areas of the bank and assists
various functions of the bank in developing KRIs which are monitored against predsfined threshclds,
Findings from KRIs are used as predictive indicators of potential operational risks.

Operation risk loss data collection is governed by bank's Transaction in Difficulty (TID) Policy which has been
deveioped and implemented to collate operaticnal losses and near misses in a systemalic and organized
way.

The bank's Business Continuity (BCP} Policy includes risk management strategies to mitigate inherent risks
and prevent interruption of mission critical services caused by disaster events. The resilience of BCP is
tested and rehearsed cn an annual basis by the bank.

DERIVATIVE RISK

The policy guidelines for taking derivative exposures are approved by the Board of Directors (BOD). Bank's
Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for reviewing and managing associated risks of the
transactions.

The nature, scope and purpose of derivatives business, for trading purposes or hedging purpose and the
types of derivative in which they deal.

The overall responsibility for offering derivative products and sustaining profitability lies with the Treasurer
and in his absence with his delegate. The Market Risk nit / Treasury Middle Office of the Bank responsible for
measurement & monitoring of the market risk exposures, analysis of present and potential risk factors.

The Market Risk Unit also monitors associated Credit, Market and Liquidity Risk in line with Board of
Directors approved limit framework. The unit coordinates with the business regarding approvals for
derivatives risk lmits and produces various reports / analysis for ALCQ / BRMC on periodic basis. These
reports provide details of outstanding un-hedged positions, profitability and status of compliance with limits,
Treasury Operations records derivatives activity in the Bank's books and is responsible for reporting to the
SBP.
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92 JS BANK LIMITED

The derivative transaction such as Cross Currency Swaps carries credit risk which is the risk that a party to a
derivative contract will fail to perform its obligalion. There are two types of credit risk associated with
derivative transactions; 1) settlement, and 2) pre-setflement risk. Bank's Central Credit Committee is
responsible for reviewing and managing associated Counterparty Credit Risks of the transaction.

The Bank has also entered into Foreign Currency & Commodity Options from its Wholesale Banking Branch
Bahrain for market making activilies. The Bank can hedge its risk by taking on & off-balance sheet position in
interbank market, where available.

48, CUSTOMER SATISFACTION AND FAIR TREATMENT

The Holding Company is committed to providing its customers with the highest leve! of service quality and
satisfaction and have therefore set-up an independent service managsment function that oversees servige
quality, phone banking, problem resolution and the fair treatment of customers.

The average time taken to resolve these complaints was 5 days. Its complaint handling policy and grievance
redressal mechanism ensures that complaints are resolved in a timely manner and recurrence of complaints
is prevented where possible. Customers have the oplion of registering their complaints at its branches,
phone banking center, the Holding Company's website and via email, Complaint management process is
kept as transparent as possible through registration, acknowledgement, interim response where applicable,
resolution and root cause analysis of recurring complaints. Customers are also given the option of contacting
the Banking Mohtasib office in case they are dissatisfied with the response received from the Holding
Company.

To create enhanced visibility of the recourse mechanism available o ils customers, the Bank has
incorporated awareness messages of its complaint handling function in several customer communications
such as account statements, ATM screens, letters and SMS messages. Complete grievance redressal
mechanism, confact channels and online feadback forms have been made available through the Holding
Company website, and email broadcasts have been sent to the customers for customer education and
awareness.

Fair Treatment of Customers is an integral part of our corporate culture. The Holding Company has
institutionalized a 'Consumer Protection Framework', Its priority is to keep customer benefits in mind while
designing, selling and managing products and services, without any discrimination. It has focus to maintain
fairness in its customer dealings, clarity in communication, develop a service cuifure and design an effective
grievance handling mechanism. The Holding Company has aiso focus on financial iteracy of its customers,
for prometing responsible conduct and informed financial decisions by consumers, through cur consumer
education and Financial Literacy Program.

47. GENERAL
47.1  Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors of a subsidiary company (JS Global Capital Limited) in
their meeting held on February 20, 2020:

i Gave an in-principal approval to the management of the subsidiary company to start the negotiation
process for the acquisition of certain properties (including the leasehold premises) from a related party,
subject to the fair market valuation as determined by the independent valuer and compliance with
regulatory requirements. The estimated cost of the subject properties as estimated by the management
is Rs.800 million; and

i Authorized the management of the subsidiary company to conduct detailed due difigence, work out
share value and appoint an advisor / consultant for the purpose to participate in the process of
acquisition of upto 77.12% of the total issued paid up share capital of BIPL Securities Limited.

47.2 Others

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the revised format for
financial statements of Banks issued by the SBP through BPRD Circular no. 2 dated January 28, 2018 and
related clarifications / medifications.

The figures in the consolidated financial statements have been reunded off to the nearast thousand,
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48, DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
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tatements were autherized for lssue by the Board of Directors of the Bank in
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attern of Sharehol

As at December 31, 2019

1 588 Shareholding From 1 to 100 7371
2 584 Shareholding From 101 to 500 233,661
3 587 Shareholding From 501 to 1000 550,538
4 1197 Shareholding From 1001 to 5000 3,435,202
5 364 Shareholding From 5001 to 10000 2,896,080
6 724 Shareholding From 10001 to 500000 356,419,386
7 13 Shareholding From 50001 to 1000000 9,373,360
8 30 Shareholding From 100001 to 5000000 76,545,281
9 3 Shareholding From 500001 to 10000000 20,158,719
10 8 Shareholding From | 10000001 to 1297464262 1,147 844,664
Total 4098 Percentage: 100% 1,297,464,262
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Banks, devalopment finance Institutions, nan-banking finance
companies,

Insurance Companies

Birectors and their spousels) and minor children
Mr, Kalim-ur-Rehman

Mr. Adil Matcheswala

Mr. Ashraf Nawabi

Mr, G. M. Sikandar

Mr. Munawar Alam Siddiqui
Ms. Nargis All Akber Ghaloo
Mr, Hassan Afzal

Mr. Sohait Aman

Mr. Basir Shamsie

Mrs, Safia Munawar

Mrs. Hafsa Shamsie

Sub -Totals:

Associated companies, undertakings and refated parties
Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited

Modarabas and Mutual Funds
NIT &ICP

Executives

Foreign investors

Others

Individual - Local

G-Totals

Details of the transaciions carried out by the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company

2,185,851

19,508,194

1,500,001
200,000
1

1

1

33.001

1

1

1
155,000
328,320

2,216,328

973,307,324

9,200,643
972

20,004
28,261,383
112,827,937
149,864,626

1,297,464,262

017

1.50

017

75.02

0.1
0.00
0.01
218
8.70
11,55

100

Secretary, thelr spouse and minor children during the period from January 01, 2019 to December 31, 2019.

None of the Directors, CEQ, CFQ and Company Secretary, their spouse and minor children during the year Januray
01, 2019 to December 31, 2019 carried out transactions in the shares of the bank.
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FORM OF PROXY

14th Annual General Meeting

The Company Secretary

J5 Bank Limited

Shaheen Commercial Complex

Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road

P.O. Box 4847 Karachl 74200 Pakistan

KWe of beingmember(s)of )5 BankLimitedholding
OrdinarysharesasperReqgisterFolioio/CDC/A/CNo. herebyappoint
of or failing him of as my / our proxy to

attend, act and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 14th Annual General Meeling of the Bank to be held

on March 27, 2020 and / or any adjournment thereof,

As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2020 signed by

in the presence of (name & address)

Witness:

1. Name:

Address Signature on Rs. 5/-
Revenue Stamp

CNIC or

Passport No.

The signature should
agree with the specimen

Gi
ignature registered with the Bank

Witness:

2. Name:

Address

CNIC ar

Passport No.

Signature

{)@JS BANK ] Annual Report 2019
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Important:

1.

A member of the Bank entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend
and vote Instead of him / her.

The proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be recelved at the Office of the Bank situated at Shaheen Commercial
Complex Dr, Zizuddin Ahmed Road, Karachl 74200 not Jess than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

Na person shall act as proxy unless he / she himself [s a member of the Bank, except that a corparation may appoint a
person whao is not 2 member.

If a member appoints more than one proxy and / or more than one Instruments of proxy are deposited by a member with
the Bank, all such Instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

Beneficial Owner of the physical shares and the shares reglstered in the name of Central Depoasitary Company of Pakistan
Ltd (COC) ang / or their proxles are required to produce their original Computerized Natlona! 1dentity Card {CNIC) or
Passport for identification purposes at the time of attending meeting. The Form of proxy must be submltted with the Bank
within the stipulated time, duly witnessed by two persons whase names, address and CNIC numbers must be mentloned
on the form, along with attested coples of CNIC or the Passport of the beneficial owner and the proxy. In case of a corporate
entity, the Board of Directors' Rasolution / Power of Attorney along with the specimen signature shall be submitted {unless
it has been provided earlier along with the proxy form to the Bank).

Annual Report 2019 | 44JS BANK
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